A {ERIDIAN~

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING

City Council Chambers, 33 East Broadway Avenue Meridian, Idaho
Thursday, May 20, 2021 at 6:00 PM

All materials presented at public meetings become property of the City of Meridian. Anyone desiring accommodation
for disabilities should contact the City Clerk's Office at 208-888-4433 at least 48 hours prior to the public meeting.

Agenda

Scan the QR Code to
sign up in advance to
provide testimony.

Public Hearing process: Land use development applications begin with
presentation of the project and analysis of the application by Planning Staff.
The applicant is then allowed up to 15 minutes to present the project. Then,

®H"?f ® members of the public are allowed up to 3 minutes each to address
e =T T Commissioners regarding the application. Any citizen acting as a
F= b representative of a Homeowner’s Association may be allowed up to 10

minutes to speak on behalf of represented homeowners consenting to yield
their time to speak. After all public testimony, the applicant is allowed up
to 10 minutes to respond to questions and comments. Commissioners may
ask questions throughout the public hearing process. The public hearing is
then closed, and no further public comment is heard.

VIRTUAL MEETING INSTRUCTIONS
Limited seating is available at City Hall. Consider joining the meeting virtually:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81750315340

Or join by phone: 1-669-900-6833
Webinar ID: 817 5031 5340

ROLL-CALL ATTENDANCE
__ Nate Wheeler ___Andrew Seal ___Bill Cassinelli
___ Nick Grove ____Maria Lorcher ___Steven Yearsley

____Rhonda McCarvel, Chairperson

ADOPTION OF AGENDA
CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item]

1. Approve Minutes of the May 6, 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting




2. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Jump Creek North Four-Plex (H-2021-

0018) by Kent Brown Planning Services, Located at the Northwest Corner of N.
Black Cat Rd. and W. Gondola Dr.

3. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Mountain America Credit Union Drive-
Through (H-2021-0019) by Mountain America Credit Union, Located on the West
Side of N. Ten Mile Road, Approximately 750 Feet South of Chinden Blvd.

4. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for The Oasis (H-2021-0004) by Brian Tsai of
Balboa Ventures, Located at 3185 E. Ustick Rd.

5. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for The Vault (H-2021-0017) by Joshua
Evarts, Located at 140 E. Idaho Ave.

ITEMS MOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item]
ACTION ITEMS

6. Public Hearing for Prevail North Subdivision (H-2021-0021) by Schultz
Development, LLC, Located at 5150 S. Meridian Rd.

A. Request: Annexation and Zoning of 5.63 acres of land with an R-8 zoning

B. Request: A Preliminary Plat consisting of 19 single-family residential lots
and 4 common lots on 5.25 acres of land.

7. Public Hearing for Gem Prep South (H-2021-0020) by Paradigm Design, Located
Approximately 1/8 of a Mile East of S. Locust Grove Rd., on the South Side of E.
Lake Hazel Rd.

A. Request: Conditional Use Permit for an educational institution on 5.95 acres
of land in the C-C zoning district that proposes direct access via a collector
street and where there is not a safe, separate pedestrian and bikeway access
between the neighborhood and the school site.

8. Public Hearing for The 10 at Meridian (H-2021-0025) by J-U-B Engineers, Inc.,
Located at 75 S. Ten Mile Rd.

A. Request: Annexation of 40.30 acres of land with R-40 (13.04-acres) and C-C
(27.25-acres) zoning districts.

ADJOURNMENT




Cﬂ/ﬁ%«-«

AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Approve Minutes of the May 6, 2021 Planning and Zoning Commission
Meeting




Item 1.

Meridian Planning and Zoning Meeting May 6, 2021.

Meeting of the Meridian Planning and Zoning Commission of May 6, 2021, was called to
order at 6:00 p.m. by Chairman Rhonda McCarvel.

Members Present: Chairman Rhonda McCarvel, Commissioner Bill Cassinelli,
Commissioner Andrew Seal, Commissioner Nick Grove, Commissioner Maria Lorcher

and Commissioner Nathan Wheeler.

Others Present: Adrienne Weatherly, Ted Baird, Bill Parsons, Joe Dodson, Alan
Tiefenbach and Dean Willis.

ROLL-CALL ATTENDANCE

Lisa Holland ____X___ Maria Lorcher
__X____Andrew Seal ___X___ Nick Grove
__X___ Nathan Wheeler ____X___ Bill Cassinelli

_ X Rhonda McCarvel - Chairman

McCarvel: Okay. Good evening and welcome to the Planning and Zoning Commission
meeting for May 6, 2021. The Commissioners who are present for this evening's meeting
are at City Hall on Zoom and in our hearts. We also have staff from the city attorney and
clerk's offices, as well as the city planning department. If you are joining us on Zoom this
evening we can see that you are here. You may observe the meeting. However, your
ability to be seen on screen and talk will be muted. During the public testimony portion
of the meeting you will be unmuted and, then, be able to comment. Please note that we
cannot take questions until the public testimony portion. If you have a process question
during the meeting, please, e-mail cityclerk@meridiancity.org and they will reply as
quickly as possible. If you simply want to watch the meeting we encourage you to watch
this streaming on the city's YouTube channel. You can access it at meridiancity.org/live.
And let's begin with roll call.

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

McCarvel: The first item on the agenda is the adoption of the agenda.
Seal: | move we adopt the agenda.

Cassinelli: Second.

McCarvel: It has been moved and seconded to adopt the agenda. All those in favor say
aye. Motion carries.

MOTION CARRIED: ALL AYES.




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 2 of 95

COMMUNITY ITEMS
1. Recognition and Remembrance of Commissioner Holland

McCarvel: It is with heavy hearts that we begin this meeting, as we do so with the
incredible loss of our fellow Commissioner Lisa Holland. We welcomed her on this
Commission three years ago and as most who knew her, even for a short time, | felt
immediate friendship and warmth and looked forward to her smile with every encounter.
| always felt she was wise beyond her years with great knowledge and passion for this
community. At 34 she had already made a great impact in her work at the Boise Valley
Economic Partnership, Kuna economic development and we were lucky to have her
perspective as a volunteer in advising Meridian's current Comprehensive Plan and on this
Commission. She had a great gift to communicate and make common sense out of
complex issues and although we as a community suffer the loss of her vision and passion,
it is no measure to the loss her family has experienced by the passing of Lisa, her infant
son Milo, and her sister Laurie in a tragic accident. | pray for peace for her family and |
know she will forever be remembered in my heart. We are just going to take a few minutes
if anybody else has any comments they would like to share before we move on.

Pogue: Madam Chair, this is Andrea Pogue. Can you hear me?
McCarvel: Yes. Go ahead.

Pogue: So, thank you for your words, because they are exactly what I'm feeling as well
and all my love and condolences go out to Lisa's husband and family. She was really
taken -- they were taken too soon and they will be sorely missed by so many and | really
will miss Lisa profoundly.

McCarvel: Thank you.
Cassinelli;: Madam Chair?
McCarvel: Commissioner Cassinelli.

Cassinelli: As | have been thinking about this over the last couple of days -- and | miss
the fact that | haven't been here for a year, we have been on Zoom. Lisa and | sat next
to each other over here and -- to begin with and we didn't necessarily always agree on --
on every -- every item that came before us. | think -- and we would often see things from
a different perspective, but | greatly valued her opinions, her perspective, and it was -- it
was -- it was so respectful and -- and | think there was just a -- there was a great
appreciation of one another and she was truly wonderful to work beside and -- and | will
definitely miss her and, likewise, my -- my thoughts and prayers go out to her family and
-- and I'm just going to say there was a part of an article that | read on her, it was a friend
of hers that was interviewed, and -- and said she loved to -- she lived music, she loved to
dance and she loved Jesus and | was -- | was comforted by that, but | know | will miss




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 3 of 95

her, I know we will miss her and her presence here was -- was amazing and | just
appreciated the time | got to work with her.

Grove: Madam Chair?
McCarvel: Commissioner Grove.

Grove: | just want to say how -- how thankful | was to have Lisa guide me through the
first year of being on P&Z and -- | never knew what to do and | knew | could always --
always turn to Lisa and have her bail me out with a motion or tell me, you know, what --
what had happened before or why something needed to happen and I'm going to really
miss her knowledge and her warmth and just -- it's a hard one.

Seal: Madam Chair?
McCarvel: Commissioner Seal.

Seal: | think you said it best when you said she was wise beyond her years. She was a
-- a great mentor in Planning and Zoning for sure and just a great person overall. So, my
dealings with her outside of Planning and Zoning she was always open and active and
willing to jump in and help out at any major -- any way necessary. So, she will be greatly
missed and | will miss our disagreeing, as much as our agreements, because she always
helped me to think about things differently. That in turn has just made me a better person
overall. She will be missed.

McCarvel: If there is no other comments, we will have one more moment of silence before
we move on. Tonight | wish this was under better circumstances, but | would like to
welcome Commissioner Nathan Wheeler to my left, who fills Seat No. 4, which was
formerly held by Commissioner Pitzer and temporarily filled in by Commissioner Steven
Yearsley until Nathan was able to join us. So, welcome, Nathan.

Wheeler: Thank you.
CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item]

2. Approve Minutes of the April 15, 2021 Planning and Zoning
Commission Meeting

3. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Jaker's Drive-Through
Addition (H-2021-0012) by BRS Architects, Located at 3268 E. Pine
Ave.

4. Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Pine 43 Apartments (MCU-
2021-0002) by Pivot North Design, Located South of E. Fairview Ave.,
on the East Side of N. Webb Way and North of E. Pine Ave.




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 4 of 95

McCarvel: The next item on the Consent Agenda -- on the agenda is the Consent
Agenda. We have two items on the Consent Agenda. We have the approval of minutes
for the April 15th, 2021, P&Z meeting, Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law for H-
2021-0012, Jaker's Drive-Through Addition and MCU-2021-0002, Pine 43 Apartments.
Can | get a motion to accept the agenda -- Consent Agenda as presented?

Seal: So moved.
Cassinelli: Second.

McCarvel: It has been moved and seconded to accept the Consent Agenda. All those in
favor say aye. Opposed? Motion carries.

MOTION CARRIED: ALL AYES.
ITEMS MOVED FROM THE CONSENT AGENDA [Action Item]

McCarvel: At this time | would like to briefly explain the public hearing process. We will
open each item individually and begin with the staff report. Staff will report their findings
on how the item adheres to our Comprehensive Plan and Unified Development Code.
After staff has made their presentation the applicant will come forward and present their
case and respond to the staff comments. They will have 15 minutes to do so. After the
applicant has finished we will open the floor to public testimony. Each person will be
called only once during the public testimony. The clerk will call the names individually of
those who signed up on our website in advance to testify. You will, then, be unmuted.
Please state your name and address for the record and you will have three minutes to
address the Commission. If you have previously sent pictures or presentation for the
meeting, it will be displayed on the screen and our clerk will run the presentation. If you
have established that you are speaking on behalf of a larger group, like an HOA where
others from that group will not be speaking, you will have up to ten minutes. After all
those who have signed up in advance have spoken we will invite any others who may
wish to testify. If you wish to speak on a topic you may press the raise hand button on
the Zoom app or if you are listening on the phone, please, press star nine and wait for
your name to be called. If you are listening on multiple devices, a computer and a phone,
for example, please, be sure to mute those extra devices, so we don't experience
feedback and we can hear you clearly. When you are finished if the Commission does
not have any questions for you, you will be muted and no longer have the ability to speak.
And, please, remember we will not call on you a second time. After all testimony has
been heard, the applicant will be given another ten minutes to come back and respond.
When the applicant has finished responding to questions and concerns, we will close the
public hearing for the -- and the Commissioners will have the opportunity to discuss and
hopefully be able to make a final decision or recommendation to City Council as needed.

ACTION ITEMS




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 5 of 95

5. Public Hearing Continued from March 18, 2021 for The Oasis (H-2021-
0004) by Brian Tsai of Balboa Ventures, Located at 3185 E. Ustick Rd.

A. Request: Conditional Use Permit request for an approximate 7,000
square foot drinking establishment, music venue, and nightclub on a
portion of 3.26 acres of land in the C-G zoning district.

McCarvel: So, at this time we will continue the public hearing for CUP Item H-2021-0004,
The Oasis, and as this is a continuance we have two Commissioners that were not here
on the original presentation, | just wanted to verify that Commissioner Wheeler and
Commissioner Seal, do you feel you are up to speed and ready to step in on the
continuance or -- without going back and redoing the original presentation?

Seal: | feel that I'm up to speed. It's -- there was a lot of information and | read through
all of it.

McCarvel: Okay. Great.

Wheeler: Yes.

McCarvel: Okay. Thank you. So, do we have any additional staff report on this or --
Dodson: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Yes.

Dodson: Thank you. | don't have necessarily any additional comments. | did want to just
note that these are the reasons for the continuance, so that everybody understands and
is clear what was -- the guidance of -- at the time of Commissioner Holland's motion. I'm
willing to answer any questions or | guess just generally speaking -- | will let the applicant
speak more directly to all of these, but | will give a brief overview of what | know about
what has transpired of these three items. First it is staff's understanding that the applicant
reached out to the police department and that they generally do not participate in projects
on this level or on the requested level until after they are approved. However, the
applicant did create a safety plan and a protocol, which the Meridian Police Department
has received from my understanding. That is part of the public record, so | hope that
everybody was able to review that. Secondly, the applicant did provide a rideshare
promotion plan. The circular -- circulation plan that | have seen is the same one that was
in the application submittals and showed the circulation plan for the interior of the
Wadsworth site. So, again, this is one of the lots within the Wadsworth site. Lastly on
the last point regarding the shared parking agreement, no agreement was obtained and,
therefore, that has not been submitted to us for review. Therefore, at this point | don't
know what new information, other than the safety plan has been presented. So, | am -- |
understand that the public has been adamant about this use, but as noted previously that
the public testimony should only be regarding new information and after that | will stand
for any questions or let the applicant speak his peace.




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 6 of 95

McCarvel: The applicant is before us and state your name and address for the record
and the floor is yours.

Tsai: My name is Brian Tsai at 3085 Ustick Road in Meridian, Idaho. 83646. | did submit
about five images for the presentation -- | don't know if somebody has a copy of those.

Dodson: | can pull those up. Give me just a second. Are you all still seeing my screen?
Oh, that's right. | got to stop it and, then, reshare it and -- fun technology. Is that better?

Tsai: Yes.
Dodson: Okay. Brian, you should be able to just click the arrows to go through the pages.

Weatherly: No, that probably won't work, since the presentation is being shared on your
screen at -- on your end.

Dodson: Oh, you're right. Well, Brian, let me know whenever you want to change it and
| will move on.

Tsai: Okay.
McCarvel: Yeah, go ahead.

Tsai: Okay. | would just like to start out by acknowledging the passing of Commissioner
Holland. It wasn't until earlier this week that | had heard the news and the names of those
involved with the collision were released. Being the first hearing and the first item on the
docket back since that tragic event this is, of course, the first one without her and | would
like to express my condolences to her family members that are closest to her that have
felt the loss. | can only imagine how the members of this Commission feel as well as you
have gotten to know her over the few years and, hopefully, not just as a colleague, but as
a friend as well. Having said that, there is certainly no easy way to segue into the matter
at hand. When | last brought this project before the Commission | was presented with
three action items that the Commission Members felt would make the proposal more
cohesive towards an approval as the creation of the rideshare promotion program,
addressing the parking issues, and the creation of an additional parking capacity and the
creation of a safety plan in conjunction with the Meridian Police Department. In this first
slide here that you are viewing is a diagram from the latest site plan showing the right-in,
right-out configuration of the parking lot and additional areas of bi-directional parking flow.
In the event that there is a sudden increase of parking, either ingress or egress, we have
implemented procedures to address this within our safety plan, which | will get to later.
Otherwise, | would hope that most people who know how to navigate a regular parking
lot, as many people do it without an issue almost every single day. In the second slide, if
you can go to that one. We have a rideshare flow plan that is also addressed in our safety
plan. | have worked with the developers of this site to create this designated ride sharing
area where vehicles can easily get in and out of this parking area without affecting the
traffic flow for the rest of the site. In addition to that, we have the plan to promote the




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 7 of 95

increased use of the ride sharing services, because the spots are only as good as people
who actually use them and this page, which | submitted to the record as well, outlines in
detailed capacity thresholds at which the certain plan policies will be implemented as part
of the safety plan. It also provides discounts on products or tickets, prices used in
conjunction with the ride sharing service and providing security staff as needed to direct
the rideshare vehicles into the designated rideshare area parking areas, as well as
addressing the concerns of potential congestion within the lot itself, as well as during the
ingress and egress process. And that's shown within the slide here. It will be designated
| believe on that west side of that building where the pickoff -- or the pickup and drop off
area is designated. As far as self enforcing our capacity, as mentioned previously, I'm
sure that some people nearby will be monitoring our ingress as well to check for an
overcapacity situation, but that is not their job, nor should it be required. That's something
that's the responsibility of the business to enforce diligently and as a responsibility to the
safety of the patrons. Our entrance scanner is a state of the art system that has never
been implemented in any venue in the northwest to my knowledge. | think part of the
concern is that after seeing the locations in Boise over the past couple of decades, people
have been stuck with the idea that a club or venue of any kind looks to be poorly rated or
dirty as some that might be found in other places in town. What they don't see are the
upscale locations, like those found in other major cities around the country. Some that
can charge thousands of dollars for a single table and still have a wait list. Of course we
are not planning to the charge rates like that, but it serves as an example of a distinction
to which Idaho has never seen. If we can go to slide four, please. Just skip one and go
to the next one. We are not able to produce a documented count from Uber or Lyft,
because they have never disclosed their use counts or destinations for the use history of
either company. However, many studies have been conducted within documented use
from occupants and drivers showing on average an analysis of multiple studies,
approximately 40 percent who attend -- of people who attend the maximum capacity event
will use some type of ride sharing services. Because these same numbers have been
documented nationwide, we have no reason to expect our numbers to be any different.
That means our previously proposed four-to-one parking ratio would, in reality, become
closer to two-to-one with so many patrons using ride sharing or carpooling. Keep in mind
that there are many venues around the valley with much higher persons capacities that
seemed to operate just fine with absolute zero parking spaces dedicated to their use.
And during the last hearing a managing partner of the landowners for Villa Sport called in
and offered to work with us on a cross-parking agreement. However, that Friday
immediately following the hearing it turns out that was not the case. It was, however, not
in their discretion. It was actually within the Villa Sport tenants determination that cross-
parking would not be allowed. Despite our best efforts in collaboration with the Land
Baron group, the owners of the Villa Sport property itself, we were unable to get the Villa
Sport tenants to even consider a cross-parking agreement. In response | entered into
discussions with our developers at the Wadsworth Group to add temporary parking at the
unimproved sites to the north of our facility. In talking with the city's planning staff |
understand we would have to apply for a temporary use permit in order to use unimproved
parking, that that would not be counted towards a potential count for permanent parks. A
representative of the Wadsworth Group agreed to this use until such time as future pads
would be under contract for future developments. In order to meet the requested three-

10




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 8 of 95

to-one parking ratio it would require an additional 41 parking spaces. Once the
development is finished they expect to add approximately 70 additional spaces to the site.
As a matter of course and compliance | voluntarily proposed an additional reduction of
capacity to 400, only fractionally above the required number to meet the three-to-one
parking requested threshold, using only the currently proposed paved and fully improved
parking spaces. Whereas in reality the conjunction of ride sharing and temporary parking
we would have a parking capacity far in excess of the requested ratio. | can imagine that
this would be the Commission's preferred method as well, as a reduction in capacity
would also serve to reduce the potential for any overcrowding and excess traffic. If we
can jump back one slide to number three, please. Because the City of Meridian does not
have a statute or code requiring specific requirements for parking of this use -- | often
learned in my law enforcement career that anything that wasn't illegal was, therefore,
legal. Using the most strict parking regulation as required by the City of Meridian only 38
parking spaces are required. In my last presentation | promised 125 parks to meet the
four-to-one ratio requested by the planning staff in the original application. Because the
city doesn't have an ordinance with parking requirements for venues or event centers
specifically, | looked around at ten other cities around the country, many of which are
nearby or have similar populations and have found those who have codes that have
parking requirement for venues specifically. You can see in this chart that even at the
four-to-one ratio that | have used in these calculations we have anywhere from 31 to 521
percent in excess of what is required across the country. That's more than five times the
number of required spaces, depending on the comparison. Ever since the very beginning
of this process parking has been the foremost concern. | spent a few weeks trying to find
a similar location in the valley that | could use as a real world comparison. | found one
that was easily recognizable and because | do some volunteer work nearby I'm often in
the area -- if we can go to slide five, please. It's the Boise School District's administration
building. It's very similar to our layout, as it's bordered by a major road, has primarily
right-in, right-out only parking with no left turn egress and roughly the same amount of
parking spaces. For the purposes of our proposal we are talking about a relatively small
scale space and many of our patrons won't be leaving all at once after a show. So, | sat
at this building a few times with a stopwatch and since most of the workers are salary
workers they leave at 5:00 p.m. on the dot every weekday and enter into peak rush hour
traffic. The lot is completely empty within on average five minutes, with no -- absolutely
no additional congestion on Victory Road, which in comparison is only two lanes at that
location. So, if the concern is traffic congestion, tens of thousands of vehicles travel
through the Eagle-Ustick intersection every single day. Adding one hundred vehicles all
at once would not add a discernible difference, especially at off peak hours, as it could be
completely cleared for the facility and the parking lot in one normal traffic signal cycle.
And | submitted our safety plan for review with the command staff of the Meridian Police
Department. Having myself worked in many major stadiums and NFL games, | can say
with absolute certainty that our safety plan is one of the best. | challenge anyone to find
anything remotely similar in detail or scope anywhere else in Idaho. It was reviewed by
multiple members of the Meridian Police, including a lieutenant that specifically deals in
safety operations. They stated -- and | quote -- it was really well thought out and detailed.
The only recommendation that they could find to make was an addition to add reflective
vest to our outside personnel for identification and | agreed, having experience done such

11




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 9 of 95

thing and immediately ordered reflective vests and added them to our inventory. The
safety plan promotes and enforces policies and procedures to maintain a safe
atmosphere that is free from illegal activity to the best of our ability. Now, the recent
incident that occurred at Wahooz is unfortunate, but it demonstrates that violence occurs
anywhere and as the Meridian police acknowledged in a public statement, these are
incidents that come with growth to become a large city. It's not related to any one location
or business. The safety plan was created in conjunction with many other venue owners
in other states across the country, to include addressing exactly when and how
procedures will be implemented, responding to ilinesses and injuries, security screening,
disorderly conduct, fake IDs, potential drug use and fights. The plan includes portions for
physical security, implemental -- implementation of adequate architectural lighting for
video illumination, patrols of the sidewalk and outside areas, posting and distribution of
security personnel, procedures for identification, employee safety coordination, screening
of promoters for any past histories, fire safety, criminal incidents and even an extensive
active shooter and terrorism protocol. It also includes a 12 -- a two page 12 action item
document that facilitates our good neighbor policy, which will be distributed to our
neighbors and posted prominently at the door to include urging patrons that are leaving
to respect the quiet and cleanliness of the neighborhood. It includes items such as
providing adequate lighting at all times, maintaining proper ventilation so doors can
remain closed to mitigate any exterior sound, creating patrols to clean any possible litter
that's found in the parking and surrounding areas and providing a cell phone number to
our immediate neighbors to be answered all operating hours to address concerns of
parking or noise. The good neighbor policy would additionally be furnished to Villa Sport
despite their unwillingness to even start a discussion regarding cross-parking. As you
can see I'm not here to do something half assed. If it's meant to be done, it's meant to
be done right and with the safety of our patrons and surrounding community held as a
paramount standard. Commissioner Seal, I'm glad you were able to join us. You weren't
here on the previous one. | had noted in a previous speech that you believed in the 80-
20 rule, as they call it the Pareto Principle and you are often involved in completing the
remaining 20 percent. As you see here we are about 80 percent of the way there and,
Commissioner Seal, you are a music supporter and fan yourself. You have attended
events at the Egyptian and the Olympic venue and apparently grown quite an impressive
beard over the -- over the previous hearings | have watched. So, you can see in the staff
reports -- noted that our proposed facility is of a relatively small scale. | just wish | could
pick up and go to an alternate location, but in case you haven't tried to lease any
commercial space lately, there is already a waiting list just to get space into The Village
and we were told by several dozen people before we picked this space this corner was
perfectly suited for entertainment, right on the main drag of Eagle Road and situated just
north of an existing entertainment hub. What | soon discovered is that the majority -- in
fact, almost every single major developer, except for the Wadsworth Group, wouldn't even
look at my proposal. They told me in the current state of development for Meridian they
would lease exclusively to corporations with a national presence or to chain stores and
would not even consider leasing to anyone else. So, you can see it's been a battle just
for me to get to this step. But now that | have signed the lease with Wadsworth, I'm bound
to this property, including half my liquidity, without even having started our improvements.
So, how do we show that this is something that's a long time coming. In the last

12




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 10 of 95

presentation | had mentioned e-mail chains from the Meridian City Council Members, then
and present, and their advisory boards that have been asking local promoters for over a
decade how a venue could be brought to Meridian. Now to date we have over a thousand
followers across our social media pages, despite posting no additional advertisements or
photos. And we are not trying to squeeze a stadium where it doesn't belong. | wouldn't
say it's trying to fit any type of square peg into a round hole, because the zoning has not
changed. The zoning has been the same as far as | can tell over a decade, congruent
with the City of Meridian's Comprehensive Plan and the reason that the C-G zoning
district is being used as intended is the largest scale of any commercial use. As |
mentioned in my previous presentation, all I'm asking for is a chance to start a new
business that has been much needed in Meridian for over a decade, at a time when
hundreds of thousands of bars and restaurants have already been closed for good due
to COVID. | have never failed at anything | have aimed to accomplish in my life, but with
so much writing on my project, including my home and personal assets, it's an uneasy
feeling to have my entire livelihood in somebody else's hands. | have checked all the
boxes extensively and diligently, fulfilled all the requests by the city staff, public sector
professionals, law enforcement and of this commission and | can only respectfully ask for
your approval tonight.

McCarvel: Thank you. Let's see. Do we have any other questions for staff or the
applicant?

Seal: Madam Chair?
McCarvel: Commissioner Seal.

Seal: You had mentioned the Olympic and that was one of the things that was kind of on
my mind. How -- how does this facility compare to something like the Olympic?

Tsai: | have only kind of breezed through there, so | couldn't tell you specific details, but
anyone that's familiar with going to a downtown venue is familiar that there is zero parking
anywhere. So, anywhere -- if you want to say just go on a night out or -- or some
something that's related to downtown, you know, typically the deal is you allotted 30
minutes or an hour in advance just to park, you know, seven, eight blocks away, it's over
on Third Street or somewhere that's closed and, then, you have to walk the remaining
seven, eight blocks to get there. Size wise the Olympic is more designed for specifically
| guess intimacy, so to speak. The crowds are closer to the stage. They have a lower
wattage of a sound system. Similar to us. It's designed for clarity, as opposed to overall
sound pressure. So, it's not designed to be as loud as it can possibly be, but -- so, that if
you are in the Olympic and enjoying the show, you can see that, but not be -- trying to
shout over everybody else. | hope that answers your question, because I'm not overly
familiar with the way the Olympic operates.

Seal: Well, just in terms of -- | mean overall parking and size and scale. That's more
what I'm after. Because to me it seems like this, in my mind anyway, has a lot of
similarities to the size and scale of what you are trying to deploy and to me I'm kind of

13




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 11 of 95

interested, because we have that venue here, albeit, you know, not as close as | would
like it to be for sure, but to me it has a lot of similarities. So, we could, you know, learn
something from that.

Tsai: | would certainly look into the reason. | can't give you a very concise answer is just
because I'm not really familiar with their size and their operational scope. What | can say
is that based on the capacity, you know, Boise valley as a whole gets bypassed very often
because of the lack of venues of that type, either because of booking conflicts or any type
of capacity issues. They might say, oh, well, we wanted to play on this weekend, but you
have one venue of that size and they are fully booked, so they could just -- you know,
they will drive from Salt Lake City through Boise all the way to the Portland. That's how
the -- the usual scheme goes. So, comparison wise it would fill that niche of the tiered
capacity that's typically constrained amongst those venues, especially if there is a need
for in the city and that -- and by that | mean, you know, if there is a venue that fills a 50
capacity and, then, one that fills the next tier up at a hundred capacity and the next one
skips to 500 and, then, a thousand. Well, if you -- if you are the type of musician that can
fill those types venues, the next step up is to, you know, go to revolution and the next step
up you are going to fill from there is to go from 2,000 up to 20,000. There is not really
anything that, you know, fills those needs in between.

Seal: Thank you.

Tsai: Hopefully that answers your question.
Cassinelli: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Cassinelli.

Cassinelli: Brian, | just wanted to -- you went through a lot -- first of all, | don't know that
| have ever seen any applicant do the background and the homework that you have done
on this. | think | mentioned that -- or at least several others mentioned that the first time
around. But | didn't -- | wanted to make sure | heard you correctly on a couple of things.
Number one is that you have agreed to drop to a 400 capacity? Is that -- did | hear that
right? Okay. And you were at 600?

Tsai: | believe the fire code had it at six or seven hundred and we dropped it to 500 to
meet the parking requirement threshold of four to one. Now with the extra spaces we will
have in position that are permanent I'm willing to drop it to 400 and meet closer to that
three to one that the Commission requested.

Cassinelli: Okay. And then -- and -- and to confirm, it sounds like it was that, but -- but
you said the -- the cross-parking agreement that we had asked for you to seek last time,
that did not happen; is that correct?

Tsai: Correct.

14




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 12 of 95

Cassinelli: Okay. Thank you.

McCarvel: Any other questions for the applicant or staff? Okay.
Wheeler: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Yes, Commissioner Wheeler.

Wheeler: Just one quick clarification on that. With the cross-access agreement for
parking, were you actually told no or did you just not going to reply back yet?

Tsai: We were actually told no. But that was -- that's been in place for probably over two
years now. Since Villa Sport just originally started their proposals they had just -- before,
you know, this was even just a plan, they had told other developers flat out that they would
not entertain any cross-parking.

Wheeler: Okay. Thank you.
Tsai: Back in 2018, so --
Wheeler: Thank you.
Dodson: Madam Chair?
McCarvel: Yes. Joe.

Dodson: This is Joe. Sorry. Just to -- for Commissioner Wheeler, just a quick
background on that. Yeah. The -- there is an existing cross-access agreement between
all of these sites for the Villa Sport. The Sadie Creek, which is directly south on this site,
and, then, onto the Wadsworth site. But specifically in that | think it was recorded in June
of 2020, so almost a year ago, it specifically states that there is no cross-parking. | believe
it was one of the Villa Sport owners or developers that was on the call last time and they
had noted interest in working with the applicant, but, then, following the hearing it turned
out that they -- they couldn't come to an agreement. | don't know what happened on the
back end, but I -- it was pretty quick. | would agree with the applicant it was pretty quick
that they rescinded that offer to get the cross-parking involved -- or a part of that. So, just
wanted to make that clear, that there is an existing agreement, it just prohibits parking --
cross-parking.

Tsai: Thank you.
Dodson: You're welcome.
McCarvel: Okay.

Grove: Madam Chair?

15




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 13 of 95

McCarvel: Oh, Commissioner Grove.

Grove: Just so that we are all on the same page again, because this one is a little thorny,
Joe, could you give us just kind of -- the parameters that we are hearing tonight before
we go into public testimony in terms of what it is that we are ruling on and -- and also kind
of how we are basing our -- what we are basing our decisions on in terms of what is
applicable and not?

Dodson: Commissioner Grove, that's a great question. So, there is kind of two parts to
that, at least for why the product should be approved or denied. Some of them being
these reasons | was previously continued, but, then, more specifically these are the
required findings in code. These eight findings for conditional use permits. So, you don't
have to have all eight, you don't have to not have all eight. So, those are the things that
need to be addressed. So, any -- any of these are reasons to be recommended -- or,
sorry, this is a CUP, so any of these reasons to be denied or approved, depending on the
application. The parameters of this -- the proposal tonight -- again, it is a CUP for a
drinking establishment and a music venue slash nightclub. Multiple uses are kind of
wrapped into that drinking establishment for the CUP. So, their -- originally in the narrative
he had mentioned a thousand capacity. | don't -- | don't want to quote him as saying that
that is what he was proposing, | just think he was saying that based on the size it could
work. Butregardless of that, | had recommended in my staff report to limit that to no more
than 500 because of the parking and, then, following that the applicant has now stated
that he's willing to reduce that even further to 400. So, | hope that answers your -- your
guestion, Commissioner Grove.

Grove: Yes. Thank you.
Dodson: Absolutely.

McCarvel: Any other questions for staff or the applicant? Okay. There being none, we
will take public testimony and remind everybody that that needs to be limited just to the
discussions that were presented in this evening's presentations, so with that are there --
is there anybody who would like to speak on this application?

Weatherly: Madam Chair, we have several people signed in. First in house is Jerry
Soulshy.

McCarvel: Okay.

Soulsby: My name is Jerry Soulsby. Address here 104 East Fairview in Meridian. | was
here the last hearing and two points, mostly following tonight's information. So, regarding
the -- the traffic flow, by my experience with the people that attend these facilities -- and
I'm part of a community -- a group of people that do a lot of country swing dancing and so
for the most part a hundred percent of those that | know mostly cooperative people, zero
aggression in those groups meeting. The majority of the people and the families that I'm
involved with they are people with children ages, you know, three to 15 years old. They

16




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 14 of 95

are people that are working, they get off work, they go home, they fix dinner, they arrange
for childcare and they all go to classes, you know, Wednesday or Thursday nights, Friday
or Saturday nights they go down and they -- they practice what they have learned. They
are a great community of people. The majority of them are going to be attending a facility
like this probably starting around 8:00 o'clock at night, some of them might get there as
early as 7:00. The majority of the traffic that will be entering this lot will be after hours,
after a majority of the traffic off of Eagle Road in the first place and, then, those that are
departing will be leaving after -- nearly all of the traffic is gone on Eagle Road. So, it's not
going to be during peak hours or peak traffic times as far as the flow and as Madam
Chairman mentioned last time, no matter what you do at this corner it's going to be a
business that draws some traffic. A lot of those businesses are going to be during the
high traffic count time period. So, this would be the ideal business to have there where
the traffic is concentrated after hours. Just wanted to make that point. So, | guess, you
know, I'm just going to leave it at that. Thank you very much.

McCarvel: Thank you.

Weatherly: Madam Chair, next online we have Jeffrey Vrba. Jeff, one moment, please.
Vrba: Hello, Madam Chair. Are you able to hear me?

McCarvel: We can hear you. Please state your name and address for the record.

Vrba: Madam Chair and Honorable Councilmen, this is Jeff Vrba. Address is 3005 North
Leblanc Way in Meridian, Idaho. 83646. A couple things that I'm really concerned with
is on the November 19th Planning and Zoning meeting that you guys had there was
proposed five buildings to go in that lot. Right now they have the one going in, which is
the medical center that's going in there and possibly this building here going in. At that
time they said there is 125 parking spaces in there -- in that corner lot there. If he's going
to be taking up a hundred of those for his business that's leaving 25 spaces for the
remainder of the four buildings that may be going in there. Granted | know that the
buildings probably aren't going to be opened up much past 11:00 o'clock at night, but |
don't know what type of buildings are going in there. So, if you are giving each one of
those buildings only two to three spots, what are we going to do? The other thing I'm
concerned with is last meeting he mentioned that he has up to 30 staff that will be there
-- or possibly being there. So, it's up to 30 cars out of his 170 that we were going to ask
him to have a spot for. If he's got bands coming in -- if they are a local band he may have
anyplace from two to five cars there, depending on the size of the band and spouses or
people that are helping with the stage and that -- if he's got people coming in from --
driving down, like he said to Portland, we have buses that are coming in or campers.
Where are these planning on being parked at? The other thing was last meeting, too, he
mentioned that on the side where he said the ride share is set up, that now that was going
to be the smoking area for the smokers to be able to go out and have their cigarette just
before they go back in. So, now all of a sudden that area gets changed again to the ride
share area. Also another concern -- we are looking at just strictly at the nightclub at night.
He did mention that he's going to be using this facility during the daytime hours, too. We

17




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 15 of 95

are -- we are talking 400 people at night. There is no limit on daytime. He could bring up
to 700 people in for a cheer competition that might be going on there. In that case there
-- the odds are most people aren't going to be using rideshares during the day coming
into that. So, there is possible you have to 350 people that are wanting to go in there.
They are going to be in -- parking in our neighborhood. My house -- | have three parking
spots out in front of my house. That's all | have for my family or whatever else is coming
over to visit us. Unless they pull around in the alley behind my house, park in the driveway
and, then, have to walk half a block to a block to get around to the front of my house, so
they can come in through the front door. We need to make sure that if this facility is
approved with you guys that we have something in place that we can protect the
homeowners out in this area, to protect our parking area, to protect our noise compliance,
to protect us. We were here way before this was even planned to go in. That's something
we need to look at. The other thing | would like to say is | want to have all the parking
spots for roadways and prior to them going -- getting a conditional use permit. Right now
there is only two entrances to the building. To be coming down Eagle Road you have to
take a right in there to go in or you have to come down Ustick Road heading east and
take a right to go in. There is no way to get in off of Centrepoint without going through
our subdivision and we are highly against trying to get more traffic coming through our
subdivision here and unknown people coming in at that time. My main concern is even
with his facility there -- yes, he will get the parking spots by putting this extra parking in
where the three businesses aren't going up yet, but when those three businesses go in
we don't know how many parking spots they are going to need. If it's a restaurant going
in there may be -- they may need 20 -- 20 to 25 spots. If he's using 125 that are in that
area for his business, the new businesses going in there won't have anyplace for their
patrons to park. We need to look in the future at the parking for that area, not in the
present where he's trying to go through and say we can extend this out that way. Madam
Chair and Honorable Councilmen, thank you for your time.

McCarvel: Thank you, Mr. Vrba. Madam Clerk, do we have -- who do we have next?

Weatherly: Madam Chair, we have others signed in, but no one else indicating a wish to
testify. But we do have one raised in online.

McCarvel: Okay.

Weatherly: John, one moment, please. John, you have the ability to unmute yourself.
Go ahead when you are ready.

Hoeger: Okay. Thank you. My name is Jonathan Hoeger. My address is 3664 North
Summerpark Place, Meridian, Idaho. | commented the last meeting and | have comments
specific to what has happened tonight. Two concerns that | have. The first is the
requirement that was given was for him to be able to obtain a cross-parking permit, which
has failed to happen. 1 think that making the adjustment in the top line in terms of the
capacity of the facility is sort of a fool's errand. | operate a business. | have 46
employees. | don't know very many businesses that will have profit margins that are large
enough that you can just take 40 to 60 percent, depending on what number you are saying

18




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 16 of 95

he started with, 700 or 1000 -- how many businesses can take half of their top line, reduce
it, maintain the same debt service because the capital expenditures haven't changed and
continue to be a going concern? If that's something that can happen in this business I'm
in the wrong business. But | know a lot of entrepreneurs, a lot of business owners in
town, | don't think this business is going to be feasible with the recommendations that we
have made. | also would like to say that the research that he's done, while he's done a
lot of work, | don't think he's necessarily done the relevant work. The cities that he's citing
are not similar in size, neither are they similar geographic locations. He's choosing large
urban centers, like Chicago, Los Angeles, San Francisco all on his list and other places
as far away as Florida and Arkansas. These locations don't have similar parking
requirements. If he's saying he's 30 percent better than what you see in downtown San
Francisco or LA or Chicago, these numbers are irrelevant and they shouldn't be
considered by the Council. | think that the last hearing it was clear that he had something
that had to get done. He wasn't able to get it done. I'm recommending that the Council
deny approval. Appreciate it.

McCarvel: Thank you, Hoeger.

Weatherly: Madam Chair, we have MK. One moment, MK.
Kynaston: Hello. Can you hear me?

McCarvel: Yes. Please state your name and address for the record.

Kynaston: Yes. Michelle Kynaston. 3725 North Neith Avenue, Meridian, Idaho. 83646.
| would just like to add to the comment today that last time we talked the traffic circle was
being used as a place to send traffic through, but that traffic circle is not an appropriate
use for these kinds of businesses. It was a traffic circle meant for the location that's there
right now and it would have to be rebuilt to accommodate the traffic that would be flowing
through that neighborhood circle. Second of all, the other clubs that he is trying to
compare himself to are not in neighborhoods and he admits he is very much in the middle
of a neighborhood and there is no parking garage for anyone to go park in and attend his
facility events and he has also made it clear that his people will have to park seven to
eight blocks away. Those seven to eight blocks away are in our neighborhoods. They
are across dangerous streets and in places where we have our children and we live and
raise our kids and expect them to be in a safe place. He has also said that he has
conversed with many people in the city and gotten it all approved and desirable by people
in the city, but he didn't talk about the people in our neighborhoods and if he did he would
discover that handily we do not want it here. We are up to 190 people saying, no, do not
bring this in, to the 40 who | don't even know where they live, saying that they want it
here. But this affects our lives and our neighborhoods. We would also like him to -- we
would like him fact checked, because he has demonstrated an ability to say things that
are questionable and we would like to -- the opportunity to challenge what he's saying,
particularly on the list of property developments who have denied him. We in -- our
greatest win-win here is for him to go somewhere else with -- with his business and not
put it right here on this corner in our neighborhood. He said foremost the concern of

19




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 17 of 95

everyone is parking and traffic, but that is not true. Our foremost concern is the immorality
of it and what it does to make our neighborhood unsafe for our women, for our children,
for the City of Meridian, how it has been developed as a family neighborhood and we
want to see that maintained and that is our foremost concern. We also feel like the reality
of saying he wants a thousand patrons. Okay, now 500. Okay, now 400. Is really just
an attempt to get the CUP approved, but there is no way -- and the police force has
already declared that there is no way for them to enforce it. So, he can really just say
whatever he wants and change it later and that's a great concern to us as well.

McCarvel: Thank you.
Kynaston: | think that's about it. Thank you so much.
Weatherly: Madam Chair, | see no other hands raised online.

McCarvel: Thank you. Sir, you may come forward. Yeah. Just come forward and talk
in the mic. Yeah. And state your name and address for the record.

Sattler: David Sattler. 2060 East Lobelia Street, Meridian, Idaho. 83646. | think there
has been a lot already said. | agree with many of the statements that have already been
provided. | feel like this is a conditional use permit and | think the question that we have
to ask ourself is there a compelling reason for us to grant an exception? And, quite
honestly, | think that there isn't. | think that there was an inability to acquire the parking
that this Council requested. | think that there is quite clearly a lack of community love for
this particular establishment in this particular location. | don't think that anybody here is
saying that a music venue is necessarily a bad idea. | think that what you are hearing is
that this close to neighborhoods at this particular location isn't a good idea. | think that
based on my research that | have done of nightclub zoning best practices, there are
distinct designations and regulations and requirements for nightclubs that this applicant
has been unable to meet and I think it behooves this board to benefit from those best
practices. | think that would be, | guess, my opinion. There really is no compelling reason
to grant an exception -- | think the -- the rule is there for a reason and | think granting an
exception -- | feel like we are honestly forcing something that -- into a location that just
isn't a good fit. With all of the energy and effort between the community and the applicant
they have put into this, | feel like there has been a lot of good thought, but | just think it's
the wrong location and | thank you for your time.

McCarvel: Thank you. Okay. If there is no more testimony, would the applicant like to
come forward again.

Dodson: Madam Chair, real quick?
McCarvel: Oh. Go ahead, Joe.

Dodson: Thank you. I just wanted to address one thing, just to -- for clarification of both
the public and the applicant and the Commission regarding the potential traffic going

20




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 18 of 95

through the neighborhood. One of our conditions of approval is related to working with
the Villa Sport owners to construct the northernmost drive aisle on the Villa Sport site to
get them to have another access to that Centrepoint Lane on the south side. So, that
would be -- hopefully avoid some of that. So, | just wanted to mention that that was
thought of and attempted to be addressed. And the rest | will leave to Brian. Thank you.

McCarvel: Thank you. Go ahead, Brian.

Tsai: Thank you, Madam Chair and the Commissioners. So, just as -- some of the calls
had mentioned that our safety plan -- if you were to go through that entirely it is quite
extensive, as | mentioned. It does cover our security staff directing traffic, where they are
lawfully allowed to do so, which is in and out of the parking lot to -- you know, if you are
leaving a parking lot | would suspect that most people would try to get to the main road,
as opposed to trying to duck through a neighborhood and our staff is there to ensure that.
Additionally, if there is any concerns, it's not like we will listen to the concern and address
it later down the road. The reason that the safety plan implements that cell phone contact
for the neighbors and anybody who might be affected adversely is so those issues such
as noise or parking could be addressed immediately as they happen, not later down the
line, and that, as | mentioned in the original testimony, would be provided to all the
neighbors who are within that immediate vicinity. For the notices of this original hearing,
| intentionally went farther out than what the city code had required as far as radius, just
to ensure | had contacted some of those neighbors that otherwise would not have had an
opportunity to voice their opinions. Let's see. The reason that this is still a viable business
plan is not just because we are trying to squeeze it through, we are trying to, you know,
accommodate as much as we can, but only a percentage of our overall operations, as |
mentioned in my previous presentation, is reliant solely upon maximum capacity events
and the reason for that is because we are not solely a music venue, just like we are not
solely an event center. A lot of those venues do operate on tighter margins and
capacities, therefore, they have to fill the house every weekend or, you know, that is part
of their pertinent business plan. The reason for the cross-parking agreement in the
previous request is because of the capacity and not the other way around. We didn't
require the cross-parking because that was the prominent factor, it was that we would
require the cross-parking based on the request for the three-to-one ratio, which the
previous -- that was posed by the Commission previously. We had to go all the way back
to the fact that this -- the scale of this business is small. It's in, you know, hundreds and
not thousands. We are talking about hundreds of people and not thousands of people,
we are talking about a hundred -- less than 200 cars. We are not talking about thousands
of cars. What people are imagining now is trying to get out of the fairgrounds or trying to
get out of the Canyon County Fair when everybody is trying to leave at the same time
and we are doing it at a scale of thousands of cars and that's just not a realistic application
for that vision. If we want to talk about facilities that are similar that do music and dancing
that are closer to houses that are currently existing -- well, if you look at the Buffalo Club,
there is a neighborhood right across the street. It's not hundreds of feet away. If you look
at Cowgirls in Kuna, they are right next to houses. They are right across the street. They
are not -- |1 think the -- 328 feet before we even touch the first house. As far as the
opposition numbers, it's not really reasonable for someone to say, hey, there is 190

21




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 19 of 95

people against this. If you were to go through letter by letter there is many of those people
who have actually written in ten or more times. So, to go back and say, hey, we have
counted this person ten times as ten people who have written in in opposition is just not
a reasonable assessment. As far as us just being dilly dally with the -- with the actual
capacity, | would again mention that state of the art system that does alert us and allow
us to crack down on load capacity limitations, not to mention the fact that we are looking
at fines from the city, as well as our insurance may even refuse to cover us if we exceed
our rated capacity that's approved. Going back to whether or not this community
approves. Well, across the valley that we have over that thousand people who have
already signed up just to see what we are doing, that are excited to be here. We have
pledged over 20,000 dollars in free venue use to the Idaho Humane Society, Marine and
Canine Rescue. The reason the cheerleading camp came up is because there was a
group that wanted to come and use it for cheerleading competition. All these excessive
uses -- we have pledged it to the Meridian Arts and -- Arts and -- Arts Commission. I'm
sorry. And, then, also the major -- the majority of all the nonprofits are in support of it and
| can even furnish you those messages, because they were excited that they were able
to finally now have events in Meridian, as opposed to just be in Boise where their facilities
are. As you can see there is no exceptions that are being requested. The only thing that
I'm requesting is we have met the parking ratio request of the three to one, which was the
original significant concern. Otherwise, we are just using this exact property for the exact
general commercial use to which it was originally intended long before any of those
houses were built and zoning has not changed. That's all | have, Your Honor. Or
Commissioner.

McCarvel: Thank you. So, at this time can | get a motion to close the public hearing for
Item No. H-2021-00047?

Cassinelli: So moved.
Seal: Second.

McCarvel: It has been moved and seconded to close the public hearing on H-2021-0004.
All those in favor say aye. Opposed? Motion carries.

MOTION CARRIED: ALL AYES.

McCarvel: Comments?

Cassinelli: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Cassinelli.

Cassinelli: 1 have got a -- | have actually got a couple of questions for Joe if we could --

if I could. Joe, do you have -- do you have a diagram at full build out what all the traffic
flow -- the way the pads are laid out? Everything | see nothing connects. What | want

22




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 20 of 95

to see is the roads connecting up to Centrepoint and, then, that roundabout. Do you have
a slide with that by chance?

Dodson: Commissioner Cassinelli, I do not. This would be the connection to the south.
This would be the corner of the property we are talking about and, then, this is the drive
aisle that will connect there. | do know that the -- this drive aisle that also connects with
Ustick is part of the construction drawings for the already approved CZC for this site, for
this Wadsworth site, so that will be constructed as required. | would have to dig through
and pull out some of the old Villa Sport stuff to see what else is going to be there. As for
the -- this site, those pad sites up at the north end have not been applied for. There has
been no administrative application put in for those yet. So, those are currently unknown.

Cassinelli: Is there -- is Centrepoint the only way out or will there be a driveway that will
-- that will be a right-in, right-out onto Ustick to the east of Centrepoint?

Dodson: Yes, sir. Just this one right here on the -- the west end of the Wadsworth site.
Cassinelli: Okay. So, that is not Centrepoint there where your cursor is?

Dodson: Correct. No, that's not --

Cassinelli: That's another -- that's another access point?

Dodson: Yes. This is their main access point in and out.

Cassinelli: Okay. But, then, to get directly onto Eagle Road it's southbound through the
project to that roundabout off of -- is it Piccard?

Dodson: Yeah. Down Cajun Lane and then -- yes. So, come down here, connect, and,
then, out to Eagle.

Cassinelli: Okay. And, then, if | could another question, a little different one. There -- we
have talked a little bit about the capacity. The applicant has -- has agreed to go down to
the 400, but is there an enforcement instrument or whatever in there that -- | mean
because it -- fire code is -- is -- is what will trump everything and | think that's up there in
the 700 or so. But if the applicant is just agreeing to 400 for parking, but five or six or
seven hundred come in, | mean is there anything that -- that can be done on the -- on the
city side to enforce that?

Dodson: Commissioner Cassinelli, a great question and we discussed this a little bit at
the last hearing in March and, unfortunately, there is not a lot. There are other -- it kind
of falls into the same guise or same -- trying to think of the word. Having a brain fart here.
Same issue that we have with daycares when we limit those capacities. You know, | don't
go in there and count all the kids. We are on a good faith system largely. | know that's
not in code and | -- trust me, | understand the frustrations of the public for that. A lot of it
is the self policing, as well as community policing. When we start getting complaints and,

23




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 21 of 95

then, police have to go out there and, then, hey, you are overcapacity, that's going to, you
know, be an issue and you can have -- the applicant can have the CUP revoked for that.
That is a thing. That can happen. It's, unfortunately, not something that we can -- short
of me standing out there as part of my salary position | can't really guarantee that that will
be adhered to, but we run that risk with anything that we limit the capacity on, underneath
the fire code.

Cassinelli: Thank you. So, if I can follow up that with comments?
McCarvel: Sure. Go ahead.

Cassinelli: I'm torn on this. | know a couple of things from the last meeting and | think --
and | know Joe did address that question last meeting, but since the number changed |
kind of wanted to address it again as far as the capacity. | don't know that the noise and
some of the things would be as bad as -- as some of the people might think that they
would be. I'm trying to think back in the days that | used to go out and -- and that sort of
thing -- it's been a long time ago. You know, even in strip malls -- | can remember clubs
that were in strip malls, maybe like Buffalo Club or something, that shared with other
businesses and -- and, you know, outside of maybe some trash that would get picked up
in the morning, everybody kind of is in that main area in front of the -- of the venue and,
then, they are out of there. The problem that | have with this one is that there is -- so
much of the traffic is going to be forced through -- | could just see people coming out after
drinking, hitting that roundabout and not knowing which way is Eagle Road, you know
drive through -- drive around that thing three times and, then, wind up going Cajun and
up around some of those other streets. Going up to Centrepoint and turn left, instead of
right, thinking that, hey, we can get out -- you know, maybe we can get out to Eagle Road
going -- you know, turning left here and -- and wind up running around the neighborhood
three times before they finally figure out -- figure it out how to get out of there. Most of
these other -- you know, you look at that Buffalo Club, you look at -- at Cowgirls, their --
their access to a main road is -- is right there. Buffalo Club is right on Fairview. You can
go left or right out there. There is a side road alongside that development. There is a lot
of ways you can get out of there without having to go through -- nothing takes you through
a residential neighborhood. We didn't get that cross-access parking and I'm leery about
the -- the enforcement of the -- of the capacity. Fire Department can shut the event down
if there is -- if they are over fire code on a given night. They can -- they can shut them
down and force everybody to leave, but if they have got five or six hundred people in
there, because they are over capacity, so to speak, from a parking aspect, you know,
there isn't the -- there isn't the -- the code enforcement to really cover that as we -- as Joe
mentioned. | think this is a great product. | think the city could -- could do well with it. |
think it would be -- you know, it would fit ten times better even across the street, either --
either to the -- to the east or to the north where there is better access -- direct access to
Ustick, direct access to Eagle Road where -- where with this one, except for the one --
the one right-in, right only -- right-out only to -- on to Ustick, there -- all the access is
running through residential and that's my -- that's my -- that's my hang up on this one and
that -- for those reasons I'm not -- I'm really leery about it. Again, if it was -- and -- and |
can appreciate the applicant's trying to find space in this town. It's -- it's difficult. But | --

24




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 22 of 95

| look at it and it's just -- it's -- it's a difficult one, because you have got to -- you almost
have to get to it through residential neighborhoods and that's a tough one for me.

Grove: Madam Chair?
McCarvel: Commissioner Grove.

Grove: | can appreciate the -- the concerns with going through the neighborhood. | -- |
don't personally see that as a long term issue | guess. There is no out from that
neighborhood in terms of -- you are not going to cut through that neighborhood to get
somewhere. So, if you make the mistake one time, you are not doing it again the next
time, essentially. So, | mean that to me is somewhat mute long term. Short term maybe.
Long term not as much. But looking at what we asked the applicant to go back and get
information on, he brought back the first two and he answered the third one, which was
the cross-access parking by doing -- not being able to achieve that, but showing another
step and, then, looking at the eight things that we have in here for meeting the required
findings for the CUP, I'm having a hard time finding a reason, based on what is in front of
us, that | could get behind denying based on what we are tasked with grading this against
| guess. Would I like to see it somewhere else? Sure. But that's not necessarily what
we are being asked to judge this request on. It's -- does it meet these requirements? Yes
or no. And for me it -- it meets all of the requirements and he also came back and met or
addressed the -- the additional concerns that we had from the previous hearing.

Lorcher: Madam Chair?
McCarvel: Commissioner Lorcher.

Lorcher: | would like to add onto what Commissioner Grove said. | think the challenge
is whenever you live in a neighborhood and there is a piece of dirt in front of your
neighborhood, you, as a homeowner, don't have control on what that's going to be. What
if it was a hospital? What if it was an In and Out Burger where there is constant flow of
traffic? The fact that almost all four corners have a drinking establishment already leads
me to believe that -- you know, Winners has football and -- and they can get rowdy over
there. There is the Land Ocean New American Grill is going to go in. There is Pinnacle
Sports Bar. There is Chili's. And like Commissioner Grove said, he fulfilled the
requirement findings for the CUP. The parking is disappointing. | think he will have his
challenges to being able to be good neighbors and being able to take care of that without
having two companies involved, but that's a challenge that he is going to have to deal
with and if he aggravates and upsets his customers, he's not going to be in business very
long. So, again, | agree with Commissioner Grove, I'm having a hard time finding the one
through eight items that he hasn't addressed or acknowledged.

Seal: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Seal.

25




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 23 of 95

Seal: Just a quick question for Joe. Is the -- the reason for the CUP is it because -- is it
because it's close to residential or is it just because of the type of business?

Dodson: The CUP? It's for the drinking establishment period. That's a conditional use
within the C-G zoning district.

Seal: Okay. | just wanted to make sure that we weren't -- there wasn't something tied to
the closeness of the residential.

Dodson: A proximity thing? No. The only part of the code that could loosely, in my
opinion, be tied to that would be the specific use standards for the indoor rec center, which
talks about if there is an outdoor music venue. It talks about the outdoor -- meaning
outdoor sound, period, can't be within a certain distance of a resident of district. But this
is not going to be outdoors. So, that's -- that part is not applicable. The concept of a
music venue in general, there is nothing specific in code, unfortunately, that dictates that.

Seal: Okay. Another question. | don't remember seeing one. Was there a sound study
done as part of this?

Dodson: The applicant did provide some sound analysis and noted certain materials that
would be used. I'm not a sound engineer, obviously. That's not something typical that
we have or do.

Seal: Okay.

Dodson: | don't know what | would be basing it against, unfortunately. But, obviously, for
good sound you want it to stay inside, otherwise, there wouldn't be a point. Internally,
you know, to have the good music, so | -- but other than that | do not know, sir.

Seal: Okay. We have had stuff submitted before. Generally it's to -- because there is
freeway noise or something like that where people have submitted basically engineering
sound -- sound plans in order to mitigate the -- the freeway sounds or the sounds of
something that's noisy next to them. So, didn't know if this had something along those
lines.

Dodson: Within his narrative he did provide some information to that, yes.

Seal: Okay.

Dodson: | just don't know if it was a full sound study.

Seal: Got you. I'm really torn on this one. | mean the -- the parking is not ideal. That
said when they put the medians in on Eagle Road it kind of made everything not ideal as
far as in-out. But | understand why they did it, so -- we have got something that's going

to be close to a subdivision -- and to put that into perspective, all the people that are in
that subdivision -- I'm sure every single person on Leslie Drive came in here and was

26




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 24 of 95

against that proposed subdivision, because they were there first and they didn't want their
neighborhood ruined and they didn't want all the people coming in and they didn't want
all those little tiny houses in there and all the low income people it was going to bring and
that's the way of -- that's the way it is right now. Right now there is a lot of play things
that can go into a lot of places and they are not going to make people happy. But it is
where you live. Fortunately or unfortunately that's the way that | see this. Everybody's
always for something, they always come up and they say I'm not against something like
this, | just don't want it in my neighborhood. | want it somewhere else. Which is
unfortunate. There is a lot of things | don't want to go in close to my neighborhood. They
are going to. It's coming. The growth is unstoppable at this point in time. It's going to
happen. No, parking is not ideal. My biggest question -- well, | guess a question for Joe
is on the -- the capacity portion of this, the rated capacity versus the enforced capacity,
you have touched on the enforcement of it a little bit, but | guess maybe it's more of a
guestion for legal is if they have a rated capacity and we try to enforce a different capacity,
can that affect their insurance and everything as the applicant said or is that more
conjecture than anything? Because, again, they are going to build a building for a rated
capacity and we are going to try to enforce a different capacity on that.

Dodson: Commissioner Seal, the -- | don't know about the insurance side of it, but | do
know that changing the capacity with the conditional use permit is -- is allowed. | mean
that is one of the parameters that is largely used, as you know better than me. Regard
on the -- regarding the private side of it and insurance and things like that, | -- | can't speak
to that. 1 don't know if legal can.

Baird: Madam Chair, Members of the Commission, | don't think it's -- it's one of your
decision analysis to worry about his insurance. It's can you enforce the 400 capacity that
is under the fire code. The fire department shows up, sees that it's under 500 or whatever
their rating is, and they are fine. If the city gets reports, as Joe touched on, that they are
potentially exceeding the 400, the city would have to probably send out code enforcement
personnel, who generally aren't available on weekends and evenings, but that's the
procedure for how that would be enforced and, as Joe mentioned, if the city finds that that
400 capacity is being exceeded, then, the remedy is to commence proceedings to revoke
the conditional use permit. So, that kind of gets -- gets to your evaluation criteria. The
proposed use, if it complies with all conditions of approval and not adversely affect other
property in the vicinity, it's -- it's -- what are your conditions of approval and will they be
effectively enforced.

Seal: Understood. Mine was more to -- to be able to help put teeth into the enforcement.
| mean if -- if that's a -- if it was a true statement it might help with, you know, ease people
that, yeah, this guy could lose his insurance and it -- you know, we have the ability to --
or the city has the ability, | should say, to enforce lose of the conditional use permit. So,
| mean it does already have teeth in it. My worry is, you know, as far as a business
perspective why would you build a building that can hold a thousand people and agree to
only ever put 400 in it? Why not build a building that can hold 400 people? That's the
biggest question | have in a business sense. The other side of this is, unfortunately, you
are going to be located very close to residents, affected or not, who are going to make it

27




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 25 of 95

their mission to pick up their pitchforks and axes and call the police every time somebody
drives wrong, every time somebody flashes their lights, every time somebody flicks a
cigarette butt in the wrong direction and that's what | see happening here and | find that
to be unfortunate, because | -- | think a lot of the criteria has been met. | think there are
very valid concerns as to the project. Personally | would like to see something like this
come into Meridian. | think we are sorely lacking in that area. We are lacking in things
like this, as much as we are bike paths. | mean -- so | -- | would like to see this come in.
I'm not discounting the concerns that are out there and | do share similar feelings on --
on the parking, on how it's going to work, on -- on how that would turn out. But I think the
single biggest problem that we are going to have is people are mad, they are going to --
maybe only short term, but possibly long term, try to make life extremely miserable for
you and especially when you are operating in a completely reduced capacity. | just don't
know how that's going to work and how much the city is going to have to be involved and
how much misery and pain that's going to bring on to people. So, it's concerning.

Parsons: Yeah. Madam Chair, Members of the Commission, if | may provide you some
context. So, I'm looking at the code, I'm looking at our ordinance for conditional use
permits, and certainly, you're right, your job is tasked to enforce the code. With the
conditional use as you could add -- and | will quote it here. It says you -- you can require
more restrictive standards then those generally required in this title to -- to safeguard the
public interest and so I'm hearing all of this talk and, you are right, you guys are struggling
with this decision, because you hear somebody that's passionate about opening a
business and you hear the concerns of the neighbors, but the other part of the conditional
use is the duration and timing of the use and that's really to me where we are at here.
You hear Joe or the city staff wanting to limit the occupancy. Let's say, for example, we
do that and all of -- right now when you look at the aerial of this site there is nothing else
to construct out there and that's really the concern | think from staff's standpoint is -- and
what I'm hearing from the Commission is if we don't have all that connectivity and any
parking in place, people are going to park on dirt, people are going to drive through dirt
to get to the light, people are going to cut through the neighborhood. That's really the
concern here. So, what you have with this conditional use permit is if you feel inclined to
approve it you can have that condition that says they are capped at 400 and at such time
as Villa Sports happens and everything else develops, if they want to come back and
modify that conditional use permit and it's working and, then, he has the ability to make
-- to modify those conditions and say, hey, we are working -- we haven't had any
complaints, Commission, we think we want to increase our capacity and now we have a
shared parking agreement and we want you to allow us to operate the way we envisioned
when we first came before you, | don't know, three or four years ago. That's how you can
probably mitigate some of these concerns. You can cap them at 400, with the caveat that
if they want to expand that in the future they come back to this body through a CUP
process, you have the ability that they can't go beyond 400 until they have a shared
parking agreement in place with the surrounding developments or you can say, you know,
we don't feel you have adequate circulation or parking for this. You can deny this and the
applicant has the ability to appeal your decision to City Council. So, there is -- there is
different avenues you can take here and, you are right, | have dealt with this site in the
past and | have been at neighbors' houses out there talking with them about other

28




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 26 of 95

commercial businesses in the area and we have had to rectify some of those past
decisions and | don't want to see that happen here and we want to be sensitive to that.
So, to me if you guys are inclined to recommend approval of this tonight, | think | would
put some sideboards on it. You can do this in -- in such time as you get cross-parking
agreement or you don't get to operate until you get a cross-parking agreement. Certainly
you have that ability with the CUP.

Lorcher: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Lorcher.

Lorcher: With the CUP, just on protocol, does this go to City Council or are we the defining
-- we are the decision maker here?

McCarvel: We are the decision maker.

Lorcher: Okay. Thank you.

McCarvel: Yeah. We are not making a recommendation, we are saying yes or no.
Lorcher: Okay.

Dodson: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Joe.

Dodson: The one caveat to that is that applicants or members of the public can appeal
decisions to the Council --

McCarvel: Sure.

Dodson: -- following the action done by the Commission. It's the one caveat.

McCarvel: Okay.

Wheeler: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Wheeler.

Wheeler: | would like to add some comments here, too. | am -- I'm in agreement here
with Commissioner Grove and Commissioner Lorcher here on taking a look at the staff
report and looking at their findings. That's -- everything seems to be in the line here.
They are using terms in here like there is no results and no damage, this -- this proposal
here for this use will not be detrimental for any persons, will not be detrimental to the

economic welfare of the community or create excessive additional costs for public
facilities. It seems like there is a lot of things that are just buttoned up for -- for this to

29




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 27 of 95

happen and another thing that | took a look at here as | was looking at the -- the out pads,
the extra building pads that are, they are around, | know there has been concern about
some of those being used -- or the parking kind of spilling over into that area. From --
from my experience it seems that those -- those pads need to carry their own weight of
parking and if they can't, then, the -- then the developer of that proposed use will come
before this board again and -- or this body again and we take a look at it to see if we want
to grant some sort of cross-parking agreement at that time or just the parking
requirements. But | see the need for -- or | can hear that people here in this community
see a need for such use on this and it seems that the staff has done a thorough job on
taking a look at what could cause any sort of issues and you have addressed these things
in a very thorough and organized fashion.

McCarvel: Okay. Any other comments or discussion? Yeah. | have gone back and forth
on this. | -- I love the idea of this. It would certainly be much easier if it was somewhere
else and | guess the comment that Bill made was exactly my question is, you know, as
this develops out and there is more adjustments as time goes on with additional parking,
can they come back, because | really don't see how -- as well thought out as every other
thing in your business plan was, that it -- it still functions by keep lowering the capacity.
But | guess that's not what we are here to parent over. If he feels he can make it work at
400 and that's what -- and this -- although he didn't bring in a cross-parking agreement, |
believe -- | think he adhered, | guess, to the spirit of what was intended. | guess -- at this
point | guess if somebody's got a motion we can -- or any other comments we can move
forward.

Seal: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Seal.

Seal: Yeah. I'm still -- still struggling with this one, so --
McCarvel: Yeah. Well, keep going.

Seal: Right -- right now the -- the capacity limitation is -- is self imposed by the applicant;
is that correct, Joe?

Dodson: Yes, sir.
Seal: So --

Dodson: That -- that 400 number is -- | did not make that -- we did not make that. To
Bill's point you can -- you can pick a different one based upon the concerns noted.

Seal: Okay. I just want to make sure, because if that's an issue we would have to put
that in a motion to --

30




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 28 of 95

Dodson: That is correct, sir. Yes. | have a current one in there regarding -- | think it's
500 and | spoke about how | got to that number with the four to one ratio of the -- the
number of capacity versus patrons. But, yes, you are right, you would have to -- if it's
going to be a different number you have to have it in your motion --

Seal: So, is that --
Dodson: -- along with the -- any of the timing that Bill spoke about.

Seal: Is the -- is it limited to -- is that limit on customers or is that limit of the capacity of
the building period?

Dodson: Great question. In my -- wow, it's been a long week. It's like a -- yeah, in my
condition | noted that it does include the employees as well. So, it's going to include,
basically, that -- that tenant suite -- patrons, customers, as well as the employees,
because they will -- the employees will be the ones that use -- utilize the parking the
longest.

Seal: | will ask a long question here that probably has a short answer. Since this is -- we
are going to limit this to four -- 400 and | don't see it exceeding, | can't imagine that
doubling and people being happy about it. Can we limit the amount of space that they
are -- can we limit the building to a capacity as far as what it's capable of holding or is that
part -- was that already addressed in a development agreement?

Dodson: That is not addressed in the development agreement. That is what you guys
are doing now. Are you saying that you could have a step process saying that you will
have a lower -- lower capacity now in saying that in the future it will never exceed a certain
amount?

Seal: Just essentially limit the -- limit the building's capacity to a certain number of people
by constraining it to a certain size.

Dodson: Yes, essentially, that's what you can do through this CUP.

Seal: Okay. Because right now we are allowing him -- | mean he could build a building
that could hold 2,000 people and we are saying you can only have four people in there
-- 400 people in there, so --

Dodson: Well, to be more specific on that, that until this use applies for a Tl and that's
this specific use, the fire plan reviewers will not be able to give us a dedicated number.
How the interior of the tenant suite is laid out is very important to determine that, because
as soon as they start adding tables that changes their ratios. If they have how big their
dance floor is -- all of those things go into that. | loosely got a number from the fire plan
reviewers just based on a preliminary floor plan that | was given and it was a range
anywhere from five to 750, depending on if there is additional tables and things like that.
So, there is -- there is definitely room to play with what the fire capacity will even be. |

31




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 29 of 95

think that based upon my conversations it's probably going to be the lower end of that,
probably between the five and six hundred. So, fire capacity may limit it more than what
has been discussed in this hearing. So, a thousand was never going to be part of the
guestion period and | don't think 750 is either. So, if that helps you guys. | hope that
does.

Seal: It does. And in the picture you have there, which is that oriented north-south or is
that -- do you know?

Dodson: It -- south is to the top of the picture.

Seal: Okay.

Lorcher: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Lorcher.

Lorcher: For our motion | would propose that -- what Commissioner Seal said, to have a
capacity, but I think that the applicant should have the ability to come back to increase
his capacity if his business model is working and he does get cooperation with the other
tenants for parking.

Seal: Madam Chair? And --

McCarvel: Commissioner Seal.

Seal: Question for Joe. That -- that's kind of built into the process; correct? Or does that
require that we state that in a motion? The ability to come back and ask -- ask for more
capacity in the future.

Dodson: Itis my understanding that they -- regardless of if you note it, that the applicant
can just do a mod -- a CUP modification at a future date. However, for whoever is on the
Commission in the future date, if there is already a condition noting that this was
something that was discussed that might be worth adding.

Seal: Okay. Thank you.

Dodson: But process wise it's not a requirement, no.

McCarvel: Okay.

Dodson: Well, let me -- let me say that further, now that I'm thinking about it more. The
only way that it would be a requirement is if there is a certain timing associated with it, as

Bill alluded to. If there is a -- once you get A, then, you can request it, then, yes, that's
going to be a requirement of the motion.

32




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 30 of 95

Lorcher: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Lorcher.

Lorcher: So, we can't say just a future date, have it be ambiguous, it has to say when a
tenant agreement or parking agreement happens -- we have to have something definitive
or can it be more vague?

McCarvel: No. We -- my understanding --

Dodson: Commissioner Lorcher.

McCarvel: Go ahead, Joe.

Dodson: Sorry. Yeah. If it's going to be vague, then, in the normal process and the
allowance of a future modification is what you should just -- and just -- and just not say
anything if it's going to be vague. If there is something specific, the cross-parking as an
example, but also part of the CUP you could put a certain sunset date period and say not
until after five years can you come back. Those are all things that are in your parameters
to add.

Lorcher: Thank you.

Dodson: You are welcome.

McCarvel: Yeah. I'm thinking mentioning it as just a courtesy to a future Commission
that it was thought of and we weren't -- they don't have to rehash it all. But | don't think a
sunset is necessary. | mean to come back --

Grove: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Grove.

Grove: | think maybe how we could help future is to put in something along the lines of
how we have been approaching the percentage essentially of parking. So, not just getting
a parking agreement in place with neighbors, but having -- being able to hit that -- a certain
threshold with that to keep it consistent with what we have discussed might make it a little
easier for future commissions to have an idea of where we were coming from.

McCarvel: Okay. Thank you.

Seal: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Seal.

33




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 31 of 95

Seal: If anybody else wants to comment I'm -- I'm ready to make a motion here, but |
want to make sure that -- | mean, essentially, the capacity is really -- the capacity and
their ability to come back at a later date to ask for more parking -- is there anything else
in here that somebody is wanting to see if we were going to make a motion on this?

Lorcher: Madam Chair?
McCarvel: Commissioner Lorcher.

Lorcher: Commissioner Seal, | tried to write something down for the -- for the first time,
but -- so, | will defer to your expertise. | just had -- | just had like with the other tenants
nothing specific as a -- as a cross-parking agreement, because if the other tenants aren't
-- that -- that's not within their business model, they are not willing to do that, then, that
limits this applicant any future growth. But it -- as a collective group of tenants together,
they have kind of a gentlemen's agreement or a business agreement that they have it,
but not necessarily in writing, so maybe not have it saying if it is a cross-parking
agreement | have more of parking with the other tenants on the site, as just a general
rule.

Dodson: Madam Chair?
McCarvel: Go ahead, Joe.

Dodson: Commissioner Lorcher, there already is an existing cross-parking for all of the
tenants and all of the future building sites within this five lot subdivision. So, that cross-
parking is already existing. The main crux would be additional parking beyond what is
going to be constructed on the site and that's where you could impose saying if you -- you
cannot come back -- or | should -- you know, if you get that cross-parking, then, you can
increase your capacity, that type of a situation. Beyond the site. Yeah.

McCarvel: Commissioner Cassinelli.

Cassinelli: Not to keep -- keep going down the road here and, Commissioner Seal, | know
you are about ready to go forward, but another question came up for Joe. A member of
the public that spoke brought up a point of future tenants in this. If there were something
-- a business, perhaps a restaurant or something, that competed hour wise with this that
wanting to go in, how would their parking -- | mean most of these businesses, if they close
up by 8:00, they are not going to -- you know, their parking is not going to impact the
parking here. But if there was something else that had hours 10:00 or 11:00 say, his
parking might be -- be impacted by this parking. How is that -- how do you view that down
the road?

Dodson: Great question, Commissioner Cassinelli, and for the Members of the
Commission. That's a good learning thing. One, unfortunately, there -- there isn't specific
parking requirements for this specific use. You know, a drinking establishment, for
example, versus a restaurant. That's all wrapped into one. So, one for 250 -- 250 square

34




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 32 of 95

feet that is the -- all of the future sites and what is already existing will be based on what
their proposed use is and the minimum parking required by code. | can't require more,
so as long as they are meeting those minimums, then, those sites could be utilized based
upon the size of those buildings. If they get to a point where they exceed it, then, we can't
approve it and they have to come through us each time. For the hours portion, the
applicant -- or the landowner is actually doing some self policing there. For example, the
Jamba Juice and that's going to be in the other suite in this building and | have seen the
agreement that they are limiting them to close at -- | believe at 7:00 p.m. -- or 6:00 or 7:00
p.m. or something like that. So, as part of their agreement with some of these new tenants
that are coming in, so | think that some of that will get quelled and, again, | don't want to
speak for the landowners, but | do believe that one of the uses on the other side might be
a bank, which does not have late hours and, then, there was word of a coffee shop, but |
don't know if that's going to happen and those generally don't go later into the evening
either.

McCarvel: Okay.

Seal: Madam Chair, one -- one thing that | would like to add -- and | don't know if it's
going to help anything or not -- and the reason | asked the -- the orientation of the building
is | would like to put something in here that the sound direction is concentrated away from
the closest -- focused away from the nearest housing. Thank you. That's what | have
written down here. Just trying to -- just trying to make sure that -- you know, essentially
where the sound -- where the stage is, where the sound is focused, the direction that it's
going to be emanating is away from the nearest housing as much as possible. Right now
with the orientation of it it's kind of going that direction, so that's a little bit of a concern for
me. With the construction that they are proposing | think it's less than an issue, but it is,
you know, a way to mitigate some of the concerns that are out there as far as sound.
Anybody have any issues with that let me know.

Lorcher: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Lorcher.

Lorcher: Didn't the tenant or the applicant fulfill the requirements for sound? Wouldn't
that be redundant to put it in there specifically or you would just like to have it as an extra
reminder?

Seal: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Yeah. Commissioner Seal. Yeah, | kind of have the same thought. | think
the building itself was designed as fairly sound proof.

Seal: | agree, but there was -- | mean there has been no true sound study done. We are
relying on the applicant's analysis of what the sound can and will do. 1 just think this adds
another layer of trying to get along with one's neighbors as well as possible, so -- and,
again, | mean if you have been to a venue when you are walking up on it -- if you come

35




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 33 of 95

in from behind the building I will -- you know, use the Revolution Concert House is a great
example. If music is going on and you walk up -- or you are in the -- behind the buildings,
you don't hear a lot. If you are out in the parking lot you hear everything. So, that's -- you
know, | mean the sound direction focus can definitely be -- play into something. So, if it's
focused in that direction kind of no matter what it is, the bass is going to escape and it's
going to float that direction. So, if you want to challenge that just have some teenager
turn up their car driving down your road.

McCarvel: | have one of those.

Seal: Exactly. So, it was just a concern that kind of -- | mean to me the sound of this
needs to blend in with the neighborhood as much as possible, so just a concern. So, with
that, Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Seal.

Seal: After considering all staff, applicant, and public testimony, | move to approve file
number H-2021-0004, as presented in the staff report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021,
with the following modifications: That the capacity will be limited to 400 people. That the
applicant can come back at a later date to ask for an increase in capacity when more
permanent parking is available. And that sound direction is focused away from the
nearest housing.

Dodson: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Oh. Joe.

Dodson: Sorry. Sorry. | know. One last thing that | do have an existing condition in
there that talks about the cross-parking, but because that was not able to be obtained
your motion should include striking that condition.

McCarvel: In lieu of the 400 capacity maybe? Okay. What's the condition number on
that, Joe?

Dodson: 8-A-3.D.

Seal: That we strike condition 8-A-3.B.
Dodson: D as in David, sir.

Seal: Oh, sorry. D as in David.
McCarvel: Is there a second?

Grove: Second.

36




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 34 of 95

McCarvel: Okay. It has been moved and seconded to -- to approve Item H-2021-0004
with conditions. All those in favor say aye. Opposed?

Cassinelli: Nay.
McCarvel: Motion passes. Madam Clerk, do you need a roll call or --

Weatherly: Madam Chair, for the record | want to confirm that was Commissioner
Cassinelli who said nay.

Cassinelli: That is correct.
Weatherly: Thank you.
MOTION CARRIED: FIVE AYES. ONE NAY.

6. Public Hearing for Mountain America Credit Union Drive-Through (H-
2021-0019) by Mountain America Credit Union, Located on the West
Side of N. Ten Mile Road, Approximately 750 Feet South of Chinden
Blvd.

A. Request: Conditional Use Permit for a drive-through establishment
within 300 feet of a residential use and zoning district for a financial
institution on 1.16 acres of land in the C-G zoning district.

McCarvel: Okay. Thank you. Next item on the agenda is -- and we are just full of CUPs
tonight. H-2021-0019, Mountain America Credit Union Drive Through, and we will begin
with the staff report.

Dodson: Thank you, Madam Chair. Sorry, Commissioners, you get to hear me more. |
am told | have got a radio voice. So, maybe it's nice. | don't even know at this point, but
-- as noted, this is Item No. 5, Mountain America Credit Union CUP. The applications
before you are a conditional use permit, administrative design review was already
approved for the building at staff level, which we allow concurrently with CUPs. The size
the property is 1.16 acres, currently zoned C-G and it's on Lot 13 of the Lost Rapids
Subdivision, which is part of the Costco site. Itis on the west side of North Ten Mile Road
and about an eighth mile south of Chinden. And to the north, as noted is more
commercial. The two lots directly above are undeveloped and, then, the corner lot is the
Costco fuel station. To the south is more C-G zoning and undeveloped, but directly to
the south is the other drive though site that was approved by this Commission | believe
last month. To the east is Ten Mile Road and, then, to the east of that is R-8 zoning and
detached single family uses. To the west is C-G zoning and the Costco site, the larger
building lot here. The future land use plan does constitute this site as a commercial
designation, which, obviously, allows a plethora of commercial uses. The conditional use
permit is requested for a drive-through. It is for a financial institution that is within 300
feet of a restaurant drive though that | noted is directly to the south. As you can see on

37




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 35 of 95

the site plan this is a drive aisle and, then, this site would be the other site that has the
drive through. This drive aisle is the main drive aisle off of Ten Mile Road that's not the
Lost Rapids public road further to the south, just to be clear. So, there is this public road
here and, then, there is a drive aisle right here that is the other main access into the site.
So, there is no parking or connection points on this drive aisle, it is just a straight shot.
Because it is within 300 feet of the existing -- or the approved drive through, it does require
a conditional use permit. The project must also comply with the specific use standards
for a drive through establishment in 11-4-3-11. Staff believes that the project meets all of
the specific use standards. The proposed drive through has three stacking lanes as noted
here that are approximately 65 feet plus or minus from the drive aisle entrance here to
the site. Furthermore, the proposed drive-up services are attached -- are proposed in a
detached structure, so you have the main building here and, then, all of the drive-up
facilities are actually detached and interior to the site. They are approximately 95 feet
apart. Staff does not perceive that stacking lanes will impede the circulation lanes to their
north, especially because of the design of the detached drive through. Stacking lanes
are also less than a hundred feet in length and, therefore, do not require an escape lane.
The detached drive through is not exceptionally visible from North Ten Mile Road, which
is discussed in the standard and Ten Mile is the road on the eastern boundary. However,
staff does find that the shared drive aisle that, again, doesn't have any parking or -- or
access to it and minimal tree landscaping, does offer adequate surveillance opportunities,
as well as a pretty clear line of sight from here into the development. The site plan will
be more heavily scrutinized and analyzed with the future certificate of zoning compliance,
which is required for all commercial uses. But upon my initial review of the site plan they
do meet all of the dimensional standards, parking counts, and fire access and
landscaping. The only issue is a small landscaping -- | think they just missed it -- they
need trees along the northern landscape boundaries. That's the only issue | saw. As
noted, the applicant did apply for administrative design review, which was approved at
the staff level for the credit union building. The two main field materials are shown. The
dark color is fiber cement and the white is stone. Staff has made specific conditions of
approval for the elevations to be addressed prior to submitting for building permit following
the CDC approval for the building. Staff does recommend approval of the proposed CUP
request with the conditions of approval noted in the staff report and | will stand for
guestions.

McCarvel: Would the applicant like to come forward?

Cassinelli: Madam Chair, before -- could | get a question of staff before they come up?
McCarvel: We are --

Cassinelli: Are we? Okay.

McCarvel: If that's okay.

Cassinelli: Yeah. That's fine. In case | forget it.

38




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 36 of 95

McCarvel: Okay. Is the applicant with us?
Sanders: Yes.
McCarvel: Oh, there we go. Please state your name and address for the record.

Sanders: Shane Sanders. Sanders and Associate Architects. 2668 Grant Avenue,
Ogden, Utah.

McCarvel: Thank you. The floor is yours.

Sanders: Madam Chair, Members of the Commission, appreciate your time this evening.
As mentioned, this is a new branch location for Mountain America Credit Union. This will
be their second location in Meridian. | think the only -- we agree with all of the comments,
except for one | wanted to address with you. Item four in the review states the elevations
submitted with the administrative design review application are approved with the
following revisions. Show the north and south elevation with additional qualifying
modulation per standard 3.1A and 3.1B in the architectural standards manual. The
elevations that we had submitted -- it was hard to read a lot of the articulation on the walls.
The two in question are the north and south. Carly, can you zoom in on the south? Oh,
they have control? Is there any way to zoom in on the south elevation?

Dodson: Sure. Madam Chair, Members of the Commission, | do want to note that the --
the design review is administratively approved, so it's not part of your decision tonight,
just to let you all know.

Sanders: So, this is an issue we can address with staff?

Dodson: That is correct, sir.

Sanders: Okay. Well, | can continue or we can just do that offline with staff as we go
through the approvals. | don't want to spend a lot of time if we don't need to.

McCarvel: Yeah. That's -- that's fine. You can work through it with staff.
Sanders: Okay.
Dodson: Perfect.
McCarvel: Okay.

Sanders: That -- this is a rendering that we have included. We -- it just gives you a better
-- kind of idea of how it looks three dimensionally.

McCarvel: Okay.

39




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 37 of 95

Sanders: Large shed roof at the middle of the building, which is the lobby -- just the larger
volume where the lobby is. We have offices on each side of that high section in the
middle. | think that's it.

McCarvel: Okay. At this time we will take questions for the applicant or staff.
Commissioner Cassinelli.

Cassinelli: Madam Chair. | guess either one can answer this, but do you have a distance
between the exit of the drive through -- because that's what we are looking at. So, the
exit there to the main entrance coming into the development off of Ten Mile? | mean is it
right there on the corner as it looks?

Dodson: Off of Ten Mile? So, you mean the drive aisle here and, then, where it is here?

Cassinelli: The main -- to the main entrance off of Ten Mile and, then, if you turn to the
right or go north on that drive aisle that -- the exit to the drive through lanes are right there.

Dodson: Yeah. You're talking about here, sir? What this distance is?

Cassinelli: Hold on. I'm -- sorry, | wasn't -- yeah. | was on my -- | was on my PC. | wasn't
looking at your presentation. Yeah, that distance right there. | mean is -- it's right there;
right?

Dodson: Based upon the dimensions of the parking spaces it's probably 30'ish feet, 35
feet.

Cassinelli: Okay.

McCarvel: And that's the exit; correct?

Dodson: That is the exit. Yeah. The entrance is over here.

McCarvel: Yeah.

Sanders: So, it's a single lane egress or exit.

McCarvel: Yeah.

Cassinelli: Was -- was that -- were there several orientations of that that were discussed?
Sanders: Yes. Inthe original pre-submittal meeting we actually had the drive-up attached
to the branch on the north end where that parking is. We couldn't meet the landscape
setback requirements on the north and south with it in that location and create enough

room for them to turn around and exit back out. So, this was our solution to that is
detaching it and moving it more to the inside of the development.

40




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 38 of 95

Cassinelli: 1 mean we are still in -- in public hearing stuff, but | would just share a concern
if I could. | was -- and this goes back to just a couple of days ago | was at Costco and |
was trying to come out one of the other -- one of the Costco lanes that would be further
north there on the left-hand side and | waited for what seemed like 15, 20 cars to come
through there and -- before | could get out and when I did | -- | had to go north, because
| was going from a regular parking spot in Costco over the -- over to get gas and | had to
punch it to squeeze through a couple of cars or | would have been waiting there for about
three minutes. My concern with -- with the proximity to the entrance there is -- is -- | mean
you are going to get a steady flow of cars coming in and they are turning right to go into
Costco. People will be waiting there to exit if they -- especially if they want to turn left to
get out. |justsaid, | -- | just envision a backup there and | don't know if that's something,
Joe, that you guys looked at, if that was a concern to staff at all.

Dodson: Madam Chair, Commissioner Cassinelli, that's not something | looked at too
specifically. 1think that is a good point. | do think that as all of these sites develop there
is going to be an increase of traffic in general. | don't -- | do see your points. | don't think
that it's going to be an overly major concern, only because there -- there is other points
of ingress and egress out here. Even if you have the site entrance further north you --
same issue that you noted | think can happen there, too.

Sanders: Yeah. | think a bigger concern for me would be just kind of the safety pulling
out there on that corner, the visibility of cars coming around that corner and we -- we
didn't put any trees there, so the sight lines are not obstructed. A driver could see cars
coming around the corner. We could add a stop sign there, too, so people coming out of
the drive through have to stop and look before they pull into traffic to create a little safer
intersection there. So, we are forcing them to stop and look.

McCarvel: Thank you.

Seal: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Seal.

Seal: Quick question for staff. On the plat there to the south, it seemed like part of the
deliberating we had on that was the lack of sidewalks and where did we land on that?
Did we require them to have sidewalks or not? | can't remember.

Dodson: Commissioner Seal, | believe you did not add the sidewalks. Rather than the
one that was already proposed following the -- the staff report where you made them
attach to Ten Mile.

Seal: Okay. That's kind of what | remembered, but | wanted to make sure.

Dodson: Yes, sir.

41




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 39 of 95

McCarvel: Okay. Any other questions for staff or the applicant? Okay. Is there anybody
here that wishes to testify on this application?

Weatherly: Madam Chair, we have no one signed in to testify.
McCarvel: Okay. Come forward.

Brown: For the record Ken Brown, 3161 East Springwood. | thought that was an
interesting discussion about the exit. | bank next door at First Interstate and that distance
is even less than this and the elevation is pretty high. The First Interstate sits up high --

Dodson: Can't hear you, Kent.

Brown: Sorry. | apologize. But what ends up happening is -- because you are going
through the drive aisle people do get stuck there, because it's Main Street -- It's Main
Street that runs behind the building -- or the main street's out here and that's --

Dodson: Meridian.

Brown: -- Meridian. So, Meridian has a lot of traffic on it and people will spend quite a
bit of time there and there never seems to be an issue, it's just the people at the bank just
have to be patient and, you know, there are certain times that you go, but it -- | know it's
less than 30, 40 feet that -- that that distance is and you really can't see, because you got
to come down and around to go out onto Meridian Road. So, it seems like it's just
something with the drive aisles that you have to kind of do. It's not like fast food where
you got somebody really anxious -- | remember my first experience with the drive-up was
watching my mom give money to the bank and give her back a piece of paper and | was
going -- you know, | knew what money was, | didn't know what the piece of paper was
and so you are kind of patient there, I think, in the bank working aisle. Anyway, just a
thought.

McCarvel: Thank you. Anyone else to testify on this application? Okay. Does the
applicant have any other comments?

Sanders: | would just add that we pushed that drive through north as far as we could to
meet the stacking requirements, so we could give them plenty of space as they come out
of that drive through and kind of queue up to that stop sign or intersection. So, we have
tried to balance both the stacking and the exiting and push that exit as far north as we
could, you know, and we looked at landscaping so the views weren't hindered. So, |
would just add that.

McCarvel: Okay. If there is no other questions or comments, | would take a motion to
close the public hearing on H-2021-0019.

Seal: So moved.

42




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 40 of 95

Cassinelli: Second.

McCarvel: It has been moved and seconded to close the public hearing on H-2021-0019.
All those in favor say aye. Opposed? Motion carries.

MOTION CARRIED: ALL AYES.

McCarvel: Yeah. | -- | get it with the stacking and the waiting and stuff, but | guess
nobody promised me | was never going to have to wait for a few minutes in life, so, yeah,
I'm -- I'm in favor.

Seal: Madam Chair?
Lorcher: Madam Chair?
McCarvel: Commissioner Seal first.

Seal: Yeah. | was similarly concerned with, you know, essentially the way that that comes
around, but the way that they are stacking in there -- | mean it seems like it's really only
going to affect the folks that are using the bank, so | don't think it will have huge impact
on those that are trying to use other businesses in there, so, you know, with the small
amount of land that's there and how they have it oriented, | think they have done a pretty
good job of trying to limit their impact on -- on other businesses in the area. So, | think if
they tried to reverse this somehow it probably wouldn't work very well and, then, you
would have people competing to come in and out of the same place. So, other than that
it's -- you know, glad to see more stuff going in out there and -- | mean that's kind of what
it was designed for. Everything that goes in there is just going to add to the traffic, which
is never good in a Costco parking lot, so -- unfortunately, but glad to see another business
going in out there so soon.

McCarvel: Commissioner Lorcher.

Lorcher: 1 will -- Madam Chair, | will agree with Commissioner Seal. That it seems like
our credit unions that are in our community have a good formula of how to move their
customers, whether they walk indoors or through the drive-throughs. So, | would agree
with Commissioner Seal on that as well.

McCarvel: Okay. Any other comments or motions?

Grove: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Grove.

Grove: Allright. I'm just going to go ahead with the motion if that's okay. After considering
all staff, applicant, and public testimony, | move to approve file number H-2021-0019 as

43




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 41 of 95

presented in the staff report for the hearing date of May 20 -- or May 6, 2021, with no
modifications.

Seal: Second.

McCarvel: It has been moved and seconded to approve file number H-2021-0019 with
no modifications. All those in favor say aye. Opposed?

Cassinelli: Nay. You would never think | would oppose a drive-through, but | don't think
it's the best design. My opinion.

McCarvel: It does -- no, it doesn't surprise me. Motion carries. Madam Clerk, did you
get the nay?

Weatherly: Madam Chair, for the record that was Commissioner Cassinelli that voted
nay; correct?

Cassinelli: That is correct.
Weatherly: Thank you, sir. And -- great. So, motion carries.
MOTION CARRIED: FIVE AYES. ONE NAY.

McCarvel: | was on the verge of promising a five minute break if we could get a motion,
so we will resume in a few minutes. We will give everybody a break to stand and stretch
and do what you need to do.

(Recess: 8:11 p.m. to 8:20 p.m.)

7. Public Hearing for The Vault (H-2021-0017) by Joshua Evarts, Located
at 140 E. Idaho Ave.

A. Request: Conditional Use Permit to allow for a drinking
establishment

McCarvel: All right. We will resume our meeting for this evening and at this time we
would like to open the public hearing for H-2021-0017, The Vault. We will begin with the
staff report.

Tiefenbach: Greetings, Madam Chair and Members of the Commission. | was just
mentioning to staff that Joe has a radio voice, | have got a Gilbert Godfrey voice, so | will
do the best that | can to not annoy everybody. So, this is a conditional use to allow for a
drinking establishment. So, the property is about 2,100 and some change square feet of
land, zoned O-T, located at 140 East Idaho Avenue. Adjacent properties is a restaurant,
drinking establishment, offices, some single family residences. The Comprehensive Plan
recommends this for Old Town. The applicant -- excuse me -- the applicant recently

44




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 42 of 95

submitted an application for a certificate of zoning compliance to expand their patio on
the back. They recently submitted an application for a conditional use to allow a drinking
establishment. This present business is a cigar bar. They recently began serving wine
and beer and accessories to this. The applicant now wants to serve all types of liquors,
may or may not be accessory to the cigar bar, that makes it a -- that makes it a drinking
establishment and that only is allowed by a conditional use. Again, as | said this is an
existing historic building in the OT district. All the parking, sidewalks and landscaping is
already there. The outdoor patio was approved and meets all the setback requirements.
Doesn't encroach into the right of way. The Comprehensive Plan recommends this area
as an Old Town. This designation includes the historic downtown, the true community
center. These kinds of uses are retail, lodging, theaters, restaurant, service retail, the
existing cigar barn, and the expansion to serve alcohol. This is exactly the type of
neighborhood hangout that is intended by the Comprehensive Plan and with that the staff
does recommend approval. Very simple case. And | will take any questions or comments
at this time.

McCarvel: Okay. Any -- or | guess ready for the applicant.

Evarts: Fantastic. | am Joshua Evarts. | reside at 303 East State Avenue, Old Town
Meridian. 83642. | appreciate, first of all, staff, Alan, Bill, Keegan, they have been really
great in this process. We are kind of an oddball. Thus, | guess, the nature of submitting
for a conditional use permit. So, we actually -- we restored the building going back in
2015. It was originally the Bank of Meridian. And after about 18 months of enjoying that
as a living room for my wife and |, we decided we would open it up to the rest of the public.
We thought that that would -- it was, actually, the prompting of Mayor Tammy. She was
like you really should do something that everybody else gets to enjoy it. So, we agreed.
We launched The Vault in September of 2017. Upon opening within a month we actually
got our beer and wine license. So, we have actually been serving beer and wine for three
and a half years. We didn't go through a conditional use permit at that point. In speaking
of Counselor Nary at the city we -- we were the oddball. We didn't know quite what to do.
We weren't a bar. We weren't a restaurant. We were this other thing. So, what we --
what we did at that time is with the help of the city we became a retail tobacconist with a
retail beer and wine license, with an exception for on-site consumption | believe, Bill, is
how that reads. But as we went through COVID 127 closed and the gals were looking to
sell their liquor license. We thought it would be a great addition to what we had already
been doing for three and a half years, so we purchased that license and began the
process of working through state, county, and now with you guys. So, at that point in our
preliminary hearings and meetings and talking with Bill, talking with Mr. Nary, we decided
that it would be appropriate to go through a formal CUP process and just do that and not
-- and not be this oddball thing anymore in downtown. So, conducted all the appropriate
hearings and -- and submitted for this conditional use permit tonight. So, | want to speak
just quickly to our intent. Laurie and | take very serious this idea of stewardship for
downtown Meridian. So, we live on 3rd and State. One hundred percent, other than
some small crypto holdings, a hundred percent of our investment is in Old Town Meridian.
So, as we have done things like the Heritage Building, The Vault, the Old Town Lofts, we
believe in being a good steward for downtown Meridian and making sure that we are

45




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 43 of 95

doing our best to maintain safety, create economic development and vitality, and also
preserve our history and certainly The Vaults' been a great -- great story there. So, our
intent is to curate a menu of cocktails and drinks that match what we do with cigars. We
do not maintain late hours. I'm really glad that we led with a cigar lounge and with a beer
and wine license for three and a half years, because that established a track record of us
being really good stewards of how we handled alcohol to date. So, we are not in what |
would call the category of a drinking establishment. It's something that adds color and
adds an additional thing that people can experience, so we really are a premium cigar
lounge, first and foremost, even from a revenue standpoint. Our revenues for tobacco is
-- is 90 plus percent of what we do and the beverages that we offer currently in beer,
wine, soda and coffee is a small part of what we do as a business. We are not intending
to change that. We really do feel that this is just going to be something that's an additional
add on. We have been working through the cocktail menu with a bar master at Sushi
Shack right now. She even asked me -- she's like it seems like some of your cocktail
prices are high and | said that's fantastic, | said, because | don't want people to be -- this
is not a seven dollar rum and coke establishment. So, | want people to pay a premium,
because | want to give them a premium experience. | also want to create some cost
prohibitors to people enjoying or wanting to enjoy more, even though | will tell you as a
staff this is the one thing that we beat into our staff is our tips training. | will not put drunk
people out anywhere in the public. It's something we take serious with the Hop Haus and
with Sushi Shack. That's just not something, you know, we tolerate. But we want to make
sure that we are creating environments that are also conducive to reinforcing the things
that we believe, because Laurie and | aren't always there. So, that's a little bit of our heart
and what we are looking to do in this. So, with that if you have any questions happy to
answer them.

McCarvel: Any questions for staff or the applicant?

Cassinelli: Madam Chair?

Lorcher: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Oh. Commissioner Cassinelli started. Sorry. | didn't acknowledge.
Cassinelli: Josh, what's the capacity of the --

Evarts: Forty-nine.

Cassinelli: Forty-nine.

Evarts: Yes.

Cassinelli: Not 494.

Evarts: Yeah. Four hundred and ninety-nine, but | can come down to 400 if you want me
to. Is it too soon? | feel -- | feel like it's too soon, but | don't know. Not at all. Oasis,

46




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 44 of 95

sorry. Yeah. But | can come down to 400. No. Forty-nine. Forty-nine. What | will tell
you is we have 32 chairs in there and we -- we typically on a very, very, very busy event
we -- you know, we will get to, you know, all 32 chairs and we have eight folding chairs.
So, we will get to 40. But the -- you know, the building just -- you know, just gets
uncomfortable once you get past 40. So, we just don't have a -- we don't have an issue
ever exceeding that really. And we are intending -- | think we bought 16 chairs for the
outdoor patio and there is about an additional -- | think 700 square feet that we have --
Bill, correct me if I'm wrong, that's on the patio. But, yeah, that we are not looking to cram
people in.

Cassinelli: Thank you.

Evarts: You are welcome.

Lorcher: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Lorcher.

Lorcher: Mr. Evarts, thank you very much for preserving Old Town and taking care of the
buildings that we already have. We enjoy the Heritage Building quite a bit. | have not
been into The Vault, mostly because I'm not a cigar smoker. | had always assumed that
you had a liquor license, but it sounds like you had beer and wine and it adds some
wonderful color to our downtown area. So, thank you very much.

Evarts: Commissioner Lorcher, you are welcome.

McCarvel: Any other comments or questions for the applicant or staff?

Wheeler: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Wheeler.

Wheeler: Just a quick question here. So, 600 square foot on an addition; right?

Evarts: Correct. If that's what it's -- yes.

Wheeler: Okay. And, then, how often is that drive aisle -- that alley used back there for
vehicles and stuff like that and stuff?

Evarts: Yeah. Great question. | don't spend a lot of time looking at that -- on that back
driveway. | know that it gets -- during lunchtime there is quite a few people that are -- that
are using that primarily to exit. It's tough to get out onto Pine if you are in that little parking
lot and you went to Eight Thirty Common for lunch, like you are pretty close to the Main
and Pine intersection and it gets a little backed up there. So, unless you are taking a right
out on Pine most of the people will bomb out on that alley, but it's -- you know, you have
got a home, a business -- | don't -- | have never run into real traffic coming out of there

47




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 45 of 95

and certainly most of Idaho Avenue -- it's not very activated at night, you know, other than
there has been an uptick at Polly's, just with Varsity closing, so there has been a little bit
more activity in the evening there, but -- but -- but it's -- it's fairly quiet on -- on that alley
come -- come closing time at 5:00 when all the professional businesses that are in like
the Idaho Building and stuff like that leave.

Wheeler: Perfect. That was -- that's all. | just wanted to know if that traffic was there,
because you will have a patio there with patrons and | know you want to keep them alive.

Evarts: Right. Yeah. I love to keep my patrons alive. It's very important. Good revenue
model. Good business practices.

McCarvel: Okay. With -- do we have anybody for public testimony on this one?

Weatherly: Madam -- sorry, Madam Chair. We have one person signed in in house and
that's Tommy Elledge.

McCarvel: Thank you. Please state your name and address for the record and the floor
is yours.

Elledge: Thank you. My name is Tommy Elledge. E-I-I-e-d-g-e. Address is 2350 Echo
Avenue in Parma. 83660. | am in Payette county. Madam Chairman, Members of the
Commission, staff, you are right, he is a character. Anyway, down to business. I'm a new
citizen of the state of Idaho. One thing that | found quickly when 1 first got here was The
Vault. 1 am a cigar smoker. | didn't even start smoking cigars until 2019. Working for the
railroad for over 47 years, never touched a cigarette, never touched a cigar, but a friend
of mine treated me to one on the day that | retired from the railroad and | have enjoyed
them ever since. One thing that | do enjoy is friends enjoying themselves. | cannot drink.
| am allergic to alcohol. | go into respiratory arrest. I'm always the designated driver. But
| have people from California that are planning on coming out here to Idaho on a weekend
just for the pleasure of coming out to The Vault to have a drink and enjoy a good cigar. |
spend 40 minutes maybe twice a week to come down and enjoy Meridian. Usually | will
stop someplace and get lunch. 1 definitely spend my tax money at The Vault. But |
encourage you to vote yes on this proposal. | think it will be a great addition, not only to
your community, but to the cigar community at large that | am a member of. Thank you
for hearing me and | appreciate your time. Thank you. Any questions?

McCarvel: Thank you.
Elledge: Thank you.

McCarvel: If that's our only public testimony, does the applicant have any additional
comments? Okay. Thanks. Thank you. | guess since everybody is adding their
comments | will add a comment of thank you for keeping my husband and son occupied
during my daughter-in-law's recent baby shower. With that can | get a motion to close
the public hearing on H-2021-0017.

48




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 46 of 95

Seal: So moved.
Wheeler: | second.

McCarvel: It has been moved and seconded to close public hearing, H-2021-0017. All
those in favor say aye. Opposed. Motion carries.

MOTION CARRIED: ALL AYES.

Cassinelli: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Yeah. Commissioner Cassinelli.

Cassinelli: Full support. | think it's a great spot. Great thing. | love the -- as -- as he
used it, the word stewardship of Old Town, downtown, and it's exactly what we need. It
will just -- there is no -- | don't see a single negative. I'm full support.

McCarvel: Okay.

Seal: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Seal.

Seal: | -- same sentiments almost exactly. So, | like -- I like the other stuff that comes in.
| like the eclectic things. | like the -- the rare items. So, I'm glad to see that this business
is not only successful, but expanding and, you know, venturing into other areas. So, it's
great. Great to see that there is an economic focus and drive for downtown and it's
starting to thrive again.

Grove: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Grove.

Grove: | will be super fast. Josh, this will not take you out of the oddball status as you
putit. I'm sorry to break it to you. The only downside with this is | want to make sure that
there is still something that | can afford when | go in there, so keep something cheap.
McCarvel: Do | hear a motion?

Seal: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Seal.

Seal: I'will go for it on this one. After considering all staff, applicant, and public testimony

| move to approve file number H-2021-0017 as presented in the staff report for the hearing
date of May 6, 2021, with no modifications.

49




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 47 of 95

Cassinelli: Second.

McCarvel: It has been moved and seconded to approve file number H-2021-0017 with
no modifications. All those in favor say aye. Opposed? Motion carries. Thank you.

MOTION CARRIED: ALL AYES.

8. Public Hearing for Jump Creek North Four-Plex (H-2021-0018) by Kent
Brown Planning Services, Located at the Northwest Corner of N. Black
Cat Rd. and W. Gondola Dr.

A. Request: Conditional Use Permit to allow 7 fourplex buildings of 28
units total on 2.2 acres in the R-15 zoning district.

McCarvel: Next on the agenda is H-2021-0018, Jump Creek North Four-plex and we will
begin with the staff report.

Tiefenbach: Commissioners, Alan Tiefenbach, planner, City of Meridian. This is a
conditional use to allow seven four-plex buildings with 28 units total on about 2.2 acres in
the R-15 zone district. The site, as | said, about 2.2 acres of land is zoned R-15. It's
located on the west side of North Black Cat Road, midway between McMillan and West
Chinden Boulevard. The subject property was annexed and zoned in 2014 as part of the
larger Jump Creek Subdivision. The approved preliminary plat, final plat, and the
development agreement specifically identified this particular property for a multi-family
development. In fact, it was actually seven four-plexes of 28 units. The required
landscaping and the infrastructure has already been installed. There has been a traffic
study that was done with the preliminary plat. All the road improvements have already
been put in. What you will see on that lot line now are -- is the -- all the infrastructure, the
sidewalks are there now, there is just basically dirt in the middle where the parking lot is
going to be poured and you can see the building pads where the buildings are going to
go in. Again, that was all -- already designed with the annexation and the preliminary
plat. However, because of the multi-family requirement for our code, you actually have
to do a conditional use as another part of the process, so that's what this is about. There
is some specific use standards that are required for multi-family projects. Let me go
through that. So, this is -- if you look on the left this is what the -- a concept plan for the
annexation allowed. If you look on the right this is what's being proposed almost exactly
the same, except that hopefully you can -- if you can see my pointer. These buildings
here have just been turned on their axis, so they are now facing each other. Other than
that it's pretty much exactly the same. The specific use standards for multi-family units,
80 square feet of private common open space per unit, 250 square foot of common open
space. So, there is the private open space, like a patio or a porch or a deck and, then,
there is the common open space, which would be the landscaped outdoor open space.
There is two amenities that are required with this project. There is requirements for a
management office, a central mailbox, and maintenance storage for any development
that's more than 20 units. Looking at the floor plans for this project it looks like they may
not be at that 80 square feet. They are more about 70 square feet. That's one of the

50




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 48 of 95

recommendations. At the time of certificate of zoning compliance they would need to
submit that they are actually meeting that 80 square foot. Again, I'm not positive that they
are not. The other thing is that the applicant hasn't provided any information regarding
the management office and the maintenance storage, other than it would be built later
with the other 44 units of multi-family that's going to be part of the Jump Creek Seven.
So, that's the next project, the next multi-family project. That will again come in front of
you for conditional use. The Planning Commission -- we think that they need to determine
whether it's acceptable that the management office and the maintenance storage area
should be allowed to be built at a later phase or whether they would prefer that one of the
units of this existing -- the 28 units that are now being proposed -- if one of those units
should be temporarily used as the maintenance area and the office until the next one
builds out. We are not sure when the next one is or if or how long it could take. There is
two amenities that are required with this development. All the amenities in the Jump
Creek Subdivision -- there were seven of them -- were already approved and most of
them have been built. However, when we looked at the development agreement and the
annexation, it doesn't really say whether the amenities approved with -- with the whole
Jump Creek development included this multi-family project or whether the amenities
should be required with this project. We have asked if they were able to give us some
kind of legal agreement that can show that the amenities would be shared. That said,
there is enough open space there that staff thinks it could even meet the minimum
requirements on site, whether it's a shelter or enclosed bike storage or a community
garden, | think it's easy enough to go above and beyond and provide amenities that all
the -- the -- the residents of this particular project can have. Let's see. So, the code
requires two parking spaces per two bedroom units. They have shown all that and there
is also to be a covered carport garage. They are meeting all their minimum requirements.
However, the elevations that were submitted don't really show much about the carports,
so that's going to be something that we are going to ask for at the time of certificate of
zoning compliance. So, to summarize all this, staff's recommendations, first of all, is that
we think that the site plan and the landscape plan submitted with the CZC should be
revised to show a management office, a major storage area and a directory map and here
is the landscape plan and | can come back to that. These are elevations of what's being
built. So, let me talk, again, about the recommendation. So -- so, we believe that the
landscape plan should be revised to show a management office and maintenance storage
area and a directory map as is required. But if the maintenance office and the storage
area is not part of this development, then, the applicant would need to convert one of the
units in the second phase. So, that would be phased -- Jump Creek phase seven, to
convert that into multi -- into the maintenance or office storage. However, the staff thinks
the Planning Commission should determine whether or not that's acceptable, given that
phase seven has not been approved with conditional use yet or whether there should be
a temporary arrangement for that maintenance and that office to be within this current
project. At the time of the certificate of zoning compliance we also believe they need to
submit a common open space exhibit that was not proposed. We believe that they are
-- they are probably in excess of it, but we still need to have that as part of the certificate
of zoning compliance and, then, also staff believes that there should be two on-site
amenities provided. We don't think it was clear with the original approval and that would

51




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 49 of 95

come down to whether the Planning Commission actually thinks that is necessary or not
and with that staff would entertain any questions or comments.

McCarvel: Okay. Would the applicant like to come forward.

Brown: He talks fast. Alan, do you have some kind of overall that you can --

McCarvel: Name and address for the record.

Brown: Thank you very much. I'm going to do better.

McCarvel: Is this your first time?

Brown: Close.

Tiefenbach: This shows the buildings and the parking and the -- all the landscaping.
Brown: Yeah. But the site -- if you could show that that would help. The overall site.
Tiefenbach: When you say the overall site --

Brown: Jump Creek itself.

Tiefenbach: The entire subdivision?

Brown: Yeah.

Tiefenbach: The whole -- you are talking about you want to see the entire plat?

Brown: Yes, please.

Tiefenbach: If you -- let me search while you present and | will --

Brown: Okay. For the record Kent Brown. 3161 East Springwood, Meridian, ldaho.
McCarvel: Thank you.

Brown: And if | was in Caldwell | would say | had been sworn in -- or sworn at. So, when
this development was originally done in 2014, the comp plan wanted some higher density,
so the plan that was approved and the development agreement was upon it had these
apartments that are located here in the north and, then, in the very northwest corner of
McMillan and Black Cat is the other portion of the -- the apartments. That's our future
phase seven. I'm waiting for a drawing. The architect that was doing that, being fairly
young, just recently passed away and so we are trying to find someone in their office to

wrap those drawings up and get that submitted and have a conditional use. | was hoping
to do both of them. | had the neighborhood meeting for this on -- on both of them at the

52




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 50 of 95

same time. So, between the 28 units that are here and the 44 units that is located to the
south, it -- within the same Jump Creek development we want to have one management
office that -- and maintenance storage for the -- for the entire Jump Creek multi-family
development. All of the amenities that are in the single family portion the multi-family
residents are allowed to use. So, the other part of -- the reason that they overall would
really help is right across the street that entrance street that is on our west side on that
site plan, that is the beginning of a four or five acre park with a tot lot area, covered picnic
area that's already built and in place there. Big huge ball field that is adjacent. Yes. One
of those would show it. So, as you are looking --

Tiefenbach: I'm looking to see if | have a colored elevation here. I'm just looking at the
original staff report. This might be as good as we are going to get on the fly, Kent.

Brown: So, when we were looking at it we thought that we had all the amenities and that
the staff report said that this met the -- these -- the number of units, because the number
of units were called out in that original one. So, in -- in that upper right-hand corner -- if
he's not going to move it. Alan, don't move it. That's where the 28 units is located. Right
across the street from that you can see the common area that's there and, then, that park
space. The -- in the middle of that park space is -- is a tot lot and covered picnic area.
That also, then, links to everything going down to the south with a walkway. There is a
regional pathway that is on our boundary between us and Black Cat. It's a ten foot path
that is a part of your regional facility going there. We can put two on-site amenities -- the
ones that Alan called out, a covered bike parking and some raised beds. There -- there
is plenty of grass and open space within the development. He said that as the
Commissioners you -- you like those more attached. We are not opposed to that. We
can do that. We can add more. But, specifically, | think for the most part when this plan
was done in 2014 this concept of mixing the rentals and the single family ownership ones
kind of was a new concept. | think we are seeing more and more of that today. | would
say the builder kind of had to think about that or else we would have probably built it
sooner. This portion right here, the phase four that we are looking at, has already been
platted and that's why those improvements are in and installed and there is individual lots
for each one of the four -- four-plexes that is in this phase. It's already fenced with a fence
around. It's actually a pretty good location, because that spine road that is Gondola that's
along our southerly boundary connects into The Oaks property that is to the west of us
and continues and, then, on the other side it goes over to -- on the other side of Black Cat
there is -- in the Bridgetower development there is the Pleasant Valley Elementary School
that's on the other side of Black Cat Road, fairly close to this location also. So, overall
this is a good location for that and links well for these people, especially in the
environment that we are in today that we see people that are renting and hoping to get
into a house, this puts them in neighborhoods that -- where they can see other houses
that might come up and they are a part of -- a part of that neighborhood and it kind of
goes back to when years ago we designed Tuscany and we put really small cottage type
lots in there and yet we had big estate type houses -- estate being 14 -- 1,400 square feet
-- not these half acres or anything, but you have a mixture and as people progress in their
lives they move back and forth in and out of that. This -- this design kind of does that
same thing. We want to have one facility that -- the problem having a designated

53




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 51 of 95

maintenance area for 28 units is that it's -- it's really costly to have that happen. | would
say as guys approve a lot of these -- you know, | started talking to some kids that are
going to ICOM and -- and said, you know, you are supposed to have a maintenance
facility and an office and -- and they don't have one and we know that we are going to
have one, but we just want to have one instead of one in the north and one in the south,
which makes it really difficult for you to man that with employees or have that really as an
office. I will stand for any questions that you might have.

McCarvel: Are you open to -- | mean | think the question with the manager office is that
-- if that other phase seven doesn't get built out then -- | mean if we put some wording in
there that -- like that that -- you know, if that doesn't get built out, then, you are required
to have --

Brown: Yes. And we would -- we would do. We -- and -- and | thought that that's the
way that Alan had written the condition is we either provide it in phase seven or we provide
a temporary one being one of the units, which is generally what -- in most of the
apartments that | have done is that you go, okay, Building A, Apartment 101, is your office
for that -- that time period. We could do that as a temporary basis. We are okay with
that.

McCarvel: And, then, | guess the other question | had is are you open to putting a couple
of amenities in? Because | do think -- | mean even though they are right across the street
from that other beautiful park area, you know, they are rentals, so they don't necessarily
have, you know, the backyard to have their own plant -- | like the idea of the planter bed.
| mean something that those people don't have access to that the permanent homes do.
So, the shade area and a planter bed or something like that.

Brown: | think that the planter bed -- at least as | -- I'm talking about these ICOM students
that are college students and they are -- they are busy -- really busy, it seems like they
got finals every -- every other week and they are trying to get through there, but having a
garden would be a great thing and that's -- | think that that's a really good amenity in
apartments personally and, yeah, we are not opposed to putting two amenities in there.
Yes, we -- we -- we have a grassy space that's fairly large in the overall site in the
northwest side of that -- the unit space, that street in the backs of them there is -- there is
a fairly large lawn in there. We could do that that three units back up to. Thank you.
Sorry about that again.

McCarvel: Okay.

Brown: | hate watching myself when | go back and -- terrible. Terrible.
McCarvel: We all do.

Brown: Any other questions?

McCarvel: Yeah. Any other questions for staff or the applicant?

54




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 52 of 95

Seal: Madam Chair?
Cassinelli: Madam Chair?
McCarvel: Oh, in stereo. Commissioner Cassinelli.

Cassinelli: Kent, does that -- the parking there between building six and eight, that's not
-- there is no plan to extend that in the future to --

Brown: No.
Cassinelli: -- whatever is going to develop to the north?

Brown: To the north has already been approved. There is a -- that's the other part that |
didn't talk about is that we have this spine road that is along our southerly boundary.
Along our northerly boundary is another spine road that goes into either Toll Brothers or
Coleman to the north. So, yeah, there is -- there is no place to go there and it's already
been platted, so -- and they didn't ask for a cross-access, so it's not connecting.

Cassinelli: Okay. Thank you. And, then, | did -- another question for -- Joe, do you are
-- or Joe -- Alan. Sorry. Do you have -- do you have something you can show us on what
is platted to the north? I'm just curious how those -- how those are going to kind of fit
together and look.

Tiefenbach: When you say to the north, are you saying the subdivision that's platted up
to the north?

Cassinelli: Yes. Just mentioned that there is a spine road there. Do you -- do you have
a -

Brown: | bet Bill can find it.
Tiefenbach: Bill, are you able to get that up? | can't get to that from this computer.

Parsons: I'm happy to look that up, Alan. That actually platted as Oakmore Subdivision
back in '18, | believe, when Coleman came back through and resubdivided that and |
actually had --

Tiefenbach: You can probably get the preliminary lines up quicker than | can do it.

Parsons: Well, they should be able to -- I can pull up the plat or send it to you, Alan, not
a problem, but the intent was -- | had actually had Kent -- well, | -- Kent per se, but the
CBH and Toll Brothers worked together on realigning that road a little bit better, so it did
match up consistently with what they were doing on their south and what was happening
on their property. So, it actually replatted the single family lots.

55




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 53 of 95

Tiefenbach: You could send it to me in the chat, | can just pull it up in realtime.

Parsons: | will if | can dig that up here while -- if Commissioner Cassinelli will give us a
few minutes to dig that information up and show you what that looks like.

Tiefenbach: It would be quicker if you could do it on the chat.

Cassinelli: That would be -- and that would be great. |just -- I'm curious how -- you know,
that there is -- it's already been resolved, basically. There is not going to be a weird -- we
are not going to have puzzle pieces that aren't going to fit a year from now.

Parsons: We are -- that was the whole intent of them working together to make sure that
it did align and work better for both groups.

Cassinelli: Okay.
Parsons: So, give me a few seconds and | will pull it up.
Cassinelli: Appreciate it. Thank you.

Brown: But our intent is is to come back immediately with the conditional use for 44 units
in southwest -- or southeast portion of the overall Jump Creek and they are specifically
designing an office for this and hopefully others. I talked to him about that and | said, you
know, Meridian has this code requirement with this office and | know that that becomes
cumbersome to have an employee just for these individual developments, but we are
doing a lot of these developments where we only have maybe 40 units or less in them
and we need to come up with maybe something creative. Maybe you put some kind of
kiosk that's in there that we can get approved as an alternative to putting a physical office
where someone can go to, because | -- again, these medical students have become really
personal friends and we kind of babysit their kids since we don't have any kids around
anymore and they don't have anyplace where they can go and complain to someone and
having something that they could go to -- kind of like they do -- they -- they have gone to
with the multi -- multi or the storage facilities, something like that, that is technology, you
know, taking the place of a physical office. | think that we -- you know, that they could do
something like that. But right now they are designing a building that they can add an
office to and it's not going to be a unit, it's going to be an office is what they have told me.

Cassinelli: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Cassinelli.

Cassinelli: Excuse me. Kent, that will exist in that southern portion?
Brown: Yes, it --

Cassinelli: Okay.

56




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 54 of 95

Brown: So, us doing a temporary would be very appropriate, if you are concerned about
that, because | know that they want to move forward with construction on this one. All we
would have to do is get the -- before you with a conditional use and we could move forward
with the one in the south, we don't need to plat it, so | could be here with -- with that one.
But it's going to be behind anything that happens to the one in the north.

McCarvel: But if everybody stops moving to Boise and that other one doesn't get built
out, then, you would be required to have one there.

Brown: Yes.

McCarvel: Okay.

Brown: Absolutely.

Parsons: So, Commissioner Cassinelli, can you see the graphic up now?

Cassinelli: Okay. That's in that last -- that five or -- five or six acres, whatever that is?

Parsons: That is correct. So, if you see my cursor here along the south boundary, that's
where the multi-family -- or this four-plex project butts up to, Toll Brothers property.

Cassinelli: And -- and they both -- they have worked on this together?

Brown: We had to kind of align our stub streets with each other and, then, | also did the
development to the north of that, which was West Bridge, and it stubs into that one, too,
on the other side. So, all the puzzling, as you have talked about, has been taken care of.
Cassinelli: Already been figured out.

Brown: We were the first ones in and kind of was going way out there -- what was
considered way out there in 2014 and end of the recession -- end of the recession and
it's not way out there anymore.

Seal: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Seal.

Seal: Just on the -- as | was looking at the -- just the independent side, one of the
buildings is pretty close to that -- to the one house, basically, that kind of touches it,
disregarding the ones to the -- to the north now, but is -- is a property going to be fenced

as it abuts --

Brown: It's already fenced.

57




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 55 of 95

Seal: Itis already fenced? Okay. Wasn't -- wasn't sure that. And, then, | had -- | mean
previously you have been really good at working with the HOAs in areas and getting
agreements on everything. Are there actual agreements in the HOAs to allow for people
to come in and use those amenities?

Brown: Yes, there are. And | can provide that. Alan asked me did | get that and | got
that.

Seal: Great.

Brown: Actually, | saw that the attorney had made a mistake and so we have modified
that and just need to get it signed and -- and recorded. But -- but we did make the -- the
changing for that wording and -- and my discussion with them was what we have always
represented and from the very beginning is that all of these amenities is for the entire
development and you can't cut these people out of -- of this overall project. They are a
part of the pressure irrigation system and everything else. So, it needs to be a part and
so they -- they have made that change.

Seal: Okay. Thank you.

McCarvel: Okay. Any other questions for the applicant? I'm going to take a wild guess
that we don't have anybody to testify on this, since | don't see anybody left in the --

Seal: There is one.
McCarvel: -- chat and nobody in the room.

Weatherly: Madam Chair, we did have several people that signed in. There was one
person who was here to indicated a wish to testify, but it doesn't look like they are here
anymore. There is Monica online.

McCarvel: Oh, I'm sorry, we do have chats down there.
Weatherly: No problem. Monica, hang on just a moment.

McCarvel: Monica, you are -- you need to unmute and please state your name and
address for the record.

Gonsalves: Hi. My name is Monica Gonsalves and | live at 5409 North Willowside
Avenue, Meridian, Idaho. 83646. I'm actually a resident here in the subdivision in Jump
Creek, so | just wanted to -- looking at the conceptual site plan that was approved with
the development, the fencing was completely up across Black Cat. The fencing that they
have up currently leaves an opening to Black Cat and multiple mornings when I'm driving
out of our subdivision there are children that are standing and trying to cross the street to
go to the new elementary school and it's a very big safety hazard seeing these little kiddos
running across the street, traffic coming to a halt to let these kids go across the street to

58




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 56 of 95

Pleasant View Elementary. My biggest concern having school age children myself is the
parking that we are going to be seeing on Black Cat further obstructing any type of view
of children standing on the corner trying to get across the street to school in the morning
and there is really no safety features in place currently to help these kids get across the
street. There is no crosswalks. There is no light. There is nothing in place and it's really
the traffic impact and the parking, that's just a huge cause for concern for our family and
| know for our community that there is several children in this community -- | see them
playing in parks all the time or community spaces, so very big cause for concern. Thank
you for your time.

McCarvel: Thank you. Madam Clerk, do we have anybody else?

Weatherly: Madam Chair, that's all | see online and in house.

McCarvel: Okay.

Weatherly: Madam Chair -- sorry, Kent. A Janice just raised her hand online.
McCarvel: Okay.

Weatherly: Janice, one moment, please. Janice, you need to unmute and please state
your name and address for the record.

Borchard: Hi. My name is Janice Borchard. 5277 North Maplestone in Gem Creek.
83646. We have a huge concern with traffic densities in the area. That -- that -- one's a
huge one, because we are traversing and seeing all the traffic as people are cutting down
Black Cat from Chinden versus going to Ten Mile and we are -- you know. And, then,
cutting over McMillan or down on Ustick and, again, also we see the kids cutting across
and there are no crosswalks at this point. So, that really really needs to be addressed.
And, then, another concern that we have is there are densities down on both corners of
McMillan and -- yeah. Huge densities of apartments, multi-family, and -- let us know -- |
spoke to him a while back that McMillan is never going to be more than like two lanes
and, then, the suicide lane, because of the high voltage and the irrigation. So, we are
going to -- and, then, we have Prescott Ridge as a subdivision further to the west of us,
you know, surrounding St. Luke's. There are going to be so -- there is going to be so
much traffic density into this small little area it's unbelievable, you know, what's going to
be impacting this immediate area and that's one thing. And, then, for this particular little
group these rental units, are they going to pay HOA dues? Are they going to abide by
the same HOA rules? You know, there is a lot of reasons why people buy in communities
like we did where there are HOA rules. So, are these folks going to abide by the same
kind of rules? So, that -- that's a very huge question also when it comes to rental units
in, you know, these single family home areas. So, thank you very much for listening to
me and | appreciate your input.

McCarvel: Thank you. Anyone else wish to testify? Okay. Seeing none, would the
applicant like to reply.

59




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 57 of 95

Brown: For the record Kent Brown, 3161 East Springwood, Meridian, Idaho. This is on
ACHD's capital improvement list. They have been buying right of way along Ten Mile to
widen it and to take care of that traffic concern they required us to sell that entire length
of public right of way and so that they can improve it and make it larger. The first lady --
was it Monica had talked about these residents parking on Black Cat. That would be like
me trying to park on Eagle Road next to my house. You wouldn't last very long and you
are not allowed to do that. Currently there is kind of a shoulder there, but that's all
intended to go away and it's a part of ACHD's current -- current property. These residents
in this development are a part of the HOA for Jump Creek. They are paying dues. They
are -- that's a part of what they are -- they are doing and that's -- that's why we had to
make that amendment for them to be able to use those facilities, but they are -- they are
a part of the HOA. They have landscaping that's around the outside that the -- the overall
HOA takes care of and the multi-family portion is paying their percentage of that. The
part that is different is that private or parking lot area, those residents take care of that
part and if you were to require us to have two amenities within that we wouldn't require
the rest of the HOA to pay for those -- those facilities. Like a raised bed, for example, if
there was maintenance or something that needed to take place with that.

McCarvel: Okay.

Brown: Any other questions or --

McCarvel: Commissioner Cassinelli.

Cassinelli: Kent, do you know is -- is there a -- a plan for a HAWK signal in there?
Brown: Not that | have heard of, but | think that that's one of the things that the residents
are still on and | would encourage you as Commissioners to remind people that they are
paying taxes, just like I'm paying taxes, and if they see an issue like that, ACHD is more
than willing -- I mean that -- that school opened up this year, so it's -- it's a new thing.

Cassinelli: Is there school zone lighting speed -- speed control there on Black Cat?

Brown: Not on Black Cat, because they are off like one row of houses or so. They are
-- they are at least three or four hundred feet down Gondola to the -- to the east of it.

Cassinelli: Okay. Because | know that's even -- you know, Meridian Road has a school
zone, even though Meridian Elementary is off a block. So, it's certainly something that --

Brown: That they could -- they could look at doing and what they need to do is -- | used
to tell him to talk to Terry Little that was over traffic. | don't know if Terry's -- Terry's old
like me, so whether he's still there or not, but they need to talk to the traffic division of
ACHD.

Baird: Madam Chair, | could add a plug for the Meridian Transportation Commission.
Contact Miranda Carson with the police department and express -- have the residents

60




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 58 of 95

express their concerns and have that addressed by the Commission to make a
recommendation to ACHD.

Brown: Good idea.

Baird: We are with you.

Cassinelli: Thank you.

McCarvel: Concerns all appreciated and very legitimate, it's just we have nothing to say
about it, so -- yeah. Any other questions, comments for staff for the applicant? If not, |
would, please, entertain a motion to close the public hearing on H-2021-0018.
Cassinelli: So moved.

Seal: Second.

McCarvel: It has been moved and seconded to close the public hearing on H-2021- 0018.
All those in favor say aye. Opposed? Motion carries.

MOTION CARRIED: ALL AYES.

McCarvel: | think -- yeah, it was something that was already planned for. | don't see any
issues, other than the ones we have already addressed with the management office and
having those two amenities. Do we think need to address those in a motion or clearly
stated in the staff report, I'm not sure.

Seal: Madam Chair, the two site amenities shall be provided -- was part of the staff report
in there. The other was more of a question on the management office. But it sounds like
he is an agreement to add something in there temporarily and, then, probably be
temporary in name only, because it sounds like the other is going to provide occupancy
-- occupancy about the same time, so --

McCarvel: Yeah.

Seal: -- that's what it sounds like to me. Unless Alex wants to say otherwise.

Cassinelli: Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Cassinelli.

Cassinelli: When we -- when we get there do we have to say anything that -- Kent talked

about utilizing technology for that, but do we need to make it clear that it will be a staffed
office? That's because | think that's what's required, is that not correct, Bill?

61




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 59 of 95

Parsons: Madam Chair, Members of the Commission, it's not necessarily stated that way
in the code. It just says provide one. | know some of the other developments there is --
there is an apartment complex -- 48 unit apartment complex in Gramercy where they
actually built a 100, 150 square foot office building and it's -- it's basically electronics.
Someone comes in and leases from there and that's about it. Once it gets rented up no
one is there full time. They just use it as a leasing office to add tenants to the complex,
so it's -- you know, there is nothing that says it has to be staffed in the code. It just says
provide one. But that's up to you guys if you want it -- want to require that or not in the
conditional use. A lot of times you will have tenants that live right -- you know, they are
taking care of the apartments and they rent one of their apartments or live in one of the
units. That's pretty common these days, too. So, again, it's -- for staff it's really going to
come down to the CC&Rs and how this multi-family development plays with the rest of
the single family. It really needs to be integrated as one development. The staff report
from 2014 didn't state it that way and | -- | worked on the project, so | remember doing
that. | think at the time we were very supportive of that integration happening, because
of the fact that we didn't see that in many developments in the City of Meridian, so it was
something new. At the time that we were coming out of that recession we were seeing a
need for more than just single family homes and we had a deficit in multi-family and so |
worked with the -- this developer to specifically incorporate some of that into this
development at the corner. So, again, that's why we got more open space to support
what they are trying to do here. But, again, the code requires those -- those office
buildings and maintenance buildings as part of the development and that's something that
-- | think | like the approach of it being interim on the one site until such time as they have
something more permanent on their southern -- on the southern portion of the site. All
contingent on what Mr. Brown testified to as far -- as long as it's all unified and part of the
CC&Rs of this development of Jump Creek. To me that -- that's a critical point, because
we want that enforcement to be handled under one umbrella, not multiple entities out
there not following the same rules.

Cassinelli: Madam Chair, can | follow up -- follow-up question on that? So, right now,
Bill, are all the -- or Alan, are all the conditions -- the conditions for the temporary
management office and maintenance room and -- and the shared amenities with the rest
of the development are already in your conditions; is that correct?

Tiefenbach: That is correct. We already mentioned that the question was whether the
Planning Commission was okay with having the interim office there or whether they want
it to be permanent.

Cassinelli: Okay. So, a motion approved with your conditions includes that?
Tiefenbach: Correct.

Cassinelli: Okay. Thank you.

McCarvel: Anymore comments or motions?

62




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 60 of 95

Tiefenbach: I'm double checking the conditions for you right now to read them for you
verbatim if you would like. Here is what it says. It says the site plan -- landscape plan
submitted with the certificate of zoning compliance shall be revised to depict the
management plan, maintenance storage area and directory map. That's -- that's one.
And, then, there is A. If a management office and storage area is not part of this
development, the applicant shall convert one of the units in the second phase of the multi-
family development currently being filed in Jump Creek for such use. So, the comment
that we had for the Planning Commission is whether they wanted to make it clear that
there would be an internal one temporarily there until phase seven was built. That part's
not stated. Does that make sense? Because the way it reads right now it says a
permanent one. It doesn't say temporary until the phase seven is built.

McCarvel: Okay.

Tiefenbach: So, you would add the interim language to your motion if you wanted to do
that.

Lorcher: Madam Chair?
McCarvel: Commissioner Lorcher.
Lorcher: So, is phase seven the multi-unit portion of it?

Tiefenbach: Yes, ma'am. So, this is the first multi-family and, then, the second portion is
phase seven.

Lorcher: Okay.

Cassinelli: Are we ready?

McCarvel: | believe so.

Seal: | think we are ready.

McCarvel: Motions are always in order.

Cassinelli: Okay. Madam Chair?

McCarvel: Commissioner Cassinelli.

Cassinelli: After considering all staff, applicant, and public testimony, | move for approval
of file number H-2021-0018 as presented in the staff report for the hearing date of May 6,
2021, with the following modifications: We amend the language on the main -- on the
management office and maintenance building to -- to allow for an -- to change it to an

interim office and maintenance until such time that phase seven is built out and one is
permanently installed in phase seven and, then, that unit can be, then, converted and

63




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 61 of 95

rented out. That we -- that they add in an amenity, such as a planter bed -- are we just
doing one?

McCarvel: It's in there that they are required two.

Cassinelli: Okay. Two? Okay. That there is the two amenities and that that's required.
And just confirmation that -- that the HOA is a part of the main development and all the
amenities and those are shared.

Tiefenbach: Sir, did you want to mention about staffing or not? | wasn't sure that was
discussed.

Cassinelli: No. Just go with what the standard --
Seal: Second.
Cassinelli: -- language is.

McCarvel: Okay. It's been moved and seconded to approve H-2021-0018. All those in
favor say aye. With conditions. Sorry. Opposed? Motion carries.

MOTION CARRIED: ALL AYES.

9. Public Hearing for 2021 UDC Text Amendment (ZOA-2021-0002) by
City of Meridian Planning Division, Located at 33 E. Broadway Ave.

A. Request: UDC Text Amendment for text amendments to update
certain sections of the City’s Unified Development Code (UDC)
pertaining to the Landscape Requirements and Common Open
Space and Site Amenity Requirements in Chapter 3; Multi-family
Common Open Space Design Requirements in Chapter 4; and
Various other Amendments in Chapters 1-5 and 7.

McCarvel: Okay. Onto our final item ZOA-2021-0002, UDC Text Amendment. And, Bill,
the floor is yours.

Parsons: Thank you, Madam Chair, Members of the Commission. | appreciate you
recognizing that the product name had changed. That's one of the improvements we
have made with all of our updates to our Accella system. So, thank you for that, Madam
Chair. If you recall | was here before you guys about a month ago with a UDC text
amendment, which was expedited at the request of Council and city and the mayor and
at this time | informed you at that hearing that | was going to be coming forward with a
longer -- a larger code amendment and it would include multiple sections of the code. So,
in tonight's presentation | don't think I'm going to go line by line through every code
change. | don't think we have the bandwidth or the time to do that this evening, but | do
want to highlight some of the major changes for all of you, because although there is

64




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 62 of 95

updates throughout the code, the primary theme of this update before you tonight is really
changes to our open space. Not only our -- so, it would be our open space and site
amenities, also our multi-family standards, and this also includes our landscape
improvements -- or landscape standards as well in the code. So, this is -- some of this is
a significant overhaul and a lot of it has come about over the years -- | have been with --
trying to come up with a solution to improve our open space and amenities over the last
five years. That's a lot of -- some of the concern or at least a lot of the feedback that we
received as part of our Comprehensive Plan update back a year and a half or so ago.
People wanted better amenities. They wanted a sense of identity, a sense of place,
community identity | guess is the better word and, then, coming up with better or more
guality open space and that's what we hope we have achieved here with some of these
changes tonight. | know Commissioner Seal was -- was part of that UDC open space
committee. Again, thank you for your service on that. It was very instrumental in getting
us to this and | also want to introduce Lacy Ooi with us. She's from code enforcement.
She is going to be here to answer any questions you may have regarding the first part of
the presentation. So, if you had a chance to read the staff report you will notice that |
broke up all of the code changes into five separate exhibits and | did that purposefully,
so that if we have any changes as we go through the public hearing process it's going to
be easier for me to modify those documents, rather than cut and paste out of the staff
report, insert new documents. Things could get lost in translation if that -- if that was to
occur. So, the first exhibit that I'm going to share with you tonight really has to do with
what Lacy does in her business. She's -- she's tasked within the UDC to enforce our city
code and not only the UDC, but all of the city codes, and so give me a second here, | will
go ahead and share those screens and the reason why this came about -- and let me
know if you -- guess it didn't open up here. And the reason why these code changes
came about so quickly -- typically, as you know, if -- when we go through these code
changes we vet those through the UDC focus group, a larger group to get feedback and
-- and this is one where it recently came to my attention from not only Lacy's team, but
also city attorney's office, where they had a series of court cases that came up, they went
to go prosecute and for some reason or other the judge felt we didn't adequately address
that in our code and so they -- her and legal quickly came up with some of these code
changes. Again, | won't go through all of these, but most of it -- it doesn't really impact
development per se. Again, it's just giving them better tools to enforce our code. So,
hopefully, all of you have had a chance to look at this. If there is any particular questions
on this exhibit -- | want to try to keep this presentation informal this evening. | think there
is not a lot of people online or even in the audience tonight, so | think in my experience
with all of you, an open discussion on these changes has always been kind of the -- the
approach that we have taken, so don't -- don't feel like you can't interject or ask questions
as I'm moving through these things very quickly. But | do want to be sensitive and | do
want to spend adequate time and make sure that you guys understand what we are trying
to do with all of these changes. So, any questions of either staff or even Lacy this evening
on some of these procedural changes to the UDC, particularly the definitions or where
people can park their RVs on their property, that's a -- that's a hot button these days if
you didn't know.

65




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 63 of 95

Wheeler: Madam Chair? Just a quick question. Yes. Exactly. That's exactly where |
was with the boats and the RV there. So, is this to state that -- that is not that -- is in
violation to be able to park a -- or if somebody parks a boat or RVs or UTVs on the side
of the street?

Parsons: | will go ahead and defer to Lacy. She's the one that deals with it more than
we do. We just tell people the code and how they can come into compliance.

Wheeler: Okay.

Parsons: It's really her group that has to try to -- to work with the residents to get them to
come into compliance. So, she can give you all the stories you want on that.

Ooi: I'm new here, but | like informal, so if that's okay I'm definitely free to answer --
Wheeler: Very good.

Ooi: So, currently you cannot park any recreational type vehicles. So, trailers, boats,
campers, anything on your driveway or anywhere in the front of your property. It has to
be on the side yard behind a screened fence or in your rear yard.

Seal: Madam Chair?
Cassinelli: So, the revision is doing what?

Ooi: So, the revision would be to allow them to have one of any of the described types
of vehicles in their required street yard. So, they could have one boat -- or on their side
yard. So, it would allow for one of the recreational type vehicles to be either on their
driveway or on their side yard.

Wheeler: But not in front of their house in front of the street; is that correct?

Ooi: It can already be on the street -- on the roadway they are allowed and that's what
happens is that we will go and tell people they can't have them in their driveway, so, then,
they all move them onto the roadway, because they can do that for three days. We would
encourage them to be off the roadway and actually allowed to have them on the driveway,
because when they are cleaning them up, taking them out, packing them up, they don't
have a place to be able to do that that they are allowed. So, overactive -- no. Active
HOAs will do drive throughs and give us reports of every address -- you know, starting
Memorial Day through Labor Day we will get calls for them throughout the entire season
every time someone brings them back into their home.

Wheeler;: That seems sensible.

Seal: Madam Chair? Being a trailer owner myself -- and | have one on the side of my
house -- how do you -- how do you prevent people from living in them when they are out

66




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 64 of 95

there? | mean that -- that would be my concern. | understand -- | totally understand why
people want to do this, but | just want to make sure we are not --

Ooi: So, the code won't actually change that. There is a separate code that addresses
living quarters. So, using them as sleeping quarters would still be addressed, things that
would still be addressed are also if they are on an unimproved surface, if they are not
registered, if they don't have current license plates. So, a lot of these are just really the
ones of just average use, when it comes to any of the additional violations that come with
them, those ones would still be enforceable based on the way that the rewrite allows. So,
there is still a section that says inoperative vehicles. So, if it's not -- you know, if they are
piecing it out, even if it's on the front, that would also be restricted. The -- living in a
camper, whether it's on the front of their driveway or on the side of their house, is usually
a patrol function. So, we send those complaints over for police to make contact with. If
it's behind the property we will send them a notice and just hope that they stop, but we
utilize the neighbor, whoever the calling party is, to be a witness to that. So, if it's
continuing to occur, then, the violation can continue to occur and it will get sent to court
for that violation.

McCarvel: 1 think | see in here the neighborhoods can choose to enforce it privately in
their CC&Rs. So, this just takes the burden off the city --

Ooi: Right.

McCarvel: -- and if you still want an HOA to live in a place where it's not allowed then --
but, then, they have got to enforce it themselves.

Ooi: Right. So, the contention that we usually see comes from older neighborhoods that
don't have CC&Rs. So, the -- if you look at newer neighborhoods that have CC&Rs, a lot
of them restrict the RVs on the driveways anyway or sometimes it gives them a time
frame, 48 hours or 72 hours that they can keep them, and if they were to govern those
rules they are usually reasonable. But we are oftentimes utilized by their drive-throughs
and they will give us the list. So, the way | see it citizens are paying for their HOA dues
to a property management company to call us that they are paying taxes to also serve
them. So, he would force that burden back to them to enforce the regulations that they
put in place. Or older neighborhoods -- this -- this UDC change was put into effect in
2005 and a lot of the older neighborhoods had plats made with permits issued through
the city allowing electrical hookups to charge the RVs on pads that don't meet parking
standard requirements. So, just today one of my officers got in a confrontation and it was
one person working on a motorhome in the driveway, she got called because of the
parking on the sidewalk. So, she goes up to go issue a warning or citation for the
sidewalk, there is someone there, she makes that contact and homeowners come out,
too, and as she's in the middle of a driveway she's got a male and female homeowners
come out and all three of them start in on her. So, it makes for a really dangerous situation
for something that's not really necessary, where if we could just go and put that citation
for blocking the sidewalk, they don't fit it in their driveway if it's not on the sidewalk, so we
can cite them for that, get it onto the roadway and have it properly marked. But the

67




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 65 of 95

confrontation and the threats that we receive, based on the way that we are constantly
having to contact people on private property for this, puts us in huge danger. So, when
we can address the other issues or call patrol for assistance, that's a lot better for our
code officers that are unarmed.

Seal: Madam Chair?
McCarvel: Commissioner Seal.

Seal: Having served on the HOA -- | mean the only concern | have about this is because
the HOAs were -- | mean a lot of them are so poorly written, the only enforcement that
they really have is to call code enforcement. | mean because generally speaking
everything is less restrictive -- restrictive or as restrictive as city code, just trying to put
more teeth into it. So, my only concern is that if anything's rolled back to where code
enforcement isn't an avenue, then, essentially, people just -- they don't care. And we
have a couple people in our subdivision that literally don't care. They just -- and it's -- and
it's difficult, because, you know, of course, our HOA board is made up of retirees and they
are not going to be confrontational at all, so | just -- | want to make sure that we are still
leaving that avenue open. The code enforcement can definitely get involved and if it
escalates from there, obviously, law enforcement.

Ooi: So, to address that one, | have been doing this for 11 years and | can tell you two
addresses that for 11 years | have chased their RV around, because as soon as -- here
is the way the process works. If I'm going to go up -- and pre-COVID we would usually
knock on every single door, now we are a little more cautious or we will just send them a
notice and we might see -- like leave a door hanger, but not attempt contact. But we are
going to try to make some contact. We are going to come out and take an original photo
just to show that it's there. So, let's say the HOA has called us and we are going to come
out there. That's the process. So, we are going to go out, we are going to make our initial
contact or initial photos and, then, if we have made contact and -- or left a note, hey, you
know, to say move this at this time frame. We usually give them a couple of days -- five
days or something on trying to -- just with a verbal, it usually opens dialog. They will call
us and if they don't do anything we are going to come back and we are going to say it's
still here and we are going to now send them a notice. We are required to send them a
notice of violation. It's going to give them a deadline with reasonable time to comply. So,
usually reasonable is ten days. In some cases for people that we have done this for 11
years we think reasonable is a little less than ten days, because they are well informed.
But usually we give them ten days and usually a half an hour before the deadline of that
5:00 o'clock tenth day they put it on the street, they will put it on the street for three days,
we will clear our call and, then, they will put it back in their driveway, where we, then,
have to notify them again. So, as much as it sounds like a better option for HOAS, we are
not in any better position. So, | know -- what was that, six months ago, a year ago that
we were trying to get the penalties changed. We looked at trying to make it a sizable
offense to say this is a problem for us, let's make these penalties sizable. We will try that
route and when we talked to the prosecutor's office, they won't send summons for the
infractions, because it costs more in court costs to be able to get someone into summons.

68




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 66 of 95

So, we didn't have the option of changing it to a more reasonable penalty that we can be
able to resolve and when it came down to it, all of the other UDCs that we have penalties
that are misdemeanors that go through our process, everything else can work with an
end result. A daycare operating without a license. They are either going to get their
permit -- their home occupation permit or they are going to choose not to or they are going
to stop running the operation completely. If they choose not to, we can send that to court.
But when the compliance can be resolved every time they move their vehicle and, then,
restart every time, we can't get teeth on it, so, then, we re-evaluated -- it's not the UDC
that needs to be changed, it's this one code. So, | looked at 2020 stats on this -- 173 calls
for service with the parking standards involving 200 vehicles. If these amendments were
changed the same call, the same year, if we allowed them to have one -- one recreational
vehicle that's licensed with registration -- and to following all the rules. We are not talking
vehicles that aren't registered that are in horrible conditions, we are talking just your
standard operating -- a guy who has a trailer that works out of his home and brings his
trailer every day landscaping, something like that. Our call load would be 71 calls. One
hundred and two of those calls would go away. One hundred and two confrontations,
one hundred two possible complaints. The people that we contacted today, that was the
exact threat, I'm going to Council. I'm going to the Mayor's office. I'm going to talk to your
boss. Every single time it's anger and a confrontation. The citizens -- majority of the
citizens -- and I'm taking it from a complaint basis; right? There might be a hundred other
happy people that don't have to look at that trailer, but what | see is my code officers daily
being put in competition positions over something that's being handled on private property
that otherwise isn't violating any other code, other than something that's usually coming
and going. These ones that we are talking about that are actual problems would still be
addressed. What we ended up with is the neighbor wars. He brought the trailer back.
The boat's back. Duck hunt -- duck season. | mean we are -- it's constant and so we are
just trying to look for a way that takes some of that threat away. | know that people have
gone to Council, | know that people talk to the Mayor, it's constantly one of those things
where citizens aren't happy with the code. So, it's just time to come up with some sort of
in between.

Seal: Okay. That makes sense.
McCarvel: Any other questions for staff or -- do you have anything else, Bill?

Parsons: | was just going to add -- kind of piggyback on what Lacy was saying is that this
is really -- I think this one's coming more from Council than anything, too. It's -- they have
talked about this round and around in many City Council meetings and | know Councilman
Cavener is very passionate about doing something with this section of code. So,
hopefully, will -- as this kind of transitions through the public hearing process I'm hoping
we will garner some support on this, just to help our team members here.

Seal: Bill, one -- one thing | will say is with the HOAs that are out there -- and overactive
is probably the right word, not active. There will likely be some kickback on this from the
HOAs, because they want it more restrictive, not less restrictive, and | think this is going
to make it less restricted. With the wording that's in there | think it protects -- it protects

69




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 67 of 95

from just having, you know, a piece of junk basically laying beside your house, so it may
-- it enforces to keep it registered, to keep it running, to keep it -- you know, something
that you are going to have. But, again, | -- in the -- some of the HOAs in the way that they
go about things, they generally want to be more restrictive. Ours, for instance, you can't
-- our HOA s literally say that if you are a permanent resident you can't park on the street.
Yeah. You have to park in your garage or in your driveway, you can't park on the street,
SO --

McCarvel: Yeah. |-- 1 mean | deal with the HOA as well and, then, thinking if -- you know,
maybe you resort to fining, instead of involving the city. It's like -- it's just -- you know,
after one or two notices and you start getting fined and a lien on the property and -- |
mean --

Seal: Oh, yeah. We have got lots of liens and the fines are a sticky situation, because,
then, of course, you have to have somebody to collect the fine and now you are talking
money.

Ooi: One of the other things that was added in here -- there was previously a loophole
-- and let me tell you, people will find the loopholes and they learn how to work it in a way
that we can't counter it. So, when we added -- you know, one of the things we added in
was a gross vehicle weight. So, if you are going to say that one recreational or any of
these other type vehicles are allowed, we added in the gross vehicle weight of 16,000
pounds, because, really, an F-350 is over 12,000 pounds, which is allowed on the road,
but it's -- you know, you can't actually park an F-350 on a road, because it's over the gross
vehicle weight. But to add that, because we get the dump -- like semi trucks coming in
on driveways, so we added the gross vehicle weight, so that we did have a restriction
and, then, the other thing we added was listing those specialized vehicles, UTVs, ATVs,
which we included the jet skis -- | have two properties that hoard jet skis and they are not
a vehicle, so they -- they -- and they aren't junk and so there is this thing where | have
these properties with probably eight jet skis on their properties, so by adding this it also
gives us a little bit more authority to be able to enforce against these other things that
people do on the front of their properties.

Seal: | do not envy your job.
Ooi: Neither do I.

Cassinelli: | muted myself, instead of unmuting. So, does -- does the 16,000 pounds
agree with the RV or is there a conflict there?

Ooi: They will be separate, because the recreational vehicles are listed as allowed. Like
currently you can't park a vehicle on the roadway that's over 12,000 pounds, except RVs
are exempt. So, the same thing is by listing them as allowed -- allowing one recreational
vehicle, one camper trailer, then, those will be allowed. But a vehicle, which is defined
by the state of Idaho, can't be over 16,000 pounds. So, it will be automobiles and pickup

70




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 68 of 95

trucks, anything that's a vessel that can be registered, then, it would have to be registered
under 16,000 pounds to meet the gross vehicle weight -- weight rating corrected.

Cassinelli: But --

Ooi: Yeah. Okay.

Cassinelli: But an RV, even if it's over 16,000 pounds, is allowed?
Ooi: Yes. Because it's listed as allowed.

Cassinelli: Okay. Does that need to be -- it says both. Does it need to be changed at all
to say -- with the exception of approved vehicles above or something?

Ooi: I don't think so. | think that's what that headshake means.
Cassinelli Okay.

Ooi: Okay.

Baird: Okay. Emily wrote it, so we are good.

Ooi: Okay.

Seal: A question on the -- | mean, essentially, you are talking about anything with a T
plate; right?

Ooi: So --
Seal: And | ask because, | have a truck with a T plate that sits in the driveway.

Ooi: Yeah. So, right now it's not allowed anyway. Anything over 12,000 pounds isn't
currently allowed in your driveway.

Seal: So, don't -- so don't drive by.

Cassinelli: Can we get your address?

Ooi: Yeah.

Cassinelli: Not to dox you, but --

Ooi: Right. So, I'm trying to look at this and not get completely sidetracked, but we tried
to list it when we described them as vehicles that could be licensed and registered would

be listed first and, then, those specialty vehicles were listed afterwards. So, what we are
looking for is that license that it's current and invalid. So, that's the intent is to have current

71




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 69 of 95

and valid vehicles. We don't go out looking for vehicles that are over 16,000 pounds
rated. You would have to run the license plate for that. So, we are responding to a
complaint. So, sometimes those come in when people try -- like running a home
occupation and maybe they are like remodel something or restoration companies and
they have these large cargo box vans. So, unless they are doing like interstate travel,
they really can usually rate them under that and we don't have any enforcement on that.
So, you are choosing to rate your vehicle you are going to end up with a T plate --

Seal: Yeah.

Ooi: -- because you are choosing to rate it higher than that. But you probably wouldn't --
you wouldn't receive that call.

Seal: Okay.
McCarvel: Any other comments from staff or any other presentation?

Parsons: If there is -- if there is no other questions for Lacy, | would certainly ask -- she
doesn't have to stay. She's more than welcome to leave, unless you guys have other
guestions, but I think | can handle it from here.

McCarvel: Okay. Thank you.
Parsons: All right.
Ooi: Thank you.

Parsons: Yeah. Thank you for joining us. Lacy. So, the -- the next round of changes are
really ones that | handle throughout the year. As you know, | take care of -- | keep a
running list of code changes throughout the year. These are the ones that | take -- meet
with the UDC focus group and get input from every -- all of our stakeholders before we
bring those to you. So, I'm very familiar with these code changes. Some of the ones that
you heard last month were going to be part of this presentation tonight, but, again,
because of that request of expediting those, | went ahead and removed those from the
list here. You can see here these -- these range from Lacy's changes from Chapter 1, all
the way to Chapter 7 of the code -- of the UDC anyways. So, we want to -- some of the
changes tonight to discuss with you -- you can see here that we are raising -- and | would
also mention to the Commission that we say what we are trying to fix and why we are
fixing that. So, | think that's the importance of this table here. One, we are changing
code, but why are we changing code, and we try to do that regularly. Some of the code
changes you have tonight couldn't get to that level of detail, just because a rewrite -- we
are in the process of rewriting an entire ordinance and that's in regards to the open space
and site amenity. So, be hard to give you commentary for every code change that we
did, but I can tell you that not only were these changes and the open space changes that
we are going to discuss a little bit later, they were fully vetted through a very talented
group of people. And, again, we appreciate their time in participating in that, because it

72




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 70 of 95

is a huge effort to do that and take your time out of your busy schedules to participate in
these activities. So, it's something that we do take very very serious. | also had the
pleasure of sharing these changes with the BCA, which is the Building Contractors of
Southwest Idaho is -- that's the technical term, but I like to get in front of our developers
or even our home builders and just share what's coming down the pipeline and -- and you
can see with the public comments submitted from them today that they like to be involved
and active as well in the process. So, | will go ahead and move quickly through some of
these. | think some -- | will highlight some of the more prominent changes for you. | think
it's obvious what we are trying to do on some of these. Remember, one of the changes
that we are trying to do is -- that's particularly of interest to our development community
is probably 11-3B-14C, right here at the end of this first page here, and it has to do with
certificate of occupancy for subdivisions. So, a lot of you don't get involved in this, but
what will happen is you all approve subdivisions and, then, there is the construction period
and during that construction period there is ways of getting the plat recorded without
actually building anything. You can just put up the money for that to guarantee those
improvements are met and still record a plat. It doesn't mean you can get a building
permit, it just means you have a recorded document and what we are finding with the high
level of demand for homes -- a few years ago was the delay in getting just help -- you
couldn't get any contractor to help you, because there wasn't the workforce and now we
are seeing there is a delay in building materials, because of the number of homes going
up and so typically in my world or planning's world is we don't let anyone move into their
homes until the subdivision is one hundred percent complete. That means all amenities
in, all landscaping in, fencing in per the approved plans and what we have noticed is we
have had to make exceptions these last several years, because they just can't get
materials to finish the work, but we have always collected what we call a surety to do that
work and so in working with our development partners we came up with this solution to
allow them to continue to get C of O's, let people move in, the intention upon us having C
of O, with the expectation that those improvements would be done at -- at the end of --
90 days after the first C of O was issued for the development. | can tell you some of that
-- that 90 day was still pretty tight for some of the feedback that we received with the
group. They were -- they were wanting us to push that to almost 180 days, because they
said what if -- what if we need people moving in in November and that may not get you
far enough into spring to get the materials to do that work, because of the weather here
in ldaho. So, we went ahead and said, well, we are going to stick with 90 for now, but it's
something that we need to track in our process as we go through as part of our process
improvements. Is this adequate? | don't know. Again, staff is guessing that 90 days
might be sufficient, but maybe 120, 160, 180, may be prudent at this point, so -- and | will
go ahead and go through all of this and, then, we can go back to some of these and have
guestions on it, as a transition. | think another one of particular interest for this body is
the parking for multi-family. You can see we are actually making some changes this time.
We are classifying studios as providing one and, then, we are also having a requirement
for guest parking and this is pretty similar to what we saw from our -- our neighbor to the
east in Boise. So, | took that right out of their code that they -- the developer would have
to provide guest parking, one per ten dwelling units -- for every ten dwelling units. The
other change on this sheet is our flex space standards. We are starting to see an uptick
in flex space throughout the community and the need for that and currently we don't allow

73




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 71 of 95

rolling doors or loading docks in those districts and so we have -- we have met with the
development community, we understand their concern, and as long as they can screen it
or put it behind the building there may be cases where it's appropriate and that's why we
are adding that it can be, as long as it's not visible from the street. We don't want them
in front of the building, but it might work in behind the building. So, that's one change we
have going forward. Another one -- this one may be of interest to Commissioner
Cassinelli -- concerns with public hearing signs. When we started meeting with the UDC
focus group we had a vision that the city may take over posting of properties and as we
had the larger discussion with the group we realized there is a lot of liability the city would
have to take on if we were to take that -- provide that service to our -- our applicants and
so we decided to remove that portion of the language from the code, but we did try to
reinforce that signs need to be fastened securely and they have to provide documentation
with photos, a map of where they placed the signs, so that we can at least have an
accurate record that it was done. | know this body's heard on a regular basis where
people have gone in and kicked over signs or the wind blowing them over or something
happened to the sign as it was going through the public hearing process that led you to
guestion what had happened and what -- why this occurred. We don't have a real answer.
All we can really do is go to the public record and let you know that we received the
affidavit, we have the proof of posting and they met code requirements. We don't
physically go out to the site and verify that it's been posted. This is a new change also
underneath the public hearing process. What we see throughout -- at least from my
perspective and the team's perspective, when we transition between Planning and Zoning
Commission to City Council sometimes there is not always enough time for the applicant
to get us revised plans and so it's really hard for us to update our staff report or articulate
the changes to both, either you or the City Council. So, | wanted to make sure that
whatever we do if you guys require changes to plans or City Council, that we have some
kind of time frame built into the code, so that we could adequately analyze those changes
and bring back a formal recommendation on those changes to you and have modified
conditions of approval should you want to act on that once you see the revised plans and
| think, again, some of the feedback that | had on this particular code change or addition
is just adding more time to the development process and, unfortunately, sometimes when
-- and this body sees it time and time again -- sometimes we have developments that just
aren't ready yet and we have to condition the heck out of it and, ultimately, we are
continuing anyways, going back and getting a redesign and, then, bringing it back with --
with modified conditions. But to me this just kind of puts a finer plan to what the
expectations are moving forward. | would also let you know with some of the software
updates that we are going to be implementing here in the next couple months, we will
actually be able to send an e-mail back to the applicant saying you need to upload revised
plans or you are not going to your hearing and that will only -- that will help staff -- my --
my staff to understand that they have to review the plans and it will also inform the city
clerk that there is other plans that need to be uploaded to the public record. So, it should
be a pretty interesting tool. We will see how this all plays out and I'm looking forward to
some of the changes that are coming your way here in the next couple months. Here is
some of the surety agreements. Again, this kind of coincides with some of the changes
that we had up above, that 180 day window, or at least giving the developer some
flexibility to get people moving into their homes quicker if we have a surety in place. So

74




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 72 of 95

that coincides. And, then, the last modification on this table is just the density formula for
PUD standards. Ithink this body is very aware that we do not -- no longer regulate density
in the UDC. It's a function of the Comprehensive Plan now and so we found this one
interesting hold over in the code and so we just decided to go ahead and get it cleaned
up while we were doing this round of updates currently. So, again, overall | think a lot of
the feedback from the -- the committee -- UDC focus group was positive. They do
endorse some of the -- a majority of these changes. But, again, as | noted earlier, they
would like that window to be extended from 90 days to potentially 120 to 160 days. With
that | will kind of just stand for questions for this section of the code changes this evening.

Grove: Madam Chair?
McCarvel: Commissioner Grove.

Grove: BIll, | have a stupid question. It's late enough at night that | can have a stupid
guestion | think, but is there a place on the city's website where you can easily find what
public notices are -- are currently out in the public, where it -- you don't have to -- | drive
by things and | see public notices and, then, I'm like, oh, yeah, I will remember -- time to
figure out what that is, but it doesn't -- | never remember and -- | don't know. Is there an
easy way to just quickly see what those things are about?

Parsons: Well, we have -- we have implemented, so -- Madam Chair, Members of the
Commission, Commissioner, there is not an easy -- we don't have a database that does
that. What we do is when we accept an application we actually have mapping -- a
mapping system on our website where residents, if they do see a sign, they have the
ability to go to our website, click on a map and see what that project is. That's how we
track that. And, then, if -- if all the publishing information the clerk's keep on the project
folder on laserfiche, so that's where we have all of that information. But there is no
database per se that shows where all the postings are and where the projects are. For
the public to have easy access, except for that map that | -- and we call it the active
hearing level map and it's on our website now and it's actually been -- | have -- | know |
have tried to guide residents through that as much as possible, because it really does
keep them informed as to what's happening in your area.

Seal: Madam Chair?
McCarvel: Commissioner Seal.

Seal: And, Bill, we got -- on the noticings, if the city is going to take it over, is that going
to be fee driven?

Parsons: Well, we are not going to. That's what | said. We had toyed with it, but we
decided not to, because of the liability, getting people -- property owner's permission,
having -- having to go onto somebody else's property, just -- it didn't seem warranted.
Based on feedback from the UDC focus group, they did note that Boise reverted -- Boise
used to do that and they actually changed their code, went back and put it back on the

75




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 73 of 95

applicant to do it. So, I don't know if there is any value add to that. But certainly we don't
want to proceed -- at least staff doesn't want to proceed with that without knowing all of
the obstacles or things that we may have to take on by doing that and, yes, we would
have to go and create a fee to do that and analyze what that would cost the city to do and
we would pass that onto the -- to the applicant as part of the application process.

Seal: Okay. Yeah. That's just -- as things are coming about and the city is trying to
expand what it's able to offer -- or capable of offering as far as technology and ease of
use, fees for something like that could definitely contribute to that, so --

Cassinelli: Madam Chair? Bill, a couple of questions. On the multi-family parking, are
those numbers -- are those increased from what's been required in the past?

Parsons: Madam Chair, Members of the Commission, Commissioner Cassinelli, no.
Well, the -- the ones in the middle for one, two, three, and four plus bedrooms, those are
what currently are in code and, then, the underlying are the new addition to the parking
standards. So, we have added -- or better defined what parking is going to be required,
because we are starting to even see more studios come online and -- and so working with
the development community and hearing what we have heard from all of you saying you
don't -- you meet the minimums, but you don't have any -- where is the guests going to
park? So, this is kind of staff's best guess as saying, hey, this -- this could provide that
additional parking that we keep hearing over and over from -- not only you, but City
Council.

Cassinelli: When you got these numbers -- you say you -- you got these from Boise?

Parsons: The guest spaces | did. But as far as the studio, that came from the UDC focus
group. We all kind of agreed that, you know, there is really no bedroom with a studio, but
it acts like a one bedroom, so it made sense to assess a one bedroom per dwelling for a
studio.

Cassinelli: Is the -- on the guest is -- did you -- did you just pull it out of their standards
or did you talk to somebody over there? Is that -- and do they -- is that enough, one in
ten?

Parsons: | did not speak with any staff members over at the city of Boise. Again, | just
went to their code, because | remember researching this -- I don't know, 18 months ago,
and saw that standard in there and -- and, then, | kind of took one of our larger multi-
families and | times it by that and | go, okay, that seems to be a reasonable amount. |
mean if you have a 240 unit apartment it's pretty easy math; right? You get 24 guest
stalls. That seemed to be a good visitor overflow parking number. It might even be
excessive, but --

Cassinelli: But on a smaller unit that may not be enough.

76




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 74 of 95

Parsons: You got it. Or it may not be necessary. But, again, that's what the conditional
use permit is for. That kind of goes back to our earlier discussion this evening is that you
have the ability to prescribe something more with a CUP. So, if you don't feel it's -- it's
appropriate or you feel more parking is required, that's certainly your purview.

Cassinelli: And, Madam Chair, if | may, another question.
McCarvel: Sure.

Cassinelli: Bill, on the -- on the roll-up doors on the flex space, what -- is there a -- is
there a mechanism there for -- if it's -- if it's kind of a -- you know, a modern industrial type
of this base with a -- with a -- you know, with a -- | don't know, whatever you want to call
it -- some, you know, kind of a cool architectural design, it's got cool roll-up doors, not
your industrial roll-up doors. Is there something that -- you know, the alternative
compliance or whatever that the applicant can -- can get that in -- you know, can get a --
even a fully visible one that's -- one that's not screened, but if it -- if it's -- if it complements
the project. Can we -- can they put that in?

Parsons: Currently that -- that is -- there is nothing available for them to do that, except
to comply. We -- and we specifically -- and the reason -- what -- what you are not seeing
here is the definition of a flex space building and in our minds a lot of people think it's just
an industrial building, but, really, if you look at the definition of a flex base building in our
code, it speaks to a high quality building. So, it's meant to be -- look commercial from the
street and, then, act like an industrial building from the rear and so we intentionally made
it that way, where we didn't want the roll up, because we didn't want to hurt the design
aesthetic of the building and allow those in front and so we did that intentionally a few
years ago when we did our flex space standards.

Cassinelli: So -- okay. So, this is -- you are not talking about like a live-work --

Parsons: Correct.

Cassinelli: -- type of environment.

Parsons: We are not talking flex space. It's basically -- it's office warehouse type
buildings where you can have multi-tenant buildings where 30 percent is office, they have
a retail showroom and, then, they have warehousing in the back to store the materials or
do manufacturing or something.

Cassinelli: Okay. Yeah.

Parsons: No, it's not a vertically integrated building. That's something totally different.

Cassinelli: Okay. Got you.

Wheeler: Madam Chair?

7




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 75 of 95

McCarvel: Commissioner Wheeler?

Wheeler: Yes. Commissioner Cassinelli, yeah, that's like what we also call in the industry
-- it's called incubator space and so these people come in to like what you can see in like
Ten Mile and Franklin spaces, they just have those -- those spots that they can be there
for a little bit or what you see like Alder Construction or Van Auker built, those kinds of
spots like that I think is what he's trying to address there; is that correct?

Parsons: That is correct.
Wheeler: Okay.
McCarvel: Thank you.

Parsons: That's what | mean, we are actually -- in this particular case we are actually
relaxing the standards, because of what we have heard, you know, some of these bigger
buildings, some -- particularly in our ME zone, if you look at the Ten Mile interchange
specific area plan and look at mixed employment, that ME, it does, it encourage some
industrial users and buildings could be one to four stories, so you just -- you don't know
-- you know, but at the same time you don't want loading docks in front of a building, you
know, it just -- it hurts the aesthetics and same with the roll up doors, but certainly if a
restaurant was to go in a building and put a roll-up door for -- to connect to their patio, we
don't -- that's -- again, that's a completely different use, we would allow something like
that as part of their design. All right. Any other questions on this change before | move
on to the next one? And does the Commission want Kent to chime in on any of these
changes before we get to the staff presentation?

McCarvel: Yeah. Come on up.

Brown: Kent Brown. 3161 East Springwood. To help understand the parking, Boise has
a lot less parking. They encourage you -- | can get more units if | put less parking on a
general rule doing units, do a two bedroom, they require one and a quarter parking spaces
per unit. | have a theory is that they are trying to promote mass transit and by overparking
they -- they meet that need. But they do -- the provision that Bill pulled out is exactly the
one per ten guest parking. That's -- that's in their standard. Cities -- Kuna, Ada county,
they all require two. Most of them require a guest parking along the lines of the -- the two
unit -- or the one per ten. That's kind of standard with Nampa and -- who else? | think
Kuna. But for the most part we normally see two units. My clients that | do multi-family
for, say that that meets most of their needs. Surprisingly, their renters, they find that they
have a lot of people that are just renting one unit. | mean they are -- they are renting a
two bedroom, but there is only one person. They might have the really nice car that they
take when they go out to eat and they have another car -- they could have that, but for
the most part a lot of people are professional adults and they -- they just -- they need the
one bedroom, but they have to rent two, so -- because there is not a lot of one bedrooms
out there. The sign posting -- the reason that you wouldn't want the city to do it is a
number of the developments that we did when | was working for the city of Boise and

78




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 76 of 95

since then -- you have militant neighborhood associations in Boise, they have empowered
the neighborhoods to a point that they will tear down your signs, they will tear down the
four-by-four signs. They disappear off the site. One of the things that you should
understand is my clients are generally paying around 500 dollars per sign for a sign to be
posted. It's -- it's a pretty expensive thing to do. | think one of the things that Meridian
has done well is that they have changed the lettering heights and sizes, where | go do
one in Eagle -- if | do the type that they are talking about | can't even see it when | park
in front of it to know what -- what's all there. But that's kind of normal for the sign posting.
There are some companies that just do posting, that have kind of come along. Nampa is
in the process of adding that posting to their process. They haven't had in the past. Kuna
-- to take care of the mom and pops, they rent signs, so they have a generic sign that they
can put in P&Z and City Council and the dates and, then, they rent it to somebody that is
doing the daycare or something like that, that they allow the -- the people to use, figuring
that a resident can't afford a 500 dollar sign. | have posted sites where they are spending
close to 2,000 dollars with all the locations that staff asked us to post with every stub
street, so -- anyway, hopefully that helps.

McCarvel: Any other questions or comments for this section?

Parsons: Perfect. Now | will move onto exhibit three of five. So, this next one is really
the -- now we are starting to transition into a lot of our landscape, open space changes
and | just have to commend Brian, he is the one that really spearheaded these changes
to the landscape ordinance. | -- | provided comment, but he worked closely with our Parks
Department and others to -- to try to enhance what we already have. So, this isn't a total
rewrite, it's just really to make things clearer and make sure that we are getting attractive
landscaping in our developments and, again, | won't go through all of the changes, but |
did want to highlight a couple of them. And one change that | will have for you this evening
that | need you to include in your motion is -- | was able to get with Matt Perkins -- so, as
-- when | -- when | sent out the staff report on Friday, | realized that the city arborist had
not provided us a list of trees to include into our ordinance and you can see here it just
kind of has a holder -- a placeholder here and so he was able to provide that to me
beginning of the week here and so in your motion tonight | just would want you to include
that -- that we include that -- the two lists that he gave me. So, he gave me a list for
waterwise and, then, he also gave me a list that goes -- goes along as a companion
document to the Treasure Valley tree selection guide and | will make sure that that gets
added as we transition through the hearing -- to the City Council hearing. So, you can
see here we removed a lot of our waterwise in trying to improve upon that, to make it
clear. We certainly want people to do that in our valley. We -- | would much rather see
xeriscape and some of those things than a lot large expansion of lawns that are around
a lot of these commercial businesses. It's just a lot of maintenance and a lot of water.
This is nothing new to the code. Again, we are just reinforcing it with different trees and
different species to try to encourage that to happen more often and, again, a lot of these
are changes to that that speaks to that, you know, irrigation standards. One thing that's
going to be interesting is -- this is where -- and | did also share these changes with our
UDC focus group once we had a draft of the changes and, then, you -- you -- the
Commission is very aware of all the developments around you. You live here, you are

79




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 77 of 95

passionate about what you do, and you want to -- you want to see better -- higher quality
development and so what we have tried to do with this particular section is enhance what
the developers need to do with -- particularly in regards to their street scape buffers and
their -- their -- their landscape buffers along arterials and collector roadways and how they
are supposed -- supposed to plant that and what that's supposed to look like. There will
also be a couple -- a series of graphics that go along to give the end user an idea what
this actually means. So, it really specifies tree canopy. It really encourages more of a
mix of shrubs and plantings and boulders, rather than just having a strip of sod and one
tree for every 35 linear feet. So, again, we are trying to reinforce that and that really kind
of comes down into these -- this section here and the exhibits were part of the public
record as well. | transmitted that with the application. So, you guys were aware of that.
And, then, here is some of the -- again, some of the explanation of eliminating grasses
and, you know, how much coverage you should provide for that. It goes along with those
graphics. And, then, a lot of you probably know, we -- we -- certain roadways in our
community have what we call entryway corridors and along those corridors we require a
35 foot buffer, rather than a 25, and | -- you know, to be honest with you, | can't see where
35 looks any better than 25, but those are the areas that should be elevated or be
distinguished from other landscape buffers in our city and that's what we are trying to do
here as well. And, again, the rest of these are just cleanups in language and verbiage in
the code, removing some things and just kind of reinforcing some -- some better
principles. But I did want to point out one change to all of you and this kind of coincides
to which -- which this -- we will see how -- what the appetite of the Council is on this
particular one. It's really tree mitigation. This has really been -- you have probably seen
this more and more these days with these five acre lots where they are -- they are never
covered with trees, because there is just a home on there and the residents have lived
there forever and now we have a project where someone wants to come in and subdivide
it and they have hundreds of caliper inches that they just can't mitigate for on a site and
so I'm working with the city's attorney's office and the city's arborist to develop basically
an in lieu fee. It's almost like a tree bank where if you can't mitigate the inches on your
property there is -- maybe you can pay towards a fund to offset those -- those inches and,
then, place them elsewhere throughout the city in our parks, along pathways. And, again,
| don't know if Council has traction for that, but | know planning and, of course, the parks
department are pretty excited about this. We don't have any fees developed at this point.
That will certainly be the next step. | have actually asked the city arborist to reach out to
-- my understanding is the city of Boise has something similar to this and he came from
the city of Boise, so | actually asked him to reach out to his counterpart over there and
get some more information on this particular topic, because I'm curious to see how -- how
this shapes up or how they administer this program.

Grove: Real quick. Are there limits on that?
Parsons: As far as what limits?

Grove: Let's say that there is a hundred caliper that had to be addressed or something
and instead of doing any trees whatsoever, like they decided to just pay the fees, so that

80




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 78 of 95

there was no trees. | guess my question is like is there -- could that be abused if there is
not limits put in place?

Parsons: Well, | think we have to look at the beginning part of the code where it says we
are going to mitigate trees. Obviously, we want them to preserve the trees, that's the
goal, and we have given them a lot of tools and flexibility to do that through alternative
compliance. | don't think that would be the case, to be honest with you. | think all of us
can appreciate keeping mature trees. | know Kent is probably a big fan of it, too. | know
he's done -- been part of that in some of his developments. But the intent is not to mitigate
anything, the intent is to try to keep and preserve that. But where you can't, then, you
would have this option. | don't know why staff would want to support that. If someone
had -- | can give you an example where we had that project off of McDermott, Lupine
Cove, where they had 1,400 caliper inches to mitigate, you are not going to get -- you are
never going to get that many trees on a five acre property and so, essentially, where else
are we going to put these trees? We have no other tools or mechanism to do that. So,
the arborist went out there, did the best he could to mitigate what he could and, then,
said, okay, this is a -- this seems to be a fair plan, let's move on. Most of the time we get
a plan, we have them show us that, we required trees in their front yards and their rear
yards, more in the common open space, where ever we can get trees we try to accomplish
that to make up for those caliper inches. So, the intent of this code is not just to put up a
hundred thousand dollars and move on. It really is our first -- our first line of defense is
really mitigate, you know, to preserve where we can.

Seal: Like the -- there is a property on Black Cat I'm thinking of that just has -- | mean
there is -- there is a tree every three feet on the whole five acres up there. So, this kind
of speaks to that where there is just no way that's ever going to be a reality.

Grove: That's a conservator. | think it -- that has like a special thing on it, though. That
parcel does that you are talking about on Black Cat.

Seal: Yeah. | know.

Grove: There is a special thing where it can't be changed, but -- | guess my question,
Bill, is -- is just making sure there is not a loophole that we are going to have to worry
about later, so --

Parsons: Well, certainly, if -- again we don't know what that fee is, but when | have talked
with the city arborist he informed me it costs the city -- | think he said roughly 250 dollars
to install a two inch caliper tree. So, if you have to plant a tree, you got to -- if you have
to mitigate for 400 -- say a hundred caliper inches and you do that in two inch caliper
trees, it's going to get very expensive. | don't know why if someone would put up 250,000
dollars or -- to -- to try to make up that amount. But is it possible? Sure. And, again, |
think more than likely someone would want to work with us and come up with a mitigation
plan that worked for both parties and, again, this is a new concept for the City of Meridian.
| don't know how this is going to play out and, again, | don't even have a fee to share it
with you this evening. But I'm hoping as we transition to City Council we would have

81




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 79 of 95

something figured out at that point and -- or at least lay out steps for a program for Council
so they can understand what -- what this means.

McCarvel: Commissioner Cassinelli.

Cassinelli: Bill, I'm a little curious on that. Not that | don't like trees and things, but when
you -- get when you -- when you look at the -- at the natural landscape of the valley here
it's -- it's desert and the trees are there -- you know, especially some this old growth or
whatever, a homeowner planted that at some point -- you know, a farmer probably put
that around his house, but the rest of -- you know, the rest of his 80 acres or whatever
was -- was bare and only because of the irrigation canals is there any vegetation on that
land. So, if a -- if a developer comes in -- and | mean typically they are going to put trees
in, they are not going to not put trees in. If you are trying to mitigate for, you know, a
bunch of trees that a farmer put in around his house 50 years ago, it's going to be difficult
to do. | mean it's -- so it's -- | kind of question why -- you know, we are trying to get --
replace something that was put in there -- | don't want to say atrtificially, but that was put
in there -- to begin with it's not natural in this environment. Does that make sense?

Parsons: Yeah. No, | completely understand and that's typically where we get all these
mitigations happening is because the farmer has sold their property and now we are
mitigating that 50 year old tree or a hundred year old tree, because it's been there this
whole time providing shade or -- but, again, there is -- there is certain tree species that
are evasive and the arborist has the right to make that call, whether it's a trash tree or a
prohibited tree or -- and so a lot of times you would be surprised, you might see a nice
tree, but it may not be -- it may be a cottonwood, for example, that we don't mitigate for,
because it may be a prohibited tree because of how invasive the root systems are or how
much water it takes to grow that tree and so that's -- that's the other part of the code that
you don't see. It's here, but that goes into account that sometimes trees don't -- there is
certain circumstances where trees don't always require mitigation and that's in this code
as well. But -- yeah, but when you are talking 80 acres, you can spread a lot of trees
across 80 acres. lIt's really getting difficult on these -- these smaller properties, these in-
fills, where we have to get tools that are -- that give us flexibility or can do things elsewhere
in the city and that's really what we are trying to get at.

McCarvel: Thank you.

Parsons: Here is one where we don't really have any specifications for our pathways.
Public work -- or we do, but we don't technically get any specified drawings for that. So,
parks department has requested that we have some kind of requirement that they would
go out and verify that multi-use pathways that are constructed as part of a project will
provide specs that, you know, provide documentation that they meet those requirements.
And, then, the last one has to do with -- well, | think | already touched on that one, so --
here is that physical inspection that | was -- was talking to you. Any questions on this
section? Or any words of wisdom to the Council as we move -- we move forward?

82




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 80 of 95

Cassinelli: | have another question. On the -- the limitation on grass areas, we are not
-- | just want to be clear, that's not sacrificing open space for concrete and what --

Parsons: Not necessarily. It's sacrificing grass for just more planter beds. So, if you
have had an example to look at that, but our code does allow hardscape in -- in street
buffers, particularly with our commercial developments for patios and things of that
nature, so it's integrated. But the intent -- like | said, if we -- | could pull up the graphics
for you, but the intent is really just to get more decorative buffers and include a mix of
materials along that and there is multiple ways to do that based on those graphics that
we have prepared. We just don't want just one tree every linear -- 35 linear feet and all
grass, you know, it's -- you really want to get some attractive beds, shrubs, and for the
most part you see the developers doing that along the arterials. You really do. So, it's
really nothing new from what they are already doing, it's just defining that a little bit
differently in the code and making it clear that that's the expectation. But you might get
more rocker barch for sure, you know -- or bark -- perma park or mulch. Which | don't
think is necessarily a bad thing if it's done right.

Cassinelli: No. I just want to make sure that it doesn't mean more concrete.

Parsons: No, it's not going to mean they can just pave a bunch -- put a bunch of concrete
in there and just have these planters -- tree planters everywhere. There is still a -- there
is still a -- in the code there is still a vegetation requirement. So, the way the code reads
is all the vegetation has to touch at 70 percent maturity if they use the waterwise, then,
it's 40 percent. So, that's how we -- that's why when you see a land -- when you guys
see a landscape plan in front of you, the landscape architect is presenting that to you at
maturity. The trees are full growth. But when you -- that's why when you drive by and
you go, wow, | remember that buffer being a lot less thick than that. It's like, no, that's
because the trees are this big and he showed you the trees at full maturity, so it looks
fuller on paper than it does when they actually install it. So, yeah, there is -- there is
minimum vegetation coverage in the code to combat that same issue you had, Bill. Or
Commissioner Cassinelli.

Cassinelli: That's all right. It's almost 11:00. You can go with Bill.

Parsons: All right. Let's get to -- let's get to the meat of the -- the meeting tonight. So,
again, this one -- I'm not going to go -- this is a complete -- almost overhaul of the code
section. lItreally is. ButI'm going to really highlight the major differences in the code from
what you see in today's code and what may get adopted in the future and what the
changes are. A lot of this is reinforced -- as you guys recall in part of that Comprehensive
Plan update, the residents -- and you hear it every time at the hearing where a lot of
residents want better open space -- consolidated open space, better amenities, you know,
sense of place, all of these things that go into the visioning of a Comprehensive Plan and
so what we have tried to do here -- or at least the UDC -- and what was it -- the open
space committee | think is the formal name of the group and what they try to do is really
rewrite this code to align with the adoption of the new Comprehensive Plan. This is
something that we were even asked by City Council to do once they adopted it and so a

83




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 81 of 95

lot of this is -- again, you can see a lot of verbiage linking things back to Comprehensive
Plan policies. This particular case we actually removed the multi-family standards from
the open space standards and made them their own separate -- so we kind of bisected
those two from each other, because it was not clear on when this section applied to multi-
families and when it didn't. So, we wanted to make sure that we had a clear line of what's
required for subdivisions and what's required for multi-family developments and so the
biggest change that came out of this group is currently we require ten percent open space
for developments five acres or larger and as part of this group we went back and said,
well, let's set the standards based on the zone and you can see in here how that's going
to play out. So, if you develop an R-2 zone, the expectation you have a minimum ten
percent open space. R-4is 12 and, then, it's a sliding scale as you increase the zoning
and the -- the idea behind this was -- is you increase the zoning, you increase the density,
right, so you need more open space to coincide with the density that you are wanting to
do.

Cassinelli: Is that regardless of the size of the -- | like that.

Parsons: That's -- that's how it's going to play out with this code. You are correct.
Regardless if it's three units to the acre --

Cassinelli: Orifit's -- | mean if it's a three acre parcel, if they are under that then --

Parsons: Yeah, they don't -- they don't comply with these standards. It's -- it's really five
acres or more. That -- that has not changed.

Cassinelli: Oh, that is still the same?

Parsons: Yes. You still have to have a minimum acreage to get there, so -- and, then,
we have added some graphics to kind of explain that and we have also expanded what
could count as open space -- qualified open space. So, we have defined that a little better
in the code. There -- there have been instances where staff and a developer have been
at kind of a disagreement on how to interpret our own code and you have probably seen
that play out in the hearings. So, | would -- this is definitely how we are going to -- moving
forward how we are going to interpret the code. | mean there is some spots in the code
that are ambiguous and will be left to interpretation and we could -- we have conveyed to
that group that you need to -- where you think there may be ambiguity in the plan, you
need to explain that in your narrative to not only staff, but to you all, so you know what
the intent is for the development and | think being part of that open space committee, they
were very -- at least out of a lot of the developers that were on that committee said that.
We have to do a better job of explaining our project and what we are doing and what our
amenities are and that's a key to any project, in my opinion. You have got to just be able
to tell us what you are doing and not leave it to us to interpret, because we are going to
go to the code and we are going to say this is what code says and | don't see how you
meeting the code, because you haven't explained it to us. So, in this particular case here
-- | mean we have minimum areas that count. Here is the 50 by 100 and, then, also this
is the one where we probably got the most pushback is having the unit's front on the open

84




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 82 of 95

space or that 50 percent threshold of having front yards on 50 percent of the perimeter
and to better explain that we actually do some graphics in the code for you, so you can
see how that looked and many different ways to do that. In the letter from the -- from
BCA, they actually wanted to reduce that down to 25 percent. It was one of their
recommended changes. So, here is community garden. Ponds and water features. We
always have that. Again, none of these are really -- these are things we already have in
code, we are just further defining them and how they can be qualified and count towards
your open space and putting some dimensions to them and I like the fact that we actually
added graphics. I think that a picture says a thousand words; right? That really tells what
-- what the expectation is for the open space. Here is one here where we count a hundred
percent of the buffer. So, just -- again, just clarifying it and, then, some new -- some --
just, again, enhancing what we already have. So, anything you see that struck out here
is something that's already -- being removed, we already have it in code and anything
underlined is new or text changes. Again, nothing new as far as what's required for open
space, just further defining it and requiring more based on your zone. And, then, the --
the next part of these changes is the amenities. Currently in code we have a pretty limited
list in code and so this is where we spent a lot of time with the UDC -- or at least the open
space committee and, again, we devised -- we actually came up with a lot more amenities,
but, then, we assigned a point to each one of those amenities and each amenity has
different points and so this is how you would tally them. So, for each five acres you are
going to get a point based on your acreage here and so, then, what you would do is you
go down to amenity list and you get to pick from this -- all of these different amenities and
depending on the size of your development you can have many amenities to get to your
points or you can have one great amenity to get to your points and that's something that
| have heard for the last, | don't know, five years having to deal with trying to amend this
section of code is we always hear that not every amenity is created equal. Not all open
space is created equal and that's true. Obviously, if you do a clubhouse in your
development, that's an additional expense or cost to not only an HOA, but also to the
developer and, again, | can't testify whether or not these are the right point totals for how
we should assess the point for these -- these amenities, but right now this is what we
came up with and I think Commissioner Seal can attest to -- we spent quite a bit of time
on how to grade these amenities, because it's -- we all -- there was -- | mean developers
will tell you, the clubhouses is half a million dollars, a million dollars to build, and you are
giving me six points. | mean we -- we heard every argument under the sun why some of
these weren't apples to apples.

Cassinelli: How did you come up with a dog waystation? Point five.

Parsons: | was just being polite. We have -- yeah. We have them in our sub -- my
subdivision, too. | mean it's appreciated. | don't think people use them, but it's appreciate
when you see them, but -- | think it came out of -- you know, a lot of times -- you guys see
this all the time and we are starting to see more and more dog parks. It's a very popular
amenity.

Seal: Part of it, too, was based out of some of the feedback they got on people want the
dog -- the dog parks, but they don't want the trash receptacles there, because it's -- it's a

85




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 83 of 95

mess that nobody deals with. So, it just -- it just becomes a mess. You know, it's like --
like anything else. You bring it in, you pack it out type of thing. So, because if you -- if
you leave a receptacle there people are going to, obviously, abuse that in a lot of ways.
So, | think that's why there is a little bit of separation in there where you still have a dog
park, you just don't have to have a trash can there.

Parsons: Yeah. And so a lot of these quality of life amenities, recreation activity
amenities, these are all things in the code already, we just, again, expanded upon the list
and added more, to be honest. | mean | think that's -- that's the good thing is hopefully
this will give the development community more flexibility. That's really the goal here. The
other good thing about it is we actually had -- when we were talking about the overall
open space for developers -- residential subdivisions, we actually had | believe some of
the committee members actually ran this -- this code against their current approvals and
they came back and said it really didn't change what we already had approved. We
already had -- it matched up what you are doing here, city, so we don't really have any
concerns with it.

Seal: That was definitely some of the feedback that was appreciated for sure and | think
it's going to help, you know, weed out the minimalists, the ones that are just trying to
squeak by. They are probably going to struggle with some of this in trying to come up
with something. There is a huge list of amenities that are in here and there is a lot of
things that you can do to be creative about it, it's just trying to remove, you know, some
of the things that are just way too easy to attain and calling it an amenity and put in some
stuff that has some --

Cassinelli: Park bench.

Seal: Yeah. You know, exactly. | mean we have seen some stuff that's been submitted
where it just doesn't meet the intent and I think part of this was just -- you know.

Cassinelli: Bill, is that swimming pool with changing facilities or they get -- they don't get
four for the swimming pool and, then, six for the restrooms?

Parsons: No. That's correct. They would get a total of six. So, in the subdivision that |
live in we have a pool and a building that has, essentially, restrooms.

Cassinelli: But that should say -- shouldn't it say swimming pool with changing --

Parsons: Yeah. Yeah. Like | said, | think we will probably wordsmith some of this a little
bit more, but I'm certainly open -- is there any amenity here you don't see that you -- the
other thing | don't want to lose sight of, though, even though we are kind of revamping
this code or overhauling it, there is still the alternative compliance process. That's built
into this. So, if someone has something unique or different, they can come forward with
that. You know, they can -- they can come to staff and say, hey, we think we have
something better. We want -- we still -- we want to do eight percent open space, but we

86




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 84 of 95

are willing to do this amenity package. What do you think, city? Does this work? Yes or
no.

Grove: | have a question on that. How -- is there -- have you outlined like a plan on how
you will be able to assess -- or assign value points on things that aren't on the list and
what that process will look like through the alternative compliance?

Parsons: No, we didn't and that -- that's a very good point. 1 think -- if someone came to
me today and asked me to do alternative compliance, | would -- | would steer them to this
code and | would say pick off this list and tell me what you are going to do -- what's your
amenity package to offset the open space, because that's what we kept hearing. A lot of
the steer committee members kept saying I'm big on amenities, I'm not so big on open
space. So, if I'm going to come forward with a -- lack of a better word -- a premier amenity
package, then, show me that or explain that in your narrative. But to me at least it has to
be equal to or better than what's on this list. That -- that's what alternative compliance is
is it's not to get you out of code, alternative compliance is to do something that we don't
have here and we -- we like it -- | mean if you have to tell us how it's -- it's equal to or
better than. That's the finding we really have to make. Where is the innovation? Do you
meet the requirements to even be eligible for alternative compliance and that's where a
lot of times, as -- as staff we don't see that -- we don't see applicants explaining that very
well. They just say we want this and it's like you didn't tell me anything. You didn't give
me enough to say whether or not | could support it and that's -- again, that was the
conversation we had with this committee, is like if you are going to do something you got
to tell us what you are going to do and explain it, so that we can articulate that to you all
as you are making decisions on projects.

Cassinelli: Bill, you wrote by -- up above stormwater retention pond, does it -- does that
-- does that count as qualified open space?

Parsons: Yes, it does. Again, it comes down to -- well, you can see we have kind of
wordsmithed it, but it has to be -- it has to be part of a larger open space and that -- that
was changed a while ago. | -- | think | did that code change a couple of years ago where
we allowed storm ponds in -- in subdivisions, but they didn't have to -- they could just be
standalone open space if they were designed appropriately and, then, a few years ago |
did a code change that said if you are going to do storm ponds, then, at least it has to be
on alot that's 20,000 square feet. So, that way it's not entirely a storm pond, that someone
could still use it as a recreation and use it as open space and try to make -- at least get
people thinking that you should really design that as part of your open space, not just a
random lot in the middle of a subdivision that collects water or has sand in the bottom of
it and that's what we have seen in past developments. So, how we have --

Grove: | know we don't want to get into the weeds necessarily, but one of the ones that
-- and maybe I'm missing, but it came up tonight and it's come up quite a few times over
the last year is community gardens and treating that as an amenity and how -- how we
look at things like that moving forward. | don't want to go line by line necessarily, but just
looking at --

87




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 85 of 95

Seal: Are you sure that's in there?
Parsons: Yeah. | thought it was.

Seal: | still can't get them to add a bike park. You know, | tried. Alternative compliance
| guess.

Parsons: The other thing that we did, too, is we reinforced that it needs to be high quality
amenities. So, commercial grade, which we don't have that in the code right now. So,
we definitely want them to develop things and design things that are meant to last. | think
that's the key.

Cassinelli: Thank you for doing the tot lot at one point.

Wheeler: Bill, one of the things that Discovery Park showed to me was this -- as an
amenity was a sandbox or like the sand play area and | didn't see anything listed in there
about that. So, is that something -- or where do you think that might fall under if -- what
you guys are thinking?

Parsons: | don't know. | mean that's a good question. Usually sand in our world means
it's the bottom of a retention pond. We discount that as open space. But, again, it comes
down to playground. If you look down here playground?

Wheeler: Yes.
Parsons: To me that's where you are getting swing sets or multiple play areas --
Wheeler: Okay.

Parsons: -- being designed. So, maybe that's the opportunity they could do something
like that. But | know we have -- in the past, Commissioner Wheeler, we have had people
that have put volleyball courts in the bottom of those basins and try to count that as an
amenity and that's not what we want to do. All right. Any other questions here? Kent,
any commentary on this?

Brown: Kent Brown. 3161 East Springwood. | recently helped Nampa -- Nampa is in the
process of looking at their open space and | actually brought them over and they are
looking at trying to come up with things for density also and | took them to Tuscany as
one of the ones that we went to. They have a pool and changing room and, then, a
pathway that goes through one section and, then, they have the storm drain pond and
the storm drain pond looks like a dry creek bed and it's got boulders and, you know, | said
-- s0, in Nampa you make us make these sterile ACHD type ponds and | said, you know,
ACHD actually came up with different criteria, so that we could make these look nice and
usable and, then, | drove them through Woodbridge and Woodbridge has theirs all
sodded and, then, they got a big boulder that's on the side and in the spring they will get
water down on the bottom, grass kind of gets kind of mushy for a little bit, but, then, the

88




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 86 of 95

rest of the time it's just grass and so you are able to count that. Went over into the other
part of Tuscany and | said -- so, you got a pool and changing room and a tot lot and they
are all over at this one end and, then, the park kind of goes real narrow and P&Z asked
us to put in a parking area and this is as close as they could get to the pool, but | says if
you go over here this storm drain pond is where -- if | was a little boy that's where | would
be playing and we looked in there and, sure enough, there was a little kid in there and
he's jumping off the rocks, not in the safe area, you know, landing in the stuff and | think
that that's one of the things that Bill's done that makes that look really -- and | had a hard
time when | worked for -- for the city of having people say that you could count the ditch
that's next door to your open space. You know, we are having a pathway there and not
counting it. Caldwell actually -- if it has water in it you can't count it and developers are
creative, now they are putting the pathway in a lot and the bottom of the ditch in another
lot, so that you can count a portion of it, because they are saying if there is any part of it
that has a drain or whatever in it you can't count on it and -- but | think this is a step in the
right direction definitely, because in the past it's been a struggle to use the limited number
of amenities and try to go, well, how does this fit this particular development that we are
doing, whether it's a rental or it's a senior development or something -- you know, the one
that always was kind of thrown in my face and it's still on the list is public art. We are
going, okay, we will put one of Bill's benches and we will put a cow on it, you know, and
say that's public art. Bill would say no. He didn't like that idea. But | think that this is
needed. | thought it was really interesting in the fact that if you were to look at Tuscany,
it doesn't meet your current open space requirements. But you don't feel like it's tight in
there. It's -- it's because of how it's laid out with these linear pathways, a little bit of
landscaping in front of it in areas where it gets tighter and | think that that's a much needed
thing and | think that that's a nice thing to progress. When you get more dense than you
need, you know, some more open space. Just a thought. Thanks. I'm going to go home.

McCarvel: We will be right behind you.

Parsons: Before | transition away from this | did just want to point you to the BCA letter
that was submitted today and a lot of the comments had to do with us requiring more
open space, you know, given the fact that we have affordable housing issues, things are
going up, your trends -- in their letter they speak to transition -- you know, paying higher
HOA dues and fees and all of that and that just contributes to the issue that we are dealing
with now and, then, they also had comments regarding the irregular shaped lots and that's
-- that's one of the things that | have seen over -- over time is you just have these remnant
lots leftover in developments and they just seem to be out of place and | think this
Commission has seen that time and time again, too, it's like, okay, how many lots can we
get on here and, then, the rest is open space and that's what the project looks like and so
that's really what we are trying to -- to avoid here with this code is really try to get people
to go -- put thought into your design. Obviously, you have to lay roads out, you got to plot
lots, you have to do drainage. | think all of us get those concepts and you have waterways
you have other impediments on the site that you have to work around. But, again, our
code is meant to try to do that and, hopefully, we try to get -- we are getting more and
more flexible with our code to allow those things to occur. And, then, this -- this last -- the
one other part that | like about this section of code is we start defining things. You know,

89




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 87 of 95

we -- this is how it counts. You have to have these elements as part of it. Which | think
is -- is good, because right now we don't have anything like that, you know. And there it's
going back to Kent's point, public art, what does that mean? That's -- we struggle with
that, too. But it really is meant to be something decorative and nice. It's a custom piece.
It's not just put your subdivision name on it and put it upon a big rock and you put out at
your front entrance and call it art. No. That's a sign. That's not art.

Seal: Yeah. And I think the -- | mean the -- one of the major focuses we had on all of
this section here is just basically focusing on quality, not quantity, trying to figure out how
to ensure that, you know, the minimalists that are coming in still have something to shoot
for, but at the same time really emphasizing quality of open space, of activities, of even
coordinating with other entities to provide something.

Parsons: And we try to be open to all demographics. Not every subdivision is alike; right?
If it's going to be older -- | mean that's what a subdivision does. You have younger
population and older population and -- as those neighborhoods transition in a community
and | think that's -- that's the one thing that | took away from it, too, is they are trying to
make it inclusive for everybody and | think that's a good thing for Meridian and | think
Commissioner Holland would agree. And, then, here is your dog parks and | will -- what
that's supposed to look like. So, again, a lot of this is just kind of expanding and providing
some parameters on that -- those amenities and | -- again, | hope it -- | hope we get some
pretty cool things coming through once we get this adopted. So, anyways, I'm going to
go ahead and digress on this and see if there is any changes here. Is the Commission
comfortable with the open space -- direction we are going with the open space as far as
the percentages and what we are doing as far as the added amenities and how we have
defined those? Again, | think there has been several months of work gone into this thing.
We have spent quite a bit of time on it.

Seal: Well, what -- where is the section that has the paths? What ended up becoming of
how paths are designated and awarded and --

Parsons: Pathways?

Seal: Giving an example, there is a section from Ten Mile that goes clear through to
Linder that's like the greenbelt. | mean it's beautiful. Wide walking path, nice amenity
over there and everything and that's something that, you know, we want to kind of aspire
to is being able to do that, because at both ends of it it just ends. You don't go anywhere
else. But | mean when you are on it it's absolutely beautiful. It's breathtaking to ride
through there. | -- unfortunately, I live there and | -- | get to, you know, ride my bike on it
all the time, but | just -- the pathways part of it was a little contentious, just because of --
| mean | think there is -- in the developer community a lot of people want to just -- they
want the city to go for it, spend money and connect it all and just get it done instead of
having to rely on the developers to do that, so -- but | think we came up with some pretty
good -- | don't know exactly how it all worded it out in there, but | think it came out pretty
good to where there is pretty good incentives in there for starting to make that happen
more aggressively.

90




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 88 of 95

Grove: | really like the point system. Kudos for getting that off the ground and moving
forward with it. | think that's a really cool way to improve things.

Seal: That was also contentious, mainly because it -- the other side of that is it makes
things more complicated. But that's okay.

Parsons: All right. Let me move on to Exhibit 5 here if there is no other comments or
guestions on this section. And so this one has to do with multi-family. So, this is one that
Brian took -- kind of took on and, then, | helped kind of massage it to the finish line here.
Of course with Caleb helping out as well. So, again, as | mentioned to you, this -- the
way the code works currently is right now in the multi-family section of our code we require
a certain amount of open space based on the square footage of the multi-family dwelling
unit, but if that multi-family project exceeds five acres then, we are double dipping the
development community. So, basically, we are telling them that they have to provide the
open spaces and amenities in 11-4-3-27 and, then, if you are over five acres, then, you
have to provide the ten percent open space and the other additional amenity requirements
of 3.G and so it wasn't -- | wouldn't say it wasn't being applied consistently, but definitely
there was some confusion among city staff on that particular requirement. So, if -- if a
multi-family development was to come into a C-G zone, for example, a commercial zone,
we would not apply the five percent, because it's not a residential zone. So, we would
only apply the multi-family standards. So, technically, we -- that's where we started
seeing uptick of people wanting to develop multi-family in our C-G zones, because, one,
it's allowed through a conditional use, but, two, you are going to get more density. There
is no density requirement and you get to do less amenities and open space if it was over
five acres. I'm not saying that's the only reason, but there is some advantages to
developing in the commercial zone versus a residential district and so what we wanted to
do with this is, again, we have actually separated this from 11-3-G, so now this has its
own specific open space requirements based on square footage -- or based on the size
of the development. Again, | won't go into all the changes, | just want to primarily get to
the one that -- that | spent the most time with meeting with stakeholders. So -- and that's
-- and that's this particular one here is where it's currently -- we are requiring, again, if the
development exceeds five acres they are going to do ten percent and, then, in addition to
that ten percent they are still going to have to provide that square footage based on the
size of the dwelling unit and, then, we have also added this component into it where you
have more than 20 units you have got to provide a consolidated open space of at least
50 by 100 in order for -- as part of the development. So, there is kind of a three prong
approach to this, so whether you are five acres or not you are still doing this 50 by 100
area and the other open space and if you are a larger multi-family development you are
providing ten percent, plus that open space, plus the 50 by 100 area. But the caveat is
-- and, again, we have ground truthed some of this with some other multi-family
developments that we have provided and on average the larger multi-family
developments are exceeding these requirements. They really are. And we actually had
the numbers to prove that. But one thing that came out was from the developer -- they
don't mind providing the open space, what they really want it -- they said, okay, we are
okay with open space, this is typically what we provide, but why can't we be like the
residential where we cap off at 15 percent? So, | went back in and went ahead and set

91




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 89 of 95

up here -- | added this -- and in no case shall multi-family development exceed a total of
15 percent common open space. So -- so whether they get the combination of the three
or one or the other, it in no way can -- the max open space we are going to get with multi-
family developments is going to be 15 percent, which is consistent with 11-3G.

Grove: A guestion on that.
Parsons: What's that?
Grove: They can't exceed 15 percent if they want to?

Parsons: They can. Yeah. Exactly. The intent is if they don't want to the minimum is
going to be -- if they go through -- if they have -- let's say, for example, they have a 20
acre multi-family development and they -- they provide the ten percent and the code has
-- well, if we crunch the numbers and they needed ten percent and they had 300 units
and we times that by 250 and it was over 15 percent, we -- we couldn't -- they could go
forward with that, but they could say, sorry, your code says we only have to provide 15
percent. So, we are not going to provide -- you know, they will -- and how they do that
they would have to work with staff. |1 don't know if that's right for the Commission, | don't
know if you want 20 percent or 50. There is no real ratio here. It really -- a lot of this
really comes down to design and how they lay out the site and what site constraints that
they have. But the intent is not to do the -- yeah, the intent is to cap it at 15 percent or,
again, the developer can choose to do more and, then, again we -- we also opened it up
to alternative compliance, which we typically haven't done and, then, as you come through
you can see we haven't really expanded on those -- those amenities like we have in the
--in 3-G. But that -- that's really the biggest change with the multi-family is just that we
have removed it and, then, pretty much capped open space at 15 percent, unless
otherwise wanted -- you know, in case they want more.

McCarvel: | was going to say, does that maybe need to be reworded and just put shall
not be required?

Parsons: Yeah. Maybe -- that's -- what | mean, it's -- it's something that we probably
want to look at that.

McCarvel: Because | mean the way it reads to the --
Parsons: | agree.

McCarvel: | agree with Commissioner Grove, it sounds like, okay, you can't put more
than 15 percent in here.

Parsons: Yeah. That's not the intent, though. So, that's -- that's a good point. We
definitely want to --

McCarvel: Shall not be required to have --

92




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 90 of 95

Parsons: Right.
McCarvel: -- over 15 percent.

Parsons: Well, | even want to put a book end if this and this equals this -- 15 percent is
the number; right? So, yes, definitely needs some wordsmithing there and | can definitely
work with that as we transition to City Council. But, | agree, that seems a little strange
the way it's worded in there. But are there any amenities -- | think -- | thought | also added
something including but not limited to the open space, because | wanted to make sure
that this -- | really liked the idea of having more options for multi-family, to be honest with
you, as far as amenities. Any comments on that as far as having -- increasing this amenity
list?

Grove: So, | might have missed what you just said, but are you -- are we doing the point
system on this one, too, or no?

Parsons: And | don't know if we do the point system. I'm just curious whether or not the
Commission wants to see some of those other amenities added to this list as part of multi-
family developments. We have not discussed the point system for multi-family. That's --
that's a whole different animal.

Lorcher: Don't you think it should be the same? Have the same list for both?

Seal: Yeah. And I don't know that that would -- | don't know that all of them are relevant
between the two.

Lorcher: Oh.

Seal: Some of them to me were probably more relevant to multi-family than single family
in there. You know, some of the play areas -- play area with splashpad, for instance,
instead of a pool, where you could probably have, you know, a couple of those in a smaller
area, instead of providing a pool and a clubhouse and things like, where people are
probably going to be more apt to use that.

Parsons: Yeah. The other one -- well, we have walking trails, so that covers the --
Seal: Right.

Parsons: -- multi-use pathways. | don't know. It's something we can look at.

Lorcher: Yeah. If you had the same it would be just consistent, so that way if you were
talking to a developer that was doing the single family houses versus multi-family, then,

you are always talking about the same list, even if it doesn't have points.

Seal: Well, in developments like we just looked at where there is multi-family --

93




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 91 of 95

Lorcher: And single family.

Seal: | mean, then, you know, where they -- it's -- it's a hybrid kind of model in there,
that having some consistency in there might be good. But, again, I'm -- you know, I'm
struggling to figure -- to find an example of what's not relevant to multi-family versus
single family, but | know that was part of the communication and I, for one, I'm really
happy to see the open grassy area removed from this, so -- | think that was one of the
common themes is we don't -- you know, let's quit letting people just put in these giant
grassy areas and call it common open space and move on. So, trying to get the quality
out of it.

Cassinelli: From that standpoint | know one thing that's -- we have seen lately a few
times is the use of MEWS and -- which | think all of us like. | don't know if there is a way
to incorporate that into there as a -- not a requirement, but | think that's in the multi-
family and -- | don't even know if it's multi-family attached. It's in the attached where
you put the MEWS in and that counts -- that counts differently for open space. Actually,
it just counts as open space when it's a MEW.

Parsons: Yes. Correct. Ifit's 20 by 20 it would --
Seal: Right.
Parsons: -- count. That is correct.

Seal: Yeah. And that's -- | think that's in there specifically to try and encourage that,
you know, more kind of an alley load if I'm facing -- you know.

Parsons: Yeah.

Seal: And, again, a lot of the open space, you know, coming into a park like where you
are -- you have more of a sense of community where instead of looking over someone's
back fence into a park, the front side -- you know, basically that front side is looking into
that common open space, kind of all eyes on it. So, | think the MEWS are what does
that.

Parsons: Yeah.
Seal: |think. It's late, so I'm not a hundred percent sure.

Parsons: Well, the way that multi-family standards read it -- you want all of the units
running on the open space for CPTED reasons. You want eyes on that, so --

Wheeler: Bill, a couple things | had as a thought was one is on the open grassy area. |
know it's kind of just a quick little sod drop and go, but one thing it does -- just
something to consider is that it does leave open for kicking a soccer ball, throwing a
baseball, football. So, sometimes just those quick little things that low income families

94




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 92 of 95

might be able to -- be able to provide on something like that might be something just to
reconsider and maybe have something in there that might say with playground
equipment or with some other sort of thing attached to it, so, you're right, it's just not a
patch of lawn. That's something just to consider. And, then, when it comes down to
using the same list for both of them, there is nothing -- maybe an idea is to put them --
make the list and, then, have also like checkboxes off on the side with some columns
that would say be permitted for multi-family and residential and that way there was just
a way that in the code -- that you could take a look and say this type of amenity would
be used for -- could -- could be used for both, you know, because you have a column --
I'm thinking a spreadsheet in my head, right, list of amenities, residential, multi-family,
and, then, you just check boxes, so that it can be clarified which one would account for
what.

Parsons: Yeah. | think that's a good -- good option. We could look at some of those
and see if we can expand on this list for sure.

Seal: Yeah. And the grassy areas are still there, they are just not counted as -- as an
amenity. You don't get any -- like if they were -- if they were given points and stuff, you
are not given a point for just a large grassy area to be an amenity, but they are counted
towards open space. So, they are -- they are still there, they are just not incentivized to
be an amenity, so -- just trying to limit the amount of times those are just put in, you
know, because you get -- in a subdivision you get two or three of those and there is
nothing there with it or, you know, there is very little there with it and it's -- oh, it's an
amenity. Well, no, it's just a great big place that the HOA now has to pay to mow.

Parsons: Well, you can -- you can -- one of the things that | was -- that | wanted to
make sure we could give you the ability to look at these is, one, we have that area of 50
by 100, but you can see in the second sentence here, if you can see my cursor here, it
says the area shall increase proportionately as the number of units increase and shall
be commensurate to the size of the development as determined by the decision making
body. So, even if they have 50 by 100, you guys can be like, you have 300 apartments
here, you need a bigger grassy area. We want that thing a 100 by 100 or whatever that
number is and that gives us all the flexibility to say, no, you know, you have got a lot of
density here, we want to see more and that gives you that purview -- because | -- again,
| don't know what the magic number is. You know, open space means different things
to different people. It really does. There is no fine science to this. Again, | have been
dealing with this for five years trying to find ways to increase open space, but still be,
you know, equitable and do a common sense approach to it, not just saying we want
flexibility, we don't want every development to be cookie cutter or the same.

Seal: Well, | think, you know, part of the hope is -- especially with the alternative
compliance really be -- to really be emphasized in here was making sure that we leave
the door open for things to come in. | mean they are -- a little fun was made of the
amphitheater that was put in, but that -- | mean that one really knocked my socks off.
We had a subdivision going with an amphitheater that was part of the multi-family mixed
use. | mean it was a really cool integration of that product -- project and they had to go

95




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 93 of 95

through alternative compliance in order to get that to go in there. | mean the comment
is, you know, we can't all afford to put an amphitheater in there, but at the same time it
was like, you know, wow, that kind of knocked my socks off. Wasn't expecting that at
all. So, you know, really emphasizing alternative compliance is there. If you want to
come in and knock our socks off, feel free. | mean, yeah, you may not -- you may end
up with no grass in your subdivision, but something that makes us all go, oh, that's cool.
| wish | lived there.

Parsons: All right. Well, that concludes my presentation, unless you guys have any
other questions. Again, only comments we received so far on the application was from
the BCA highlighting a couple of those -- their concerns in here. But, again, they want
to continue to be a good partner to the city and appreciate us keeping them involved in
the process and overall in the staff report -- and | think in large part we do have a lot of
consensus with these changes. It wasn't really a lot of, no, | don't want to do that. So,
overall | think these -- these changes will be supported. | anticipate that, you know,
Council is the decision making body, so | anticipate there will probably be more public
testimony at the City Council from various groups. But, again, | just want to thank all of
you for what you do. | know -- thank you for staying late this evening and | will just
conclude my presentation and stand for any additional questions you might have.

McCarvel: Any additional questions for staff? Any additional discussion or are we open
for a motion?

Seal: Do we have to -- do we still have to close public testimony officially?
Parsons: Is there anyone here --

McCarvel: Yeah. Do we -- okay.

Weatherly: Madam Chair, no one has indicated a wish to testify on this matter.
McCarvel: Given that, does the applicant have any additional comments?
Parsons: 1 do not.

McCarvel: Can | get a motion to close the public hearing on ZOA-2021-00027
Seal: So moved.

Cassinelli: Second.

Lorcher: Second.

McCarvel: It has been moved and seconded to close the public hearing ZOA-2021-
0002. Allthose in favor say aye. Opposed? Motion carries.

96




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 94 of 95

MOTION CARRIED: ALL AYES.
Cassinelli: Madam Chair?
McCarvel: Yes.

Cassinelli: | have a lot of questions here for -- for Bill. I'm going to put my glasses on.
I'm going to make a motion.

McCarvel: Please do.

Seal: You have to read the staff recommendation when you -- before you do it, though.
McCarvel: Yeah.

Cassinelli: What's that?

Seal: Make sure to read the staff recommendation part.

Cassinelli: Yeah. With the trees?

Seal: Yep.

Cassinelli: Yeah. Madam Chair, after considering all staff, applicant, and public
testimony, which there was a lot of, | move to recommend approval of file number ZOA-
2021-0002 as presented in the staff report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021, to
include the two tree species tables provided by the city arborist.

Seal: Second.

McCarvel: It has been moved and seconded to recommend approval of ZOA-2021-
0002, with recommend -- with modifications. All those in favor say aye. Opposed.
Motion carries.

MOTION CARRIES: ALL AYES.

McCarvel: Who would like the honors? One more --

Seal: Madam Chair, | move we adjourn.

Wheeler: Second.

McCarvel: It has been moved and seconded that we adjourn. All those in favor say
aye. Opposed? Motion carries.

MOTION CARRIED: ALL AYES.

97




Item 1.

Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission
May 6, 2021
Page 95 of 95

MEETING ADJOURNED AT 11:16 P.M.
(AUDIO RECORDING ON FILE OF THESE PROCEEDINGS.)

APPROVED

98

RHONDA MCCARVEL - CHAIRMAN DATE APPROVED

ATTEST:

CHRIS JOHNSON - CITY CLERK




Cﬂ/ﬂz IDIAN~

AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Jump Creek North Four-Plex (H-2021-
0018) by Kent Brown Planning Services, Located at the Northwest Corner of N. Black Cat Rd. and
W. Gondola Dr.




Item 2.

DINGS O T OF MERIDIAN. Cﬂ/[ﬁ IDIAN~

AND
DECISION & ORDER

In the Matter of the Request for Conditional Use Permit for Jump Creek Fourplex Phase 4,
Located on the west side of N. Black Cat Road, midway between W. McMillan Road and W.
Chinden Boulevard. in the R-15 Zoning District, by Kent Brown.

Case No(s). H-2021-0018

For the Planning & Zoning Commission Hearing Date of: May 6, 2021 (Findings on May 20, 2021)
A. Findings of Fact

1. Hearing Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021, incorporated by
reference)

2. Process Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021, incorporated by
reference)

3. Application and Property Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021,
incorporated by reference)

4. Required Findings per the Unified Development Code (see attached Staff Report for the hearing
date of May 6, 2021, incorporated by reference)

B. Conclusions of Law

1. The City of Meridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use
Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (1.C. §67-6503).

2. The Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission takes judicial notice of its Unified Development
Code codified at Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of
Meridian has, by ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Amended Comprehensive Plan
of the City of Meridian, which was adopted April 19, 2011, Resolution No. 11-784 and Maps.

3. The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code § 11-5A.

4. Due consideration has been given to the comment(s) received from the governmental
subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction.

5. Itis found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose
expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.

6. That the City has granted an order of approval in accordance with this decision, which shall be
signed by the Chairman of the Commission and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk
upon the applicant, the Planning Department, the Public Works Department and any affected
party requesting notice.

CITY OF MERIDIAN FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER
JUMP CREEK NO 4 CUP CASE NO(S). H-2021-0018
Page 1

100




Item 2.

7. That this approval is subject to the conditions of approval in the attached staff report for the
hearing date of May 6, 2021, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to be
reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the
application.

C. Decision and Order

Pursuant to the Planning & Zoning Commission’s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11-
5A and based upon the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby
ordered that:

1. The applicant’s request for conditional use is hereby approved in accord with the conditions of
approval in the staff report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021, attached as Exhibit A.

D. Notice of Applicable Time Limits
Notice of Two (2) Year Conditional Use Permit Duration

Please take notice that the conditional use permit, when granted, shall be valid for a maximum
period of two (2) years unless otherwise approved by the City in accord with UDC 11-5B-6F.1.
During this time, the applicant shall commence the use as permitted in accord with the
conditions of approval, satisfy the requirements set forth in the conditions of approval, and
acquire building permits and commence construction of permanent footings or structures on or
in the ground. For conditional use permits that also require platting, the final plat must be
signed by the City Engineer within this two (2) year period in accord with UDC 11-5B-6F.2.

Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord
with 11-5B-6.F.1, the Director may authorize a single extension of the time to commence the
use not to exceed one (1) two (2) year period. Additional time extensions up to two (2) years as
determined and approved by the Commission may be granted. With all extensions, the Director
or Commission may require the conditional use comply with the current provisions of Meridian
City Code Title 11.

E.  Notice of Final Action and Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis

1. Please take notice that this is a final action of the governing body of the City of Meridian.
When applicable and pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6521, any affected person being a person
who has an interest in real property which may be adversely affected by the final action of the
governing board may within twenty-eight (28) days after the date of this decision and order
seek a judicial review as provided by Chapter 52, Title 67, Idaho Code.

F.  Attached: Staff report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021

CITY OF MERIDIAN FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER
JUMP CREEK NO 4 CUP CASE NO(S). H-2021-0018
Page 2

101




Item 2.

By action of the Planning & Zoning Commission at its regular meeting held on the day of

, [year].
COMMISSIONER RHONDA MCCARVEL, CHAIRMAN VOTED
COMMISSIONER ANDREW SEAL, VICE CHAIRMAN VOTED
COMMISSIONER LISA HOLLAND VOTED
COMMISSIONER STEVEN YEARSLEY VOTED
COMMISSIONER WILLIAM CASSINELLI VOTED
COMMISSIONER NICK GROVE VOTED
COMMISSIONER MARIA LORCHER VOTED

Rhonda McCarvel, Chairman

Attest:

Chris Johnson, City Clerk

Copy served upon the Applicant, the Planning and Development Services divisions of the Community
Development Department, the Public Works Department and the City Attorney.

By: Dated:
City Clerk’s Office

CITY OF MERIDIAN FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER
JUMP CREEK NO 4 CUP CASE NO(S). H-2021-0018
Page 3

102




Item 2.

STAFF REPORT

EXHIBIT A

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

103

HEARING  5/6/2021
DATE:
TO: Planning & Zoning Commission
FROM: Alan Tiefenbach
208-884-5533
Bruce Freckleton, Development
Services Manager
208-887-2211
SUBJECT:  H-2021-0018

Jump Creek North Fourplex CUP

LOCATION: The site is located on the west side of N.
Black Cat Road, midway between W.
McMillan Road and W. Chinden

Boulevard.

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow 7 fourplexes (28 units) on 2.2 acres in the R-15 zone.

Il. SUMMARY OF REPORT

A. Project Summary

Description Details Page
Acreage 2.2

Future Land Use Designation Medium Density Residential

Existing Land Use(s) Vacant

Proposed Land Use(s) Multifamily

Lots (# and type; bldg./common) 7 existing multifamily lots

Phasing Plan (# of phases) 1

Number of Residential Units (type
of units)

Density (gross & net)

Open Space (acres, total
[%]/buffer/qualified)

Amenities

Physical Features (waterways,
hazards, flood plain, hillside)
Neighborhood meeting date; # of
attendees:

7 fourplex buildings; totaling 28 units

12.72 gross density

Jump Creek Subdivision approved with 13.54 acres of
common open space, which amounts to 15.73%.

6 amenities approved with the Jump Creek Subdivisions. 3
tot lots, multi-use pathway; connection to pathway systems
and 5% additional open space; 2 amenities are required for
the proposed development.

N/A

March 16, 2021 — 3 Attendees

Page 1




Item 2.

104

Description Details Page
History (previous approvals) AZ-14-011, PP-14-013, DA Instr. 2014-105206, H-2018-
0113
B. Community Metrics
Description Details Page
Ada County Highway District
o Staff report (yes/no) N

o Requires ACHD Commission
Action (yes/no)

No. Traffic impacts and associated improvements reviewed
with preliminary and final plat.

Access (Arterial/Collectors/State
Hwy/Local)(Existing and Proposed)
Stub Street/Interconnectivity/Cross
Access

Existing Road Network

Existing Arterial Sidewalks /
Buffers
Proposed Road Improvements

Distance to nearest City Park (+
size)

Access will occur from W. Joseph Dr., a local road, which
leads to N. Black Cat Rd via W. Malta. Dr.
No stub streets proposed.

All roads serving this development phase (W. Joseph Dr.,
W. Malta Dr.) have been installed.

N. Black Cat including 5” wide detached pathways and 25’
landscape buffer has already been installed.

All road improvements were installed with Jump Creek FP
Nos. 1, 2 and 3.

1 mile +/- to Keith Bird Legacy Park

Fire Service

e Distance to Fire Station
o Fire Response Time

o Resource Reliability

o Risk Identification

Accessibility
Special/resource needs
Water Supply

Other Resources

2.8 miles from Station 5

Falls within 5-minute response times

80% Reliability

Risk Factor 4 because of firefighting in multistory
buildings and large amounts of people in one location

No special needs
2250 gpm estimated, but property less due to sprinkling.
None

Police Service

Distance to Police Station

Police Response Time

Calls for Service

% of calls for service split by
priority

7.2 Miles

P1 <5 minutes

464

P1 - %73.7, P2 — 24.1%, PO — 2.2%

e Specialty/resource needs None listed
e Crimes 26
e Crashes 6
West Ada School District
 No comments submitted |
Wastewater
e Distance to Sewer Services N/A

e Sewer Shed
o Estimated Project Sewer
ERU’s

N. Black Cat Trunkshed
See Application

o WRRF Declining Balance 14.09
o Project Consistent with WW Yes
Master Plan/Facility Plan
Water
« Distance to Water Services |0

Page 2




Item 2.

Description

Details

Page

105

Pressure Zone

Estimated Project Water
ERU’s

Water Quality

Project Consistent with Water
Master Plan

Impacts/Concerns

1
See application

No concerns
Yes

Utilities have already been approved and built.

Page 3




Item 2. 106

C. Project Area Maps

Future Land Use Map Aerial Map

Zoning Map Planned Development Map

I1l. APPLICANT INFORMATION
A. Applicant / Representative:

Kent Brown, Kent Brown Planning Services - 3161 E. Springwood Dr, Meridian, 1D 83642
B. Owner:

Corey Barton, Open Door Rentals — 1977 E. Overland Rd, Meridian, ID 83642

Page 4




Item 2.

IV. NOTICING
Planning & Zoning City Council
Posting Date Posting Date
Newspaper Notification 4/16/2021
Radius notification mailed to
properties within 300 feet 4/13/2021
Nextdoor posting 4/14/2021
Sign Posting 4/17/2021

V. STAFF ANALYSIS

This proposal is for a conditional use permit to allow 7 fourplexes consisting of a total of 28 dwelling
units total on 2.2 acres in the R-15 zone. The subject property was annexed and zoned in 2014 as part
of the Jump Creek Subdivision (AZ-14-011, PP-14-013). The approved preliminary plat, final plat
(H-2018-0113) and associated development agreement (Instr. 2014-105206) specifically identifies the
subject property for a multi-family development. The required infrastructure and landscaping has
already been installed; improvements associated with this project would include asphalt driveways,
parking lots, and site landscaping. The internal parking lot sidewalks have been installed.

The proposal as submitted generally conforms to the site plan, landscape plan and conceptual
elevations included with the development agreement except that one of the fourplexes on the northern
side of the property is slightly reconfigured. The approved development agreement concept plan
reflects two fourplexes on either side of a drive aisle, whereas what was submitted indicates three
fourplexes on the west of the drive aisle, and a fourplex on the east side of the aisle. Two of the
fourplexes have also been rotated on their axis 90 degrees.

A. Future Land Use Map Designation (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan)

The Jump Creek property is designated " Medium Density Residential* (MDR) on the future land
use map. The MDR designation allows smaller lots for residential purposes within City limits.
Uses may include single-family homes at densities of 3 to 8 dwelling units per acre.

The subject property is one of two multi-family properties that was approved with the preliminary
plat (there is another designated multi-family property to the south of which the application for
the final plat has been submitted). These two areas conceptually depict nineteen (19) fourplex
structures on approximately 4.89 acres. The gross density for the multi-family portion of the
development is anticipated at 15.5 dwelling units to the acre which is higher than the MDR
designation of the Comprehensive Plan. The overall gross density for this project is 12.72
dwelling units to the acre. However, it was determined with the preliminary plat approval that
when combined with the entire development (which includes 318 single family lots) the overall
gross density is approximately 4.59 dwelling units to the acre which is consistent with the MDR
land use designation.

B. Comprehensive Plan Policies (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan):

o Encourage diverse housing options suitable for various income levels, household sizes, and
lifestyle preferences. (2.01.01)

This project proposes 7 fourplex units with 28 units total. This increases the diversity in
housing and meets the needs, preferences, and financial capabilities of Meridian’s present
and future residents.

107

Page 5



https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan
https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan

Item 2.

Encourage a variety of housing types that meet the needs, preferences, and financial
capabilities of Meridian’s present and future residents. (2.01.02D)

As mentioned above, allowing 7 fourplexes would contribute to a diversity in housing.

e Locate higher density housing near corridors with existing or planned transit, Downtown, and
in proximity to employment centers. (2.01.01H)

The proposed development will provide housing opportunities in close proximity to an
existing Walmart, Costco and an employment area at the southeast corner of Chinden
Boulevard and Linder Road. Future employment uses are planned a mile east of the proposed
subdivision along the west side of N. Ten Mile Road.

o Require urban infrastructure be provided for all new developments, including curb and gutter,
sidewalks, water and sewer utilities. (3.03.03F)

City services were required to be extended to the properties upon development in accord with
UDC 11- 3A- 21. Infrastructure was constructed with phases 1, 2, and 3. No additional
infrastructure is required with this proposal.

e Permit new development only where it can be adequately served by critical public facilities
and urban services at the time of final approval, and in accord with any adopted levels of
service for public facilities and services.

This proposal was referred to fire and police services as well as WASD. There were no
additional comments beyond what were listed with the preliminary plat and final plat.

e “Require open space areas within all residential development.” (6.01.01A)

For multifamily units, UDC 11-4-3-27C requires common open space based on the square
footage of the units. In addition, the development agreement approved with the annexation
required 15% total open space, and 15.3% was provided with the total development. The
landscape plan submitted with this application for this multifamily area is consistent with the
conceptual one approved with the annexation and preliminary plat.

Existing Structures/Site Improvements:

The subject property is presently vacant, but the sidewalks serving the fourplexes have been
constructed, and the unpaved configuration of the drive aisles and parking lot have already been
established with paving to be completed as part of this project.

. Proposed Use Analysis:

This proposal is for 7 fourplexes, totaling 28 dwelling units. A fourplex (four units in one
building on one lot) is considered multifamily which requires procurement of a conditional use
permit in the R-15 zone.

Specific Use Standards (UDC 11-4-3):

Specific use standards for this multifamily project include a minimum setback of 10 feet, 80 sq.
ft. of private, common open space and site amenities per unit, and requirements for a management
office, central mailbox and maintenance storage for developments of more than 20 units.

The site plan and landscape plan indicate the minimum 10’ setback is met along all perimeter
property lines. The submitted floorplans indicate patios and decks on the units that are slightly
less than the requirement. The applicant will need to submit floor plans at the time of CZC that
demonstrate this requirement is met.

Page 6

108



https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?chapter_id=6513#1230415_id=6513

Item 2.

The applicant has noted the central mailbox already exists, although it is not indicated on the
plans. The applicant has not provided any information regarding the management office and
maintenance storage other than this will be built with the additional 44 units of multifamily that
may be part of Jump Creek No. 7 and requires a separate CUP approval. The Planning
Commission should determine whether this is acceptable request given Phase 7 has not been
approved through conditional use yet, or whether one of the 28 units proposed with this
particular phase (Phase 4) should be temporarily reserved for this purpose until Phase 7 is
constructed.

Requirements for common open space and amenities are discussed below.
Dimensional Standards (UDC 11-2):

The fourplexes meet the minimum dimensional requirements for the R-15 zone district. This
includes a minimum lot size of 2,000 sq. ft., minimum setback of 25’ from a collector road, rear
setback of 12’and side setback of 3’ (although the specific use standards for multifamily requires
a minimum 10, which the fourplexes also meet.) The existing landscape buffer along N. Black
Cat Rd meets the minimum width of 25°, and the buildings are approximately 28’ in height, well
within the maximum building height of 40°.

. Access (UDC 11-3A-3, 11-3H-4):

All access was previously approved with the Jump Creek preliminary plat. Primary access for this
project will occur from N. EImstone Ave. which connects to N. Black Cat Rd via W. Gondola Rd.
There is additional access through numerous roads in the Jump Creek Subdivision which
eventually terminate at N. Rustic Oak providing access to W. McMillian Rd.

. Parking (UDC 11-3C):

UDC 11-3C-A requires 2 parking spaces per 2-3-bedroom units, with at least one in a covered
carport or garage. With 28 units of 2-3 bedrooms, this amounts to 56 parking spaces, at least 28
of them covered.

The site indicates 65 parking spaces that are 18 feet in length with wheel stops and a one-foot
overhang onto a 6-foot sidewalk. The site plan shows 30 of these parking spaces to be covered,
and conceptual elevations have been submitted of the carports. However, the conceptual
elevations do not indicate architecture and materials other than prefinished metal. At the time of
Certificate of Zoning compliance, the applicant shall submit color elevations that reflect that the
architecture of the covered carports utilizing similar materials and architecture as that of the
fourplexes as well as meet all requirements of the Architectural Standards Manual (ASM).

Pathways (UDC 11-3A-8):

There is an existing 5’ wide detached sidewalk along N. Black Cat Rd, at the eastern perimeter of
the subject property. As required per UDC 11-3A-19, the development includes a 5* wide
pedestrian connection to this sidewalk.

Sidewalks (UDC 11-3A-17):

The landscape plan depicts 6” wide sidewalks along both sides of the access road and parking
lots.

. Landscaping (UDC 11-3B):

UDC 11-3B-8 requires a five-foot minimum landscape buffer adjacent to parking, loading, or
other paved vehicular use areas, with no grouping of parking spaces to exceed 12 in a row
without a parking island. The parking aisles and lot appears to meet all requirements, including

109

Page 7



https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?chapter_id=6499#183704
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=20923&keywords=#1165290
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=734279#734279
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=20924&keywords=#20924
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=20923&keywords=#1165295
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=20923&keywords=#1165304
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=6506&keywords=#6506

Item 2.

minimum amount of landscape plantings. The foundations of all fourplexes are landscaped with
at least 3’ of landscaping along their foundations as required by the Specific Use Standards listed
in 11-4-3-27.

Quialified Open Space (UDC 11-4-3-27):

The specific use standards for multifamily in UDC 11-4-3-27-C require two hundred fifty (250)
square feet of common open space for each unit containing more than five hundred (500) square
feet and up to one thousand two hundred (1,200) square feet of living area. Common open space
shall be not less than four hundred (400) square feet in area, and shall have a minimum length and
width dimension of twenty (20) feet. The building plans submitted with this application indicate
unit sizes of approximately 1,000 sq. ft. per unit. Based on this unit size, this requires 7,000 sqg. ft.
Staff believes the landscape plan as submitted reflects this project far surpasses the requirements,
but staff will require an open space exhibit indicating the exact amount of qualifying common
open space with the Certificate of Zoning Compliance (CZC).

. Qualified Site Amenities (UDC 11-3G):

Two amenities are required with this development. During the approval process for the entire
Jump Creek Subdivision (which included both multifamily portions), approved amenities
included three tot lots, an integrated pathway system, extension of the Meridian Pathway system
and 5% additional open space. All amenities have already been constructed except for one tot lot
and several trail connections to be built with Phases 5-7. However, it was not indicated in the
associated development agreement whether the residents of the multifamily properties were
entitled to use the same amenities as the rest of the Jump Creek subdivision. As a condition of
approval, staff recommends that two qualifying amenities be provided on the subject property.

. Fencing (UDC 11-3A-6, 11-3A-7):

The landscape plan indicates there is existing fencing along the northern perimeter that is
proposed to be retained. No other fencing is shown with this development. Any fencing should
comply with UDC 11-3A-7.

. Utilities (UDC 11-3A-21):

All utilities have already been reviewed and approved with the Jump Creek preliminary and final
plats. Street lighting is required to be installed in accord with the City’s adopted standards,
specifications and ordinances. See Section VI111.B below for Public Works comments/conditions.

Building Elevations (UDC 11-3A-19 | Architectural Standards Manual):

The applicant submitted building elevations as well as building plans. The colored elevations
indicate pitched roofs and entry features, horizontal and board & batten siding, and rock accents.
Elevations of the multifamily units were included as part of the annexation development
agreement, and the elevations submitted with this conditional use generally comply with the
approved elevations.

Final design is required to comply with the design standards listed in the Architectural Standards
Manual. The building elevations submitted with the Certificate of Zoning Compliance and Design
Review applications should be consistent with those standards and the elevations attached as
Exhibit F and G below.

110

Page 8



https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=6511&keywords=#6511
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=6511&keywords=#6511
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165293#1165293
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165294#1165294
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165308#1165308
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165306#1165306
https://meridiancity.org/designreview

Item 2.

VI.

DECISION

A. Staff:

Staff recommends approval of the proposed conditional use permit with the conditions in
Section VIII per the Findings in Section IX.

B.

The Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission heard this item on May 6, 2021. At the public

hearing, the Commission moved to approve the subject conditional use reguest.

1.

[N

|

B

Summary of the Commission public hearing:

® |2 e T

|~

In favor: Kent Brown

In opposition: None

Commenting: Kent Brown

Written testimony: None

Staff presenting application: Alan Tiefenbach

Other Staff commenting on application: Bill Parsons

Key issue(s) of public testimony:

a.

Monica Gonsalves and Janice Borchard expressed issues with the safety of children
crossing N. Black Cat Rd to get to Pleasant View Elementary School and the additional

density.

Key issue(s) of discussion by Commission:

= |© =T |&

|

Discussion whether the amenities would be shared

Proposed timing with management office and maintenance room

Discussion regarding how the site interfaced with the property at the north

Future improvements to N. Black Cat Rd.

Whether a pedestrian timer could be installed.

Commission change(s) to Staff recommendation:

a.

The applicant shall convert one of the units into an interim management office and
maintenance storage until such time that phase seven is built out and one is permanently
installed.

111

Page 9




Item 2.

112

VII. EXHIBITS 2
A. Final Plat for Phase 4 (date: 10/14/2020) b
REAL 1
UNPLATTED oF BEE&:ILG\ .
! SE9°21'48" B3 | .
et — g — e S
st ] SR e = |
z| ! =] ' & 1 o'o
@ﬂl’*_s_g| BLOCK 16 iy E ! | Ede
e 352 £ JCN . o3t
5-_;@"“" ﬁ,—;i | @ g 2 ® :§ %_...:
1 : _I‘Lq_&h:,ﬂ— anor A : n I E: m_ﬁg
. _&'\ SE4HE 15707 ETINI }N Hy ::'E
, B =
. LADLE RAPIDS DR. —///; —— I Pyl §
— 4 // Z A
//_/_’/.f/ /ﬁi"g .J‘R !
) / 2148"E z'rgw lfJ | :: g
7 ‘ — e HIE
L 1
w ] |
bl H |
JUMF CREEK @ g?‘: E ! /4] ?Ei?s;:l&: OTAR4E
SUBDIVISION NO. 3 1 ! 28
Cemow ‘l_
5@'2511 E 2Mn.28-—---- .I' ﬂ.l
R ol
HBS'29'11°W 212.39 |
W. GONDOLA DR. ‘Jr
R B
U—h - L
“ﬁmﬂ?( o . ' g
-~ _ | ! JUMP CREEK T -
— 7 SUBDIVISION NO. 3 . ]

-._-a.-.-.....‘ lh"‘-'* ..e.h.-.,_,.. B - A

ey

2 1-

1'”:-.'# u'm mr:ﬁrmm] W, WALTA DR,
o SRRy




Item 2.

C. Site Plan (date: 1/31/2020)

Page 11

113




114

Item 2.

1/31/2020)

D. Landscape Plan (date

ra
e e

4
.

N

_~ExiEtNg

/
!

Page 12




Item 2.

E. Floor Plans (date: 12/14/2020)

F. Carport Elevations (date: 12/14/2020)

Page 13

115




Item 2.

G. Building Elevations (date: 3/22/21)

Page 14

116




Item 2.

VIII.

CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS
A. Planning Division

1.

The applicant is to meet all terms of the approved annexation (AZ-14-011), preliminary plat (PP -
12-018, final plat H-2018-0113) and development agreement (Instrument #2014-105206) for this
development.

The Applicant shall have a maximum of two (2) years to commence the use as permitted in
accord with the conditions of approval listed above. If the use has not begun within two (2) years
of approval, a new conditional use permit must be obtained prior to operation or a time extension
must be requested in accord with UDC 11-5B-6F.

The site plan and landscape plan submitted with the Certificate of Zoning Compliance application
shall be revised to depict a interim management office, maintenance storage area and a directory
map of the development at an entrance or convenient location for those entering the development
as set forth in UDC 11-4-3-27B.7:

a. The applicant shall convert one of the units into an interim management office and

maintenance storage room until such time that phase seven is built out and one is
permanently installed.

b. The site plan/landscape plan shall indicate the location of the central mailbox.

At the time of Certificate of Zoning Compliance (CZC), the Developer/Owner shall submit a
common open space exhibit that meets the requirements of UDC 11-4-3-27-C.

Two on-site amenities shall be provided which meet the requirements of UDC 11-4-3-27-D.

The Applicant shall comply with all bulk, use, and development standards of the applicable
district listed in UDC Chapter 2 District regulations.

At the time of Certificate of Zoning Compliance (CZC), the Developer/Owner shall submit
floorplans which comply with the private open space requirements of 11-4-3-27B.

All multi-family developments shall record legally binding documents that state the maintenance
and ownership responsibilities for the management of the development, including, but not limited
to, structures, parking, common areas, and other development features as set forth in UDC 11-4-
3-27F. A recorded copy of said documents shall be submitted to the Planning Division prior
to issuance of the first Certificate of Occupancy for the development.

All structures on the site shall be designed to comply with the design standards listed in the
Architectural Standards Manual. All carports shall complement the design of the fourplexes. A
Certificate of Zoning Compliance and Design Review application(s) is required to be submitted
to the Planning Division and approved prior to submittal of building permit applications.

Public Works
ACHD

117

Page 15




Item 2.

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225820&dbid=0&repo=M
eridianCity

D. Meridian Police Department

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226107 &dbid=0&repo=Me
ridianCity

FINDINGS
Conditional Use Permit (UDC 11-5B-6E)

The Commission shall base its determination on the Conditional Use Permit request upon the
following:

1.

That the site is large enough to accommodate the proposed use and meet all the dimensional
and development regulations in the district in which the use is located.

The Commission finds that the subject property is large enough to accommodate the proposed use
and dimensional and development regulations of the R-15 district. The humber and type of
buildings and general site configuration was tentatively approved with the Jump Creek
Subdivision preliminary plat and annexation.

That the proposed use will be harmonious with the Meridian Comprehensive Plan and in
accord with the requirements of this Title.

The Commission finds that the proposed multi-family development is consistent with the overall
density recommendations of the FLUM in the Comprehensive Plan and is allowed as a
conditional use in the R-15 zoning district per UDC Table 11-2A-2.

That the design, construction, operation and maintenance will be compatible with other uses
in the general neighborhood and with the existing or intended character of the general
vicinity and that such use will not adversely change the essential character of the same area.

The Commission finds the proposed design of the development, construction, operation and
maintenance should be compatible with the mix of other uses planned for this area and with the
intended character of the area and that such uses will not adversely change the character of the
area.

That the proposed use, if it complies with all conditions of the approval imposed, will not
adversely affect other property in the vicinity.

The Commission finds that if the applicant complies with the conditions outlined in this report, the
proposed use will not adversely affect other property in the area. The Commission should weigh
any public testimony provided to determine if the development will adversely affect other
properties in the vicinity.

That the proposed use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services such
as highways, streets, schools, parks, police and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse
disposal, water, and sewer.

The Commission finds that essential public services are available to this property and that the use
will be adequately served by these facilities.

Page 16

118



https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225820&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225820&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226107&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226107&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

O(/ﬂz IDIAN~

AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for Mountain America Credit Union
Drive-Through (H-2021-0019) by Mountain America Credit Union, Located on the West Side of N.
Ten Mile Road, Approximately 750 Feet South of Chinden Blvd.




Item 3.

CITY OF MERIDIAN
FINDINGS OF FACT,A(\:I\(I)DNCLUSIONS OF LAW d/[ﬁ IDIAN~

DECISION & ORDER

In the Matter of the Request for Conditional Use Permit for a drive-through establishment within
300-feet of another drive-through establishment for Mountain America Credit Union, located on
Lot 13 in the Lost Rapids Subdivision on the west side of N. Ten Mile Road approximately 1/8 mile
south of W. Chinden Boulevard in the C-G Zoning District, by Sanders Associates Architects on
behalf of Mountain America Credit Union.

Case No(s). H-2021-0019
For the Planning & Zoning Commission Hearing Date of: May 6, 2021 (Findings on May 20, 2021)
A. Findings of Fact

1. Hearing Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021, incorporated by
reference)

2. Process Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021, incorporated by
reference)

3. Application and Property Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021,
incorporated by reference)

4. Required Findings per the Unified Development Code (see attached Staff Report for the hearing
date of May 6, 2021, incorporated by reference)

B. Conclusions of Law

1. The City of Meridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use
Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (1.C. 867-6503).

2. The Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission takes judicial notice of its Unified Development
Code codified at Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of
Meridian has, by ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Amended Comprehensive Plan
of the City of Meridian, which was adopted April 19, 2011, Resolution No. 11-784 and Maps.

3. The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code 8 11-5A.

4. Due consideration has been given to the comment(s) received from the governmental
subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction.

5. Itis found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose
expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.

6. That the City has granted an order of approval in accordance with this decision, which shall be
signed by the Chairman of the Commission and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk

CITY OF MERIDIAN FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER
CASE NO(S). Mountain America Credit Union CUP, H-2021-0019

Page 1

120




Item 3.

upon the applicant, the Planning Department, the Public Works Department and any affected
party requesting notice.

7. That this approval is subject to the conditions of approval in the attached staff report for the
hearing date of May 6, 2021, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to be
reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the
application.

C. Decision and Order

Pursuant to the Planning & Zoning Commission’s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11-
5A and based upon the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby
ordered that:

1. The applicant’s request for Conditional Use Permit is hereby approved in accord with the
conditions of approval in the staff report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021, attached as Exhibit
A.

D. Notice of Applicable Time Limits
Notice of Two (2) Year Conditional Use Permit Duration

Please take notice that the conditional use permit, when granted, shall be valid for a maximum
period of two (2) years unless otherwise approved by the City in accord with UDC 11-5B-6F.1.
During this time, the applicant shall commence the use as permitted in accord with the
conditions of approval, satisfy the requirements set forth in the conditions of approval, and
acquire building permits and commence construction of permanent footings or structures on or
in the ground. For conditional use permits that also require platting, the final plat must be
signed by the City Engineer within this two (2) year period in accord with UDC 11-5B-6F.2.

Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord
with 11-5B-6.F.1, the Director may authorize a single extension of the time to commence the
use not to exceed one (1) two (2) year period. Additional time extensions up to two (2) years as
determined and approved by the Commission may be granted. With all extensions, the Director
or Commission may require the conditional use comply with the current provisions of Meridian
City Code Title 11.

E.  Notice of Final Action and Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis

1. Please take notice that this is a final action of the governing body of the City of Meridian.
When applicable and pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6521, any affected person being a person
who has an interest in real property which may be adversely affected by the final action of the
governing board may within twenty-eight (28) days after the date of this decision and order
seek a judicial review as provided by Chapter 52, Title 67, Idaho Code.

F.  Attached: Staff report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021.

CITY OF MERIDIAN FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER
CASE NO(S). Mountain America Credit Union CUP, H-2021-0019

Page 2

121




Item 3.

By action of the Planning & Zoning Commission at its regular meeting held on the
, 2021.

COMMISSIONER RHONDA MCCARVEL, CHAIRMAN

COMMISSIONER ANDREW SEAL, VICE CHAIRMAN

COMMISSIONER LISA HOLLAND

COMMISSIONER STEVEN YEARSLEY

COMMISSIONER WILLIAM CASSINELLI

COMMISSIONER NICK GROVE

COMMISSIONER MARIA LORCHER

VOTED

VOTED

VOTED

VOTED

VOTED

VOTED

VOTED

Rhonda McCarvel, Chairman

Attest:

Chris Johnson, City Clerk

day of

Copy served upon the Applicant, the Planning and Development Services divisions of the Community

Development Department, the Public Works Department and the City Attorney.

By: Dated:

- City Clerk’s Office

CITY OF MERIDIAN FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER

CASE NO(S). Mountain America Credit Union CUP, H-2021-0019

Page 3

122




Item 3.

STAFF REPORT

EXHIBIT A

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

123

HEARING  5/6/2021
DATE:

TO: Planning & Zoning Commission

FROM: Joseph Dodson, Associate Planner

208-884-5533

SUBJECT: H-2021-0019 & A-2021-0063
Mountain America Credit Union — CUP

& DES

LOCATION: W. side of N. Ten Mile Rd., north of W.
Lost Rapids Dr. (Lot 13, Block 1, Lost
Rapids Subdivision — Parcel

#R5330761300), in the NE ¥ of Section =%

27, Township 4N., Range 1W.

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Conditional use permit for a drive-through establishment within 300-feet of another drive-through
establishment on 1.16 acres of land in the C-G zoning district and concurrent Administrative Design

Review.

A. Project Summary

SUMMARY OF REPORT

<

%

=2

R

A

Description Details
Acreage 1.16-acres
Future Land Use Designation Commercial

Existing Land Use

Proposed Land Use(s)

Current Zoning

Physical Features (waterways,
hazards, flood plain, hillside)
Neighborhood meeting date; # of
attendees:

History (previous approvals)

Vacant/undeveloped

Financial Institution with a detached drive-through
General Retail and Service Commercial District (C-G)
None

February 18, 2021; 2 attendees

H-2018-0004 (DA #2018-079970, Lost Rapids - GFI
Meridian Investments Il, LLC); FP-2019-0056

Page 1



https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=159203&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

Item 3.

EXHIBIT A

A. Project Area Maps

Future Land Use Map Aerial Map

Legend &\ W 0
.PrOJec’r Location Low Densi.

R]e\mdenhal

Planned Development Map

- [P £
1 _v City Limits I

— Planned Parcels

Legend k ,W o
Projec’r Location :

s

%@ %“”‘

I1l. APPLICANT INFORMATION
A. Applicant:
Shane Sanders, Sanders Associates Architects — 2668 Grant Avenue, Ogden, UT 84401
B. Owner:
Mountain America Credit Union — 9800 S. Monroe Street, Sandy, UT 84070

. Eﬁ%@@
.

124

Page 2




Item 3.

EXHIBIT A

C. Representative:

Same as Applicant

IV. NOTICING
Planning & Zoning
Posting Date
Newspaper Notification 4/16/2021

Radius notification mailed to

properties within 500 feet 4/13/2021
Site Posting Date 4/26/2021
Next Door posting 4/13/2021

V. STAFF ANALYSIS

The proposed drive-through is for a financial institution and is within 300-feet of a restaurant drive-
through to the south that has recently received Commission approval (Lost Rapids Drive-through, H-
2021-0001), which requires Conditional Use Permit approval (CUP) per UDC Table 11-2B-2. There
are also residential uses and zoning to the east across N. Ten Mile Rd. but because the uses are
separated by an arterial street, these are not a factor in the CUP requirement per UDC 11-4-3-11A.

Specific Use Standards: The proposed drive-through establishment is subject to the specific use
standards listed in UDC 11-4-3-11, Drive-Through Establishment. A site plan is required to be
submitted that demonstrates safe pedestrian and vehicular access and circulation on the site and
between adjacent properties. At a minimum, the plan is required to demonstrate compliance with the
following standards: Staff’s analysis is in italics.

1) Stacking lanes have sufficient capacity to prevent obstruction of driveways, drive aisles and
the public right-of-way by patrons;

The proposed drive-through has three (3) stacking lanes that are approximately 65’+/- from the
drive aisle to the drive-up services for the bank; furthermore, the proposed drive-up services are
proposed in a detached structure that is on the west end of the site with the main building being
on the east of the site, approximately 95” apart. Staff believes the stacking lane has sufficient
capacity to serve the use without obstructing driveways and drive aisles by patrons.

2) The stacking lane shall be a separate lane from the circulation lanes needed for access and
parking, except stacking lanes may provide access to designed employee parking.

Per the submitted site plan, the stacking lanes are off of the shared internal access and provide at
least 65’ of are before any vehicle would impede any access. Staff does not foresee the stacking
lanes impeding the circulation lanes, especially due to the proposed design of a detached drive-
through.

3) The stacking lane shall not be located within ten (10) feet of any residential district or existing
residence;

The stacking lane is not located within 10° of any residential district or residence.

4) Any stacking lane greater than one hundred (100) feet in length shall provide for an escape
lane; and

125

Page 3



https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-11DRROES
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-11DRROES

Item 3.

EXHIBIT A

The stacking lanes do not exceed 100’ in length so no escape lane is proposed. However, the exit
drive-aisle for the detached drive-through is shown as 23’ wide, allowing for patrons to exit the
drive-through and turn north or south with ample room on either side.

5) The site should be designed so that the drive-through is visible from a public street for
surveillance purposes.

The detached drive-through is not exceptionally visible from N. Ten Mile Rd. (the closest public
street) along the east boundary of the site but the south boundary of the site is one of the main
ingress and egress drive aisles for the overall Costco site. Staff finds this shared drive-aisle and
overall proximity to Ten Mile Road (no more than 185 feet in distance) provides for adequate
surveillance opportunities.

Based on the above analysis, Staff deems the proposed drive-through in compliance with the
specific use standards as required.

The proposed use of a financial institution is subject to the specific use standards listed in UDC 11-4-
3-17. The proposed site plan appears to show compliance with all of the standards and will be further
verified with the future Certificate of Zoning Compliance (CZC) application. At the time of CZC
review, Meridian Police Department will verify compliance with the required specific use standards.

Access: One driveway access is proposed to the site via the north/south driveway along the west
boundary of the site from W. Lost Rapids Dr. from the south and a driveway access via N. Ten Mile
Rd. adjacent to the property along the south boundary. A reciprocal cross-access easement exists for
lots in this subdivision as noted on the Lost Rapids subdivision plat (note #12) and in the Declaration
of Easements, Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions (Inst. 2020-071547).

Parking: A minimum of one (1) parking space is required to be provided for every 500 square feet of
gross floor area for nonresidential uses. The proposed building is shown as 4,276 square feet
requiring a minimum of 9 (rounded up from 8.5) parking spaces; the submitted site plan shows 30
proposed parking spaces exceeding UDC minimums.

The recorded Declaration of Easements, Covenants, Conditions and Restrictions for this development
establish cross-parking easements for lots in certain groups within the development (Inst. 2020-
071547, Amended Inst. #2020-171404). This lot (Lot 12) is grouped with Lot 11 directly to the north
and shares a perpetual, non-exclusive cross-parking easement with that lot.

A minimum one (1) bicycle parking space is required to be provided for every 25 vehicle spaces or
portion thereof per UDC 11-3C-6G; bicycle parking facilities are required to comply with the location
and design standards listed in UDC 11-3C-5C. Bicycle parking is shown on the submitted plans in
compliance with code.

Pedestrian Walkways: A pedestrian walkway is depicted on the site plan from the arterial/perimeter
sidewalk along N. Ten Mile Rd. to the main building entrance as required by UDC 11-3A-19B.4a and
meets code as submitted.

Landscaping: Parking lot landscaping is required to be provided in accord with the standards listed
in UDC 11-3B-8C. Landscaping is depicted on the landscape plan in Section VII.B in planter islands
within the parking area as required.

A minimum 5-foot wide landscape buffer is required to be provided along the perimeter of the
parking or other vehicular use areas as set forth in UDC 11-3B-8C.1. The submitted landscape plan
shows the required perimeter buffer but the buffer along the north boundary does not show any trees
within this buffer. Trees are required to be provided for within these buffers at a ratio of at least 1 tree
every 35 linear feet. With the CZC submittal, the landscape plan should be revised to show
compliance with this standard.

126

Page 4



https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-6RENUOREPASP
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-5PASTALOTUSNOSP

Item 3.

VI.

EXHIBIT A

Street buffer landscaping, including a sidewalk, along N. Ten Mile Rd. was installed with
development of the overall subdivision. The submitted landscape plans show a majority of this buffer
remaining as it currently exists but towards the southern end of this buffer the plans show additional
landscaping to highlight the building and future monument sign. This area of the buffer also contains
the new sidewalk connection from the existing sidewalk along Ten Mile to the front of the proposed
building.

Mechanical Equipment: All mechanical equipment on the back of the building and outdoor service
and equipment should be incorporated into the overall design of buildings and landscaping so that the
visual and acoustic impacts of these functions are fully contained and out of view from adjacent
properties and public streets as set forth in UDC 11-3A-12. If mechanical equipment is proposed to be
roof-mount, all equipment should be screened and out of view as noted above.

Building Elevations: The Applicant applied for Design Review concurrently with this CUP
application and therefore provided building elevations to be reviewed. The building elevations were
submitted as shown in Section VII.C and incorporate two main field materials, fiber cement siding
and stone. The siding and stone are two contrasting colors (coal-like color and white, respectively)
which adds to the overall modern design of the building. On the east and west elevations, the number
of proposed windows can act as either an accent material or a third field material. The lack of
modulation along the north and south elevations are of concern to Staff. In order to meet the
modulation requirements for these two facades, a column of stone at least 6 inches in depth should be
added to each facade, matching the overall aesthetic by placing them as evenly as possible on each
facade.

The detached drive-through canopy is shown with the same two field materials (fiber cement siding
and stone) as the main building and meets all of the applicable design standards outlined in the
Architectural Standards Manual.

No elevations were submitted that show the proposed trash enclosure; this should be corrected with
the future CZC submittal and should match the color of the proposed building. The submitted
landscape plans show adequate screening of the trash enclosure.

Certificate of Zoning Compliance: A Certificate of Zoning Compliance application is required to be
submitted for the proposed use prior to submittal of a building permit application to ensure
consistency with the conditions in Section VIII and UDC standards.

DECISION
A. Staff:

Staff recommends approval of the proposed conditional use permit with the conditions included
in Section VIII per the Findings in Section IX. The Director has approved the administrative
design review request.

The Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission heard this item on May 6, 2021. At the public
hearing, the Commission moved to approve the subject Conditional Use Permit request.
1. Summary of the Commission public hearing:
In favor: Shane Sanders, Sanders Associates—Applicant Representative
In opposition: None
Commenting: Shane Sanders; Kent Brown, Kent Brown Planning.
Written testimony: None
Staff presenting application: Joseph Dodson, Associate Planner
Other Staff commenting on application: None
ey issue(s) of public testimony:

a. Complexity of drive aisles and vehicle circulation within commercial developments.

oo

P = S o

N>

127

Page 5



https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-12OUSEEQAR

Item 3.

a. None
VII. EXHIBITS
A. Proposed Site Plan (dated: 3/23/2021)

L £ s

! | ’ |

! ' I 3 IF
; | @] &% g['l
f ol

?'- L
i _ =
i ____E___zjuz' - IH II
: | Leat
| | | g |
": &3 H = t:‘-pl—h—::?
Iil a g T o= I '_ I:J‘.-a }-!
LI g
i : | 1
i Fog e | it

.' 1)
| 7% B el i 1
| - DI |
] i | I i ':t:_ h|
3 7 iz T
1= | Emveserr -\:‘___ [
i I P
L 2590 S B I IL_< Il

I R |
I . - - |'|
i | ==
i s N
» Pk
e e

I. PRI o l-l r W |

I . iy J s
|-: l T ! ;
Ii J__________‘_____ arar || ;
o

i :

EXHIBIT A

3. Key issue(s) of discussion by Commission:

a. Location of the drive-through exit in relation to the main drive aisle entrance into the

larger commercial development.
4. Commission change(s) to Staff recommendation:

Lot with previously approved drive-through (Lost
Rapids Drive-through, H-2021-0001).

ﬂnad;'

Mile

Ten

North

128

Page 6




Item 3.

EXHIBIT A

B. Proposed Landscape Plan (dated: 3/23/2021)

3 ' I 4

Leadscaps Dara

Zone; CG (Genern! Retail & Service Commercial Districe)
Site Area = SQ507 o.f. (1S9 2c)

Lendscape Arce Provided = I4J71 sk (29%)

4 Sereee Trews Provided with Cowco Development Landicape
Exiseing’ New Lawn Covesye = 8525 af. (#9%)

Pleat Material Shill Peoyide 40% Coveraye at Matority
PLANT SCHEDULE

A ) o eur

a o il et ok She Al G

Road

B [ -

. Fut sanasass - Som et

" A ) A TS A

5]

2 v s e it

I s
| - R
i~ [ —
|
— il iy e ar EEENG £ OGN SN
| [P S ————
|
! v R
’/,

5 a e pusgary e O e e v

" P i Somaind St Moy v

Ten

. [Repp———

AT

i v v et e
B s e o s s e

l = o« Wi’/ Hrd GOt Mase

! £l oo Bt Prthon Mo/ drthory Wt Sodens

@ S ¢ ot Sotaan! J Sowons fures

2 o 7 et emem Sptig (s v P

North

L oo crees O v co
@ Q} @ B et R KT Rt f R e T8
] o 5 i st o ana i S
\
3 s dr s o ous
. T U s e e St i 5
I ES aarnerva ¢ Steks o G/ St e O S
P e e Tt e 8
\
i [ R — -
5
T ——
1 a0 s - e o0 sy s g e 2 e 3 ey B et st o ok 08 oo
T R TR B ST S T e e T
Eefuin Sk o4 i oot = 2t e " b St

o e s e

385 o B S M/ izl T s

. mm-ph-mmmmmmwmmwwmwymmw&
g i BT B AT paalt o pit

4 om oo srchcacs o e o o ettt o e e
g

187 ot i o i e sl ey vt de ol v Sl
I B
e GO G190 UM N DGO WG 5 M D 002

74 oo saman s esmmist o fon i s e s e Sy SR, bt
R R R AR AV 3of P

15 gt or 2t ] el b bt e e e vl v

a

16 mng 1 st 4 w1 g s T )t B s g st g
B o e el S e B S R
BT o S L R R O B S
eyt

Landecape Notes:
2 e ey o ¢ S ey 0

LRI ST R

DY Ty o pap————

ot
o s S T e e S e e s
fo
= = o s . o i et
s SRR
5 e s
i o et M
e SR
o
o % et o i e o e s
s
e e S T
w Hothinaey
e [ —
-
i Lasrcene Kemones
s O T
S
i By
sm [ orakynbhey o ghitud
@) i e S
. (3 i o s
SR
s [ -
(4 s g v s o
- i
i s it i
s et
(SR T ——
- s Sy 2o g oo o0
= @ P —
A i 8 B R
T SR
(1 g st e
-
) 47 o vt s i e 1 2y
@ grow s e et i e
e e L
e by LA
= T
i (@ vt o St e 2 Pt 4 v
- -
S (@ g s o s 0 s s
e i e e e
= (B e e 60
= (S

CEEE T R R T Ly o Yot Bt A L)
A R WS R R R R R R T

8ty et s s s b e sty sty ot B e (e g B~ s A b 5ot 5 Bamvi: s g
0 et s i et e i U e g o R SR T S e e
o s ey Sy i s e . 3 0 L e S S
SRR L el e R A A T Y

g IDAHO]

i gaxs

o 420

MOUNTAIN AMERICA
CREDIT UNION

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

i

e
4
/7
A
z
(o}
=z
=
=
0
[2"4
O
<
194
&=
=
Z
=
=z
Zz
=
@}
=

129

e
]
<
<
o
&
¢]
=
<
a
z
<
o
o=
]
=

2

MERDIAN, ID 83848

LANDSCAPZ

PLAN

L1.1

Page 7




Item 3.

EXHIBIT A

i/ MGGQE O ] Gf:d'@ .

L_..l

Road

gL}
L
CarEET
=

— T

ﬁ‘;?‘ﬂa—-?-ﬁ'—-vﬂvﬂ-—v‘w—r—?

e

Mile

e

130




Item 3.

Conceptual Building Elevations

EXHIBIT A

131

FERIDIAN IDAHC BRANCH

T
P [MOUNTAIN AMERICA CREDIT UNION

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

H

RIDIAN ICAHD BIANC

* |MCUNTAIN AMERICA CREDIT UNION

i
i

NGT FOR CONSTRUCTION




Item 3.

EXHIBIT A

VI, CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS
A. PLANNING

1.

10.

Future development of this site shall comply with the existing Development Agreement (Inst.
#2018-079970, Lost Rapids - GFI Meridian Investments 11, LLC) and associated conditions of
approval (H-2018-0004; FP-2019-0056).

The site plan submitted with the future Certificate of Zoning Compliance application shall be
revised as follows:

a. Depict the parking stalls in accordance with UDC Table 11-3C-5 to be at least 9” wide
and 19’ deep unless there is at least a 2’ overhang in front of the stall allowing the stall
depth to be reduced to 17°.

b. If 17’ stall depths are desired abutting the proposed building, depict the sidewalk to be at
least 7 in width; all sidewalks shall be at least 5” in width.

The landscape plan submitted with the future Certificate of Zoning Compliance application
shall be revised as follows:

a. Depict the required number of trees within the planter bed along the north boundary, per
UDC 11-3B-8.

The elevations submitted with the Administrative Design Review (DES) application are
approved with the following revisions:

a. Show the north and south elevations with additional qualifying modulation per standard
3.1A & 3.1B in the Architectural Standards Manual. The revisions to the elevations are
required with the submittal of the certificate of zoning compliance application.

Submit elevations of the trash enclosure that matches the proposed building color.

Comply with the standards listed in UDC 11-4-3-11 — Drive-Through Establishment is
required.

Comply with the standards listed in UDC 11-4-3-17 — Financial Institution.

A Certificate of Zoning Compliance application shall be submitted and approved for the
proposed use prior to submittal of a building permit application.

Prior to receiving Certificate of Occupancy, the required 35-foot landscape buffer along Ten
Mile Road shall be vegetated and completed in accord with previous approvals and UDC 11-
3B-7.

The conditional use permit is valid for a maximum period of two (2) years unless otherwise
approved by the City. During this time, the Applicant shall commence the use as permitted in
accord with the conditions of approval, satisfy the requirements set forth in the conditions of
approval, and acquire building permits and commence construction of permanent footings or
structures on or in the ground as set forth in UDC 11-5B-6. A time extension may be requested
as set forth in UDC 11-5B-6F.

132

Page 10



https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=159203&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-5PASTALOTUSNOSP
https://meridiancity.org/planning/current/architectural-standards
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-11DRROES
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-17FIIN
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-7LABUALST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTBLARE_11-3B-7LABUALST
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH5AD_ARTBSPPR_11-5B-6COUS

Item 3.

B.

C.

D.

EXHIBIT A

PuBLIC WORKS

1. There are no utilities shown with the plans submitted. Any changes to public water or sewer
infrastructure must be reviewed by Public Works prior to approval.

NAMPA & MERIDIAN IRRIGATION DISTRICT (NMID)
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=227458&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

133

ity

ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT (ACHD)
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226253&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225686&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity

IX. FINDINGS
Conditional Use (UDC 11-5B-6)

Findings: The commission shall base its determination on the conditional use permit request upon the
following:

1.

That the site is large enough to accommodate the proposed use and meet all the dimensional
and development regulations in the district in which the use is located.

Commission finds the site is large enough to accommodate the proposed development and meet
all dimensional and development regulations of the C-G zoning district.

That the proposed use will be harmonious with the Meridian comprehensive plan and in
accord with the requirements of this title.

Commission finds the proposed financial institution with a detached drive-through will be
harmonious with the Comprehensive Plan and is consistent with applicable UDC standards with
the conditions noted in Section VIII of this report.

That the design, construction, operation and maintenance will be compatible with other
uses in the general neighborhood and with the existing or intended character of the general
vicinity and that such use will not adversely change the essential character of the same area.

Commission finds the design, construction, operation and maintenance of the proposed use will
be compatible with other uses in the general neighborhood, with the existing and intended
character of the vicinity and will not adversely change the essential character of the area.

That the proposed use, if it complies with all conditions of the approval imposed, will not
adversely affect other property in the vicinity.

Commission finds the proposed use will not adversely affect other properties in the vicinity if it
complies with the conditions in Section VIII of this report.

That the proposed use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services
such as highways, streets, schools, parks, police and fire protection, drainage structures,
refuse disposal, water, and sewer.

Commission finds the proposed use will be served by essential public facilities and services as
required.

Page 11



https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=227458&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=227458&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226253&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226253&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225686&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225686&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

Item 3.

EXHIBIT A

6. That the proposed use will not create excessive additional costs for public facilities and

services and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community.

Commission finds the proposed use will not create additional costs for public facilities and
services and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community.

That the proposed use will not involve activities or processes, materials, equipment and
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property or the general
welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors.

Commission finds the proposed use will not be detrimental to any persons, property or the
general welfare by the reasons noted above.

That the proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic
or historic feature considered to be of major importance. (Ord. 05-1170, 8-30-2005, eff. 9-
15-2005)

Commission finds the proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of any such
features.

Page 12

134




Cﬂ/ﬂ%@«

AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for The Oasis (H-2021-0004) by Brian
Tsai of Balboa Ventures, Located at 3185 E. Ustick Rd.




Item 4.

DINGS O T OF MERIDIAN. Cﬂ/[é IDIAN~

AND
DECISION & ORDER

In the Matter of the Request for a Conditional Use Permit request for an approximate 7,000 square
foot drinking establishment, music venue, and nightclub for The Oasis, Located at 3185 E. Ustick
Road on a portion of 3.26 acres of land in the C-G Zoning District, by Brian Tsai, Balboa Ventures.

Case No(s). H-2021-0004

For the Planning & Zoning Commission Hearing Date of: March 18, 2021 & May 6, 2021 (Findings
on May 20, 2021)

A. Findings of Fact

1. Hearing Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of March 18, 2021, incorporated by
reference)

2. Process Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of March 18, 2021, incorporated by
reference)

3. Application and Property Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of March 18, 2021,
incorporated by reference)

4. Required Findings per the Unified Development Code (see attached Staff Report for the hearing
date of March 18, 2021, incorporated by reference)

B. Conclusions of Law

1. The City of Meridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use
Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (1.C. 867-6503).

2. The Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission takes judicial notice of its Unified Development
Code codified at Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of
Meridian has, by ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Amended Comprehensive Plan
of the City of Meridian, which was adopted April 19, 2011, Resolution No. 11-784 and Maps.

3. The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code § 11-5A.

4. Due consideration has been given to the comment(s) received from the governmental
subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction.

5. Itis found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose
expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.

6. That the City has granted an order of approval in accordance with this decision, which shall be
signed by the Chairman of the Commission and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk

CITY OF MERIDIAN FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER
CASE NO(S). The Oasis, H-2021-0004
Page 1

136




Item 4.

upon the applicant, the Planning Department, the Public Works Department and any affected
party requesting notice.

7. That this approval is subject to the conditions of approval in the attached staff report for the
hearing date of March 18, 2021, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to be
reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the
application.

C. Decision and Order

Pursuant to the Planning & Zoning Commission’s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11-
5A and based upon the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby
ordered that:

1. The applicant’s request for Conditional Use Permit is hereby approved in accord with the
conditions of approval in the staff report for the hearing date of March 18, 2021, attached as
Exhibit A.

D. Notice of Applicable Time Limits
Notice of Two (2) Year Conditional Use Permit Duration

Please take notice that the conditional use permit, when granted, shall be valid for a maximum
period of two (2) years unless otherwise approved by the City in accord with UDC 11-5B-6F.1.
During this time, the applicant shall commence the use as permitted in accord with the
conditions of approval, satisfy the requirements set forth in the conditions of approval, and
acquire building permits and commence construction of permanent footings or structures on or
in the ground. For conditional use permits that also require platting, the final plat must be
signed by the City Engineer within this two (2) year period in accord with UDC 11-5B-6F.2.

Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord
with 11-5B-6.F.1, the Director may authorize a single extension of the time to commence the
use not to exceed one (1) two (2) year period. Additional time extensions up to two (2) years as
determined and approved by the Commission may be granted. With all extensions, the Director
or Commission may require the conditional use comply with the current provisions of Meridian
City Code Title 11.

E.  Notice of Final Action and Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis

1. Please take notice that this is a final action of the governing body of the City of Meridian.
When applicable and pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6521, any affected person being a person
who has an interest in real property which may be adversely affected by the final action of the
governing board may within twenty-eight (28) days after the date of this decision and order
seek a judicial review as provided by Chapter 52, Title 67, Idaho Code.

F.  Attached: Staff report for the hearing date of March 18, 2021

CITY OF MERIDIAN FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER
CASE NO(S). The Oasis, H-2021-0004
Page 2

137




Item 4.

By action of the Planning & Zoning Commission at its regular meeting held on the day of

, 2021.
COMMISSIONER RHONDA MCCARVEL, CHAIRMAN VOTED
COMMISSIONER ANDREW SEAL, VICE CHAIRMAN VOTED
COMMISSIONER LISA HOLLAND VOTED
COMMISSIONER STEVEN YEARSLEY VOTED
COMMISSIONER WILLIAM CASSINELLI VOTED
COMMISSIONER NICK GROVE VOTED
COMMISSIONER MARIA LORCHER VOTED

Rhonda McCarvel, Chairman

Attest:

Chris Johnson, City Clerk

Copy served upon the Applicant, the Planning and Development Services divisions of the Community
Development Department, the Public Works Department and the City Attorney.

By: Dated:
City Clerk’s Office

CITY OF MERIDIAN FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER
CASE NO(S). The Oasis, H-2021-0004
Page 3

138




Item 4.

Exhibit A

STAFF REPORT d/[]'g IDIAN—

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

HEARING  3/18/2021 Legend o
DATE: :
@Project Location
TO: Planning & Zoning Commission e
FROM: Joe Dodson, Associate Planner

208-884-5533

SUBJECT: H-2021-0004
The Oasis

LOCATION: The site is located on a portion of 3185
E. Ustick Road, at the southwest corner =
of N. Eagle Road and E. Ustick Road, in #
the NE % of the NE % of Section 5,
Township 3N., Range 1E.

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Conditional Use Permit request for an approximate 7,000 square foot drinking establishment, music
venue, and nightclub on a portion of 3.26 acres of land in the C-G zoning district, by Brian Tsai,
Balboa Ventures.

Il. SUMMARY OF REPORT

A. Project Summary

Description Details Page

Acreage Portion of 3.29 (C-G zoning district)

Future Land Use Designation Mixed Use Regional

Existing Land Use(s) Vacant but being developed

Proposed Land Use(s) Commercial

Lots (# and type; bldg./common) On 1 of 5 building lots

Physical Features (waterways, Milk Lateral runs along southern boundary of property;

hazards, flood plain, hillside) easement being respected and verified in CZC approvals.

Neighborhood meeting date; # of January 14, 2021 — 15 attendees

attendees:

History (previous approvals) H-2019-0082 (DA Modification to remove the subject site
from an existing DA and enter into a new one specific to
this site; DA Inst. #2019-121599); H-2020-0104 (Pre-plat
approval to subdivide property into 5 lots); A-2019-0376 &
A-2021-0010 (CZC for parking lot, landscaping, and other
relevant site improvements); A-2021-0012 (CZC and
Design Review approval of the building proposed to house
requested business).

Page 1

139




Item 4.

140

Exhibit A

Description Details Page
Public Testimony Due to the controversial nature of this project, there

has been a number of written and verbal testimony

both for and against this project. Please go here to

review this public testimony.

B. Community Metrics

Description Details Page

Ada County Highway District

o Staff report (yes/no)

o Requires ACHD Commission
Action (yes/no)

Yes; Comply with letter noting review that occurred with
urgent care CZC (A-2020-0163).
No

Access (Arterial/Collectors/State
Hwy/Local) (Existing and
Proposed)

Stub Street/Interconnectivity/Cross
Access

Existing Road Network

Existing Arterial Sidewalks /
Buffers

Proposed Road Improvements

Access is proposed via a proposed shared driveway into
the development from E. Ustick Rd. No direct access is
proposed or allowed to E. Ustick Rd. or N. Eagle Rd.
Subject site has existing cross-access agreements in place
for sites within the original 3 acre parcel. Staff is unaware
of any cross-access agreements with adjacent sites to the
west and south (Villasport approvals).

Internal drive aisles and adjacent drive aisles are currently
under construction.

The required sidewalks and landscaping are currently
under construction commensurate with the approved CZC
plans (A-2019-0376).

Applicant is not required to perform any road
improvements because Ustick and Eagle are at their full-
build out at this time.

Fire Service

Distance to Fire Station
Fire Response Time

Resource Reliability
Risk Identification
Accessibility

1.2 miles from Fire Station #3

This project lies within the Meridian Fire response time
goal of 5 minutes.

Fire Station #3 reliability currently 80%

Risk Factor 3 — commercial

Proposed project meets all Fire required access, road
widths, and turnarounds.

Police Service

e Distance to Station

3.5 miles from Meridian Police Department

o Response Time

Approximately 3.5 minute response time to an emergency.

e Call Data

Between 2/1/2019 - 1/31/2021, the Meridian Police
Department responded to 2,967 calls for service within a
mile of the proposed development. The crime count on the
calls for service was 251.

Between 2/1/2019 - 1/31/2021, the Meridian Police
Department responded to 198 crashes within a mile of the
proposed development. See attached documents for
details.

e Additional Concerns

Following any approvals, Police will want to meet with
Applicant on expectations of Police.

Page 2



https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/Browse.aspx?id=221767&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

Item 4.

Exhibit A

C. Project Area Maps

Future Land Use Map Aerial Map
& R

" Ién ed
o Legend o
Projecf Location |=

i1 City Limits

L =

— Planned Parcels

1A, :
T %
S 1 — v
= : m
Hi |
% 0= ||
1V LS i

=l

APPLICANT INFORMATION
A. Applicant:
Brian Tsai, Balboa Ventures — PO Box 109204, Boise, ID 83719
B. Owner:
Nate Ballard, Wadsworth Development — 166 E. 14000 South, Ste. 210, Draper, UT 84020

141

Page 3




Item 4.

C. Representative:
N/A

IV. NOTICING

Exhibit A

Planning & Zoning
Posting Date

City Council
Posting Date

Newspaper Notification

Radius notification mailed to
properties within 500 feet

Site Posting
Nextdoor posting

V. STAFF ANALYSIS

2/26/2021
2/23/2021

3/7/2021
2/25/2021

The subject property was annexed in 2003 as part of a larger annexation area (AZ-03-018).
There was a Development Agreement (DA) associated with this annexation which was modified
in 2019 to remove this property from that DA (H-2019-0082) and enter into a new one serving
just this site (DA Inst. #2019-121599). The land owner received approval to subdivide the
property for future ownership purposes.

A. Future Land Use Map Designation (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan)

Mixed Use Regional (MU-R) — In general, the purpose of mixed-use designations is to provide
for a combination of compatible land uses within a close geographic area that allows for easily
accessible and convenient services for residents and workers. The intent is to promote
developments that offer functional and physical integration of land uses, to create and enhance
neighborhood sense of place, and to allow developers a greater degree of design and use

flexibility.

Specifically, the purpose of the regional designation is to provide a mix of employment, retail,
and residential dwellings and public uses near major arterial intersections. The intent is to
integrate a variety of uses together, including residential, and to avoid predominantly single use
developments such as a regional retail center with only restaurants and other commercial uses.
Developments should be anchored by uses that have a regional draw with the appropriate

supporting uses.

The subject site is located at the southwest corner of the intersection of E. Ustick Road (an
arterial street) and N. Eagle Road/SH 55. Staff and the Applicant understand the importance of
providing more commercial uses in this area, especially on an undeveloped corner. To the east
and across Eagle Road are two large commercial centers; to the north is an additional

142

commercial center. These surrounding areas provide a plethora of commercial uses that are used
at a regional level. Directly to the west of the subject site is intended to be a high-end indoor gym
(Villasport) and further to the south of the site is existing residential and some community serving
commercial. As these lots get developed over time, Staff believes that they will continue to add to
the City’s commercial base and will likely be a higher benefit to users of the future Villasport and
residents to the southwest of this site. The proposed business of a nightclub and music venue
offers a new commercial use not only to this area of Meridian but to Meridian as a whole. Staff is
of the opinion that despite being on a relatively small site, the proposed use would have regional
pull for patrons. Therefore, this project, in conjunction with the approved uses to the west, should
satisfy the comprehensive plan and mixed-use policies.

Page 4



https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan

Item 4.

Exhibit A

B. Comprehensive Plan Policies (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan):

Some applicable Comprehensive Plan policies are cited below with Staff analysis in italics.

“Require appropriate building design, and landscaping elements to buffer, screen, beautify, and
integrate commercial, multifamily, and parking lots into existing neighborhoods.” (5.01.02D).
There is no neighborhood directly adjacent to the subject site but the closest home is
approximately 330 feet from the southern property line. Future commercial buildings and
parking lots will separate this project from existing residential to the southwest. However, with
the recently approved CZC and Design Review approval for this multi-tenant building, the
approved landscaping meets all code requirements and helps to beautify the property while
offering an appropriate visual landscape buffer to the closest neighborhood to the southwest.
Likely, the subject site will not be directly viewable from the nearest residential neighborhood
once other properties redevelop in the near future. The parking is located on the interior of the
overall property which will be largely screened by buildings and helps screen the parking lot
from adjacent properties, usually one of the most noise inducing elements of a commercial site.

The approved building that is to hold the proposed use is constructed with a modern and urban
design that should integrate with the overall design of the other properties and with those
adjacent to the site. However, according to the Applicant, the real buffering of the proposed use
comes from within the building where there is proposed soundproofing materials, technigues, and
technologies. When it comes to screening and buffering any incompatibilities of the proposed use,
Staff finds the proposed landscaping and internal building materials to be sufficient in integrating
the use into the existing and planned development.

“Diversify Meridian's economic base to establish and maintain a self-sustaining, full-service
economy.” (2.06.01). Meridian does not have a business of the kind being proposed within this
application. The Applicant appropriately described within their narrative the lack of
entertainment, art, and music activities available within the City. The Applicant discusses this as
a major need for the City. Staff can see the proposed use as adding to the economic base of the
City because it would be a new type of use and offer a commercial use in the hours after 10pm,
which is not a normal occurrence within the City.

“Require pedestrian circulation plans to ensure safety and convenient access across large
commercial and mixed-use developments.” (3.07.02A). Pedestrian connectivity to this site is not
one of the major issues for this proposed use. Where feasible, each building site will have
pedestrian connections to one another and will have connections to the sidewalks along the
adjacent major roadways on the north and east sides of the overall site. So long as these
connections are required with each CZC review, Staff believes the subject site will have adequate
pedestrian circulation especially due to the relatively small size of the overall commercial
development. In addition, as future commercial sites to the south develop and additional
pedestrian connections are introduced to the area, future patrons of this nightclub would have
ample places to recreate before and after participating in this use and get to and from different
uses safely.

“Determine and respond to the community's art and cultural facility needs.” (5.03.01E). The City
is not working in collaboration with the Applicant so the context of this policy is not precisely
what is called for within the comprehensive plan. However, a private business can add art and
cultural facilities just as easily as the City. According to the Applicant, a nightclub/indoor
recreation facility/drinking establishment can and should add to the community’s art and culture.
It is the Applicant’s intent to increase the availability of a music venue for Meridian residents to
have more opportunity to share in music as art and potentially bring new cultural experiences to
Meridian through this business and venue.

143

Page 5



https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan

Item 4.

Exhibit A

“Enhance crime prevention awareness through the education of neighborhood watch groups,
multi-family property management companies, homeowners' associations, and other
organizations.” (4.11.02F). The Applicant has been eager to work with the Meridian Police
Department in order to help mitigate any future negative impacts of the proposed use. The Police
cannot give an “approval” of the proposed project but they are working with the Applicant and
have had conversations with the Applicant. MPD has shown interest in educating the Applicant
on any and all crime prevention techniques here in Meridian.

“Support efforts to evaluate and plan for future transportation services such as public transit, on-
demand services, autonomous and shared vehicles.” (6.01.04A). Again, the City is not partnering
with the Applicant in pursuit of this policy but the Applicant has discussed thoroughly the
applicability of ride-sharing for patrons of their proposed business. The Applicant noted that in
most markets an average of 40% of the patrons for a business like this utilize ride-shares like
Uber and Lyft in order to offset parking or having to drive at all. Staff cannot confirm these
statistics but with the lack of public transportation within the City and the overall car dominant
landscape we live in here in Meridian, it is unlikely that the 40% usage would occur for those
attending The Oasis. There should be no doubt this service would be utilized but not at a level
that Staff can overlook the parking and traffic issues presented by the proposed use.

Staff finds this development to be generally consistent and in alignment with the
Comprehensive Plan as noted above.

. Existing Structures/Site Improvements:

The subject site is currently having its basic improvements completed (grading, drainage, water &
sewer, and parking lot) but generally is a vacant parcel. Recent site visits also show a foundation
of one of the approved buildings within the site (nearest Eagle and in the southeast corner of the
subject site). All road improvements along Ustick and Eagle Roads are existing. With the
approved CZC, the building, utilities, and drainage will be completed regardless of the proposed
use being approved or denied.

. Building Elevations (UDC 11-3A-19 | Architectural Standards Manual):

The submitted conceptual elevations are those approved with the recent CZC and Design Review
approvals. The approved commercial building complies with the UDC and the Architectural
Standards Manual. The elevations show modern architecture with glazed glass storefronts,
awnings, vertical trellis, and varying wall modulation on all sides of the building. In addition, the
elevations show brick, polymer, and rustic corrugated metal panels as finish materials. As noted,
these elevations have already been approved by Staff at an administrative level.

. Dimensional Standards (UDC 11-2):

The building proposed to contain the proposed use has recently received CZC approval and meets
all dimensional standards for setbacks, parking, building height, and access. The proposed use of
a music venue falls under the Indoor Recreation Facility specific use standards (UDC 11-4-3-2)
and if one is to be located within 1,000 feet of an existing residence a Conditional Use Permit is
required; part of the Applicant’s CUP request is to satisfy this requirement. In addition, one of the
proposed uses is for a Drinking Establishment and is also subject to specific use standards (UDC
11-4-3-10); the required dimensional standards noted within this code section are being met with
the CUP request.

Proposed Use Analysis:

The administratively approved building, Eagle View Retail Center, will be approximately 8,300
square feet in size with two tenant suites. The Oasis is proposed in the larger suite at an

144

Page 6



https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6569
https://meridiancity.org/designreview
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6061

Item 4.

Exhibit A

approximate size of 7,000 square feet. The uses allowed on the subject site are those listed in
UDC Table 11-2B-2 for the C-G zoning district. The proposed business is a combination of a
nightclub and music venue which falls under Drinking Establishment and Indoor Recreation
Facility uses within the development code, respectively. The indoor recreation facility use is a
principally permitted use within the C-G zoning district unless it incorporates a music venue and
is located within 1,000 feet of an existing residence which then requires a conditional use permit;
this is the case with the proposed use of the music venue because the building is approximately
330 feet from the nearest residence. A drinking establishment is a conditional use within the C-G
zoning district. Therefore, the Applicant is requesting conditional use permit approval for these
two uses to reside within one building and one business, The Oasis. Staff recommends the
Commission review the Applicant’s narrative to gain further insight into how the business
is intended to operate in terms of soundproofing techniques, security, business operations,
and alcohol consumption. Staff’s use analysis is not exhaustive as the Applicant’s narrative
details more of their proposals than is necessary to discuss within this staff report.

According to the Applicant, The Oasis is meant to be a premier music venue and nightclub that
offers entertainment and a nightlife for those in Meridian, much like other prominent cities. The
Applicant also understands the negative stigmas surrounding a ““nightclub’ and provided a
detailed response to this within their narrative. Staff agrees with some of the points made by the
Applicant but must analyze the proposed uses against development code.

As noted, the approved building and proposed uses meet all required dimensional standards as
they are not directly adjacent to a residential district (approximately 330 feet from the closest
residential district) and meet all building and landscaping setbacks. It is anticipated that directly
south of the approved building there will be additional landscaping, a larger parking lot, and a
drive aisle. This parking lot and landscaping received preliminary approval with the Villasport
applications and a user is currently in process on this site that would make these improvements
more tangible. This parking lot and landscaping would abut the drive aisle that extends from N.
Cajun Lane to the south and continues north adjacent to this subject site and connects to Ustick,
the main access to this commercial development. This drive aisle is currently being constructed
with the site improvements for Eagle Commons as a whole to ensure there is more than one way
to get to the entrance of the site. Further discussion on this is in the Access section below, V.G.

With the proposed uses of a music venue and nightclub, capacity and hours of operation are
integral factors in determining the compatibility of the uses with neighboring and planned
development. The Applicant proposes hours of operation for The Oasis as 4:00PM to 1:00AM on
the weekdays and 4:00PM to 2:00AM on the weekends. It is unclear what specific days the
Applicant is referring to as “the weekends;”” Staff is recommending for future analysis,
discussion, and conditions of approval purposes that this is in reference to Friday and Saturday
nights only. The Villasport site was approved to remain open until 12:00AM, midnight which
would cover a majority of the same operating hours proposed with this application. Both
proposed uses, Villasport and The Oasis, are likely to drastically increase activity on this
currently vacant corner. However, the Villasport approvals are set to expire soon unless that
Applicant applies for a time extension. This calls into question how this corner will look in the

coming years and it is not feasible for Staff to speculate too far as there could be many unknowns.

Staff must analyze this project based on the current situation known which includes the Villasport
development.

The QOasis is further away from the existing residential than Villasport but this does not mean any
negative impacts are automatically alleviated. Therefore, Staff recommends weekday (Sunday
thru Thursday) hours for The Oasis be limited to 4:00PM to 12:00AM. These hours of operation
for the weekdays match the closing time of Villasport making it more compatible with that use
and nearby residential development. The opening time is of less concern to Staff because these

145

Page 7




Item 4.

Exhibit A

types of businesses do not generally have peak hours of operation earlier in the evening. It can be
assumed that the 4:00PM start time is likely more associated with private events like that of
weddings than it is associated with the nightclub or concert uses. In addition, the hours of
operation are only applicable to use of the site by those other than employees; ancillary indoor
business activities are allowed beyond these hours for employees, as outlined in UDC 11-2B-3B.

Staff recommends the weekend (Friday & Saturday) hours are also limited to help with being
compatible to nearby residential. These hours should be limited to 4:00PM to 1:00AM, a
reduction in one hour of operation from the Applicant’s request and one more hour than the
weekdays.

The Applicant’s original narrative estimated a capacity of approximately 1,000 patrons for the
7,000 square foot tenant suite. After receiving a conceptual floor plan, preliminary discussions
with Fire plan reviewers discussed a maximum capacity closer to 700 persons; the exact number
for maximum building occupancy cannot be known until architectural plans are submitted with
building permit submittal at a later date. However, through the CUP process, capacity can be
limited further. Because of the issues outlined in this staff report, Staff recommends capacity be
limited to no more than 500 persons to include employees. Employees will likely take up parking
spaces for the entire hours of operation so they should be included in the maximum capacity. The
Applicant and Staff have discussed this number and there is preliminary agreement on this
condition. Staff arrived at this number because it is the same ratio as the minimum parking ratio
for the proposed use, a 1:4 ratio. 500 persons and 125 parking spaces equate to one (1) space for
every four (4) people; drastically improved from one (1) space for every 6 or 7 people with a
capacity over 700. Further analysis on the parking is below in section V.H.

IF the Applicant can adhere to the recommended conditions of approval noted below, Staff finds
the proposed use is compatible with adjacent uses in that it should be mitigated appropriately.
Commission may determine further mitigation is needed through this CUP process.

. Access (UDC 11-3A-3, 11-3H-4):

Main access to and for this development will be via a shared driveway connection to Ustick Road
limited to a right-in/right-out access—the land owner is currently constructing this shared
driveway access for their development because this site is developing before the Villasport
project. There are no public streets as part of this commercial development and therefore no stub
streets are proposed. Instead, there are private drive-aisles as are standard for commercial
developments. The Applicant has an existing cross-access agreement with the adjacent
commercial properties (Inst. #106169335) but this agreement does not include a cross-parking
agreement.

As previously discussed above, the subject site abuts a drive aisle that connects to Ustick and is
the main access to this commercial development. This commercial drive aisle will be a
continuation of N. Cajun Lane, a private street, from the south but in fact will not be a named
street. This off-site drive aisle is currently being constructed with the site improvements for Eagle
Commons as a whole because Cajun Lane connects to Seville Lane and is an access point to
Eagle Road. Constructing this connection ensures there is more than one way to access the site
entrance other than from Ustick. The Eagle Road access is an existing access that is off-site and
limited to a right-in/right-out only access. Because the overall site, Eagle Commons, has received
preliminary plat approval to subdivided the property, cross-access and cross-parking between the
five proposed lots is required. In the recorded Covenant, Conditions, and Restrictions (Inst.
#2020-075457) this cross-access is discussed and dictated for each lot and future user.

In addition to the shared drive aisle that abuts the property to the west, The Villasport site
improvements and recorded cross-access agreement will include an additional Ustick Road

Page 8

146



https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6390
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-7519

Item 4.

Exhibit A

access point further west, N. Centrepoint Way. These access points to the arterial are long
approved for the site. Staff finds there is adequate and safe access to the site at full build-out and
with only the most adjacent Ustick access in conjunction with the drive aisle connection to Cajun
Lane and then out to Eagle Road. However, to help mitigate any residential cut-through traffic
this Applicant and land owner should work with the Villasport Applicant to construct a driveway
through their site in-line with where they plan to construct one in the future. This driveway would
provide a more direct means of accessing Centrepoint Way and the existing traffic signal at that
intersection without having to use the roads adjacent to the residential subdivision further to the
south.

Staff also agrees that at peak hours of business (after 8pm) access to the site should be improved
as adjacent traffic levels on Ustick and Eagle should be much less than at 5 or 6pm. This is due to
the fact there are not many businesses open beyond 9pm within Meridian that draw the kind of
customers that can be assumed for the proposed business. However, once the Villasport project is
constructed this may change and traffic along Ustick will likely increase in the hours between
8pm and midnight due to their approved operating hours as noted.

ACHD is the leading agency on access points for the City of Meridian and because peak traffic
times should not be drastically affected by the proposed use on any access point, ACHD did not
require a Traffic Impact Study for this application. Even with the assumed capacity of 1,000
persons in the initial submittal this was not required and restricting the capacity to 500 persons
should help with the traffic concerns of this type of use. Further analysis regarding access should
be addressed to ACHD.

. Parking (UDC 11-3C):

Minimum off-street parking is required to be provided in accord with the specific use standards
listed in UDC 11-4-3-49 for a restaurant use at the ratio of one (1) space per 250 square feet of
gross floor area because the Applicant has noted the business will be serving food. If food was
not being served, the minimum code required parking ratio would be one (1) space per 500 square
feet of gross floor area. In order to meet UDC minimum requirements for the approximate suite
size of 7,000 square feet, a total of 28 parking spaces should be provided.

With the approved CZC and the additional spaces on the site specific site plan, 102 parking
spaces are proposed on-site and would likely be used because there is an existing cross-access
and cross-parking agreement in place for the site. Both the land owner and Applicant understand
the entire site will likely be used for parking for the proposed business. The approved plans do
not show any parking along the future northern commercial lots and the land owner has
guaranteed that those spaces will be built prior to this use commencing. Staff recommends a
condition of approval commensurate with these conversations and assurances. Staff finds this
condition and assurance incredibly important to the project because those additional spaces
could amount to the 125 total spaces previously mentioned—depending on how the parking is
configured on the north side of the site, there is physical room for approximately a maximum of
37 additional parking spaces at the required 9 feet of width and including four landscape
planters in line with code requirements. Again, this is a maximum but does show additional
parking spaces will be provided on site beyond what is currently being shown.

With 30 additional spaces, a total of 132 spaces would be provided throughout the entire site,
exceeding the UDC minimums by approximately 450%. However, not just this use can be
analyzed on site because only two other users are currently known and there is potential for
additional commercial buildings along the north side of the site. The two other uses currently
known are an Urgent Care Facility and Jamba Juice. Jamba Juice is intended to share the same
building as The Oasis and would be located in the 1,200 square foot suite to its east, requiring
five (5) spaces at a minimum. The urgent care facility will be closed by 5pm and requires only 7

Page 9

147



https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6818

Item 4.

Exhibit A

spaces per UDC; these hours of operation for the urgent care facility should not affect The Oasis
and are a preferred set of hours when adjacent to a use such as a nightclub and/or music venue
that has peak operating hours later in the evening and night.

As noted, other future uses on the undeveloped north half of the site are not currently known.
Preliminary discussions with the land owners have yielded assumptions that those future uses are
likely office uses with a potential for an additional drive-thru but nothing concrete is currently
known by Staff. With the potential of additional traffic and parking spaces being utilized during
the operating hours of The Oasis once future uses come online, Staff recommends the Applicant
and land owner obtain a cross-parking agreement with the adjacent properties to the south and
to the west to increase the amount of available parking for the proposed use. In addition, a
minimum of 125 total parking spaces shall be constructed within Eagle Commons to obtain a
parking to patron ratio of 1:4 in accord with previous approvals.

IF these conditions can be met, Staff finds the proposed uses of the property should minimize the
impact to the adjacent residential neighborhood.

Sidewalks (UDC 11-3A-17):

Minimum 5-foot wide sidewalks are required adjacent to all commercial buildings as outlined in
UDC 11-3A-17. The building containing the proposed use has been approved with approximate
8-foot wide sidewalks on the north and west side of the building. These areas of the site are where
patrons would congregate as the south and east side of the building contain a drive-thru. The
subject building is not directly adjacent to any public streets and was therefore not required to
directly connect to those sidewalks. However, the building will have easy access to proposed
sidewalks along the drive aisle to the west of the subject site which is being constructed by this
land owner because this site is being developed prior to the Villasport site.

Landscaping (UDC 11-3B):

A 5-foot wide landscape buffer is required adjacent to the drive-through along the southern
property line. This landscape strip has been reviewed and approved with the existing CZC and
complies with code requirements. Furthermore, as the commercial site to the south develops in
the future, additional landscaping will be provided to screen the building and any future use from
the residences to the southwest.

DECISION
A. Staff:

Staff recommends approval of the requested conditional use permit application per the conditions
of approval in Section VIII and the Findings in Section 1X of this staff report.

B. The Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission heard this item on March 18, 2021 and May 6,

2021. At the public hearing, the Commission moved to approve the subject Conditional Use
Permit request.

1. Summary of the Commission public hearing:

In favor: Kyle Scheffler; Terry Silsby; Zach Yates; Eric Sherman; Josiah Savino
In opposition: Please see meeting video here. Over 200 written entries and many
testified during the hearing on March 18, 2021 and May 6, 2021.

Commenting: Please see public record noted above.

Written testimony: Please see public comments folder here.

Staff presenting application: Joseph Dodson, Associate Planner

Other Staff commenting on application: Ted Baird, Deputy City Attorney; Bill Parsons,
Planning Supervisor; Joe Bongiorno, Deputy Fire Marshall;

[=alis

=P [|I= [

Page 10

148



https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6559
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6600
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=OPbijFMuvG4
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/Browse.aspx?id=221767&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

Item 4.

N>

o

(B

Exhibit A

Key issue(s) of public testimony:

Degradation of the morality of this area of the City by approving the project;

Nose and traffic issues with proposed use(s);

Increase of traffic during high capacity events at one of the busiest intersections in City;
Is there enough parking for max capacity events and where will the excess parking go
should the parking lot fill up;

Does the City, specifically this area, need an additional drinking establishment;

The positive outcomes and additional avenue for arts and entertainment by approving
the subject application;

Stating that business will allow certain entities use of the space for free is not a viable
business plan and appears to be a bait-and-switch tactic to get approved;

Does proposal meet Mixed-use Regional policy;

Increase of crime and drunk driving associated with “nightclubs;”

Max capacity events of proposed business should not impact peak traffic times as most
traffic is gone by 8pm;

The need for a venue like this within Meridian for local artists and musicians;

How can capacity change and business still be viable—is there something nefarious
going on with this application;

Capacity of residential roundabout south of project location that would likely be utilized
for patrons of proposed use when heading south to get to Eagle Road,;

Safety concerns of more traffic passing residential properties to the south/southwest;
Key issue(s) of discussion by Commission:

a. Basis of Staff’s capacity limitations and how is it enforceable if it is below building/fire
code capacity—CUP could be revoked should capacity limitation be repeatedly
violated;

What outdoor component is there, if any—none proposed other than a designated
smoking area west of the building on the largest area of sidewalk in response to
questions from the Commission;

How will the Applicant aim to enforce the capacity limitation:;

Why has the capacity limit continued to fall and how does it allow the business to
continue;

What are the safety protocols proposed for a use such as this—specifically to help

mitigate illegal activity, drunk driving, over-parking, etc.;

Ingress/Egress points when building is constructed versus when adjacent Villasport site

is built out;

g. Isthe proposed location an appropriate location when considering the public testimony
and proximity to residences;

h. Has a noise study been completed by the Applicant—Applicant states music within

venue will be quieter than the traffic noise of Eagle Road:;

What is the appropriate capacity to parking space ratio—Commission openly discussed

getting to a 3:1 ration instead of Staff’s 4:1 ratio and this was one of the reasons for

continuance;

Commission change(s) to Staff recommendation:

Limit capacity to 400 persons instead of 500;

Amplified music is focused away from the nearest homes;

When more permanent parking is available, Applicant may come back to P&Z to

reguest additional capacity.

=19 = [

=+ [|®

fe

il

==

B

(=

=

[=Ng

[

=

I = [l

Page 11

149




150

Exhibit A

Item 4.

EXHIBITS

VILI.

A. Overall Site Plan (dated: 1/13/2021)

(L4

ueld vary unped
2

NoILINYLSUDI

@

o4 10m

et mp 3 r‘ ‘

ATE0H A UEN 1899 G505

dnoiy juawdojarag yuomspem

J19v3 ANV HIILSN LY SNOWIINOD F19V3

dN0Ya =
anvigh 2
m_:m &

w-L

sepmn -

W

Fom T

o
g T

*piata] [EUAEN

Igs fiemyS ) peey i3 w

avd
JunLnd

aanind

avd
Junlnd

avd
3gnind

ue|d eary buryied-azo

St
Rt s
TR

Page 12




Item 4.

Exhibit A

B. Site Specific Site Plan (date: 2/26/2021) Approved under A-2021-0012

CZC-Site Plan e

Hommeml e =20

Page 13




152

Exhibit A

C. Landscape Plans (date: 01/13/2021 & 2/26/2021)

Item 4.

E —_—— ®-1 TR

ue|d adeaspue]-9zg

g odeospue

£8

ERS m
8 &
=S

3 E
°g o]
& 3
g g

xue ez m A
simieL ooy bt
[ rE T

W
HILLD b VI SOMEMS KA LT 0040 ) AL

003D YD TIIIA k34

suawannhoy adeaspue]

tinosy Juawdojanag yuomspem

J19Y3 ANV HILLSN 1Y SNOWINGD T19YT

avd
ELTTTES

0
sV EHLE 4 530045 TUL O S 033NN TELL
" 5351 041 LUSLE 10 N0 AW, L5

QT
ATWNE LS IS SIS I LT SHARIY 11

ORI | e SHTSEUEY

Y WL 5 10

aPvIN L5
AR YT 4D 153 T QM ST WIS R

isuopeNafe) adeaspue]

D M

o 019
30 "0 W 3 257 SSTHOOY

LY 3 S ST LWLV

‘31053 2w
02 218 C N TN D 430802 00N

frere ]

T TS OV L0 LG40 TY N 00

uonewiogu) Jaelolg

I

dnoys

ST

Page 14




Item 4.

A

#N CZC-Landscape Plan

Exhibit A

PROPOSED
BUILDING

153

Herizonal Scde

=2

Page 15




Item 4.

s

D. Conceptual Floor Plan

ore

e

Exhibit A

154

s

MEZZ.
> ] P P . \EX\T ONLY
cHOR
e T
Lavotcr H <=
B e : <
E R TTonte
“ SOUND CABINET " x MEZZANINE MEZZANINE HDR.
" AROVE ' 23295F OUTLINE .
- il ] DASHED g
' ! A (HEAVY)
i ! |
T O L OLGHTIS) + SOUND!
'L IRIGGING | ORIGGNG | ILIGHTING
P ABOVE | ABOVE ) | BOARD
L 1 s | oo
Pl sme | 3 | Prle==
T L 20%258 ' : : T2 1
JAMBA JUICE L | : : | OASIS RESTAURANT
1,205 8F . | ] i AND EVENT BAR 1
. ' ] 7018 5F 1
8 : ; |
L | | —_
L 3 o H
| ™~ |
— |
1
1
l
|
1
|
|
|
______ A
FUTURE MEZZ.
STOREFRONT DOOR EXIT SHARED
LOCATION
o big 4 220 ar w0 pa
1484 7

Page 16




155

Exhibit A

E. Approved Building Elevations (date: 2/05/2021)

Item 4.

0L LA B | § i@ = <IOE, m -

et B LS stz . = = 2 m et e W 7
a'NIONEN EC = = a1 'ianEn EZZ

el Ll JI0 YAV / SISYO - HLEOMST¥A — i 1REE | Feslison ulisap 30 YERYT/ SISYO - HLEOMSTYA wmweli alREE

Page 17




Item 4.

VIII.

Exhibit A

CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS
A. PLANNING DIVISION

1.

The Applicant and/or assigns has the ongoing obligation to comply with the existing
Development Agreement (Inst. #2019-121599) and all current City of Meridian ordinances
and previous conditions of approval associated with this site: H-2019-0082, H-2020-0104, A-
2019-0376, A-2021-0010, and A-2021-0012.

The Applicant shall have an ongoing obligation to comply with the specific use standards for
a Drinking Establishment (UDC 11-4-3-10) and Indoor Recreation Facility (UDC 11-4-3-2).

The Conditional Use Permit is approved with the following conditions:

a. The proposed business shall have operating hours as set forth: Sunday through Thursday,
4:00PM to 12:00AM and; Friday and Saturday, 4:00PM to 1:00AM.

b. The maximum number of patrons and employees allowed at any one time shall not
exceed fivefour-hundred (5400) persons.

c. A minimum of 125 parking spaces shall be provided on the overall Eagle Commons site
prior to commencement of the proposed uses.

e. Prior to obtaining Certificate of Occupancy for the building, the drive aisle connection
from Ustick Road to N. Cajun Lane shall be constructed.

f.  When more permanent parking spaces are available (i.e. via cross parking agreements),
the Applicant may apply for a Conditional Use Permit Modification to request an
increase the allowable capacity.

g. The internal speakers and any amplified equipment within the venue shall project away
from the nearest residences.

To establish the new uses, the Applicant shall apply for a Certificate of Zoning Compliance-
Change of Use prior to commencing the proposed uses—with this submittal the Applicant
shall provide the cross-parking plan with adjacent sites as well as their plan to incentivize
patrons to use ride-sharing services to get to the site during events.

The Applicant and land owner shall work with adjacent land owners to construct a driveway
connection to the west commensurate with the Villasport approvals and site layout to have
more direct access to N. Centrepoint Way.

Future development shall be consistent with the minimum dimensional standards listed in
UDC Table 11-2B-3 for the C-G zoning district.

The Applicant shall comply with all previous ACHD conditions of approval.

The conditional use approval shall become null and void unless otherwise approved by the
City if the applicant fails to 1) commence the use, satisfy the requirements, acquire building
permits and commence construction within two years as set forth in UDC 11-5B-6F.1; or 2)
obtain approval of a time extension as set forth in UDC 11-5B-6F .4.

156

Page 18




Item 4.

Exhibit A

B. PoLICE DEPARTMENT (MPD)
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223212&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity

C. NAMPA MERIDIAN IRRIGATION DISTRICT (NMID)
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223054&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity

D. ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT (ACHD)
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223661&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity

E. DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (DEQ)
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=222985&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity

FINDINGS
A. Conditional Use Permit Findings (UDC 11-5B-6E):

The commission shall base its determination on the conditional use permit request upon the
following:

1.

2.

3.

4.

That the site is large enough to accommodate the proposed use and meet all the
dimensional and development regulations in the district in which the use is located.

If all conditions of approval are met, Commission finds the submitted site plan shows
compliance with all dimensional and development regulations in the C-G zoning district in
which it resides and compliance with the required specific use standards (UDC 11-4-3-2 &
11-4-3-10)

That the proposed use will be harmonious with the Meridian comprehensive plan and in
accord with the requirements of this title.

Commission finds the proposed uses are, with Commission and Staff’s conditions of
approval, is harmonious with the comprehensive plan designation of Mixed-Use Regional
and the requirements of this title.

That the design, construction, operation and maintenance will be compatible with other
uses in the general neighborhood and with the existing or intended character of the
general vicinity and that such use will not adversely change the essential character of
the same area.

Despite the proposed use being different than the residential uses nearby to the southwest,
Commission finds the design, construction, and proposed operation and maintenance will be
compatible with other uses in the general vicinity and should not adversely change the
essential character of the same area, so long as the Applicant complies with the conditions of
approval and maintains all required landscape buffers.

That the proposed use, if it complies with all conditions of the approval imposed, will not
adversely affect other property in the vicinity.

157

Page 19



https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223212&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223212&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223054&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223054&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223661&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=223661&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=222985&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=222985&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH5AD_ARTBSPPR_11-5B-6COUS

Item 4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

Exhibit A

Commission finds the proposed use, if it complies with all conditions of approval imposed,
will not adversely affect other property in the vicinity.

That the proposed use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and
services such as highways, streets, schools, parks, police and fire protection, drainage
structures, refuse disposal, water, and sewer.

Commission finds the proposed use will be served adequately by essential public facilities
and services because all services are readily available.

That the proposed use will not create excessive additional costs for public facilities and
services and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community.

All public facilities and services are readily available for the subject site so Commission finds
that the proposed use will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community or
create excessive additional costs for public facilities and services.

That the proposed use will not involve activities or processes, materials, equipment and
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property or the general
welfare by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors.
Although traffic is sure to increase in the vicinity with the addition of the proposed business,
all major roadways adjacent to the site are already at their full width and the peak operating
hours should be later than peak traffic hours. In addition, if the Applicant complies with all
conditions of approval, Commission finds the proposed use will not be detrimental to any
persons, property, or the general welfare.

That the proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural,
scenic or historic feature considered to be of major importance. (Ord. 05-1170, 8-30-
2005, eff. 9-15-2005).

Commission is unaware of any natural, scenic, or historic features within the development
area, therefore, Staff finds the proposed use should not result in damage of any such features.

Page 20

158




Cﬂ/ﬁ%«-«

AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law for The Vault (H-2021-0017) by Joshua
Evarts, Located at 140 E. Idaho Ave.




Item 5.

CITY OF MERIDIAN d/ﬁ IDIAN~

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

AND
DECISION & ORDER

In the Matter of the Request for Conditional Use Permit for The Vault, Located at 140 E. Idaho
Ave in the O-T Zoning District, by Kent Brown.

Case No(s). H-2021-0017

For the Planning & Zoning Commission Hearing Date of: May 6, 2021 (Findings on May 20, 2021)

A. Findings of Fact

1.

Hearing Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021, incorporated by
reference)

Process Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021, incorporated by
reference)

Application and Property Facts (see attached Staff Report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021,
incorporated by reference)

Required Findings per the Unified Development Code (see attached Staff Report for the hearing
date of May 6, 2021, incorporated by reference)

B. Conclusions of Law

1.

The City of Meridian shall exercise the powers conferred upon it by the “Local Land Use
Planning Act of 1975,” codified at Chapter 65, Title 67, Idaho Code (1.C. §67-6503).

The Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission takes judicial notice of its Unified Development
Code codified at Title 11 Meridian City Code, and all current zoning maps thereof. The City of

Meridian has, by ordinance, established the Impact Area and the Amended Comprehensive Plan
of the City of Meridian, which was adopted April 19, 2011, Resolution No. 11-784 and Maps.

The conditions shall be reviewable by the City Council pursuant to Meridian City Code § 11-5A.

Due consideration has been given to the comment(s) received from the governmental
subdivisions providing services in the City of Meridian planning jurisdiction.

It is found public facilities and services required by the proposed development will not impose
expense upon the public if the attached conditions of approval are imposed.

That the City has granted an order of approval in accordance with this decision, which shall be
signed by the Chairman of the Commission and City Clerk and then a copy served by the Clerk
upon the applicant, the Planning Department, the Public Works Department and any affected
party requesting notice.

CITY OF MERIDIAN FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER
CASE NO(S). [H-2021-0017#] Page 1

160




Item 5.

7. That this approval is subject to the conditions of approval in the attached staff report for the
hearing date of May 6, 2021, incorporated by reference. The conditions are concluded to be
reasonable and the applicant shall meet such requirements as a condition of approval of the
application.

C. Decision and Order

Pursuant to the Planning & Zoning Commission’s authority as provided in Meridian City Code § 11-
5A and based upon the above and foregoing Findings of Fact which are herein adopted, it is hereby
ordered that:

1. The applicant’s request for Conditional Use Permit is hereby approved in accord with the
conditions of approval in the staff report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021, attached as Exhibit
A.

D. Notice of Applicable Time Limits
Notice of Two (2) Year Conditional Use Permit Duration

Please take notice that the conditional use permit, when granted, shall be valid for a maximum
period of two (2) years unless otherwise approved by the City in accord with UDC 11-5B-6F.1.
During this time, the applicant shall commence the use as permitted in accord with the
conditions of approval, satisfy the requirements set forth in the conditions of approval, and
acquire building permits and commence construction of permanent footings or structures on or
in the ground. For conditional use permits that also require platting, the final plat must be
signed by the City Engineer within this two (2) year period in accord with UDC 11-5B-6F.2.

Upon written request and filed by the applicant prior to the termination of the period in accord
with 11-5B-6.F.1, the Director may authorize a single extension of the time to commence the
use not to exceed one (1) two (2) year period. Additional time extensions up to two (2) years as
determined and approved by the Commission may be granted. With all extensions, the Director
or Commission may require the conditional use comply with the current provisions of Meridian
City Code Title 11.

E.  Notice of Final Action and Right to Regulatory Takings Analysis

1. Please take notice that this is a final action of the governing body of the City of Meridian.
When applicable and pursuant to Idaho Code § 67-6521, any affected person being a person
who has an interest in real property which may be adversely affected by the final action of the
governing board may within twenty-eight (28) days after the date of this decision and order
seek a judicial review as provided by Chapter 52, Title 67, Idaho Code.

F.  Attached: Staff report for the hearing date of May 6, 2021

CITY OF MERIDIAN FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER
CASE NO(S). [H-2021-0017#] Page 2

161




Item 5.

By action of the Planning & Zoning Commission at its regular meeting held on the day of

, [year].
COMMISSIONER RHONDA MCCARVEL, CHAIRMAN VOTED
COMMISSIONER ANDREW SEAL, VICE CHAIRMAN VOTED
COMMISSIONER LISA HOLLAND VOTED
COMMISSIONER STEVEN YEARSLEY VOTED
COMMISSIONER WILLIAM CASSINELLI VOTED
COMMISSIONER NICK GROVE VOTED
COMMISSIONER MARIA LORCHER VOTED

Rhonda McCarvel, Chairman

Attest:

Chris Johnson, City Clerk

Copy served upon the Applicant, the Planning and Development Services divisions of the Community
Development Department, the Public Works Department and the City Attorney.

By: Dated:
City Clerk’s Office

CITY OF MERIDIAN FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND DECISION & ORDER
CASE NO(S). [H-2021-0017#] Page 3

162




Item 5.

STAFF REPORT
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

163

HEARING  5/6/2021

DATE:
TO: Planning & Zoning Commission
FROM: Alan Tiefenbach, Associate Planner

208-489-0573

SUBJECT: H-2021-0017
The Vault CUP

LOCATION: 140 E. Idaho Ave

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The Applicant has submitted an application for a conditional use permit to allow a drinking
establishment in an existing building in the O-T zone district. The present business is a cigar bar
(retail establishment) that recently begun serving ancillary beer and wine. The applicant proposes to
expand the business to allow dispensing of all types of liquor. As this qualifies as a lounge, nightclub,
or tavern, UDC 11-2D-2 only allows the use through conditional use permit.

Il. SUMMARY OF REPORT

A. Project Summary

Description Details Page
Acreage 2,170 sq. ft. +/-

Future Land Use Designation Old Town

Existing Land Use(s) Cigar bar with ancillary beer and wine.

Proposed Land Use(s) Drinking Establishment

Lots (# and type; bldg./common) 1 lot

Neighborhood meeting date; # of March 18, 2021 — no citizens in attendance
attendees:

History (previous approvals) CZC-11-023, DES 15-087, A-2017- 0216, CZC, DES A-2021-
0048

Page 1




Item 5.

164

Description Details Page
I
B. Community Metrics
Description Details Page

Ada County Highway District

Traffic impact study not required. No comments

Access (Arterial/Collectors/State
Hwy/Local)(Existing and Proposed)
Existing Road Network

Primary access occurs from E. Idaho Ave, a local street.

Yes

Fire Service

No comments submitted

Police Service

No comments submitted

Wastewater

Distance to Sewer
Services

Sewer Shed

Estimated Project Sewer
ERU’s

N/A

Five Mile Trunkshed
See application

e WRRF Declining Balance | 14.09
e Project Consistent with Yes
WW Master Plan/Facility
Plan
e Comments ¢ No additional comments
Water
e No comment

Page 2




Item 5.

C. Project Area Maps
Future Land Use Map Aerial Map

Zoning Map Planned Development Map

APPLICANT INFORMATION

A. Owner

Joshua Evarts, Novemberwhisky Properties LLC — 77 E. Idaho Ave, Ste 300, Meridian, ID,
83642

Applicant
Joshua Evarts - 303 E. State Ave, Meridian, ID 83642

165

Page 3




Item 5.

(AVA

V.

NOTICING

Planning & Zoning
Posting Date

City Council
Posting Date

Newspaper Notification

Radius notification mailed to
properties within 300 feet

Site Posting Date
NextDoor posting

STAFF ANALYSIS

4/16/2021

4/13/2021

4/22/2021
4/13/2021

A. Future Land Use Map Designation (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan)

166

Old Town -This designation includes the historic downtown and the true community center.
Sample uses include offices, retail and lodging, theatres, restaurants, and service retail for
surrounding residents and visitors. A variety of residential uses are also envisioned and could
include reuse of existing buildings, new construction of multi-family residential over ground floor
retail or office uses.

The business is proposed to be located within an existing historic building which was constructed
in 1915 and significantly rehabilitated and remodeled by the present applicant in 2015 - 2016.
The current establishment serves as a neighborhood cigar bar with ancillary beer and wine sales
(retail establishment), and is proposed to be expanded to allow all types of liquor, although the
applicant states the primary use is still a cigar bar. The business fronts directly onto E. Idaho Ave
and a certificate of zoning compliance (CZC) and design review (DES) were recently approved to
allow a 600 sqg. ft. covered outdoor patio in the alley help activate the downtown area in and
around Generations Plaza. This type of neighborhood gathering place is exactly the type of
locally-owned and serving businesses intended by the Comprehensive Plan.

. Comprehensive Plan Policies (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan):

Goals, Objectives, & Action Items: Staff finds the following Comprehensive Plan policies to be
applicable to this application and apply to the proposed use of this property (staff analysis in
italics):

e Support redevelopment and infill opportunities Downtown. (2.09.01)

The business is located within an existing building in the historic downtown core. This
would be considered redevelopment (more specifically, adaptive reuse of an existing
structure). The applicant made significant interior and facade improvements in 2015-
2016 and is currently constructing an outside patio to activate the area.

e Encourage and support mixed-use areas that provide the benefits of being able to live,
shop, dine, play, and work in close proximity, thereby reducing vehicle trips, and
enhancing overall livability and sustainability. (3.06.02B).

As mentioned, the business is located within the historic downtown core and zoned Old
Town (O-T). Within this area, a mix of land uses is encouraged which creates a vibrant
downtown, enhances sense of place, and provides gathering places for locals and

Page 4



https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan
https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan

Item 5.

visitors. This existing cigar bar, which is now proposing to expand their uses to allow full
service serving of alcohol, is already serving as a community gathering place and this
proposal would enhance this use.

e Support a compatible mix of land uses Downtown that activate the area during day and
night. (2.09.02F)

The existing cigar bar and proposed conditional use to allow additional alcohol
consumption is the type of downtown use which activates an area during day and night.

e Minimize noise, lighting, and odor disturbances from commercial developments to
residential dwellings by enforcing city code.

The business and the outdoor patio will seat a total capacity of 49 people. Business hours
will be from 12PM - 10PM Mon-Thurs, 12PM to 11PM on Friday, and 10AM to 11PM
on Saturday. The purpose of the O-T district is to accommodate and encourage further
intensification of the historical city center in accord with the Meridian Comprehensive
Plan. As this business is within the old town mixed use district, the Comprehensive Plan
anticipates activating the area day and night.

C. Existing Structures/Site Improvements:

The existing and proposed business is located within a 1,500 sq. ft. space in an existing historic
building; this conditional use is to allow expansion of allowed uses.

. Proposed Use Analysis:

The proposed use is proposed to still be primarily a cigar bar, but with the use expanded to allow
serving of all types of liquor (drinking establishment). This use is allowed by conditional use
permit in the O-T zone district subject to specific use standards. As this conditional use is to
allow the establishment of a new use, a Certificate of Zoning Compliance for a Change in Use
will be required per UDC 11-5B-1.

Specific Use Standards (UDC 11-4-3):

UDC 11-4-3-10 allows drinking establishments with the limitations that it shall not be within 300
feet of a church or any other place of worship or any public or private education institution. For
properties abutting a residential district, no outside activity or event shall be allowed on the site,
except in accord with chapter 3, article E, "temporary use requirements.”

The nearest place of worship or educational facility is the United Methodist Church, which is
approximately 250 feet away. The closest residence is approximately 100 feet to the north, on the
opposite side of the alley as the proposed establishment. However, the church and the residence
are in the Old Town zoning district, which is not a residential district, and a mix of uses including
restaurants and drinking establishments are appropriate and encouraged.

NOTE: If the use is allowed to commence on the property, the applicant is required to obtain a
liquor license with the State, County and City prior to serving alcohol.

Dimensional Standards (UDC 11-2): (double read this)

In the O-T zone district, there is not a setback requirement, there is a minimum building height of
two stories, and there are requirements for streetscape improvements. The building in which this
establishment is already located is within an existing one-story historic building. Other than an
outdoor patio, no other extensions or additions are proposed as part of this business.

167

Page 5



https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?chapter_id=6513#1230415_id=6513
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?chapter_id=6499#183704

Item 5.

VI.

B.

Access (UDC 11-3A-3, 11-3H-4):

Access to this business is provided from NE 2™ St and E. Idaho Ave. This proposal was referred
to ACHD, who had no comments.

Parking (UDC 11-3C):

UDC 11-3C-6B-3 requires one parking space for every one thousand square feet of gross floor
area in all traditional neighborhood districts. Lawfully existing structures in traditional
neighborhood districts shall not be required to comply with the requirements of this section
except when a proposed addition increases the number of off-street parking spaces normally
required, then the applicant shall provide additional parking.

The business is within an existing building, and no building additions have occurred (covered
outdoor seating is not considered an addition). This business is within the historic downtown
core, where adaptive reuse of historic structures is encouraged and on-street parking in the area is
plentiful. There are at least 17 existing on-street parking spaces in front of the business within
100 feet.

Sidewalks (UDC 11-3A-17)

Detached sidewalks and streetscape improvements already exist along E. 2™ St and E. Idaho Ave.

Parkways

No parkways are proposed with this project.

Landscaping (UDC 11-3B):

Landscaping and streetscape improvements already exist along E. 2 St and E. ldaho Ave.

Fencing (UDC 11-3A-6, 11-3A-7):

An outdoor eating area has been approved for this project through a certificate of zoning
compliance with design review. This includes a 3’-6” fence bordering the outdoor area. No other
fencing is existing or proposed.

Utilities

All utilities for the proposed development are already in place. No additional services are needed.

. Building Elevations

No additional modifications to the existing building facade have been proposed.

DECISION
Staff:

Staff recommends approval of the proposed conditional use permit with the conditions in Section
V11 per the Findings in Section VIII.

The Meridian Planning & Zoning Commission heard this item on May 6, 2021. At the public
hearing, the Commission moved to approve the subject conditional use permit request.

1. Summary of the Commission public hearing:

a. Infavor: Joshua Evarts

168

Page 6



https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=20923&keywords=#1165290
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=734279#734279
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=20924&keywords=#20924
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&chapter_id=6506&keywords=#6506
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165293#1165293
https://www.sterlingcodifiers.com/codebook/getBookData.php?id=&section_id=1165294#1165294

Item 5.

N

|wo

|

b. In opposition: None

c. Commenting: Joshua Evarts

d.  Written testimony: None

e. Staff presenting application: Alan Tiefenbach
f.  Other Staff commenting on application: None

Key issue(s) of public testimony:

a. None

Key issue(s) of discussion by Commission:

a. None

Commission change(s) to Staff recommendation:

a. None

169

Page 7




Item 5.

VII. EXHIBITS
A. Approved Site Plan (CZC, DES A-2021-0048, March 26, 2021)

B. Approved Elevations of Outdoor Sitting Area (CZC, DES A-2021-0048, March 26, 2021)

170

Page 8




Item 5.

C. Site Photos (date: 4/14/2021)

Existing business as viewed from E. Idaho Ave

171

Rear of site as viewed from N. 2" St showing area of outdoor patio

Page 9




Item 5.

VIIl. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS

A. PLANNING DIVISION

1. The Applicant shall have a maximum of two (2) years to commence the use as permitted in
accord with the conditions of approval. If the use has not begun within two (2) years of approval,
a new conditional use permit must be obtained prior to operation or a time extension must be
requested in accord with UDC 11-5B-6F.

2. Applicant shall comply with all previous conditions associated with development of this site
including CZC-11-023, DES 15-087, A-2017- 0216, and CZC, DES A-2021-0048.

3. The Applicant shall have an ongoing obligation to comply with the specific use standards for a
Drinking Establishment (UDC 11-4-3-10).

4. The business shall comply with all Idaho state, local and City code regulations regarding the sale,
manufacturing, or distribution of alcoholic beverages.

5. Outdoor activity associated with the business shall be restricted to the 600 sq. ft. outdoor patio.

6. Future development shall be consistent with the minimum dimensional standards listed in UDC
Table 11-2D for the O-T zoning district.

7. The Applicant shall comply with the outdoor service and equipment area standards as set forth in
UDC 11-3A-12.

8. The Applicant shall comply with the outdoor lighting provisions as set forth in UDC 11-3A-11.

9. The applicant shall complete a certificate of zoning compliance for a change in use as required
per UDC 11-5B-1.

C. MERIDIAN POLICE DEPARTMENT
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226106&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity
IX. FINDINGS

A. Conditional Use Permit

The Commission shall base its determination on the conditional use permit request upon the

following:

1. That the site is large enough to accommodate the proposed use and meet all the dimensional and

development regulations in the district in which the use is located.

The building is an existing building in the O-T zoning district. All parking, sidewalks and
landscaping is already installed. The outdoor patio meets all setback requirements and does not
encroach into any public right of way.

That the proposed use will be harmonious with the Meridian Comprehensive Plan and in accord
with the requirements of this title.

The Comprehensive Plan identifies this area as Old Town. This designation includes the historic
downtown and the true community center. Allowed uses include offices, retail and lodging,
theatres, restaurants, and service retail for surrounding residents and visitors. The existing cigar
bar and expansion to allow serving of alcohol will encourage a neighborhood “hang out™ for
locals and guests. This type of use is what has been envisioned for this area by the
Comprehensive Plan.

172

Page 10



https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226106&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226106&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

Item 5.

That the design, construction, operation and maintenance will be compatible with other uses in
the general neighborhood and with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and
that such use will not adversely change the essential character of the same area.

As mentioned, the existing and expanded use is within an existing historic building, and is within
the Old Town district in which retail, restaurants and drinking establishments enhance the
essential character of the area.

That the proposed use, if it complies with all conditions of the approval imposed, will not
adversely affect other property in the vicinity.

The proposed use is within the old town area where the type of use proposed is anticipated. It will
not adversely affect other properties in the vicinity any more than any of the other surrounding
restaurants, coffeeshops and drinking establishments.

That the proposed use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services such as
highways, streets, schools, parks, police and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal,
water, and sewer.

The proposed use will be served adequately by all public facilities and services.

That the proposed use will not create excessive additional costs for public facilities and services
and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community.

The Commission finds the proposed use should not create any additional costs for public
facilities and services and will be beneficial to the economic welfare of the community.

That the proposed use will not involve activities or processes, materials, equipment and
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare by
reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors.

This proposed cigar bar and drinking establishment is using existing tenant space within a
historic building, and the Commission is recommending outdoor activities be restricted to the 600
sg. ft. outdoor patio. The surrounding area already consists of restaurants, retail, and drinking
establishments as anticipated in the old town. The use is appropriate in this location.

That the proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic or
historic feature considered to be of major importance. (Ord. 05-1170, 8-30-2005, eff. 9-15-2005)

The proposed use will occur in a historic building in a historic district. The applicant has already
made significant upgrades to the building, enhancing the area. The proposed use will contribute
to a vibrant downtown space.

173

Page 11




Of/ﬂz IDIAN~

AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Public Hearing for Prevail North Subdivision (H-2021-0021) by Schultz

Development, LLC, Located at 5150 S. Meridian Rd.
A. Request: Annexation and Zoning of 5.63 acres of land with an R-8 zoning district.

B. Request: A Preliminary Plat consisting of 19 single-family residential lots and 4 common lots
on 5.25 acres of land.




Item 6.

175

Q% IDIAN~

PUBLIC HEARING INFORMATION

Staff Contact:Joseph Dodson Meeting Date:  May 20, 2021
Public Hearing for Prevail North Subdivision (H-2021-0021) by Schultz
Development, LLC, Located at 5150 S. Meridian Rd.
A. Request: Annexation and Zoning of 5.63 acres of land with an R-8 zoning
district.
B. Request: A Preliminary Plat consisting of 19 single-family residential lots and
4 common lots on 5.25 acres of land.

Topic:

Information Resources:

Click Here for Application Materials

Click Here to Sign Up to Testify at the Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing



http://bit.ly/H-2021-0021
https://apps.meridiancity.org/SIGNINPZ/

Item 6.

STAFF REPORT

C)@/ﬂa IDIAN

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

HEARING  5/20/2021 Legend
DATE:
Z.Project Location
TO: Planning & Zoning Commission
FROM: Joe Dodson, Associate Planner
208-884-5533
SUBJECT:  H-2021-0021

Prevail North Subdivision

LOCATION: The site is located at 5150 S. Meridian
Road, on the east side of Meridian Road
and approximately ¥ mile south of E.
Amity Road, in the NW % of the NW %
of Section 31, Township 3N., Range 1E.

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION

Annexation & Zoning of 5.63 acres of land with an R-8 zoning district and a preliminary plat
consisting of 18 single-family residential lots and 3 common lots on 5.25 acres of land.

Il. SUMMARY OF REPORT

A. Project Summary

Description

Details

Page

Acreage

AZ —5.63; Plat — 5.25 acres

Future Land Use Designation

Medium Density Residential (3-8 du/ac)

Existing Land Use(s)

Vacant land

Proposed Land Use(s)

Detached Single-family Residential

Lots (# and type; bldg./common)

18 residential building lots

Phasing Plan (# of phases)

Proposed as one phase (essentially the third phase of the
Prevail Subdivision)

Number of Residential Units

18 single-family units

Density

Gross — 3.42 du/ac

Open Space (acres, total
[%]/buffer/qualified)

0.83 acres (36,185 square feet), or 15.82% total open
space; 0.75 acres, or 14.3% qualified open space

Amenity

Multi-use Pathway

Physical Features (waterways,
hazards, flood plain, hillside)

Carlson Lateral crosses north property boundary twice.
Applicant is proposing to reroute and pipe this lateral. See
further analysis in Section V.N.

Neighborhood meeting date; # of
attendees:

March 30, 2021 — No attendees

History (previous approvals)

N/A

Page 1

176




Item 6.

B. Community Metrics

177

Description Details Page
Ada County Highway
District

e  Staff report (yes/no) | Yes

e Requires ACHD No

Commission Action
(yes/no)

Access
(Arterial/Collectors/State
Hwy/Local) (Existing and
Proposed)

Stub
Street/Interconnectivity/Cross
Access

Existing Road Network
Existing Arterial Sidewalks /
Buffers

Proposed Road
Improvements

Distance to nearest City Park

Access is proposed via extension of an existing local street from Prevail No.
2 to the south.

Through Prevail No. 2 and a segment of collector street (Quartz Creek
Street), access is then to S. Meridian Road/SH 69.

Applicant is proposing internal local streets to end in two cul-de-sacs, one to
the east and one to the west. The western cul-de-sac would extend right-of-
way to the northern property line for possible future extension through a city
owned property. The eastern cul-de-sac is shown with a stub to the east
property line for future connectivity to the east.

No

No. Applicant will be required to construct the buffer, noise abatement, and
detached multi-use pathway segment along Meridian Road/SH 69.

No road improvements are required with this application.

CIP/Five Year Work Plan for nearby roads:

+ Amity Road is listed in the CIP to be widened to 5-lanes from Meridian Road (SH-69) to Locust
Grove Road between 2036 and 2040.

» Lake Hazel Road is listed in the CIP to 5-lanes from Meridian Road (SH-69) to Locust Grove
Road between 2036 and 2040.

« The intersection of Amity Road and Meridian Road (SH-69) is listed in the CIP to be widened
to 6-lanes on the north leg, 6-lanes on the south, 7-lanes east, and 7-lanes on the west leg,
and signalized between 2031 and 2035.

* The intersection of Lake Hazel Road and Meridian Road (SH-69) is listed in the CIP to be
widened to 6-lanes on the north leg, 6-lanes on the south, 7-lanes on the east, and 7-lanes
on the west leg and signalized between 2036 and 2040.

1.8 miles to Discovery Park

(+ size)
Fire Service
e Distance to Fire 3.1 miles from Fire Station #6 (2.1 miles from proposed new fire station in
Station South Meridian; response time would be approximately 3 minutes from

e  Fire Response Time

e Resource Reliability
e Risk Identification
e  Accessibility

proposed station).

A portion of the project lies within the Meridian Fire response time goal of 5

minutes.

Fire Station #6 reliability is 87% (above the goal of 80%)

Risk Factor 2 — Residential with hazards (open waterway)

o Proposed project meets all required road widths, and turnaround
dimensions.

e Emergency access in Prevail No. 2 to the south is meant to be
temporary; additional access to the east or north is preferred by the
Meridian Fire Department.

Police Service

e Concerns

None/no comments

Wastewater

Page 2




Item 6.

Description

Details

Page

178

Distance to Sewer
Services

N/A

e  Sewer Shed South Black Cat Trunkshed
e Estimated Project See application
Sewer ERU’s
o  WRREF Declining 14.09
Balance
e Project Consistent Yes
with WW Master
Plan/Facility Plan
e Impacts/Concerns e Flow is committed
Water

Distance to Services
Pressure Zone
Estimated Project
Water ERU’s
Water Quality
Concerns

Project Consistent
with Water Master
Plan
Impacts/Concerns

C. Project Area Maps

0!
5
See application

None

Yes

e Water main will need to be installed in S Keyport Ave to connect to the
existing water stub from Prevail Sub Phase 2

e The water main in S Scandia Ave that stubs to the City of Meridian
property will need to be discussed with Public Works.

Future Land Use Map Aerial Map

Legend

Project Location

hsity

- |
' B
B

o Legend
Projecf Location

MU-C

Medﬁgl Density
%’ﬁgﬁdenﬁal
2\ |

1

Low Density Residential

e BBy

Zoning Map Planned Development Map

L

Page 3




Item 6.

Legend
ZJEProjecf Location

APPLICANT INFORMATION

A. Applicant:

179

Legend

i City Linits

-

:Z‘Projecf Location

— Planned Parcels

Matt Schultz, Schultz Development, LLC — PO Box 1115, Meridian, ID 83680

B. Owner:

Carl Reiterman — 2697 S. Linder Road, Meridian, ID 83642

C. Representative:

Same as Applicant

NOTICING

Planning & Zoning
Posting Date

City Council
Posting Date

Newspaper Notification

Radius notification mailed to
properties within 500 feet

Site Posting
Nextdoor posting

V. STAFF ANALYSIS

4/30/2021
4/27/2021

5/7/2021
4/27/2021

A. Future Land Use Map Designation (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan)

Medium-Density Residential (MDR) — This designation allows for dwelling units at gross
densities of three to eight dwelling units per acre. Density bonuses may be considered with the
provision of additional public amenities such as a park, school, or land dedicated for public

services.

The subject site is an approximate five (5) acre parcel in between multiple parcels that are
already annexed into the City of Meridian. The site to the North is a city owned property reserved
for a future well site that currently only has access to Meridian Road. To the South is the 113-lot

Page 4



https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan

Item 6.

Prevail Subdivision (approved in 2019) zoned R-8 with a future access to Meridian Road via a
collector street, E. Quartz Creek Street, and a temporary emergency-only access to Meridian
Road. The Applicant on this application is the same as who received approvals for the Prevail
Subdivision to the south therefore making Prevail North a continuation of the already approved
Prevail Subdivision.

Commensurate with the future land use designation of MDR, the Applicant is proposing Prevail
North with a gross density of 3.42 units per acre; therefore, proposing a residential project at the
low end of the allowable density. Because this is an extension of the Prevail Subdivision to the
south, the Applicant is aligning the proposed lots of Prevail North with those to the south to
ensure compatibility of lot sizes. Furthermore, due to the constraints of the site being deep but
relatively narrow and having a waterway along the north boundary, the Applicant is only
proposing homes along the south boundary of the site.

Staff finds the proposed project to be generally consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. Specific
Comprehensive Plan policies are discussed and analyzed below.

The City may require a development agreement (DA) in conjunction with an annexation pursuant
to Idaho Code section 67-6511A. In order to ensure the site develops as proposed with this
application, Staff recommends a DA as a provision of annexation with the provisions included in
Section VIII.A1. The DA is required to be signed by the property owner(s)/developer and returned
to the City within 6 months of the Council granting the annexation for approval by City Council
and subsequent recordation. A final plat will not be accepted until the DA is executed and the AZ
ordinance is approved by City Council.

. Comprehensive Plan Policies (https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan):

The applicable Comprehensive Plan policies are cited below with Staff analysis in italics.

“Avoid the concentration of any one housing type or lot size in any geographical area; provide for
diverse housing types throughout the City” (2.01.01G). The proposed project offers a density and
site design that mirrors that to the south. Because of the relatively small lot size, strict adherence
to this policy is not feasible and not in the best interest of the City when considering the
constraint of the city owned property to the north. Staff finds the addition of 18 more lots
matching the already approved project to the south as merely an extension of that project.

“Establish and maintain levels of service for public facilities and services, including water, sewer,
police, transportation, schools, fire, and parks” (3.02.01G). All public utilities are available for
this project site due to the existing stubs abutting the site to the south within the right-of-way of
the local street, S. Keyport Avenue. This project also lies within the Fire Department response
time goal. However, the singular public road access is through the Prevail Subdivision to the
south, currently under development. Fire code only allows 30 homes off of one access and with
the two projects combined, there will be 135 homes off of this access. This is why, as seen on the
plat and in previous approvals, an emergency-only access is required to Meridian Road and is
located adjacent to the southern boundary of this plat. Despite meeting Fire Code, Meridian Fire
has concerns over the approved access points and recommends requiring stub streets to both the
north and east of this plat for future connectivity. West Ada School District has not made
comments on this application but an additional 18 homes are expected to generate approximately
14 school age children which can be easily absorbed into the school system, according to the
ratio of 0.8 kids per household.

Staff finds that the existing and planned development of the immediate area create conditions for
levels of service to and for this proposed project that meet code requirements.

180

Page 5



https://www.meridiancity.org/compplan

Item 6.

“Preserve, protect, and provide open space for recreation, conservation, and aesthetics”
(4.05.01F). The Applicant is proposing this project with .75 acres of qualified open space, or
14.3%. The area chosen for the open space currently contains an irrigation lateral that is to be
rerouted and placed on the shared property line between this property and the city owned
property to the north—the Applicant has discussed this with Public Works and received approval
to do this work.

Placing the open space in this location allows for a relatively long and large open space area on
one side of the new local street and preserves the area above the lateral for maintenance and for
adequate recreation.

“Promote area beautification and community identity through context sensitive building and site
design principles, appropriate signage, and attractive landscaping.” (5.01.02C). As discussed
above, the area of most notable open space is the large open space lot along the north property
boundary. This open space area is proposed with adequate open area, a detached sidewalk, and
appropriate landscaping to beautify the space while not being overwhelmed with trees that would
otherwise limit the open area uses of the space. In addition, the Applicant will be required to
continue the multi-use pathway and landscaping along Meridian Road adding to the area
beautification along a major roadway.

“Require pedestrian access in all new development to link subdivisions together and promote
neighborhood connectivity.” (2.02.01D). Proposed project is extending the attached sidewalks
from the south to allow easy access to the future pedestrian facilities and amenities within Prevail
Subdivision.

“Ensure that new development within existing residential neighborhoods is cohesive and
complementary in design and construction.” (2.02.02F). As discussed, the Applicant is proposing
lot sizes and lot lines that match those directly abutting the site to the south. This proposed
density and lot placement should provide a cohesive project with Prevail Subdivision to the south.

“Require new development to establish street connections to existing local roads and collectors as
well as to underdeveloped adjacent properties.” (6.01.02C). The Applicant is required to and is
proposing to extend the abutting local street, S. Keynote, into the site and then ““T” off the street
by heading east and west with new streets for access to the proposed homes. In order to meet this
policy as well as city development code, the Applicant is also proposing stub streets to the east
and to the north. Further discussion and analysis on this are below in Section F, Access. Staff
finds the Applicants proposed street connections comply with this policy.

Staff finds this development to be generally consistent with the Comprehensive Plan.

. Existing Structures/Site Improvements:

There are no existing structures on site beyond the existing irrigation lateral that bends south into
the site from the north and runs along nearly the entire north property boundary line.

. Proposed Use Analysis:

The proposed use is detached single-family residential with an average lot size of 6,677 square
feet and a minimum lot size of 5,362 square feet. This use is a permitted use in the requested R-8
zoning district per UDC Table 11-2A-2. Due to the relatively small size of the development (5
acres), the project is proposed to be constructed in one phase but will be phase 3 of the Prevail
Subdivision to the south.

The proposed use, lot sizes, and lot alignment should provide for a development that is cohesive
with the adjacent development to the south.

181

Page 6




Item 6.

E. Dimensional Standards (UDC 11-2):

The residential lots appear to meet all UDC dimensional standards per the submitted plat. In
addition, all subdivision developments are also required to comply with Subdivision Design and
Improvement Standards (UDC 11-6C-3). The proposed preliminary plat and submitted plans
appear to meet all UDC requirements.

Building Elevations (UDC 11-3A-19 | Architectural Standards Manual):

The Applicant submitted conceptual building elevations for the proposed detached single-family
homes. Note that detached single-family homes do not require Design Review approval therefore
Staff does not review these for compliance with any standards.

However, the submitted elevations depict majority two-story homes with two-car garages and
varying home styles noted as “Traditional,” “Craftsman,” and “Contemporary.” The elevations
depict differing field materials of lap siding and stone with varying roof profiles offering an
overall array of potential homes.

. Access (UDC 11-3A-3, 11-3H-4):

Access is proposed via extension of Keyport Avenue, a local street stubbed to the southern
boundary from the Prevail Subdivision. The submitted plans show Keyport extending into the site
and then heading both east and west as Liberator Street to end in permanent cul-de-sacs at both
ends of the site, in alignment with ACHD policy. The extension of all local streets is proposed as
33-foot wide street sections with the exception of a bulb-out along the north side of Liberator
Street at the terminus of Keyport Avenue. This bulb-out is intended to be a traffic calming
measure because the overall Liberator street, east-west, is greater than 750’ in length (Liberator is
proposed as approximately 908’ in length from the center of the western cul-de-sac to the east
property line). ACHD notes in their staff report that this type of traffic calming is acceptable but
has not given a definitive approval of the location proposed on the revised preliminary plat. The
Applicant will continue working with ACHD following any approvals received from the City and
will likely be finalized with the final plat submittal at a future date. Staff is not concerned with
the proposed location of the bulb-out and believes it will provide the desired traffic calming
effects.

Although, the length of the street from east to west is greater than 750’ in length, S. Keyport
intersects this street approximately half way to break up the block length. In addition, UDC
11-6C-3 notes that a dead-end street cannot be greater than 750’ in length without an
intersecting street. Because of S. Keyport intersecting Liberator, neither the west or east
cul-de-sac is greater than 500" therefore not requiring any Council Waiver. It is admittedly
an unusual road design but Staff considers it the most efficient design for livability and
access when considering the site constraints of a large irrigation facility along nearly the
entire northern boundary and topography throughout the site. Furthermore, there are no
homes fronting along the north side of the proposed local street which further mitigates any Staff
concern regarding its length on one side.

The Applicant is also proposing two stub streets to adjacent properties; one to the north boundary
out of the west cul-de-sac and one to the east boundary out of the east cul-de-sac. The original
plat proposed both of these stub streets in the east quarter of the site but following conversations
with Public Works the Applicant moved the stub street to the north to the west quarter of the site
due to future plans for the City well site and topography issues. In congruence with this premise,
the Applicant has also sited major topography issues with stubbing a street to the east boundary of
the site and has specifically noted there could be a ten (10) foot elevation difference between the
east stub street finish grade and the current grade of the Brighton owned property to the east.

Page 7

182



https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6061
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6569
https://meridiancity.org/designreview
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6390
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-7519

Item 6.

Furthermore, the Applicant has also provided a conceptual drawing from the land owner to the
east in order to show that a stub street to the east is not necessary—the submitted concept plan for
the adjacent property does not show a street abutting the east property boundary of the subject site
and instead appears to show an open space lot (see Exhibit VII.F). It should be noted that this
concept plan is an older concept plan and the adjacent land owners do not have a solid plan in
place for the area abutting the proposed plat.

Staff supports the overall road layout and stub street locations as proposed on the revised
preliminary plat. Though there is potential for topography to complicate the future road
extension to the east, Staff highly recommends maintaining the stub street to the east for added
future connectivity through the Brighton parcel to the east. This recommendation is based both in
code (UDC 11-3A-3) and from recommendations of the Meridian Fire Department for better
neighborhood connectivity and emergency response access as properties to the southeast develop
in the future.

. Parking (UDC 11-3C):

Off-street parking is required to be provided in accord with the standards listed in UDC Table 11-
3C-6 for single-family dwellings based on the number of bedrooms per unit. Staff will confirm
compliance with these standards at the time of building permit submittal for each residence. In
addition, the proposed 33-foot wide street section accommodates on-street parking where no
driveways exist and where there is no bulb-out. Furthermore, no on-street parking is allowed
within any part of either cul-de-sac at the end of the new local streets.

Sidewalks (UDC 11-3A-17):

5-foot wide attached sidewalks are proposed along the proposed streets except for that sidewalk
adjacent to the large open space lot where 5-foot detached sidewalks with an 8-foot landscaped
parkway are proposed instead. These sidewalks will be an extension of the pedestrian circulation
of Prevail Subdivision to the south. The proposed sidewalks and parkway meet UDC 11-3A-17
standards and ACHD standards.

In addition to the internal sidewalks, the Applicant is required to construct a segment of 10-foot
wide multi-use pathway along Meridian Road, per the Master Pathways Plan. The Applicant is
showing this required pathway segment within a landscaped common lot, per code requirements.

Development Along State Highways (UDC 11-3H):

The proposed project has frontage along Meridian Road/SH 69 which requires noise abatement
per UDC 11-3H-4. The Applicant is proposing to construct a 4-foot berm with a 6-foot wall on
top of it to total 10" above SH 69 centerline height, as required by code. This proposal matches
what was approved in Prevail Subdivision to the south. Due to this segment of the wall being less
than 300’ in length, code does not require modulation in the wall plane.

Other analysis regarding access standards of this code section are analyzed above in Section F.

. Landscaping (UDC 11-3B):

The required landscaping regulated by code within the proposed development are the following
areas: that area within the proposed parkways along the local street extension (UDC 11-3A-17
and UDC 11-3B); the common open space lot, and; the required landscape buffer to Meridian
Road. The submitted landscape plans show landscaping in these areas as proposed.

The proposed 8-foot wide parkway is approximately 740’ in length on the revised plat requiring
at least 21 trees (1 per every 35 linear feet). The submitted landscape plan does not show
compliance with this requirement because it is shown with less than 21 trees. In addition, the plat

183

Page 8



https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6818
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-6RENUOREPASP
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-6RENUOREPASP
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6559
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6600

Item 6.

has been revised since the original application submittal and the submitted landscape plans have
not been revised to match the new road layout. Regardless, the Applicant should revise the
landscape plans prior to the City Council hearing to ensure they match the revised preliminary
plat and show compliance with the landscaping requirements.

In addition, common open space is required to be landscaped with one (1) tree for every 8,000
square feet of open space. The large open space area is shown as 32,709 square feet in the
development table on the preliminary plat. However, Staff’s area analysis shows a figure closer
to 36,500 square feet. Based on Staff’s calculation, the minimum number of trees that are
required within the open space lot is five (5) trees. The submitted landscape plans show six (6)
trees proposed exceeding the minimum UDC requirements.

The landscape buffer along Meridian Road is required to be 35 wide and contain the required
multi-use pathway within it. The submitted landscape plans show compliance with UDC
requirements for the number of trees, tree spacing/grouping, and additional vegetative ground
cover. However, the Applicant is only showing a 25’ wide common lot on the preliminary plat for
the required street buffer. Therefore, the Applicant should correct both the plat and the landscape
plans to depict the required 35’ wide buffer.

The Applicant is also proposing a micro-pathway from the western cul-de-sac to the multi-use
pathway and does not appear to have the correct landscaping. UDC 11-3B-12 requires that trees
be placed on both sides of the pathway; the Applicant has only proposed trees on the south side of
the pathway. Staff is not aware of any easements encumbering the north side of the pathway and
the landscape strip appears to be the minimum 5-foot width. Therefore, the Applicant should
move one of the trees to the other side of the micro-path; Staff recommends the center tree of the
three currently shown on the south side of this pathway.

Although there is no code requirement for this change, Staff also recommends removing the shrub
bed located in the center of the large open space lot. By removing this planter bed and the shrubs
there would be an un obstructed area in the center of the open space lot that is at least 9,000
square feet in size; it is rare for a subdivision to provide an area this large for children to play in
without obstruction. If the Applicant desires to still include the same number of shrubs as
currently shown, they could disperse them to the planter beds shown further to the west and east
on the landscape plan.

. Qualified Open Space and Amenities (UDC 11-3G):

The subject site is 5.63 acres in size with a plat over 5.25 acres in size requiring at least one (1)
amenity and 0.56 acres of qualified open space per UDC 11-3G-3. The Applicant is continuing a
segment of multi-use pathway along the Meridian Road frontage which qualifies as the required
amenity. Because this plat would be an extension of the already approved Prevail Subdivision, the
Applicant has indicated these future residents will be able to use the other amenities and open
space in Prevail. The closest amenity to this phase is an open space lot with a playground that is
located due south from the Keyport Avenue extension and has a micro-path in direct alignment
with that amenity lot. Should Commission/Council find that this distance is too great for the
future residents of Prevail North to walk to utilize the playground, Staff recommends they require
an additional amenity with the large open space lot proposed on this subject site. To help ensure
the amenities and open spaces are shared, Staff is including a DA provision that all of the
common areas be owned and maintained by the same homeowner’s association.

As discussed previously, the Applicant is proposing open space in excess of the code required
0.56 acres. Overall, the Applicant is proposing the large open space lot along the north property
boundary, a micro-path lot, and the landscape buffer to Meridian Road as qualifying open
space—cumulatively these areas amount to 49,878 square feet, or 1.15 acres, approximately 22%

184

Page 9




Item 6.

VI.

of the 5.25 plat area. However, this calculation uses the 25’ landscape buffer width along
Meridian Road instead of the required 35" width. Therefore, the actual amount of qualified open
space should be slightly larger. The Applicant should correct the open space exhibit to reflect
both the revised layout and the correct amount of qualified open space.

Staff utilized the lot sizes shown on the revised preliminary plat to obtain the above calculations
so Staff is comfortable stating the Applicant is proposing qualified open space in vast excess of
code requirements.

. Fencing (UDC 11-3A-6, 11-3A-7):

All fencing is required to comply with the standards listed in UDC 11-3A-7. Fencing is proposed
as shown on the landscape plan and appears to meet UDC standards as proposed. Should any
fencing locations need to be revised to accommodate any irrigation easement requirements,
the Applicant should notify Staff and submit revised drawings at the applicable future
application submittals (i.e. final plat and/or final plat signature).

. Waterways (UDC 11-3A-6):

The subject site contains a large section of the Carlson Lateral, an irrigation lateral maintained by
Boise Project Board of Control (BPBC). The Applicant is proposing to both reroute and pipe this
lateral consistent with the desires of the City Engineer for the purpose of benefiting both this
Applicant and the City owned property bordering the subject site on the north boundary. Upon
further discussions with BPBC and in coordination with Public Works, the Applicant is proposing
to pipe the entire segment of the lateral on both properties from Meridian Road east to nearly the
east property boundary, as shown on the submitted preliminary plat in Exhibit VII.B. Piping this
lateral will allow for more buildable area of the subject site, fix some of the topography issues for
the City owned property, and allow for easier maintenance by BPBC. Staff supports the piping of
this irrigation lateral and the proposed plan complies with UDC 11-3A-6.

Pressurized Irrigation (UDC 11-3A-15):

The Applicant is required to provide a pressurized irrigation system for the development in
accord with 11-3A-15. The Applicant is showing a pressurized irrigation system on the landscape
plans commensurate with code requirements. Land Development will review these plans in more
detail at a later date when specific irrigation plans are submitted with the Final Plat application.

DECISION

A.

Staff:

Staff recommends approval of the requested annexation and zoning with the requirement of a
Development Agreement and approval of the requested preliminary plat application per the
Findings in Section IX of this staff report.

Commission:

Enter Summary of Commission Decision.
City Council:

To be heard at future date.

185

Page 10



https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6418
https://codelibrary.amlegal.com/codes/meridianid/latest/meridian_id/0-0-0-6433
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-15PRIRSY

Item 6.

EXHIBITS
A. Annexation and Zoning Legal Descriptions and Exhibit Maps

EXHIBIT _

DESCRIPTION FOR
PREVAIL NORTH SUBDIVISION
CITY OF MERIDIAN ANNEXATION AND REZONE

A portion of Government Lot 1 of Section 31, T.3N., R.1E., B.M., Meridian, Ada County,
Idaho more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the NW corner of said Section 31 from which the W1/4 corner of said
Section 31 bears South 00°37'56" West, 2641.54 feet;

thence along the West boundary line of said Section 31 South 00°37'56" West, 1,113.77
feet to the REAL POINT OF BEGINNING;

thence leaving said West boundary line North 89°39'29" East, 1,184.97 feet to a point on
the East boundary line of said Government Lot 1;

thence along the East boundary line of said Government Lot 1 South 00°20'43" West,
206.98 feet to the SE corner of said Government Lot 1;

thence along the South boundary line of said Government Lot 1 South 89°39'28" West,
1,186.01 feet to the SW corner of said Government Lot 1;

thence along the West boundary line of said Section 31 North 00°37'56" East, 207.00
feet to the REAL POINT OF BEGINNING. Containing 5.63 acres, more or less.

Page1of1

186

Page 11




Item 6.

187

p: \Prevail Nortt

525 S30 E. AMITY ROAD

w
(8]
[e2]
113,77 :\X C
(73]
o

UNPLATTED

RPOB
\% / Ngg.ng

'43"W 206.98’

UNPLATTED

0'37°56"°E 207.00
S0°20

S. MERIDIAN RD
BASIS OF BEARING
S037'56"W 2641.54°

T

%:' - S89°39'29"W 1186.01°

= UNPLATTED
|

N_

1/4(%;
S36 1 S31
@ SCALE: 1"=100"

0 25 50 100 200

1 —025" Pravoll NoZ NORTH annex rezonedwg 3/13/207% 12:33:05 Pu
IDAHO EXHIBIT __ DRAWING FOR o
9955 W. EMERALD ST PREVAIL NORTH SUBDIVISION [ SHEET NO. |
SURVEY msseaes™ || CITY OF MERIDIAN ANNEXATION AND RE—ZONE
GROUP, LLC LOGATED IN GOVERNMENT LOT 2 OF SECTION 31, T.3N., R.1E., B.M., L SL
MERIDIAN, ADA COUNTY, IDAHO 3/18/2021

Page 12




Item 6.

188

n89°39'28"e
1184.97
z
2 5
© =1 el
wl 25
[ = 7o} 1)
el 2] I=1
s sfe
% @«
1186.01
589°3020'W

Prevail North Sub. Annexation Closure Sheet

3/19/2021

Scale: 1 inch= 200 feet [File:

Tract 1; 5.6326 Acres (245358 Sq. Feet), Closure: s33.0139¢ 0.01 ft. (1/471643), Perimeter=2785 ft.

01 n89.3929e 1184.97
02 s00.2043w 206.98
03 589.3929w 1186.01
04 n00.3756e 207

Page 13




Item 6.

B. Preliminary Plat (dated: 5/7/2021)

189

F=ELIMINARY 2 A SHIWING

—

Wt

1 LOCATZD N GOVERNWLNT _OT 2 OF SCCTION 31,

M AN, RT=, B, VERIZAN, AZA COJN T, DAHG
piival

PREVAIL, NORTH SUBDIVISION

= ——&“‘L ! L =

T

PFRELIMINARY DEVELOPMENT FEATURES

e ENGINEER SURVEYOR
i

PLANNER
iy
o, 5 e
s

NOTES:

BEFORE DIGGING, CALL DIGLINE AT 1-800-342-1585|

Page 14




190

Item 6.

1T=H7
FH38A OVOd NVIGIEW BNILSE

it i
tal

NOILOEE 133418 .88 HLIM NOILO38 MOM .27 T¥3IdAL

W an

Slac 11 T
01 S 7 8 <16 S 3 00sL
ONIHIINIONT M

21T T

S8BT MEY,08.05

e ——— 1202
ke o . DHYOl “ALNMOS ¥O¥ “NYIQIMAN “WE “310d TNEL

‘1€ NOWLO3S 40 Z 107 LNIWN¥3A09 NI 4210071

NOISIAIAH1S HIHON TIVATHdd

DONIMOHS 1V 1d AdYNINM3Yd

RO A

$861-Z¥E-008-1 LY INITDIA T2 'ONIDOIQ 3H043a

VS SO LA ¥ AT

s TR M

Page 15




191

Item 6.

C. Landscape Plans (date: 3/17/2021) NOT APPROVED

n o 1 s g c 1 s S 5 < 1 z

woz/nse
e
-

L¥1d AHYNINITIHG

NVIAIEIN

.

d 3dVOSANY1

avod NYIdIHaW S 0SIS
HLHON TIVAIHd

2r9E8 OHVAI

o Lisieon

msuspins w55

sl ey

k.

2 2o L

a0 fon ipizana
S s L

VN T¥OINVIOS AT AT

32 yE
a2 e s ey e AR EEE (B
o
130 5 v T T 09 b
e
s2 mvam sm sz v o 0s SEEHE
21 130 A L o 8 e (8)

F1NAIHIOS INVId

S Tt T 0 G S WISt e & O

[SNEBER] FDO._._,q.O

e AR 7//

(W}
seazvoa

(Al T A ——— — — ———
AN L HL oy il
393 b 8 ———— 3 —

[re)

cAWza s sE T
e s,

o b e b

ONIDIT FdVOSANYT

T (w08 NI S
SINAWIHINDIYH IdVOSONVT
NYIQIHAW 40 ALID

G i A 40 AN (216

FETHTY OS] S 0GE R LIS TR

NOILYWHOANI LO3rodd

L e 2 N A

MO G SN S AV
e T MY

4TI THNDS DCD W LENHGD AAGRAY 1D A
IS ) INAIVEE JAIL S0 TSR Y SIS NIV AN HL WO

00 TP eI Aty | S 5 AR

@ O

Lo otummm_u m
i .

wﬁl-ﬂﬂlﬁ ‘i%m%.%f

'

OVOH NI

Page 16




192

L1¥1d AHYNIWITTHA

< 1 4 £ z | n

o | s | s 1 . 1

] 1

+ s | z | .

i) e [G9INW 4N KIEGITYL 1Y T9DIAL]
\mﬁ_ N a avOd NYIQIH3IW OL INIOVrdy WY38 @ ONIINYd m:ms_u_mswo ERME] 50 NEEREINTaEA
s L | . LRI TR R € XA
ﬁuﬂ,ﬂ\q = AT TEHCL O NI CJLJEI// 310N

S1IV.13A IdvISUNYT
2¥9E8 QHVAI NVIAIHIW
avod NVIAIY3IN S 0S1S

HLHON TIVAIHd

T

NOILYTIVLSNI ¥307N04d

SR

N3 R A Ty o 31 i ST

HEE TR LS Y JATd

27 a3 Sv 35 T

IR L S aS e .

LY

mp—y

e

ot A g
amras
a3 wes on e 0 o A -
SEaTToa AT e
2w S TE T

a0

RENCEERIEE] 1_>2_>O

ONILINYTd

ARy BTEINT L Lo TS S SN T T

HAAODIANNOHED B TYINNIA3d 4

]

SR

AR
TR \v

9 WO _hies O 3G SHIEIZS ALV~ TEIH 0. EIEGH- s TT o

am b 4000

jristen

31001 40 DY M4 T 0% N T B TH

R e b A5 KNS & KRN A5 KR it Y

Tz s 2 @ & v

[RrES

Page 17

Item 6.

AL S T o
il
R e A - v
-
s
In

Ty

SINIWIHIND3Y ONIJI3S ONV1AHd

‘S310ON ZOF<O_EE_

T




Item 6.

193

PREVAIL NORTH SUBDIVISION
PREVAIL PHASE 3
MERIDIAN, IDAHO 83646

PREVAIL SUBDIVISION PHASE 1

Page 18




194

Item 6.

D. Color Landscape Plan — Prevail Subdivision Overall

ETRANTON ST, |

E CALDERA 5T.

E CUSICK ST,

IRRIGATION PONLY 2’

AYOH NYIAIEEN 'S

e

PREVAIL SUBDIVISION

(aV]
~t
(o]
8]
Dy
o<
o
T
o=
- <
==L
<d
oy
T
L =
=)

;
B

T
o

Page 19




Item 6.

E. Open Space Exhibit— NOT APPROVED

March 16 2921 at 0309 PM

ppowg plettee by Tyler Cazmsers o Tue. M

srelnsmya1628 ane

et NG A DY

_orojects 202N I0EE preveil

CITY OF MERIDIAN OPEN
SPACE REQUIREMENTS

QUALIFIED OPEN SPACE
REQUIRED PROVIDED
PSR | 2 | AP

LANDSCAPE LEGEND

GUALIFIED OPEN SPACE

AREA=2322 5Q FT 32 =,

AREA= 36,413 SQ. FT.

SCANDIA AVE

I

AREA=7.861 8Q. FT

. E LIBERATOR LANE .

REA=51748Q. FT
50% BUFFER)

MERIDIAN ROAD

& e
L :
4

=

NOT TO SCALE

195

PREVAIL NORTH - PHASE 3
MERIDIAN, IDAHO
OPEN SPACE EXHIBIT

anddesign

BRECKOIN o

3/16/2021
21028

X10

Page 20




Item 6.

F. Concept Plan — Brighton Parcel (51131244500)

196

NEEREE =

Area of concern/discussion between
two projects.

T
‘0¥ IA0YS LSND0T'S |

E LAKE HAZEL RD.

Page 21




Item 6.

G. Conceptual Building Elevations

Sample Elevations

197

Page 22




Item 6.

Sample Elevations

198

—— Contemporary —

Page 23




Item 6.

VIII.

CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS
A. PLANNING DIVISION

1. A Development Agreement (DA) is required as a provision of annexation of this property.

Prior to approval of the annexation ordinance, a DA shall be entered into between the City of
Meridian, the property owner(s) at the time of annexation ordinance adoption, and the
developer.

Currently, a fee of $303.00 shall be paid by the Applicant to the Planning Division prior to
commencement of the DA. The DA shall be signed by the property owner and returned to the
Planning Division within six (6) months of the City Council granting the annexation. The DA
shall, at minimum, incorporate the following provisions:

a. Future development of this site shall be generally consistent with the approved
plat, landscape plan, and conceptual building elevations included in Section VII
and the provisions contained herein.

b. The rear and/or sides of 2-story structures that face S. Meridian Rd., an entryway
corridor, shall incorporate articulation through changes in two or more of the following:
modulation (e.g. projections, recesses, step-backs, pop-outs), bays, banding, porches,
balconies, material types, or other integrated architectural elements to break up
monotonous wall planes and roof lines that are visible from the subject public street.
Single-story structures are exempt from this requirement.

c. All amenities and common open space within Prevail Subdivision (aka Percy
Subdivision) and Prevail North Subdivision shall be owned and maintained by the same
homeowner’s association to ensure shared use in perpetuity.

The preliminary plat included in Section VI1.B, dated May 7, 2021, shall be revised as
follows prior to submitting for Final Plat approval:

a. Revise the plat to show the landscape buffer common lot along Meridian Road to be
at least 35 feet wide consistent with the required dimensional standards along an
entryway corridor.

b. Add a plat note stating that direct lot access to S. Meridian Road/SH 69 is prohibited.

Revise the landscape plans, open space exhibit, and all other relevant plans to reflect the
revised preliminary plat layout and provide revised plans to staff at least fifteen (15) days
prior to the City Council hearing.

The landscape plan included in Section VII.C, dated March 17, 2021, shall be revised as
follows prior to submitting for Final Plat approval:

a. Revise the plan to show the required landscape buffer along Meridian Road to be 35’
instead of 25°.

b. Move one of the trees located on the south side of the micro-pathway in the
northwest corner of the site to the north side of the pathway consistent with UDC 11-
3B-12.

c. Remove the center planter bed within the large open space lot, shown as Lot 1, Block
7.

d. Plant the proposed 8-foot wide parkway along the north side of Liberator Street with
at least one (1) tree per 35 linear feet consistent with UDC 11-3B-7C.

199

Page 24




Item 6.

10.

11.

e. Any landscaping within the ITD right-of-way shall be landscaped in accord with
UDC 11-3B-7C.5.

Future development shall be consistent with the minimum dimensional standards listed in
UDC Table 11-2A-6 for the R-8 zoning district.

Off-street parking is required to be provided in accord with the standards listed in UDC Table
11-3C-6 for single-family dwellings based on the number of bedrooms per unit.

The Applicant shall comply with all ACHD conditions of approval.

Provide a pressurized irrigation system consistent with the standards as set forth in UDC 11-
3A-15, UDC 11-3B-6 and MCC 9-1-28.

Prior to issuance of Certificate of Occupancy on any building, the applicant shall submit a
public access easement for the multi-use pathway segment along Meridian Road to the
Planning Division for approval by City Council and subsequent recordation. The easement
shall be a minimum of 14’ in width (10’ pathway and 2’ shoulder on each side).

Upon completion of the landscape installation, a written Certificate of Completion shall be
submitted to the Planning Division verifying all landscape improvements are in substantial
compliance with the approved landscape plan as set forth in UDC 11-3B-14.

The preliminary plat approval shall become null and void if the applicant fails to either: 1)
obtain the City Engineer signature on a final plat within two years of the date of the approved
findings; or 2) obtain approval of a time extension as set forth in UDC 11-6B-7.

B. PuBLIC WORKS

1. Site Specific Conditions of Approval

11

1.2

13

14
15

Services must tie into sewer mains at a 90-degree angle from the main. Lot 33, Block 1 either
needs to be modified to a 90-degree angle into the main, or should be connected to SSMH 2.

Install water main in S Keyport Ave to connect to the existing water stub from Prevail
Subdivision No. 2.

Contact Public Works Engineering to discuss the water stub to the City of Meridian property
to the North.

A streetlight plan is required to be submitted with the Final Plat application.
A future streetlight installation agreement is required for the streetlights on Meridian Road.

200

Page 25




Item 6.

2. General Conditions of Approval

2.1 Applicant shall coordinate water and sewer main size and routing with the Public Works
Department, and execute standard forms of easements for any mains that are required to
provide service outside of a public right-of-way. Minimum cover over sewer mains is three
feet, if cover from top of pipe to sub-grade is less than three feet than alternate materials shall
be used in conformance of City of Meridian Public Works Departments Standard
Specifications.

2.2 Per Meridian City Code (MCC), the applicant shall be responsible to install sewer and water
mains to and through this development. Applicant may be eligible for a reimbursement
agreement for infrastructure enhancement per MCC 8-6-5.

2.3 The applicant shall provide easement(s) for all public water/sewer mains outside of public
right of way (include all water services and hydrants). The easement widths shall be 20-feet
wide for a single utility, or 30-feet wide for two. The easements shall not be dedicated via
the plat, but rather dedicated outside the plat process using the City of Meridian’s standard
forms. The easement shall be graphically depicted on the plat for reference purposes. Submit
an executed easement (on the form available from Public Works), a legal description
prepared by an ldaho Licensed Professional Land Surveyor, which must include the area of
the easement (marked EXHIBIT A) and an 81/2” x 11” map with bearings and distances
(marked EXHIBIT B) for review. Both exhibits must be sealed, signed and dated by a
Professional Land Surveyor. DO NOT RECORD. Add a note to the plat referencing this
document. All easements must be submitted, reviewed, and approved prior to development
plan approval.

2.4 The City of Meridian requires that pressurized irrigation systems be supplied by a year-round
source of water (MCC 12-13-8.3). The applicant should be required to use any existing
surface or well water for the primary source. If a surface or well source is not available, a
single-point connection to the culinary water system shall be required. If a single-point
connection is utilized, the developer will be responsible for the payment of assessments for
the common areas prior to prior to receiving development plan approval.

2.5 All existing structures that are required to be removed shall be prior to signature on the final
plat by the City Engineer. Any structures that are allowed to remain shall be subject to
evaluation and possible reassignment of street addressing to be in compliance with MCC.

2.6 All irrigation ditches, canals, laterals, or drains, exclusive of natural waterways, intersecting,
crossing or laying adjacent and contiguous to the area being subdivided shall be addressed
per UDC 11-3A-6. In performing such work, the applicant shall comply with Idaho Code 42-
1207 and any other applicable law or regulation.

2.7 Any wells that will not continue to be used must be properly abandoned according to Idaho
Well Construction Standards Rules administered by the Idaho Department of Water
Resources. The Developer’s Engineer shall provide a statement addressing whether there are
any existing wells in the development, and if so, how they will continue to be used, or
provide record of their abandonment.

2.8 Any existing septic systems within this project shall be removed from service per City
Ordinance Section 9-1-4 and 9 4 8. Contact Central District Health for abandonment
procedures and inspections (208)375-5211.

2.9 Street signs are to be in place, sanitary sewer and water system shall be approved and
activated, road base approved by the Ada County Highway District and the Final Plat for this
subdivision shall be recorded, prior to applying for building permits.

Page 26

201




Item 6.

2.10 A letter of credit or cash surety in the amount of 110% will be required for all
uncompleted fencing, landscaping, amenities, etc., prior to signature on the final plat.

2.11  All improvements related to public life, safety and health shall be completed prior to
occupancy of the structures. Where approved by the City Engineer, an owner may post a
performance surety for such improvements in order to obtain City Engineer signature on the
final plat as set forth in UDC 11-5C-3B.

2.12  Applicant shall be required to pay Public Works development plan review, and
construction inspection fees, as determined during the plan review process, prior to the
issuance of a plan approval letter.

2.13 It shall be the responsibility of the applicant to ensure that all development features
comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Fair Housing Act.

2.14  Applicant shall be responsible for application and compliance with any Section 404
Permitting that may be required by the Army Corps of Engineers.

2.15  Developer shall coordinate mailbox locations with the Meridian Post Office.
2.16  All grading of the site shall be performed in conformance with MCC 11-12-3H.

2.17  Compaction test results shall be submitted to the Meridian Building Department for all
building pads receiving engineered backfill, where footing would sit atop fill material.

2.18  The design engineer shall be required to certify that the street centerline elevations are set
a minimum of 3-feet above the highest established peak groundwater elevation. This is to
ensure that the bottom elevation of the crawl spaces of homes is at least 1-foot above.

2.19  The applicants design engineer shall be responsible for inspection of all irrigation and/or
drainage facility within this project that do not fall under the jurisdiction of an irrigation
district or ACHD. The design engineer shall provide certification that the facilities have been
installed in accordance with the approved design plans. This certification will be required
before a certificate of occupancy is issued for any structures within the project.

2.20 At the completion of the project, the applicant shall be responsible to submit record
drawings per the City of Meridian AutoCAD standards. These record drawings must be
received and approved prior to the issuance of a certification of occupancy for any structures
within the project.

2.21  Astreet light plan will need to be included in the civil construction plans. Street light
plan requirements are listed in section 6-5 of the Improvement Standards for Street Lighting.
A copy of the standards can be found at
http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272.

2.22  The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a performance surety in the
amount of 125% of the total construction cost for all incomplete sewer, water and reuse
infrastructure prior to final plat signature. This surety will be verified by a line item cost
estimate provided by the owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an
irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety,
which can be found on the Community Development Department website. Please contact
Land Development Service for more information at 887-2211.

202

Page 27



http://www.meridiancity.org/public_works.aspx?id=272

Item 6.

2.23  The City of Meridian requires that the owner post to the City a warranty surety in the
amount of 20% of the total construction cost for all completed sewer, water and reuse
infrastructure for duration of two years. This surety will be verified by a line item cost
estimate provided by the owner to the City. The surety can be posted in the form of an
irrevocable letter of credit, cash deposit or bond. Applicant must file an application for surety,
which can be found on the Community Development Department website. Please contact
Land Development Service for more information at 887-2211.

. FIRE DEPARTMENT

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226061&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity

. BOISE PROJECT BOARD OF CONTROL (BPBC)

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226128&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity

. PARKS DEPARTMENT — PATHWAYS

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=227571&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity

. ADA COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226096&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity

. CENTRAL DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT (CDH)

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226020&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity

. DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (DEQ)

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226474&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity

ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT (ACHD)

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228248&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC
ity

IX. FINDINGS
A. Annexation and/or Rezone (UDC 11-5B-3E)

Required Findings: Upon recommendation from the commission, the council shall make a
full investigation and shall, at the public hearing, review the application. In order to grant
an annexation and/or rezone, the council shall make the following findings:

1. The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the comprehensive
plan;

Staff finds the proposed zoning map amendment to annex the property into the City of
Meridian with the R-8 zoning district with the proposed preliminary plat and site design is
consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, if all conditions of approval are met.

203

Page 28



https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226061&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226061&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226128&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226128&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=227571&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=227571&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226096&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226096&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226020&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226020&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226474&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=226474&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228248&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228248&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

Item 6.

2. The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed districts,
specifically the purpose statement;

Staff finds the proposed zoning map amendment and the request for the development complies
with the regulations outlined in the requested R-8 zoning district and is consistent with the
purpose statement of the requested zone.

3. The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety,
and welfare;

Staff finds the proposed zoning map amendment should not be detrimental to the public
health, safety and welfare.

4. The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services
by any political subdivision providing public services within the city including, but not
limited to, school districts; and

Staff finds the proposed zoning map amendment will not result in an adverse impact on the
delivery of services by any political subdivision providing public services within the City.

5. The annexation (as applicable) is in the best interest of city.

Staff finds the annexation is in the best interest of the City.

. Preliminary Plat Findings:

In consideration of a preliminary plat, combined preliminary and final plat, or short plat,
the decision-making body shall make the following findings:

1. The platis in conformance with the Comprehensive Plan;

Staff finds that the proposed plat is in substantial compliance with the adopted Comprehensive
Plan in regard to land use, density, transportation, and pedestrian connectivity. (Please see
Comprehensive Plan Policies in, Section V of this report for more information.)

2. Public services are available or can be made available and are adequate to accommodate
the proposed development;

Staff finds that public services will be provided to the subject property with development. (See
Section VIII of the Staff Report for more details from public service providers.)

3. The platis in conformance with scheduled public improvements in accord with the City’s
capital improvement program;

Because City water and sewer and any other utilities will be provided by the development at
their own cost, Staff finds that the subdivision will not require the expenditure of capital
improvement funds.

4. There is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed development;

Staff finds there is public financial capability of supporting services for the proposed
development based upon comments from the public service providers (i.e., Police, Fire, ACHD,
etc.). (See Section VII for more information.)

5. The development will not be detrimental to the public health, safety or general welfare;
and,

Page 29

204




Item 6.

Staff is not aware of any health, safety, or environmental problems associated with the platting
of this property. ACHD considers road safety issues in their analysis and has offered their
support of the proposed development with the proposed road layout in mind.

The development preserves significant natural, scenic or historic features.

Staff is unaware of any significant natural, scenic or historic features that exist on this site that
require preserving.

Page 30

205




Of/ﬂz IDIAN~

AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Public Hearing for Gem Prep South (H-2021-0020) by Paradigm Design,
Located Approximately 1/8 of a Mile East of S. Locust Grove Rd., on the South Side of E. Lake

Hazel Rd.
A. Request: Conditional Use Permit for an educational institution on 5.95 acres of land in the C-C

zoning district that proposes direct access via a collector street and where there is not a safe,
separate pedestrian and bikeway access between the neighborhood and the school site.




Item 7.

Q% IDIAN~

PUBLIC HEARING INFORMATION

Staff Contact: Sonya Allen Meeting Date:  May 20, 2021
Public Hearing for Gem Prep South (H-2021-0020) by Paradigm Design, Located
Approximately 1/8 of a Mile East of S. Locust Grove Rd., on the South Side of E. Lake
Hazel Rd.

A. Request: Conditional Use Permit for an educational institution on 5.95 acres
of land in the C-C zoning district that proposes direct access via a collector
street and where there is not a safe, separate pedestrian and bikeway access
between the neighborhood and the school site.

Topic:

Information Resources:

Click Here for Application Materials

Click Here to Sign Up to Testify at the Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing

207



http://bit.ly/H-2021-0020
https://apps.meridiancity.org/SIGNINPZ/

Item 7.

Cﬂ/ﬂE IDIAN

STAFF REPORT
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

208

HEARING 5/20/2021
Le d
DATE: [ﬁ]gen (4]
Project Locafion
TO: Planning & Zoning Commission %\ ' '
FROM: Sonya Allen, Associate Planner ] : = 4T=F aR
208-884-5533 [ . =
- l_l |__ - - ) il
SUBJECT:  H-2021-0020 ; l_r"'" T by ,,@
Gem Prep South — CUP )‘ A B w4
_____ T : ,-\ :::
LOCATION: Approximately 1/8 of a mile east of S. VA =
Locust Grove Rd. on the south side of E. ___| {(/: N\ LS B
Lake Hazel Rd., in the NW ¥ of Section | B . : I ——
5, Township 2N., Range 1E. ! B
1 I_E _—I o __TL\—-\

I. PROJECT DESCRIPTION
Conditional use permit for an education institution on 5.95 acres of land in the C-C zoning district
that proposes direct access via a collector street and where there is not a safe, separate pedestrian and
bikeway access between the neighborhood and the school site.

Il. SUMMARY OF REPORT

A. Project Summary

Description Details Page
Acreage 5.95-acres

Future Land Use Designation Mixed Use — Community (MU-C)

Existing Land Use Vacant/undeveloped agricultural land

Proposed Land Use(s) Public education institution (K-12 charter school)

Current Zoning Community Business District (C-C)

Physical Features (waterways, None

hazards, flood plain, hillside)
Neighborhood meeting date; # of 1/21/21; 1 attendee other than the Applicant
attendees:
History (previous approvals) H-2020-0066 (Apex MDA Inst. #2020-178120), RZ); H-
2020-0057 (PP — Apex Southeast); FP-2020-0013 (Apex
Southeast No. 1)

Page 1




Item 7.

A. Project Area Maps

Future Land Use Map

legend

[ Project Locafion

m“@ﬁ“’m o

S
=
| Med-Hig
”".]ensrry [
Ré|5|d|5nhul MU
(
| Medium D ity
L itI'\‘Esu:lie-r]iunl
BRI S CaNN
ZonlngMap
legend /
[ Project Locafion k“ < e R
%«é{‘l“ ] \J\ﬁ
L. S e
- R-15
T e :
{ r — RLIT%%{
;) R-8 %,xillizﬂ

B. Owner:

e ——ngz

RUT

T

APPLICANT INFORMATION
A. Applicant:
Elias Felix, Paradigm Design — 4250 N. Drinkwater Blvd., Ste. 120, Scottsdale, AZ 85251

legend

l |Pro}e<:';

Aerial Map

Planned Development Map

legend
I Project Locafion
= - - -

1 City Linnits

— Planned Parcels

Ol

1

|
111

209

THHE

Robert Phillips, Gem Innovation Schools — 2750 E. Gala St., Meridian, 1D 83642

Page 2




Item 7.

C. Representative:
Same as Applicant

IV. NOTICING
Planning & Zoning
Posting Date
Newspaper Notification 4/30/2021

Radius notification mailed to

properties within 300 feet 412112021
Site Posting Date 5/6/2021
Next Door posting 4/27/2021

V. STAFF ANALYSIS

The proposed conditional use permit is required for an education institution on 5.95-acres of land in
the C-C zoning district, per UDC Table 11-2B-3; and because the site takes access from a collector
street and there is not a safe, separate pedestrian and bikeway access between the neighborhood and
the school site, per UDC 11-4-3-14E.4.

This land is designated on the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) in the Comprehensive Plan as part of a
larger Mixed Use — Community (MU-C) designated area. The proposed school will provide a
community-serving public use in this neighborhood as desired in mixed use developments.

A kindergarten through twelfth grade college preparatory charter school is proposed. The proposed 2-
story structure will consist of a total of 45,110 square feet. Hard top and recreational play fields are
proposed. The site is surrounded by public streets — an arterial street (i.e. E. Lake Hazel Rd.) along
the north boundary, a collector street (i.e. S. Tower St./S. Vertex Way) along the southeast
boundaries; and a local street (i.e. S. Peak Ave.) along the west boundary. The use is anticipated to
generate 1,156 vehicle trips per day on weekdays when school is in session per the Applicant’s
narrative submitted with the application; the ACHD report states 590 vehicle trips per day are
estimated based on the Traffic Impact Study (TIS).

Idaho Code [SS 67-6519(3)] requires a school site checklist to be submitted, which is included in the
public record for this project.

Note: The existing Development Agreement allows the C-C zoned portions of this development to
obtain building permits prior to subdivision of the property.

Specific Use Standards: The proposed use is subject to the specific use standards listed in UDC 11-
4-3-14, Education Institution. Accessory uses are allowed as stated.

Elementary schools should be located within the center of neighborhoods; they’re encouraged to be
adjacent to public parks or open space; and at least 30% of the perimeter of the site should be open to
streets or open space areas with access encouraged from local streets. Middle and high schools may
take access off a designated arterial or collector street.

The proposed school includes elementary as well as middle and high school grades. It is located at the
north end of the Apex Southeast development adjacent to E. Lake Hazel Rd., an arterial street. Future
residential uses are also planned to the north and northwest of this site. Discovery Park, a 77-acre
public park, is located directly to the east. The school site is open to public streets on all sides and

210

Page 3



https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225747&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-14EDIN
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-14EDIN

Item 7.

access is proposed via local and collector streets; no access is proposed via the arterial street. Staff
deems this to be in substantial compliance with the aforementioned standards.

Access to the school site from the future residential neighborhood to the south is proposed at the
intersection of E. Tower St. and S. Peak Way with striped cross-walks, sighage and school zone
flashing signage in accord with the school site checklist recommendations. A crossing guard will be
required for students that are walking and biking to school.

Staff has reviewed the other applicable specific use standards and finds the proposed use and site
design to be in substantial compliance with these standards.

Williams Pipeline: The Williams natural gas pipeline bisects this site and is located within a 75-foot
wide easement. All development within the easement is required to comply with the Williams
Developer’s Handbook.

Access: Access is proposed via one access from S. Peak Ave., a local street along the west boundary;
one access via S. Vertex Way, a collector street along the east boundary; and one access via S. Tower
St., a collector street along the south boundary of the site. Direct access via E. Lake Hazel Rd. is not
proposed and is prohibited.

The parent pick-up area is located on the north side of the building; the bus pick-up/drop-off is
located on the south side of the building, which will prevent vehicle conflicts.

Parking: A minimum of one (1) off-street parking space is required to be provided for every 400
square feet of gross floor area for education institution uses per UDC 11-4-3-141. Based on 45,110
square feet, a minimum of 113 off-street parking spaces are required. A total of 118 spaces are
proposed in excess of the minimum UDC standards.

A minimum one (1) bicycle parking space is required to be provided for every 25 vehicle spaces or
portion thereof per UDC 11-3C-6G; bicycle parking facilities are required to comply with the location
and design standards listed in UDC 11-3C-5C. A minimum of five (5) bicycle spaces are required to
be provided; eight (8) spaces are proposed in excess of UDC standards.

Pedestrian Walkways: A 10-foot wide multi-use pathway is proposed along the north property
boundary of the site in accord with the Pathways Master Plan; a 14-foot wide public use easement is
required for the pathway unless the pathway will be located within the adjacent right-of-way.

The 5-foot wide sidewalks proposed adjacent to parking should either be widened two feet (2°)
to seven feet (7°) to allow for vehicle overhang (the length of the stall may be decreased 2’ in this
instance) or wheel stops should be provided in the adjacent parking stalls to prevent vehicle
overhang in accord with UDC 11-3C-5B.

Landscaping: Parking lot landscaping is required to be provided in accord with the standards listed
in UDC 11-3B-8C. Landscaping is depicted on the landscape plan in Section VII.B in planter islands
within the parking area as required; a tree should be added at the east end of the row of parking
on the north side of the building where none is proposed.

Street buffer landscaping and walkways are required with the subdivision improvements for Apex
Southeast Subdivision No. 1; however, if this site develops first, it will be responsible to construct
and install these improvements.

Landscaping is required along the multi-use pathway along E. Lake Hazel Rd. per the
standards listed in UDC 11-3B-12C and should be depicted on the landscape plan.

Mechanical Equipment: All mechanical equipment on the back of the building and outdoor service
and equipment should be incorporated into the overall design of buildings and landscaping so that the
visual and acoustic impacts of these functions are fully contained and out of view from adjacent

211

Page 4



https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=225747&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://www.williams.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/6/2020/04/2020-Developers-Handbook-FINAL-20200722-1.pdf
https://www.williams.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/6/2020/04/2020-Developers-Handbook-FINAL-20200722-1.pdf
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-6RENUOREPASP
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTCOREPALORE_11-3C-5PASTALOTUSNOSP
file:///C:/TEMP/A%20minimum%205-foot%20wide%20perimeter%20landscape%20buffer%20is%20required%20to%20be%20provided%20adjacent%20to%20parking,%20loading%20or%20other%20paved%20vehicular%20use%20areas%20as%20set%20forth%20in%20UDC%2011-3B-8C.1;%20landscaping%20should%20be%20provided%20adjacent%20to%20the%20drive-through%20lane%20along%20the%20north%20boundary%20of%20the%20site%20in%20accord%20with%20this%20requirement.

Item 7.

VI.

properties and public streets as set forth in UDC 11-3A-12.

Fencing: All fencing is required to comply with the standards listed in UDC 11-3A-7. Chainlink
fencing is depicted on the landscape plan around the play area adjacent to S. Vertex Way. Because
this site is located adjacent to a collector street, Staff recommends a fencing material of higher
guality such as wrought iron is provided.

Building Elevations: Conceptual building elevations were submitted as shown in Section V1I.C that
incorporate various colors of horizontal lap siding and metal panels in various trim colors. These
elevations have not been reviewed for compliance with design standards and therefore, are not
approved; final design shall be consistent with the design standards listed in the Architectural
Standards Manual.

The trash enclosure should be constructed with similar materials and colors to match the
building.

Certificate of Zoning Compliance & Design Review: A Certificate of Zoning Compliance and
Design Review application is required to be submitted for the proposed use prior to submittal of a
building permit application to ensure consistency with the conditions in Section VII, UDC standards
and design standards.

DECISION

A. Staff:

Staff recommends approval of the proposed conditional use permit with the conditions included
in Section VIII per the Findings in Section IX.

212

Page 5



https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-12OUSEEQAR
https://meridiancity.org/planning/current/architectural-standards
https://meridiancity.org/planning/current/architectural-standards

Item 7.

VIl. EXHIBITS

A. Proposed Site Plan (dated: 3/29/2021)

CURRENT ZONING: et
MEDIUM LOW

E. LAKE HAZEL RD,

i

CUSRENT 20MTHG: €5
BUSINESS DISTRICT
o

e

AETEC R b

G SO ST

]
e

H
g
o

Page 6

TRENT ZONINE: 5 &
¥ RESTOENTUAL

ey e - ol

o RS AT T2 e B T M

CONTACTON 18 MW T COORRAE AL STE UTLIY CHMCIHE MO

[ e T e R

18 SISt oKL AR D 03 U G SN

BT AR 0 ST VR e e s T
.

Chesekins 510 50 GIRGHETE 088 400 TSN MU G 8436 OF GA0E LSS
e,

L A R S B o, §NORRD PP £

AT AAC AR FIET WS L, CA3| WESER RS SPAE GML I FEONXD

M4 AYTED P i, e G5 WASGH L, A BB PR
EGAm,

e s w0 s ek G
RO e SN OF i PR
. T D 1 6 S 0 R 1,

L T AR IR AT O SRR,

MATCH LINE - S8 SHEET C-103-8
MATCH LINE - S8 SHEET (1048

PARADIGM DESIGN
FRGHTECTE | et
650 Crme S e 30
o 42 2
o o
s st P Trnmms
o

o
1 6P o BT (7 50
plerrey

morse new:
LIRS B M A

e e
AR
el bt .
I Eracz o e ey
ety

PRCAEEE IV RN

o
G mg R
A onvess:
TR VT .
ST e
aom
T AT g
comsie moaper 2 Cnaapg g o
s [ rratien
b b a5 b
cece st s p=t4
ussEcxarTE
NEAGHEETI MR 0 168}
LA L D TR o
L =
e v K
e

213

o et

Bouma USA

repw—
e o, g4

E LWE HEL R
WERI DR, D3 200

~ @ GEM PREP Meridian South

WITE_ 14 EXBTEME 83 LOCATHN 5 IMTESGHTLAD U1
TS S O T

T L oA £




Item 7.

B. Proposed Landscape Plan (dated: 3/5/2021)

214

T8 (Sl Dn O Dy

Boumal A

3033 Orchars Vist D, Sute 308
& DECDUOUS OR 57 EVERGRESN .
TREES ids, Ml 49546
516-882.6100
R BoumaUSA.com
o cwnmemare
e ———
[ —
o s e
comacr o
iyt
s o
~engsez1ss oy

Tt s Tt pens s g | P
. B
e e 0 i) g on 1 Y, Rume | Pt
(3 o
it 3 o o T3 prapcad s, TR 31 O 1130 10 | e
it T T JAT I, SR ) e TR i

MATERIAL LEGEND.

Loz

Hamaceal « St 6 0
ur

[EFullsduiie
Tl mdwide

Pl Sun 0Pl S
s

Tt
¥ Aunen Bl g Tear Gusa | [ —
5 Farbeam = e = S A BT
7 Gaes |
- P« isganis ‘B Ome W
T Chamlirr oar e caleryam Sl frmt e 1 purEn s - 50
Conters S s
B ket amper Do seeplon Seyscet 1525 i 225w Fiisn N
s
oy P Goqusod o s sy Tl Parias ot 5 1 | el
™ Tl wie Pt RN
] -l e R0
B Surmer e Wik Fhusotas lilon Sauut 55 al i e Filiin
B Goidhams Soime Soess xburoits Gaams 4l e wie aria S o Fill S
O it
26 W Forn s v G Emagest s o Yar Fonte# Fisin
5 e By s Pomrigetom absecurads Ltk By Filsn
Pererialy

o—
CUTTING EDGE LANDSCAPE]
5407 ALLWORTH STREET
BOISE. ID 83714
a0a) 70458
cuingesgaliniscase com

SOUTH GEM
INNOVATION

SCHOOL

PRELIMINARY
LANDSCAPE PLAN

NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

MERIDIAN. ID 83642

1

LANDSCAPE SPECIFICATIONS: IRRIGATION SPECIFICATIONS:
[— — Boumal A
11, ALLUTLTES SaLL ™ ALL DAMAGES WL e
o uTE
12 v e L €. CONTRACTOR TO VERFY ALL UTLITES FRICR TO MY DLMAGE TD B REPARED 303 Orchard Vista Or., Sute 309
Ac Y THE RESPONTIELE PARTY FREE OF CHARGE TO THE CHINER. Grand Rapids, MI 48545
e AEUb o DLARS WEEDS, 4D POCR SO FREM S — 0 COBITEIL BRSANOH ETALLATEN RTINS WTH CHL N0 ECTRA WOk 616-682.6100
22, THE AMDLAT O TOP SOILTO BE ADDED O ST SHALL B AGFEED) LPON BETWE THE OYNER AND THE CONTRACTOR, B ALIFAGHTION SRS AL SLESIES TOBE NSTRLLE Boumals.com
23 ML AWN TOP S0IL THY LANN AHD FLANT 18 HORIZONTAL THE E0GE 07 THE HATDSCAPE
MATERIAL TO HAVE 67 OF TOP SOIL ¥ ALL 12" IN ALL PLANTER BEDS. Fooa FIPES MUST 10 PREENT
24, THAT THERE IS AT LEAST A 2% 5L AL 'LEAST 10 FEET. & CcoNTRACTOR oA uL T WORK
sk K. CONTADLLER Y0 BE WSTALLED IN A SECURE LOCATION THE CONTROLLER SHALL THE BOWER SURPLY BY
34 CONTRACTOR IS TO LSE AS MUCHOF THAT BY THE PLAN CA BY THE OWNER. 5 uzumcuwwwu‘ﬂmmmncmhmm ':"r‘
SOIL SHALL 120 ve
35 LeEionY s e i - £ AL WAILAES T2 B LS S0 R AL LTI ne e
s2  FreEsuR THE OWNER, AMEND THE S0 0P SOL AND 1 PART COMPOST L ALLCPRNLERHEAS T0BE STHER £ FCP.4P CA < AN ALLDFIP LS To 8
ses: EUTTERS (0R SIMLI) i AL PLANTER 823
41 ALLLANTER BEDS TO HAVE ¥ OF ROCK 09 BARX MULCH. SEEPLIN FOR MULLH SELECTION. u mrumummmmmmmmmm_nm AHD LOCAL LAWS AN DRDMANCES.
PR ALLERY,CF ML SHALL BEBETALED x THE COSRECT AMOUMT OF WATER.
ACCORONGTE 3 T ToseiEcT THE IRSIGATION LIS 47 TO
43 DEIDUDUE SHADE TAEES S<ALLSE PRLNED T0 A MM HEGHT 0¥ ESHT FEST (8) ASOVE ADJACENT are THAT 4 ATLEAST TYICE THE ST OF THE LATERAL O HANLIE
55 AL TREES PLANTED ILERN AREAS TO AAVE A VIDE TRE WELL T £ B4RE EARTH 5 L
L ARERS: 0N THE EVENT OF A DISCREPARCY, PLEASE NOTIY THE LANDSCAPE ARCHTECT o
S1. ALL LAWN AREAS TO WCLUDE A AL ALLFROFOSEDIRRISATIN VALYES TO BE OFEFATED BY THE FRCS0D ) L s, o,
S2. 171G THE RESPONSEILITY OF THE WNER TO MANTZIN THE FELLTH OF THE LAWN ONCE THE S0DIE IRSTALLED. VALYES, PFING, SPRAY HEADS, FTIGS T WAKE THE SYGTEM FULLY QPERATIONAL o
S5, FTHE OWNER AEQUESTS HYDRDSEED, THE OWNER MUST WAINTAN THE SEED ONCE TS DOWNL rERE ooz )
FOR THE END LODK 0 THAT ILL GROW M THE LU
e
61, CONTRACTOR TO STALL 7O WATER AL LAWN AN PLENTER EEDS
52 AL LAWNARERS TO BE RRIGATED USHG POP-UP SPRAT HEADS OF ADTORS
55 PLaNTER SED5 THAT PROVIDE ADEQUATE WATER TO ALL PLANTS
enrs: L )
2l OWNER MUST NOTIFY | THE PLAN AND -
‘THE LANDSCAPE SPECIFICATIONS. s )
72 o CONTRACTOR, 480 OHER. AL
CHANGES TO D
we O IVE AL FARTIES AMFLE TME T FROCESS THE CHANGE
440 DETERMIE PAICE CrIGES
ACHD STORMWATER FAGLIT
&1 TREES CHALL NOT B PLANTED WITHI THE 10 CLEX ZDNE OF ALL ACHD DRAN PIE, STRUCTUFES, OF FACILTES
s FROM M0 MWD ALL Linow o Tre
LANDSCAPE FRIGATION SYSTEN
[E
TS0 A e RALIG MO FEET L
Temesan P N
suce CUTTING EDGE LANDSCAPE|
5407 ALLWORTH STREET
L BRERR— BOISE. ID 83714
ey — 3
S (208) 3TE-4588
cutngadglinsieapecam
memioue conaroan ”
S SRR
2 NC31 WL COATID CramLI 10 romcs e d e ——
ENER
s rn ik PR T coumem
o oS D o) [r—
INNCVATION
e P SCHOOL
[ 5
( PRELIMINARY IRRIGATION &
LANDSCAPE SPECS
DECIDUOUS TREE PLANTING DETALL P SHRUB & PERENNIAL PLANTING DETAIL
YPRAL NSTALLATION 2 e — NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION
MERIDIAN, ID 83642
DT VAW COSTING 7O B2 BLACK B GOLOR. -
T —— ‘ L-2

Page 7




Item 7.

C. Conceptual Building Elevations (dated: 2/22/21)

EXTERIOR FINISHES

§guma USA

%

5 |
3
3 |
s
-
=4 H
= 1
; WEST ELEVATION 2 !
o
W
S
a i
=1
L zgs
(U

| [’

mmi

; NORTH ELEVATION

EXTERIOR rtsu[s | u |
i

; SOUTH ELEVATION e

215

Page 8




Item 7.

VIII.

CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS
A. PLANNING

1.

Future development of this site shall comply with the terms of the existing Development
Agreement, preliminary plat and final plat conditions of approval [H-2020-0066 (Apex RZ
MDA Inst. #2020-178120); H-2020-0057 (PP — Apex Southeast); FP-2020-0013 (Apex
Southeast No. 1) and the conditions contained herein.

The site/landscape plan submitted with the Certificate of Zoning Compliance application
shall be revised as follows:

a. Add a tree at the east end of the row of parking on the north side of the building in accord
with UDC 11-3B-8C.2d.

b. All mechanical equipment on the back of the building and outdoor service and equipment
areas should be incorporated into the overall design of buildings and landscaping so that
the visual and acoustic impacts of these functions are fully contained and out of view
from adjacent properties and public streets as set forth in UDC 11-3A-12.

c. Depict landscaping adjacent to the multi-use pathway along E. Lake Hazel Rd. per the
standards listed in UDC 11-3B-12C.

d. The 5-foot wide sidewalks proposed adjacent to parking shall either be widened two feet
(2’) to seven feet (7°) to allow for vehicle overhang (the length of the stall may be
decreased 2’ in this instance) or wheel stops should be provided in the adjacent parking
stalls to prevent vehicle overhang in accord with UDC 11-3C-5B.

e. Change the fencing type around the play area adjacent to S. Vertex Way from chainlink
to wrought iron.

f.  Depict all cross-walks to the school site as included in the school site checklist.
Direct access via E. Lake Hazel Rd. is prohibited.
Compliance with the standards listed in UDC 11-4-3-14 Education Institution is required.

Parking for the overall site shall be provided in accord with the standards listed in UDC 11-4-
3-141 for education institutions.

All development within the easement is required to comply with the Williams Developer’s
Handbook.

If this site develops prior to construction and installation of the street buffer improvements
associated with Apex Southeast Subdivision No. 1, these improvements are required to be
installed with this development.

A Certificate of Zoning Compliance and Design Review application shall be submitted and
approved for the proposed use prior to submittal of a building permit application. The design
of the site and structure shall comply with the standards listed in UDC 11-3A-19 and the design
standards listed in the Architectural Standards Manual.

The conditional use permit is valid for a maximum period of two (2) years unless otherwise
approved by the City. During this time, the Applicant shall commence the use as permitted in
accord with the conditions of approval, satisfy the requirements set forth in the conditions of
approval, and acquire building permits and commence construction of permanent footings or
structures on or in the ground as set forth in UDC 11-5B-6. A time extension may be requested
as set forth in UDC 11-5B-6F.

Page 9

216



https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH3REAPALDI_ARTASTREALDI_11-3A-12OUSEEQAR
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-14EDIN
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-14EDIN
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-14EDIN
https://www.williams.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/6/2020/04/2020-Developers-Handbook-FINAL-20200722-1.pdf
https://www.williams.com/wp-content/uploads/sites/6/2020/04/2020-Developers-Handbook-FINAL-20200722-1.pdf
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH4SPUSST_11-4-3-11DRROES
https://meridiancity.org/planning/current/architectural-standards
https://library.municode.com/id/meridian/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=TIT11UNDECO_CH5AD_ARTBSPPR_11-5B-6COUS

Item 7.

B. PUBLIC WORKS

1.

The proposed water main extension from S Peak Avenue must be an 8°” main. Connect the
fire line, water meter service line, and fire hydrant from the 8’ main extension.

Any changes to public water or sewer infrastructure must be reviewed and approved by
Public Works.

Water and sewer must be provided to and through this project to adjacent properties per City
Design Standards.

A streetlight plan is required to be submitted with the building permit application. Streetlights
shall be installed and operational prior to occupancy.

C. POLICE DEPARTMENT

Best practice safety suggestions:

Electronic (Audio/Video) entry into main entrance at the main exterior door and/or the entry
door just inside the vestibule.

Removal of sliding window at secretary’s office in vestibule to reduce the easy of
accessibility into the secure area of the school.

Built in blind in classroom door windows.

Recommend 3M ballistic and shatterproof laminate for main entry door and other exterior
entry points.

Proper numbering per IOSSS recommendations in exterior windows of each classroom.

Classroom numbers projecting double-sided wall signage above classroom doors (examples
attached).

Hanging signage in hallways T-intersections etc. providing information and ease of
movement by first responders throughout interior of the school.

BOISE PROJECT BOARD OF CONTROL

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=227459&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity

ADA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT (ACHD)

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228929&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity

NAMPA & MERIDIAN IRRIGATION DISTRICT (NMID)

https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228019&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity

G. DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL QUALITY (DEQ)
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228002&dbid=0&repo=MeridianC

ity

Page 10

217



https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=227459&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=227459&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228929&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228929&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228019&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228019&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228002&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228002&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

Item 7.

IX. FINDINGS
Conditional Use (UDC 11-5B-6)

Findings: The commission shall base its determination on the conditional use permit request upon the
following:

1.

That the site is large enough to accommodate the proposed use and meet all the dimensional and
development regulations in the district in which the use is located.

Staff finds the site is large enough to accommodate the proposed development and meet all
dimensional and development regulations of the C-C zoning district.

That the proposed use will be harmonious with the Meridian comprehensive plan and in accord
with the requirements of this title.

Staff finds the proposed K-12 education institution will be harmonious with the Comprehensive
Plan and is consistent with applicable UDC standards with the conditions noted in Section VIII of
this report.

That the design, construction, operation and maintenance will be compatible with other uses in
the general neighborhood and with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity and
that such use will not adversely change the essential character of the same area.

Staff finds the design, construction, operation and maintenance of the proposed use will be
compatible with other uses in the general neighborhood, with the existing and intended character
of the vicinity and will not adversely change the essential character of the area.

That the proposed use, if it complies with all conditions of the approval imposed, will not
adversely affect other property in the vicinity.

Staff finds the proposed use will not adversely affect other properties in the vicinity if it complies
with the conditions in Section VIII of this report.

That the proposed use will be served adequately by essential public facilities and services such as
highways, streets, schools, parks, police and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal,
water, and sewer.

Staff finds the proposed use will be served by essential public facilities and services as required.

That the proposed use will not create excessive additional costs for public facilities and services
and will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community.

Staff finds the proposed use will not create additional costs for public facilities and services and
will not be detrimental to the economic welfare of the community.

That the proposed use will not involve activities or processes, materials, equipment and
conditions of operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property or the general welfare by
reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors.

Staff finds the proposed use will not be detrimental to any persons, property or the general
welfare by the reasons noted above.

That the proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of a natural, scenic or
historic feature considered to be of major importance. (Ord. 05-1170, 8-30-2005, eff. 9-15-2005)

Staff finds the proposed use will not result in the destruction, loss or damage of any such features.

Additional findings for the alteration or extension of a nonconforming use:

Page 11

218




Item 7.

a.

That the proposed nonconforming use does not encourage or set a precedent for additional

nonconforming uses within the area; and,

This finding is not applicable.

That the proposed nonconforming use is developed to a similar or greater level of conformity
with the development standards as set forth in this title as compared to the level of

development of the surrounding properties.

This finding is not applicable.

Page 12

219




O@/ﬂa IDIAN

AGENDA ITEM

ITEM TOPIC: Public Hearing for The 10 at Meridian (H-2021-0025) by J-U-B Engineers, Inc.,

Located at 75 S. Ten Mile Rd.
A. Request: Annexation of 40.30 acres of land with R-40 (13.04-acres) and C-C (27.25-acres)

zoning districts.




Item 8.

Q% IDIAN~

PUBLIC HEARING INFORMATION

Staff Contact: Sonya Allen Meeting Date:  May 20, 2021
Public Hearing for The 10 at Meridian (H-2021-0025) by J-U-B Engineers, Inc,,
Located at 75 S. Ten Mile Rd.
A. Request: Annexation of 40.30 acres of land with R-40 (13.04-acres) and C-C
(27.25-acres) zoning districts.

Topic:

Information Resources:

Click Here for Application Materials

Click Here to Sign Up to Testify at the Planning and Zoning Commission Public Hearing

221



http://bit.ly/H-2021-0025
https://apps.meridiancity.org/SIGNINPZ/

Item 8.

STAFF REPORT
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

Cﬂ/ﬂs IDIAN

HEARING  May 20, 2021
DATE:

TO:
FROM:

208-884-5533

SUBJECT:  H-2021-0025

LOCATION:

The 10 at Meridian — AZ

zoning districts.

SUMMARY OF REPORT
A. Project Summary

Description

Planning & Zoning Commission

Sonya Allen, Associate Planner

75 S. Ten Mile Rd. at the southwest T
corner of W. Franklin Rd. and S. Ten
Mile Rd., in the NE ¥4 of Section 15,
Township 3N., Range 1W.

PROJECT DESCRIPTION
The Applicant requests annexation of 40.30 acres of land with R-40 (13.04-acres) and C-C (27.25-acres)

Legend EECHE,

[@ Project Locafion !
L
1

I

Jn'
i
!
!
o
T T e

Cop

Details

Bt "‘“——._;F—T
__-\-ié

Page

Acreage
Future Land Use Designation

Existing Land Use
Proposed Land Use(s)
Current Zoning
Proposed Zoning

Neighborhood meeting date; # of
attendees:

40.30-acres

Mixed Use Commercial (22+/- acres); High Density
Residential (11+/- acres); Mixed Use Residential (3+/- acres)
Undeveloped agricultural land

Mixed use (residential/commercial)

RUT in Ada County

R-40 (High-Density Residential) (13.04-acres) and C-C
(Community Business) (27.25-acres)

3/29/2021; no attendees other than property owner

History (previous approvals)

None

222

Page 1




Item 8.

B. Community Metrics

223

Description | Details | Page
Ada County Highway District
o Staff report (yes/no) No
e Requires ACHD Commission | No
Action (yes/no)

Access (Arterial/Collectors/State
Hwy/Local)(Existing and Proposed)

Two (2) accesses are proposed via Franklin Rd., two (2)
accesses are proposed via Ten Mile Rd., and one (1) access is
proposed via Cobalt Dr.

Fire Service

No comments were submitted.

Police Service

See comments in Section IX.D.

Wastewater

Distance to Sewer Services
Sewer Shed
Estimated Project Sewer ERU’s

Adjacent to parcel
South Black Cat trunkshed
See application

WRRF Declining Balance 14.14
Project Consistent with WW Yes
Master Plan/Facility Plan
Impacts/Concerns None
Water

Distance to Water Services

Adjacent to parcel

Pressure Zone 2
Estimated Project Water ERU’s See application
Water Quality None
Project Consistent with Water Yes
Master Plan
Impacts/Concerns None

Page 2




Item 8.

C. Project Maps

Future Land Use Map
J]
legend |

[ Project Locafion

legend

[ Project Locafion

I1l. APPLICANT INFORMATION
A. Applicant:

Aerial Map
legend Lol s e

legend

[ Project Locafion

—- - - -
i city Limits

— Planmned Parcels

Wendy Shrief, J-U-B Engineers, Inc. — 250 S. Beechwood Ave., Ste. 201, Boise, ID 83709

B. Owner:

Erik Pilegaard, Elk Ventures, LLC — 5137 Golden Foothills Parkway, Ste. 100, EI Dorado, CA 95762

Page 3

224




Item 8.

C. Representative:

Same as Applicant

IV. NOTICING

Planning & Zoning
Posting Date

225

City Council
Posting Date

Newspaper notification
published in newspaper

Radius notification mailed to
property owners within 300 feet

Public hearing notice sign posted
on site

Nextdoor posting

4/30/2021

4/27/2021

5/7/2021
4/27/2021

V. COMPREHENSIVE PLAN ANALYSIS

LAND USE: The majority of this property is designated Mixed Use Commercial (MU-COM) (northeast 22+/-
acres) and High Density Residential (HDR) (southwest 11+/- acres) on the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) in
the Comprehensive Plan with a narrow sliver of Mixed Use Residential (MU-RES) (3+/- acres) along the
southern boundary which will mostly be right-of-way for W. Cobalt Dr. This property is located within the
area governed by the Ten Mile Interchange Specific Area Plan (TMISAP).

The purpose of the MU-COM designation is to encourage the development of a mixture of office, retail,
recreational, employment, and other miscellaneious uses, with supporting multi-family or single-family
attached residential uses (see pg. 3-9 in the TMISAP for more information).

HDR designated areas are multiple-family housing areas where relatively larger and taller apartment
buildings are the recommended building type. HDR areas should include a mix of housing types that achieve
an overall average density target of at least 16-25 dwelling units per gross acre (see pg. 3-7 in the TMISAP

for more information).

The purpose of the MU-RES designation is to encourage a diversity of compatible land uses that may
include a mixture of residential, office, retail, recreational, employment, and other miscellaneous uses (see
pg. 3-8 in the TMISAP for more information).

Mixed use designated areas in the TMISAP are recommended locations for development of activity centers
that are specifically planned to include both residential and non-residential uses. Mixed use areas are
anticipated to have 3 or more significant income producing uses (i.e. retail, office, residential and lodging
facilities) with significant functional and physical integration in conformance with a coherent plan (pgs. 3-7

& 3-8).

The site is proposed to develop with a mix of uses (horizontal and vertical) as shown on the conceptual
development plan in Section VI1I1.B. High-density 4-story multi-family residential apartments (380 1- and 2-
bedroom units) are proposed in the HDR & MU-RES designated portions of the site with 3-story multi-
family flats (137 1- and 2-bedroom units) and townhouse style (24 3-bedroom units) units with a
clubhouse/recreation center [14,000 square feet (s.f.)], 3-story vertically integrated mixed use [primarily
retail uses on the 1% floor (20,025 s.f.) with residential (42 1- and 2-bedroom units) on the 2" and 3" floors]
and single-story financial institution (5,000 s.f.), mixed use service retail buildings (52,775 s.f.) and
restaurants (9,250 s.f.) with drive-throughs with 2-story office buildings (46,600 s.f.) proposed in the MU-
COM designated portion of the site adjacent to Franklin and Ten Mile Roads. A total of 559 residential units
and 147,650 s.f. of commercial uses are proposed to develop in the overall site.

Page 4



https://meridiancity.org/planning/files/compplan/191217%20Meridian%20Comprehensive%20Plan.pdf
https://meridiancity.org/planning/files/10mile-191217-Full.pdf

Item 8.

226

Staff finds the mix of income producing uses proposed as well as the vertical and horizontal integration of
such uses and residential densities interconnected by pedestrian walkways and amenities is generally
consistent with the goals of the TMISAP for this area.

Transportation: Cobalt Drive is proposed to be extended as a collector street from S. Ten Mile Rd. at the
southeast corner and along the southern boundary of the site consistent with the Master Street Map in the
Comprehensive Plan and the Transportation System Map in the TMISAP. The proposed collector street
network approved with the annexation of the Janicek property to the south (AZ-11-001, DA Inst.
#112073616) depicts the extension of Cobalt as proposed with this application with the western segment
lying off-site on the adjacent property to the south.

Design: Conceptual building elevations were submitted for the multi-family residential structures and the
associated clubhouse building. The design of the proposed multi-family structures appear to be of a high
quality and are generally consistent in style, materials and colors. Elevations weren’t submitted for the
commercial portion of the development as tenants are unknown at this time. Final design of the site and all
structures is required to comply with the design elements of the TMISAP per the Application of
Design Elements matrix on pg. 3-49 of the TMISAP and the design standards in the Architectural
Standards Manual. The commercial portion of the development should incorporate similar design
elements, colors and materials as the residential portion of the development.

Goals, Objectives, & Action Items: Staff finds the following Comprehensive Plan policies to be applicable
to this application and apply to the proposed use of this property (staff analysis in italics):

e “Encourage a variety of housing types that meet the needs, preferences, and financial capabilities of
Meridian’s present and future residents.” (2.01.02D)

A variety of multi-family housing is proposed in this development consisting of flats, townhome and
apartment style units, which will contribute to the variety of housing types in the City, specifically in
the Ten Mile area as desired, that should cater to different financial capabilities.

o “Permit new development only where it can be adequately served by critical public facilities and
urban services at the time of final approval, and in accord with any adopted levels of service for
public facilities and services.” (3.03.03F)

City water and sewer services are available and can be extended by the developer with development
in accord with UDC 11-3A-21.

e “Locate higher density housing near corridors with existing or planned transit, Downtown, and in
proximity to employment centers.” (2.01.01H)

The site is located at a major intersection along two major mobility arterials (Franklin and Ten Mile
Roads) and in close proximity to employment centers. Transit services exist in the Ten Mile Crossing
development to the east at the intersection of Vanguard/Wayfinder to serve this area — other transit

stops may be added in the future.

e  “Encourage and support mixed-use areas that provide the benefits of being able to live, shop, dine,
play, and work in close proximity, thereby reducing vehicle trips, and enhancing overall livability
and sustainability.” (3.06.02B)

The proposed project with multi-family residential and a grocery store with nearby employment
(retail/office uses) and restaurant uses, should provide a good mix of uses that residents won 't have
to travel far for, thus reducing vehicle trips and enhancing overall livability and sustainability.

o “Slow the outward progression of the City's limits by discouraging fringe area development; encourage
development of vacant or underutilized parcels currently within City limits.” (4.05.03B)

Page 5



Item 8. 227

This property is an enclave surrounded by City annexed land. Annexation and development of this
property will maximize public services.

e “Annex lands into the corporate boundaries of the City only when the annexation proposal conforms

to the City's vision and the necessary extension of public services and infrastructure is provided.”
(3.03.03)

The proposed development plan is generally conisistent with the City’s vision for this property
through the Comprehensive Plan; the developer will extend public services and infrastructure as
needed for the development.

VI. STAFF ANALYSIS
A. ANNEXATION & ZONING

The Applicant proposes to annex 40.30 acres of land with R-40 (13.04-acres) and C-C (27.25-acres)
zoning districts. A conceptual development plan was submitted as shown in Section VII1.B that proposes
offices, a financial establishment, retail pads, a grocery store, vertically integrated residential and multi-
family residential in accord with the associated MU-COM, HDR and MU-RES, FLUM designations for
the property.

A phasing plan was not submitted; however, the Applicant states the 3-story flats and townhome style
multi-family residential and clubhouse would develop in the first phase along with the associated
infrastructure; the 4-story high-density multi-family would follow with the commercial last as tenants
commit.

The proposed C-C zoning district is listed as a possible zoning choice in the MU-COM and MU-RES;
and the R-40 zoning district is listed as the best choice in the HDR and possible choice in the MU-RES
FLUM designation, per the Zoning District Compatability Matrix in the TMISAP (pgs. 2-4 & 2-5).

The Kennedy Lateral bisects this site and is proposed to be tiled in certain areas and left open in others
as shown on the conceptual development plan. The UDC (11-3A-6B.3) required all laterals crossing or
lying within the area being developed to be piped or otherwise covered unless left open and used as a
water amenity or linear open space as defined in UDC 11-1A-1. The decision making body may waive
the requirement for covering such lateral if it finds that the public purpose requiring such will not be
served and public safety can be preserved. A waiver from Council is requested for portions of the
lateral proposed to be left open; if not approved, the lateral is required to be piped.

Access to the site is proposed as shown on the conceptual development plan in Section VIII.B. ACHD
has reviewed the proposed accesses and supports the following: Access A — full access; Access B —
right-in/right-out only; Access C — right-out only; Access D — right-in/right-out only; and Cobalt — right-
in/right-out/left-in only. Staff recommends access is restricted through the Development Agreement
as supported by ACHD per the comments in Section IX.K.

Page 6



Item 8. 228

Off-street parking is depicted on the concept plan to serve the mixed use development. Based on (291) 1-
bedroom units, (250) 2- and 3-bedroom units and 42 vertically integrated residential units, a minimum of
979 spaces consisting of 541 covered spaces and 396 uncovered spaces are required per UDC Table 11-
3C-6; a total of 1,034 spaces are depicted. Based on 138,400 s.f. of non-residential uses, a minimum of
277 spaces are required per UDC 11-3C-6B.1 and based on 9,250 s.f. of restaurant uses, a minimum of
37 spaces are required per UDC 11-4-3-49A.1, for a total of 314 spaces; a total of 448 spaces are
proposed in excess of the minimum standards.

The proposed annexation area is contiguous to City annexed property and is within the Area of City
Impact Boundary. A legal description and exhibit map for the annexation area is included in Section
VIILA.

The City may require a development agreement (DA) in conjunction with an annexation pursuant to
Idaho Code section 67-6511A. To ensure the site develops as proposed with this application, Staff
recommends a DA is required as a provision of annexation (see provision in Section IX.A).
VII. DECISION
A. Staff:

Staff recommends approval of the proposed Annexation & Zoning with the requirement of a
Development Agreement per the provisions in Section IX in accord with the Findings in Section X.

Page 7



Item 8.

EXHIBITS
A. Annexation & Zoning Legal Description and Exhibit Map

EXHIBIT __
DESCRIPTION FOR

THE 10 AT MERIDIAN
CITY OF MERIDIAMN ANMEXATION

The NE1/4 of the NE1/4 of Section 15, T.3N., R.1W.. B.M.. City of Meridian, Ada County,
Idaho more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at ME corner of said Section 15 from which the N1/4 comer of said Section
15 bears North 89°15'23" West, 2640.72 feet;

thence along the East boundary line of said Section 15 South 00°33'16" West, 1,329.09
feet to the N1/18 corner of said Section 15;

thence along the South boundary line of the NE1/4 of the NE1/4 of said Section 15 North
89"15'02" Wesl, 1,321.18 leel o the NE1/16 of said Seclion 135,

thence along the West boundary line of NE1/4 of the NE1/4 of said Section 15 Nerth
00°35'22" East, 1,328.56 feet to the E1/16 corner of said Section 15;

thence along the Morth boundary line of said Section 15 South 85°15'23" East, 1,320.37
feet to the REAL POINT OF BEGINNING. Containing 40.20 acres, more or less.

229

Page 8




Item 8.

230

BASIS OF BEARING
NEI15'23"W 2840.72'

W. FEANKLIN RD.
SBSM523°E 132037

515 \ 1320.35° ?

1755334 s.f.

SO0°3316°W 1329.09°

5. TEN MILE RD.

NO"35'22"E 1328.95"

NBII502"W 1321.18'

@ SCALE: 1"=300'




Item 8.

EXHIBIT _
DESCRIPTION FOR

THE 10 AT MERIDIAN
CITY OF MERIDIAN ZONE CC

A portion of land locatad in the NE1/4 of the NE1/4 of Section 15, T.2N., R.AW.,

B.M., City of Meridian, Ada County, ldaho more particularly described as follows:

BEGINNING at ME comer of said Section 15 from which the N1/4 corner of
said section 15 bears North 89°15'23" West, 2640.72 feet;

thence along the East boundary line of said Section 15 South 00°33'18" West,
1,329.00 feet to the N1/16 corner of said Section 15;

thence along the South boundary line of the ME1/4 of the NE1/4 of said Section
15 Morth B9%15'02" West, 2027 feet;

thence leaving said South boundary line North 57°06'08" West, 149.94 feet;

thence North 60°22'50" West, 293 40 feet;

thence North 58°00'44" West, 371.54 feet;

thence 131.1% feet along the arc of curve to the right, said curve having a
radius of 500.00 feet, a central angle of 15°02'00" and a long chord which bears North

50°29'44" West, 130 81 feat;

thence Morth 42°58'44" \West, 723.60 feet to a point on the West boundary line
of NE1/4 of the NE1/4 of said Section 15;

thence along said West boundary line North 00°35'22" East, 310.05 feet to the
E1/18 corner of said Section 15;

thence along the Morth boundary line of said Section 15 South 88°15'23" East,
1,320.37 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. Containing 27.25 acres, more or less.

Page 1 of 1

Page 10

231




Item 8.

232
BASIS OF BEARING S10 | 5.1
f ‘f MNBIS'23"W 2640.72"
S5.10 _1/4 E1/16 W. FRANKLIN RD.
O LN s @ s RN RO
S.15 1320.35 / SB915'23"E 1320.37'
Mgy
=
=
"
I
L ZONE CC > 5
1o+ 4',53 el SR
R - ME7150 s.f, SN
8, * L 2N, 27,25 9 =g
ﬁl i+ N4 =
ml+ + + + :‘E =
,L-NJ.+++++++4+ EE
R + + 4+ o+ # % ol
nl= + 0+ 4+ 4+
MmIT+ + + o+ o+ o+
= 1 B A
= O+ + + + + + 4+ o
+  + ZQEIE E_iﬂ + o+ 5
+ . - , i 13&%
T, 568184 sf, LT LTSS
+ 4+ 1304 e + + + 4+ + F /
+ + + + + + + + + + + + |
. T T A S S T /
:+++++++T+_+++++_++Nﬁ_ﬂ‘zz'm'w*-,_-'—_‘_ 20.27
+ 4+ 4+ &+ o 29340+ +  + /
&);_t e 2130081 4+ s s i S T N, SN ‘.
NE 1‘;15 NB9"15'02"W 1321.18 11)’15
CURVE TABLE
CURVE | RADIUS | LENGTH | CHORD DIST. | CHORD BRG. DELTA
1 500,00 | 13119 130.81 550°29'44"E | 15'02°00"
Z@ SCALE: 1%=300°
0 75130 300 GO0
Faa 10 Ulle o8 Elaridins feinss i1 alla ) e VR b jhTha B8 81 Lins 1 Al A
IDAHO EXHIBIT __ DRAWING FOR P
I THE 10 AT MERIDIAN L
SURVEY  isss™ RE—ZONE 1
GROUP, LLC LOGATED I W€ NE X 0F T Ne X oF sEchov 16, TN 3o /20




Item 8.

EXHIBIT __
DESCRIPTION FOR

THE 10 AT MERIDIAM
CITY OF MERIDIAN ZONE R-40

A portion of land located in the NE1/4 of the NE1/4 of Section 15, T.3N., RAW., BM.,
City of Meridian, Ada County, Idaho more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at NE corner of said Section 15 from which the N1/4 corner of said Section
15 bears Morth 89°15'23" West, 2640.72 fest;

thence along the East boundary line of said Section 15 South 00°33'16" West, 1,329.08
feet to the N1/16 corner of said Section 15;

thence along the South boundary line of the NE1/4 of the NE1/4 of said Section 15 North
BYT15'02" West, 20.27 feet the REAL POINT OF BEGINNING;

thence continuing along said South boundary line Morth 88°15'02" West, 1,300.91 feet to
the NE1/16 of said Section 15,

thence along the West boundary line of NE1/4 of the NE1/4 of sald Section 15 Morth
00°35'22" East, 1.018.91 feet,

thence leaving said West boundary line South 42°58'44" East, 723.60 feet,

thence 131.19 feet along the arc of curve to the left, said curve having a radius of 500.00
feet, a central angle of 15°02'00" and a long chord which bears South 50°25'44" East, 130.81
feet,

thence South 58°00'44" East, 371.54 feet;

thence South 60°22'50" East, 293.40 feet;

thence South 57°06'08" East, 149.24 feet to the REAL POINT OF BEGINNING.
Containing 13.04 acres, more or less.

Page 1 of 1

Page 12

233




Item 8.

234
BASIS OF BEARING S.10 | S.11
MBS15'23"W 264072 515 | 5.14
S.10 _1/4 E1/16 W. FRANKLIN RD.
5.15E ' 7320.35 ? i’ / S8815'23°E 1320.37' 7
Ha
1o
=
=
1
. |
X ZONE CC % o
T € A5 g e
I+ }‘:% 1187130 =.f. IS
-g + ' + +f"3 ;.!'e- ‘ a = =
ﬁ- + o+ oN4E ==X
ml+  + 4+ o+ -Eg =
II-IJI—++++++++ EF—J
ﬁ + 4+ + + + E o
iy T T
IR+ ¢+ o+ 4
o= [T (o
LIS+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+
¥ o+ ZONE R=40 + +
oA 4 3
1L tLse818d s, LT, T s _
+ + 1304 gac. + + + /
+ 4+ + + 4+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ o+ 4 |
+ o+ 4+ + o+ =+ o+ 4+ o+ /
:++++++++++.._+++++.._+HED‘EE’ED'W'+++ 44 20.27"
+ 0+ o+ o+ L+ 4 4 293,40 = = =+ <
(5"-"— st 130091 4 & 4 o+ & _+ R S 4’1
ME 1;{15 NESM5'0Z™W 1321.18' = M 1;16
CURVE TABLE
CURVE | RADIUS | LENGTH | CHORD DIST. | CHORD BRG. DELTA
1 500.00 | 13119 130.81 S50'29°447°E | 15°02'007
@ SCALD: 1%=300
—————
o ¥3 120 200 G600
EXHIBIT __ DRAWING FOR 08 G
IDAHO R THE 10 AT MERIDIAN s
SURVEY A RE—ZONE 1
GROUP, LLC LoD MR STl o5 R ™ 37io 20

Page 13




Item 8. 235

B. Conceptual Development Plan (dated: March 10, 2021)

J o\ J 4 -
Franklin Road !
(
©
~
=]
©<
o
=
Project Summary °
High Density Apanments. 380 units f
1523 i = S %
2BR- 15T s 2%
Fats 137 units '
18R ssunz 0% \S
2BR-20units =50%
Townhomes 24 units
$6R-20unm
Mixd Use Apaniments 42unts
TBR-26 unks = 57 %
287 1Bunts <43 %
Total Reskiential Units 559 units.
Parking Required 244 spaces
Parking Proviced 1,034 spaces.
Commercial
QSR Pad Bulldings 1-3 22505t
Financial Pad w Drive Thu .000 81 |
offce 46,500 5t R
Retal 527758
Mixed Use Service Retall 20,025 sf |
Recreation Center 14,000 st i .
Total Commercial Use 147,650 8¢ i
Parking Requird 298 spaces !
Parking Provided 443 spaces i ¥
|

10 Mile Road & Franklin Road Residential & Commercial Mixed Use Center Scale: 1" =80

March 10, 2021

Page 14



Item 8.

C. Conceptual Building Elevations
Multi-Family (Flats):

A-1lsLoG

B-1[sLoG

236




Item 8.

Page 16

237




238

Item 8.

i

Page 17




239

Item 8.

Page 18




240

Item 8.

Multi-Family (Townhome Style):

FRONT

Page 19




241

Item 8.

Multi-Family (High-Density Apartments):

E
]

REAR

E

Page 20




Item 8.

Clubhouse:

FRONT

RIGHT

REAR

LEFT

242

X

BT,

i+




243

Item 8.

Page 22




Item 8.

244

IX. CITY/AGENCY COMMENTS & CONDITIONS
A. PLANNING DIVISION

1. A Development Agreement (DA) is required as a provision of annexation of this property. Prior to
approval of the annexation ordinance, a DA shall be entered into between the City of Meridian, the
property owner(s) at the time of annexation ordinance adoption, and the developer.

Currently, a fee of $303.00 shall be paid by the Applicant to the Planning Division prior to
commencement of the DA. The DA shall be signed by the property owner and returned to the
Planning Division within six (6) months of the City Council granting the annexation. The DA shall,
at minimum, incorporate the following provisions:

a.

The subject property shall develop in substantial compliance with the conceptual development
plan and building elevations in Section VI1I1.B and the land use, transportation, and design
elements of the Ten Mile Interchange Specific Area Plan (TMISAP).

The project shall comply with the applicable design elements as noted in the Application of
Design Elements matrix in the TMISAP (see pg. 3-49) and the design standards in the
Architectural Standards Manual.

Access to the site via W. Franklin Rd., S. Ten Mile Rd. and W. Cobalt Dr. shall be restricted as
recommended by ACHD in Section IX.K.

The subject property shall be subdivided prior to any development occurring on the site.

The Kennedy Lateral shall be piped in its entirety where it crosses the subject property as
required by UDC 11-3A-6B.3 unless otherwise waived by City Council as set forth in UDC 11-
3A-6B.3a.

Page 23




Item 8.

245

B. PuBLIC WORKS
1. Site Specific Conditions of Approval
1.1 Any unused sanitary sewer and/or water services or mains must be abandoned.
1.2 Ensure no permanent structures (trees, bushes, carports, trash enclosures, etc.) are built within any
utility easements.
C. FIRE DEPARTMENT

No comments were received.

D. POLICE DEPARTMENT
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=227946&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

E. PARK’S DEPARTMENT

No comments were received.

F. NAMPA & MERIDIAN IRRIGATION DISTRICT (NMID)
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228197 &dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

G. ApA COUNTY DEVELOPMENT SERVICES
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=227634&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

H. CENTRAL DISTRICT HEALTH
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228247&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

I. COMMUNITY PLANNING ASSOCIATION OF SOUTHWEST IDAHO (COMPASS)
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228703&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

J. COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT SCHOOL IMPACT TABLE
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228965&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

K. ApA COUNTY HIGHWAY DISTRICT (ACHD)
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=229278&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

L. WEST ADA SCHOOL DISTRICT (WASD)
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228985&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

X. FINDINGS

A. Annexation and/or Rezone (UDC 11-5B-3E)

Required Findings: Upon recommendation from the commission, the council shall make a full
investigation and shall, at the public hearing, review the application. In order to grant an annexation
and/or rezone, the council shall make the following findings:

Page 24



https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=227946&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228197&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=227634&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228247&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228703&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228965&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=229278&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity
https://weblink.meridiancity.org/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=228985&dbid=0&repo=MeridianCity

Item 8. 246

1. The map amendment complies with the applicable provisions of the comprehensive plan;

The Applicant is proposing to annex the subject 40.30-acre property with R-40 and C-C zoning
districts consistent with the MU-COM, HDR and MU-RES FLUM designations for this property. (See
section V above for more information.)

2. The map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the proposed district,
specifically the purpose statement;

Staff finds the proposed map amendment complies with the regulations outlined for the R-40 and C-
C zoning districts and the purpose statements of the residential and commercial districts.

3. The map amendment shall not be materially detrimental to the public health, safety, and
welfare;

Staff finds the proposed map amendment will not be detrimental to the public health, safety and
welfare in this area.

4. The map amendment shall not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of services by any
political subdivision providing public services within the city including, but not limited to,
school districts; and

Staff finds the proposed map amendment will not result in an adverse impact upon the delivery of
services by any political subdivision providing public services.

5. The annexation (as applicable) is in the best interest of city.
Staff finds the proposed annexation is in the best interest of the City.

Page 25



	Top
	Item 1.	MIN 2021-05-06 Planning and Zoning Commission
	Meeting Minutes

	Item 2.	FFCL H-2021-0018 Jump Creek North Four-Plex
	Findings
	Exhibit A

	Item 3.	FFCL H-2021-0019 Mountain America Credit Union
	Findings
	Exhibit A

	Item 4.	FFCL H-2021-0004 The Oasis
	Findings
	Exhibit A

	Item 5.	FFCL H-2021-0017 The Vault
	Findings
	Exhibit A

	Item 6.	PHPZ H-2021-0021 Prevail North Subdivision
	Memo
	Staff Report

	Item 7.	PHPZ H-2021-0020 Gem Prep South
	Memo
	Staff Report

	Item 8.	PHPZ H-2021-0025 The 10 at Meridian
	Memo
	Staff Report

	Bottom

